Public Document Pack

£Q AP

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Councillor Crockett, Convener; Councillor Milne, Vice-Convener; and Councillors
Allan, Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Delaney, Finlayson, Grant, Jaffrey, MacGregor,
McCaig, Jean Morrison MBE, Thomson and Yuill.

Town House,
ABERDEEN 14 January 2013

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
COMMITTEE

The Members of the ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE

COMMITTEE are requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY,
22 JANUARY 2013 at 2.00 pm.

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION
There are none at present.

DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

2.1 Members are Requested to Resolve that any Exempt Business on this
Agenda be Considered with the Press and Public Excluded.

MINUTE

3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 6 November 2012 (Pages 1 - 24)

3.2 Minute of Special Meeting of 6 December 2012 (Pages 25 - 28)




4

MOTIONS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone - Referred from Council on 19
December 2012 (Pages 29 - 32)

‘In view of the recent decision to reduce the speed Ilimit from the
Kingswells roundabout to Blacktop from 60mph to 40mph, that officers be
instructed to report on the implications of this for the neighbouring rural
roads network including Countesswells Road, Kirk Brae and Baillieswells
Road, and on the need to ensure consistency of speed limits in the area,
instruct the Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Finance to
identify an appropriate budget from which to fund any works which officers
may propose.”

Notice of Motion by Councillor Greig - Referred from Council on 19
December 2012 (Pages 33 - 36)

“That the Council recognises and appreciated the key role that micro, small
and medium sized local businesses, including shops and single traders in
Aberdeen, as economic generators which play a major part in determining
and enhancing the quality of life across the city.

That this Council undertakes a broad-ranging review to identify specific
ways that the Council and its partners can work together to support and
foster micro, small and medium sized business activity.

To this end, that the Council carries out a consultation exercise to enable
micro, small and medium sized business people to have their say in
identifying specific suggestions and proposals; and that a report is
produced with recommendations for action.”

Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart - Removing/Ending On Street
Sunday Parking Charges (Pages 37 - 42)

Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart - Future Meetings of the
Development Management Sub-Committee (Pages 43 - 46)

Joint Motion by Councillors Yuill, Delaney and Malone - Requlatory Regime
for Local Bus Services (Pages 47 - 60)

Motion by Councillor Yuill - Restrictions that Would Prevent Heavy or Large
Goods Vehicles from Using Broomhill Road as a Through Route. (Pages
61 - 68)




FINANCE

5.1 Capital Monitoring - Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Projects (Pages
69 - 74)

5.2 2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring (Pages 75 - 84)

ENTERPRISE

6.1 Twinning & International Partnerships (Pages 85 - 100)

6.2 Sponsorship of Business Awards (Pages 101 - 106)

6.3 Community Festive Fund - 2011 and 2012 (Pages 107 - 122)

6.4 International Trade Plan 2013-2014 (Pages 123 - 132)

6.5 Aberdeen Digital Connectivity Update Report (Pages 133 - 190)

PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

7.1 Aberdeen Local Development Plan - Development Plan Scheme (Pages
191 - 214)

7.2 Aberdeen Local Development Plan Policy on Affordable Housing
Requirements for New Development (Pages 215 - 220)

7.3 Adoption of Supplementary Guidance in Support of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan _(Pages 221 - 330)

7.4 Strategic and Local Transportation Projects Update Report (Pages 331 -
350)

INFRASTRUCTURE

PROPOSED TRAFFIC ORDERS COMING TO COMMITTEE FOR THE FIRST
TIME

8.1 Various Small Scale Traffic Management and Development Associated
Proposals (New Works) (Pages 351 - 374)




OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE, ROADS AND PARKING ISSUES

8.2 Informal Consultation for Traffic Calming in the Neighbouring Streets
around the Oakbank Residential Development - Mid Stocket Road (Pages
375 - 384)

8.3 The Bush, Peterculter - Proposed Road Closure (Pages 385 - 394)

8.4 Forresterhill and Garthdee - Proposed Revisions to On-Street Parking
Charges (Pages 395 - 408)

8.5 Restrictions that Would Prevent Heavy Goods Vehicles from using
Morningside Road, Cranford Road and Duthie Terrace as through routes.
(Pages 409 - 414)

8.6 Proposed Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone Extension (Pages 415 - 426)

9 COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND MOTIONS LIST

9.1 Committee Business Statement (Pages 427 - 454)

9.2 Motions List (Pages 455 - 466)

10 ITEMS WHICH THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE

10.1  Airyhall and Craigiebuckler Bus Services (Pages 467 - 472)

10.2  Aberdeen Renewable Energy Group Update Report (Pages 473 - 478)

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

To access the Information Bulletins for this Committee please use the following link:
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13008&path=13004

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark Masson,
tel. 522989 or email mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 3.1

2763

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

ABERDEEN, 6 November 2012. Minute of Meeting of the ENTERPRISE,
PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE. Present.- Councillor
Crockett, Convener; Councillor Milne, Vice-Convener; and Councillors Allan,
Boulton, Cameron (as substitute for Councillor Corall), Cormie, Delaney,
Finlayson, Jaffrey, Laing (as substitute for Councillor Grant), MacGregor, McCaig,
Jean Morrison MBE, Thomson, Young (as substitute for the Vice-Convener from
article 31) and Yuill.

Also in attendance: Councillor Malone (for article 9), Councillor Stewart (for article
11) and Councillor Townson (for article 10).

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:-
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=140&MId=2523&Ver=4

ORDER OF AGENDA

1. The Convener proposed that item 2.1 (Request for Deputation) and item 9.1
(West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan) be considered earlier on the agenda.

The Commiittee resolved:-
to concur with the proposal.

REQUEST FOR DEPUTATIONS

2, The Committee had before it two requests for deputation, one from Mrs Barrie
Buchan on behalf of Kingswells Community Council; and the other from John Findlay
on behalf of Ryden, both relating to item 9.1 (West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan)
on the agenda.

The Committee heard from the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development who
advised that there were a number of stages to be completed in the masterplanning
process, including public consultation and third party scrutiny. In the case in question,
both developer and objector had requested a deputation, meaning that the justification
from both parties could be heard. Otherwise, the Committee could potentially be asked
to hear only one argument, and this could be perceived as prejudicial to the planning
process. The Head of Planning and Sustainable Development advised the Committee
to decline the deputation requests, and to instruct officers to devise an appropriate
protocol for the purposes of hearing future representations on masterplans.

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to hear the deputations; and

(ii) to instruct officers to develop a protocol for hearing representations as part of the
masterplanning process, and to report back.

Page 1



2764

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

RECEPTION OF DEPUTATIONS

3. In terms of Standing Order 10(1), and as agreed at the beginning of the meeting
(article 2 refers), the Committee received a deputation from Mrs Barrie Buchan and Dr
Tom Straiton on behalf of Kingswells Community Council and Mr John Findlay on
behalf of Ryden in relation to the recommendations contained within the West
Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan report (article 5 refers).

Mrs Buchan advised that initially, she had not been against the development, however
she raised concerns in relation to the number of houses which were proposed to be
built which would impact on the primary school pupil roll. Mrs Buchan referred to the
current set up of the school buildings which included the use of portacabins. She also
sought clarification on the number of houses that could be built as part of the
development, which could rise from 138 to 146. She indicated that Kingswells
Community Council strongly objects to the building of houses on the old Lang Stracht
facing the valley. She urged the Committee not to approve the recommendations for
the masterplan today, and to defer the start date of the development until 2016.

Members were invited to ask questions of Mrs Buchan and Dr Straiton and then
thanked them for their contribution.

Mr Findlay provided background information in relation to the site masterplan and
outlined the development framework. He indicated that at the commencement of the
framework there was capacity within the primary school for additional pupils. He
intimated that extensive consultation had been undertaken which included two events
and meetings with Kingswells Community Council, following which 25 written
representations were received. Mr Findlay indicated that many of the issues were
addressed in appendix one of the masterplan. He advised that only a short section of
the old Lang Stracht would be upgraded and that the frontage development was a key
requirement which had been respected. He concluded by indicating that there were a
number of ongoing issues which would be negotiated to accommodate any shortfall in
educational provision and these would be addressed through the detailed planning
process.

Members were invited to ask questions of Mr Findlay and then thanked him for his
contribution.

ABERDEEN MASTERPLANNING PROCESS - EP1/12/231

4. With reference to article 24 of the minute of the previous meeting of 11
September 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which updated members on the principles and clarified
administrative aspects of the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process, adopted as
Supplementary Guidance to the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

Page 2



2765

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

The Committee received a presentation by Sandy Beattie, Team Leader, Enterprise
Planning and Infrastructure Service in relation to the Aberdeen Masterplanning
Process.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee —
(a) retain the adopted Aberdeen Masterplanning Process; and
(b) note the administrative changes to the community engagement in the process
namely:-
(i) Action Note to be circulated immediately following public meetings;
(i) Community councils to be given advance copy of draft masterplans a
minimum 14 days prior to the relevant Committee meeting; and
(i)  Written response from statutory consultees, including community councils,
to be appended to Committee reports following public consultation.

The Convener, seconded by the Vice-Convener, moved:-
that the recommendations as contained within the report be approved.

Councillor Delaney, seconded by Councillor Yuill moved as an amendment:-

that the Committee -

(i) consult with all relevant statutory consultees on finalised masterplans prior to
them being considered by Committee and incorporate their comments into the
Committee report;

(ii) agree recommendation (b); and

(i) retain the provisions of the adopted Aberdeen Masterplanning Process in all
other respects.

On a division, there voted:- for the motion (13) — the Convener, the Vice-Convener and
Councillors Allan, Boulton, Cameron, Cormie, Finlayson, Jaffrey, Laing, MacGregor,
McCaig, Jean Morrison MBE and Thomson; for the amendment (2) — Councillors
Delaney and Yuill.

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to adopt the motion; and

(i) to note that the presentation could be delivered to all political groups if
requested.

WEST HUXTERSTONE, KINGSWELLS MASTERPLAN - EPI1/12/222

5. With reference to article 24 of the minute of the previous meeting of 11
September 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which outlined the West Huxterstone, Kingswells
Masterplan, prepared as a guide for the future development of land identified as
Opportunity Site OP42 in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012). The report
also outlined the results of the public consultation.

Page 3



2766

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

The report recommended:-
that the Committee adopt the West Huxterstone, Kingswells Masterplan as
Supplementary Guidance subject to endorsement by the Scottish Government.

The Convener indicated his intention to move approval of the recommendation.

Councillor Delaney indicated that it was his intention to move an amendment in the
following terms:-
that the recommendation be approved, subject to the following revisions:-
(@) two exits will be made onto Fairley Road and none onto the old Lang
Stracht;
(b)  X-Type (West One) houses are not acceptable for the affordable housing
provision on this site; and
(c) development of this site be postponed until satisfactory capacity has been
identified to provide for the schooling of children from this development.

The Committee heard from the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development on the
terms of the amendment, specifically that if agreed by the Committee this would in all
likelihood prejudice the planning application process, the stage at which this level of
detail would actually be determined.

On this basis and in terms of Standing Order 18, the Convener ruled that the above
amendment would be incompetent and invited Councillor Delaney to adjust its terms
based on the advice given by officers.

Councillor Delaney then indicated his intention to move the following as an
amendment:-
that the recommendation be approved, subject to the following revisions:-
(@) allow for the possibility of two exists to be made onto Fairley Road as a
possible alternative to exiting onto the old Lang Stracht;
(b) instruct officers to look at a range of options for affordable housing rather
than restrict this to any one type; and
(c) phase the site development in conjunction with advice from the Education,
Culture and Sport Service.

The Commiittee resolved:-

to approve the recommendation, subject to the following revisions:-

(i) allow for the possibility of two exists to be made onto Fairley Road as a possible
alternative to exiting onto the old Lang Stracht;

(ii) instruct officers to look at a range of options for affordable housing rather than
restrict this to any one type; and

(i)  phase the site development in conjunction with advice from the Education,
Culture and Sport Service.

Page 4



2767

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

6. Prior to considering the matters before the Committee, the Committee resolved
in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude
the press and public from the meeting for articles 39, 40 and 41 so as to avoid
disclosure of exempt information of the class described in paragraphs 6 and 8 (article
39), 1 and 6 (article 40) and 8 (article 41) of Schedule 7(A) to the Act.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 11 SEPTEMBER 2012

7. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 11
September, 2012.

The Convener, seconded by the Vice-Convener moved as a procedural motion:-
that the minute be amended at article 24 resolution (i) to read:-
“to delay consideration of the report until the next meeting of the
Committee during which time officers to consult on the masterplan”, thus
deleting the words “with Kingswells Community Council”.

On a division, there voted:- for the procedural motion — (6) the Convener, the Vice
Convener and Councillors Allan, Boulton, Jean Morrison MBE and Thomson; against
the procedural motion — (5) Councillors Cormie, Delaney, Finlayson, Jaffrey and Yuill;
declined to vote — (4) Councillors Cameron, Laing, MacGregor and McCaig.

The Commiittee resolved:-
(i) to adopt the procedural motion; and
(i) to otherwise approve the minute.

NORTH EAST SCOTLAND FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP -
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS

8. The Committee had before it a request to appoint five members to the North
East Scotland Fisheries Development Partnership and an agenda providing details of
the next meeting of the Partnership.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) to agree the allocation as three administration and two opposition members
(including Councillor Corall); and

(i) that remaining nominations for the Partnership be submitted to the Head of
Democratic Services.

Page 5



2768

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR MALONE - PEDESTRIAN CROSSING AT
ENTRANCE TO INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL OF ABERDEEN

9. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion
by Councillor Malone which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 13 June,
2012:-
" To instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure to support the
request by the International School of Aberdeen and install a safe pedestrian
crossing similar to other crossings on North Deeside Road at the entrance of the
school. At present there is no safe crossing and pupils and community members
must negotiate a very busy road"

Councillor Malone was in attendance and formally moved her motion and explained the
rationale behind her request.

The Commiittee resolved:-
(i) to note that a pedestrian crossing island would be installed; and
(i) agree that the motion be discharged and removed from the motions list.

NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR TOWNSON - YOUTH EMPLOYMENT
STRATEGY

10. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion
by Councillor Townson which had been referred from Council at its meeting on 13 June,
2012:-
“Council agrees to develop a youth employment strategy for Aberdeen in
consultation with relevant public and private organisations”

Councillor Townson was in attendance and formally moved his motion and explained
the rationale behind his request.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) that officers submit a report to the Committee to include (1) the extension of 'job
sharing' to school leavers in respect of appropriate positions and that such 'job
sharing' should be for the first year only and at the end of said year one person
be offered full time employment and the other be released onto the job market
with the advantage of training, experience and development of a work history
and a work ethic; (2) the consideration of opportunities for increasing
employment of young people and to research the feasibility and financial
implications of Aberdeen City Council taking the lead amongst its partners in
applying a ‘job sharing’ principle to suitable job vacancies in respect of school
leavers for the first year of such posts, thereby reducing unemployment within
the 16-19 year old age group and affording them training and development of a
work history; and

(i) that the above report also include consideration of the apprenticeship scheme in
the city.

Page 6



2769

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR JENNIFER STEWART - DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE SCHEDULED MEETINGS IN JULY

11. In terms of Standing Order 21, the Committee had before it the following motion
by Councillor Jennifer Stewart which had been referred from Council at its meeting on
10 October, 2012:-
“That this Council considers the possibility of scheduling future meetings of the
Development Management Sub-Committee so as to avoid meetings being held
in July, with a suggestion that meetings be held in late June and earl August
instead to assist with meeting performance indicators for dealing with planning
applications”

Councillor Jennifer Stewart was in attendance and formally moved her motion and
explained the rationale behind her request.

The Commiittee resolved:-
that officers be instructed to submit a report to the next meeting of the Committee on
this matter.

MOTION BY COUNCILLOR YUILL - THE GLENS AND DEESIDE WAY (PICTISH
WAY) - EP/12/232

12.  With reference to article 14 of the minute of meeting of 31 January 2012, the
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure relating to a motion submitted by Councillor Yuill which proposed the
creation of a new long distance path route between Aberdeen and Perthshire.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the content of the report; and

(b)  support the principle of the long distance route but take no further action until all
authorities along the route are engaged in the project.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained within the report.

DELIVERING TRANSFORMATIONAL CHANGE IN ASSET MANAGEMENT AND
OPERATIONS - EP1/12/243

13. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided indicative details of the approach being taken within the
Asset Management and Operations Service to enable the service to deliver the level of
efficiencies identified within the Council’s Business Plan.

Page 7



2770

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

A supplementary report on Delivering Transformational Change in Asset Management
and Operations Services dated October 2012 was appended to the report and
contained in the exempt section of the agenda (article 39 of this minute refers).

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) note the findings from the soft market testing and soundings undertaken by the
services to date;

(b) agree that the capability exists within the in-house workforce to achieve similar
levels of efficiencies through transformational changes and appropriate
investment in services;

(c) note the range of change options identified within the report; and

(d) instruct officers to report back in six months to update the Committee on
progress.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained within the report.

CAPITAL MONITORING - ENTERPRISE, PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE
PROJECTS - EPI/12/211

14. The Committee had before it a joint report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning
and Infrastructure and the Head of Finance, which provided an update on the capital
spend to date for the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure projects included within
the Non-Housing Capital Programme.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the current position.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendation.

2012/13 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - EPI1/12/201

15. The Committee had before it a joint report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning
and Infrastructure and the Head of Finance, which highlighted the current year revenue
budget performance to date along with forecast outturns for the services which related
to the Committee and advised on any areas of risk and management action.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) note this report on the performance to date and the forecast outturn and the
information on risks and management action that is contained therein;

(b) approve the virement proposals detailed within Appendix A,

Page 8



2771

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

(c) instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and report on
Service strategies as required to ensure a balanced budget; and

(d) instructs officers to report, in due course, on the actual outturn compared to
budget following completion of the 2012/13 financial statements.

The Commiittee resolved:-
(i) to approve the recommendations; and
(ii) to thank the Director and his staff for managing the budget effectively.

VISIT ABERDEEN - EP1/12/236

16.  With reference to article 21 of the minute of meeting of 11 September 2012, the
Committee had before it for consideration a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which provided details of the current position regarding the
establishment of Visit Aberdeen, an Aberdeen Destination Marketing Organisation for
the city, and detailed the funding requirements to build on past investment to further
drive the promotion of Aberdeen as a destination for business and leisure tourism.

The business plan submitted by Visit Aberdeen was appended to the report and
contained in the exempt section of the agenda (article 40 refers).

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the current position with regard to the establishment of Visit Aberdeen and
the production of their business plan;

(b)  acknowledge the support needed from Aberdeen City Council to enable Visit
Aberdeen to undertake the activities, and deliver the outputs, set out in their
business plan;

(c) agree the allocation of £200,000 towards Visit Aberdeen’s destination marketing
activities from 6 November, 2012 to 31 March, 2013;

(d)  agree the allocation of £520,000 towards future destination marketing activities
from 1 April, 2013 to 31 March, 2014, then annually for a further four years
subject to the council’s normal budgetary process; and

(e) agree that Visit Aberdeen provides Aberdeen City Council with an annual
Service Level Agreement and an updated Business Plan detailing their planned
activities, plus regular progress reports, to enable the agreed monies to be
released on a quarterly basis.

The Commiittee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

Page 9



2772

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

ABERDEEN DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY UPDATE REPORT - EP1/12/208

17. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided an update in relation to the UK and Scottish Government
activities and an outline of this Council’s activities to date.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee -

(a) notes the details within the report;

(b)  endorses the bid to the Department of Culture Media and Sport’s second round
of Urban Broadband Funding;

(c) instructs that officers, that should the bid be successful, undertake the processes
required to implement the plan within this bid, taking into account any changes
that are required by the funder; and

(d) instructs officers to procure the necessary additional technical advice at an
estimated £330,000, in order to prepare for the procurement of private sector
development partners to implement the city wireless and open access
broadband projects within this plan.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendation.

TWINNING AND INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIP APPLICATIONS - EP1/12/197

18. With reference to article 15 of the minute of its previous meeting of 11
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which sought approval of applications for financial
assistance from the International Twinning Budget 2012/13.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee approve the following applications —

(@) £1,790 towards the participation of two entertainers from Stavanger, Clermont-
Ferrand and Regensburg in Aberdeen City’s Christmas Light Switch-on Parade,
24 to 26 November, 2012;

(b)  £3,410 maximum contribution towards the participation of traditional Norwegian
singers from Stavanger to enhance the Christmas Tree Light Switch-on
Ceremony, Aberdeen, 29 November, to 01 December, 2012,

(c) £2,400 contribution towards the visit of three Aberdeen City Council officers to
the Festival du Court Metrage, Clermont-Ferrand, 01 to 08 February, 2013;

(d) £3,960 towards the participation of an Aberdeen delegation in the Social
Initiative Market in Regensburg, 04 to 11 December, 2012; and

(e) £6,800 contribution towards the inclusion of two musical elements from
Regensburg and Stavanger twin cities in the Aberdeen Jazz Festival 2013, 15 to
17 March, 2013.

Page 10



2773

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations; and

(i) to note that the Committee would receive an annual report on these activities in
due course.

SUPPORT FOR LOCAL EMPLOYABILITY TRAINING PROVIDERS - EP1/12/239

19. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which highlighted the needs and potential benefits of supporting local
employability training providers.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) agree that officers within Employability, Skills and Community Enterprise further
investigate and consult on the optimum means of supporting local employability
training providers; and

(b)  agree that officers submit a further report to Committee once further investigation
and consultation has been completed.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations

LOIRSTON DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - EP1/12/200

20. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which outlined the Loirston Development Framework, prepared as a
strategy for the future development of land identified in the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan as Opportunity Sites OP77, OP80 and OP78.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) approve the Loirston Development Framework as interim planning advice; and

(b)  agree for officers to implement the process to ratify the Development Framework
as Supplementary Guidance. This will include a four week public consultation
with results reported to Committee prior to submission to Scottish Government.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained within the report

MAIDENCRAIG MASTERPLAN - EP1/12/198

21. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which outlined the Maidencraig Masterplan, prepared as a guide for the
future development of land identified as Opportunity Sites OP43 Maidencraig South

Page 11



2774

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

East and OP44 Maidencraig North East in the adopted Aberdeen Local Development
Plan.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a)  approve the Maidencraig Masterplan as interim planning advice; and

(b) agree for officers to implement the process to ratify the Masterplan as
Supplementary Guidance. This will include a four week public consultation with
results reported to Committee prior to submission to Scottish Government.

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to commend the meaningful public engagement which has taken place as an
example of good practice to which others should aspire;

(i) that a potential site for a new primary school be identified;

(i) that officers look at alternatives to re-opening Core Path 93 in the interests of
residential amenity for the residents of Lewis Court;

(iv)  that a desire to achieve connectivity with existing residential areas must not be
done at the expense of compromising privacy, security and safety; and

(v) to otherwise welcome the proposals and approve the recommendations

ADOPTION OF MASTERPLANS, PLANNING BRIEFS AND DEVELOPMENT
FRAMEWORK AS SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE IN SUPPORT OF THE
ABERDEEN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - EP1/12/203

22. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which presented twelve draft supplementary guidance documents for
adoption alongside the Local Development Plan, and outlined the results of a six week
consultation period on these, including a summary of the representations received on
each document. An appendix detailed officer responses to these representations and
any resulting action.

The supplementary guidance documents, which had been made available to members
separately, were:-

(1) Bon Accord Baths Planning Brief;

(2)  Cove Charette Report and Masterplan;

(3) Dyce Drive Planning Brief;

(4) Foresterhill Development Framework;

(5) Fire Station Site, North Anderson Drive Planning Brief;

(6)  Greenferns Development Framework and Masterplan;

(7) Kingswells Development Framework;

(8) Murcar Development Framework;

(9) Pinewood Hazledene Planning Brief;

(10) Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework;

(11)  Kingswells Development Framework and Phase One Masterplan (OP40); and
(12) Kingswells Prime Four Business Park (Phase Two and Three)

Page 12



2775

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the representations received on the draft supplementary guidance
documents;

(b) approve officer responses to representations received on the draft
supplementary guidance documents;

(c) agree, where appropriate, for officers to send the requested supplementary
guidance documents to be ratified by the Scottish Government; and

(d) agree, where appropriate, that the requested supplementary guidance
documents remain as Local Planning Advice and do not get sent to the Scottish
Government for ratification.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained within the report.

ADOPTION OF DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE TO LOCAL DEVELOPMENT
PLAN - EPI/12/204

23. With reference to article 23 of the minute of meeting of 31 May 2012, the
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure presenting four draft supplementary guidance documents for adoption
alongside the Local Development Plan, which had recently been subject to public
consultation. The four guidance documents were as follows:-

(1) Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual;

(2) Bats and Development;

(3) Children’s Nurseries and Sports Facilities; and

(4) Gypsy and Travellers Sites.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the representations received on the draft supplementary guidance
documents concerned with the consultation undertaken;

(b) approve officer responses to representations received on the draft
supplementary guidance documents; and

(c) approve the revised draft Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual
Supplementary Guidance, Children’s Nurseries and Sports Facilities
Supplementary Guidance, Gypsy and Traveller Sites Draft supplementary
guidance and draft supplementary guidance document — Bats and Development
to allow officers to submit the documents to Scottish Ministers for ratification as
supplementary guidance to the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

Page 13



2776

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE: WIND TURBINE DEVELOPMENT IN ABERDEEN
CITY - EPI/12/217

24. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which sought approval to consult on supplementary guidance to provide
further detail on applications for Wind Turbines. The supplementary guidance was
appended to the report.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) approve the draft Wind Turbines supplementary guidance document for a six
week public consultation; and

(b) agree that following completion of the relevant consultation, any comments
received and subsequent amendments to the draft guidance be presented to a
future meeting of this Committee.

The Commiittee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

TECHNICAL ADVICE NOTE: THE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF WINDOWS
AND DOORS - EP1/12/189

25. With reference to article 16 of the minute of meeting of 15 November 2011, the
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which sought approval for a revised draft of Technical Advice on the
Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors to be issued for a six week period of
public consultation. The revised draft was appended to the report.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) approve the Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors Technical Advice
Note document for a six week public consultation; and

(b) agree that following completion of the public consultation, any comments
received and subsequent amendments to the draft advice be presented to a
future meeting of this Committee.

The Commiittee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN - EP1/12/234

26. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided information relating to the draft proposed Strategic
Development Plan prior to its consideration by the Strategic Development Planning
Authority (SDPA) on 9 November 2012. The report indicated that after consideration

Page 14



2777

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

and agreement by the SDPA, the proposed plan would be referred to both Aberdeen
City Council and Aberdeenshire Council for ratification, following which there would be
a period for representations prior to submission to Scottish Ministers.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) note the contents of the draft Proposed Strategic Development Plan (appended
to the report);

(b) note the contents of the draft minute of the SDPA on 21 September 2012
(appended to the report); and

(c) agree to attach the minute of this Committee to the report to Council following
approval of the draft proposed plan by the SDPA.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

MUSIC PROJECT UPDATE - EPI/12/219

27. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided an update on the MUSIC (Mitigation in Urban Areas:
Solutions for Innovative Cities) Project.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the positive progress of the MUSIC project to date;

(b)  approve the attendance of a Councillor to represent the Council at the MUSIC
Partnership meeting and Midterm Conference in Ghent, 19-21 November 2012;

(c) approve the selected Councillor to continue to participate as a ‘Frontrunner’ for
the duration of the project to April 2014; and

(d) instruct officers to report back to this Committee with progress on the MUSIC
Project twice annually, following the reporting schedule set by the European
Union Fund.

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations; and

(i) to agree that the Convener, whom failing, would attend the MUSIC Partnership
meeting in Ghent.

VARIOUS SMALL SCALE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
ASSOCIATED PROPOSALS (NEW WORKS) - EP1/12/230

28. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure relating to various small scale traffic management measures identified by
officers, residents, local members, emergency services, etc and verified as necessary
through surveys by officers. The report also outlined proposals associated with new

Page 15



2778

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

developments as part of the development management process. Finally, the report
included proposals for individual parking spaces for Blue Badge holders which now
require to be progressed through the normal legal process for the required Traffic
Regulation Order.

The report related to proposals at the following locations in the city:-

e Proposals to be funded from Cycling, Walking and Safer Streets budget -
Braeside Place;
Garvock Wynd;
Girdleness Road;
Maberley Street/George Street;
Maryville Place;
Union Street/Crown Street Junction;
Westburn Road;

e Proposals to be funded by the Developer -
Earlspark Avenue;
Mugiemoss, Davidson Mills;
Wellington Road,

e Proposals to be funded from the Disabled Parking Revenue budget -
Various On-Street Parking (28 spaces); and
Various Off-Street Parking (12 spaces).

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) approve the proposals in principle;

(b) instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures of
preliminary statutory consultation for the traffic regulation orders required as
described in the report. If no significant objections were received, then progress
with the public advertisement and report the results to a future meeting of this
Committee; and

(c) instruct the appropriate officers to commence the combined statutory
consultation for the traffic regulation order for the list of Blue Badge parking
spaces and report back to a future meeting of this Committee.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained within the report.

TRAFFIC ORDERS AT THE MIDDLE STATE OF THE PROCEDURE - JUSTICE MILL
LANE - TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PROPOSALS - INITIAL STATUTORY
CONSULTATION - EPI/12/221

29. With reference to article 36 of the minute of meeting of 13 September 2011, the

Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which outlined the results of the initial statutory consultation on the

Page 16



2779

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

proposed traffic management scheme on Justice Mill Lane and the request to include a
cycling provision.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee acknowledge the responses received as a result of the statutory
consultation and instruct the appropriate officials to progress to public advertisement
and report the results to a future Committee.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations contained within the report; and

(i) that officers be instructed to look at a possible exemption from the right hand ban
for cyclists and report back to the Committee.

TRAFFIC ORDERS AT THE FINAL STAGE OF THE STATUTORY PROCESS -
CG/12/112

30. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate Governance
which advised of the outcome of the final statutory stage of the following two traffic
orders and presented objections which had been received where relevant in each
case:-

(i) The Aberdeen City Council (A96/ Old Meldrum Road/ Mugiemoss Road,
Aberdeen) (Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage)
Order 2012; and

(ii) The Aberdeen City Council (North Grampian Circle, South Grampian Circle,
Aberdeen) (One-Way) Order 2012.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) approve The Aberdeen City Council (A96/ Old Meldrum Road/ Mugiemoss Road,
Aberdeen) (Redetermination of Means of Exercise of Public Right of Passage)
Order 2012 and agree that this order be made as originally envisaged; and

(b)  approve The Aberdeen City Council (North Grampian Circle, South Grampian
Circle, Aberdeen) (One-Way) Order 2012, and agree that this order be made as
originally envisaged.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve recommendation (a) of the report outlined above.

ABERDEEN WESTERN PERIPHERAL ROUTE - ADVANCE WORKS & SERVICES -
EP1/12/242

31. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and

Infrastructure which provided details of the outcome of the appeal process and which
sought approval to procure the works and services required in advance of the main

Page 17



2780

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

works construction of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) including
approval of the estimated expenditure relating to advance works and services.

An appendix listing the works and services to be procured was contained in the exempt
section of the agenda (article 41 refers).

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) note the disposal of the appeal against the decision of Scottish Ministers to
approve the AWPR scheme by the United Kingdom Supreme Court;

(b) note the conclusion of the statutory approvals process for AWPR by Scottish
Ministers in accordance with the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984; and

(c) in accordance with Contracts and Procurement Standing Order 1(3), approve the
procurement of the advance works and services detailed within the exempt
information (appendix A to the report), deemed necessary to expedite the
commencement of construction of the AWPR, and also approve the estimated
expenditure for each contract (with a +10% allowance to account for variation in
tender estimates).

The Convener proposed that recommendation (c) be determined at a later stage of the
agenda when the exempt appendix was under consideration. The Committee agreed
with this proposal.

The Convener, seconded by Councillor Young, moved:-
that recommendations (a) and (b) contained within the report be approved.

Councillor Yuill, seconded by Councillor McCaig, moved as an amendment:-

that in addition the Committee —

(1) welcome the end of the uncertainty and delays caused to the
commencement of work on the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route;

(2) condemn those associated with the succession of appeals against the
decision of Scottish Ministers to approve the Aberdeen Western
Peripheral Route scheme; and

(3) deplore the multi million pound increase in the cost of the Aberdeen
Western Peripheral Route resulting directly from the delays caused by the
series of unsuccessful appeals.

On a division, there voted:- for the motion (8) — the Convener; and Councillors Allan,
Boulton, Finlayson, Laing, Jean Morrison MBE, Thomson and Young; for the
amendment (7) — Councillors Cameron, Cormie, Delaney, Jaffrey, MacGregor, McCaig
and Yuill.

The Committee resolved:-
to adopt the motion.

Page 18



2781

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

STRATEGIC AND LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS - EPI1/12/188

32. With reference to article 35 of the minute of the previous meeting of 11
September 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which advised members of the progress to date of various
strategic and local transportation projects within Aberdeen City and the wider area
which flow from the development of the Regional Transport Strategy produced by
Nestrans, and the Council’'s own Local Transport Strategy (LTS).

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) note the contents of the report; and

(b) endorse development through Nestrans as outlined in section 5 of the report,
including Board decisions and progress on the 2012/13 programme of works;
and

(c) instruct officers to initiate a refresh of the LTS and to report back to this
Committee with a suggested programme of activity including public and
stakeholder engagement.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations; and

(i) to instruct that officers issue to Committee members a synopsis of the paper
(referred to at item 6 (iii) of the minute), which was considered by Nestrans at its
meeting on 20 June 2012.

PERMIT MISUSE POLICY - EPI/12/224

33. With reference to article 33 of the minute of the previous meeting of 11
September 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure which advised on the development of a formal policy for
dealing with misuse of all parking permits within the city, such as residents permits,
business permits, contractors permits and Blue Badges.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee -

(a) note the levels and type of Blue Badge misuse and instructs officers to deal with
such misuse by adopting the policy detailed at appendix A to the report; and

(b) instruct officers to undertake an additional three month monitoring period for
residential parking permits and to report back to this Committee in January 2013
regarding the progress of the monitoring period.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations.

Page 19



2782

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

GARTHDEE CONTROLLED PARKING AREA - PERMIT CHANGES - EPI1/12/233

34. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided information in relation to the current legal agreement with
Robert Gordon University to meet the administration and enforcement costs for the
controlled parking area within Garthdee expired on the 30 September 2012 and
recommended that consideration be given to the introduction of charges for residents
permits.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) approve the introduction of residential parking permit charges for the existing
Garthdee controlled parking area in line with existing peripheral parking areas;
and

(b) instruct officers to amend the Garthdee Controlled Parking Traffic Regulation
Order through the legislative process to include the agreed permit charges.

The Convener, seconded by Councillor Boulton, moved:-
that the recommendations contained within the report be approved.

Councillor Yuill, seconded by Councillor Delaney, moved as an amendment:-
that the Committee —
(1)  take no action on the recommendations in the report;
(2)  continue to provide resident parking permits free of charge to those living
in the Garthdee controlled parking area; and
(3) meet the costs associated with this from contingencies and refer this to
the Finance and Resources Committee for approval.

On a division, there voted:- for the motion (13) — the Convener and Councillors Allan,
Boulton, Cameron, Cormie, Finlayson, Laing, Jaffrey, MacGregor, McCaig, Jean
Morrison MBE, Thomson and Young; for the amendment (2) — Councillors Delaney
and Yuill.

The Commiittee resolved:-
to adopt the motion.

CITY WIDE FLOODING ISSUES - EPI/12/240

35. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided an update on recent city wide flooding incidents and
outlined the ongoing work necessary to assess and manage the risk of flooding.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(@) note the extent of the flooding problem as experienced on 25 August 2012;

(b) note the progress made to investigate and alleviate the causes of flooding; and

Page 20



2783

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

(c) approve that a briefing session is arranged to update elected members on the
national and local strategy to risk manage and alleviate flooding.

The Commiittee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations contained within the report;

(i) that officers be instructed to report back to the Committee with an update on
progress in due course, which should include consideration of installing a
weather station within the city centre; and

(i)  to congratulate officers on the work undertaken in the Denburn/Jacks Brae area.

MARKET STREET/ GUILD STREET JUNCTION - RATIONALISATION OF TURNING
MOVEMENTS TO IMPROVE CAPACITY - EP1/12/227

36. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure which provided details of a proposal to improve the capacity and
operational efficiency of the traffic signal controlled junction of Market Street and Guild
Street through the rationalisation of turning movements.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(a) instruct the appropriate officers to introduce a temporary ban on the movement
of vehicles westbound from Virginia Street into Guild Street over the period 19
November, 2012 until 28 January, 2013; and

(b) instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures for
the introduction of a permanent ban on the movement of vehicles westbound
from Virginia Street into Guild Street.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) to approve the recommendations contained within the report; and

(ii) that officers be authorised to remove the temporary ban if problems arise and to
report back to the next meeting of the Committee on the impact of the temporary
ban after undertaking consultation with relevant stakeholders.

COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT

37. The Committee had before it a statement of pending and outstanding Committee
Business, which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) to delete item 7 (Greenbrae Cycle Project), item 9 (Technical Advice Note: The
Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors) and item 10 (Supplementary
Guidance: Wind Turbine Development in Aberdeen City) from the statement;
and

(i) to otherwise note the updates contained within the list.

Page 21



2784

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

MOTIONS LIST

38. The Committee had before it a statement of outstanding motions under the
Committee’s remit which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and Democratic
Services.

The Committee resolved:-

(i) that a report be submitted to the next meeting in relation to item 6 (Motion by
Councillor Yuill — Snow Clearing); and

(i) that in relation to item 10 (Motion by Councillor Delaney — Kingswells Park and
Ride), that officers be instructed to seek a meeting with the Transport Minister
as a matter of priority.

In accordance with the decision recorded under article 6 of this minute, the
following items of business were considered with the press and public
excluded.

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT - DELIVERING TRANSFORMATIONAL CHANGE IN
ASSET MANAGEMENT & OPERATIONS SERVICES

39. The Committee had before it a supplementary report by the Director of
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure relating to item 6.1 on the agenda (article 13 of
this minute refers).

The Commiittee resolved:-
to note the supplementary report.

APPENDIX - VISIT ABERDEEN DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN - STAGE TWO
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

40. The Committee had before it a draft business plan submitted by Visit Aberdeen
relating to item 8.1 on the agenda (article 16 of this minute refers).

The Committee resolved:-
to note the draft business plan.

APPENDIX - ABERDEEN WESTERN PERIPHERAL ROUTE - ADVANCE WORKS &
SERVICES - EP1/12/242

41. In accordance with the decision taken earlier in the meeting (article 31 of this

minute refers), the Committee had before it (1) recommendation (c) from the report by
the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure relating to Aberdeen Western

Page 22



2785

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 November 2012

Peripheral Route (AWPR) — Advance Works and Services; and (2) the annexe
containing estimated expenditure for works and services from each contract.

The report recommended:-

that the Committee —

(c) per Standing Order 1(3), members approve the procurement of the advance
works and services detailed within the exempt information (Annexe A to this
report), deemed necessary to expedite the commencement of construction of the
AWPR, and also approve the estimated expenditure for each contract (with a
+10% allowance to account for variation in tender estimates).

Councillor McCaig, seconded by Councillor Yuill, moved:-
to approve the recommendation (c) contained with the report.

Councillor Boulton, seconded by Councillor Finlayson, moved as an amendment:-
that a report be submitted to this Committee prior to any demolition works of
major buildings associated with the AWPR.

Following advice received from the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development,
the Convener ruled in terms of Standing Order 18 that the amendment was not
competent as the buildings referred to would not necessarily fall within the Council’s
ownership. On this basis, the amendment fell from consideration.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve recommendation (c) contained within the report.
- COUNCILLOR CROCKETT, Convener.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda ltem 3.2

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

ABERDEEN, 6 December 2012. Minute of Special Meeting of the
ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE. Present:-
Councillor Crockett, Convener; Councillor Milne, Vice-Convener; and
Councillors Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Delaney, Finlayson, Forsyth (as substitute
for Councillor Jean Morrison MBE), Grant, Jaffrey, Laing (as substitute for
Councillor Allan), MacGregor, Thomson, Townson (as substitute for Councillor
McCaig) and Yuill.

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:-
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=140&MId=2758&Ver=4

CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETING

1. In terms of Standing Order 31(4) the following four members of the Committee
had called for a special meeting of the Committee to meet this day to discuss the
motion set out in article 2 to this minute:- Councillors Corral, Jaffrey, MacGregor and
McCaig.

THIRD DON CROSSING

2. With reference to article 1 of this minute, the Convener invited the members
who had requisitioned the special meeting to put forward their proposal.

Councillor Corral moved, seconded by Councillor Yuill:-
Following the end of the legal challenge against the Aberdeen \Western
Peripheral Route (AWPR), the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Committee agrees to renew the commitment to “lock in” the benefits of the
AWPR by progressing with the third Don crossing on the route previously
agreed by Council, and the dualling of the Berryden corridor as quickly as
possible”

Councillor Thomson moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Forsyth:-
Council recognises its commitment to the existing policy for the third don
crossing and recognises that the Council needs to bring forward a balanced
budget for 2013/2014 and agrees the third Don crossing will be part of that
process. Council further notes the complete failure of the SNP Administration
to include the Berryden corridor in their capital budget plan for 2011/12 and
further notes the complete hypocrisy of the SNP who when in Administration
with the Liberal Democrats between May 2007 and May 2012 failed to build the
third Don crossing, failed to proceed with the Berryden corridor and failed the
people of Aberdeen.

Page 25



ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 December 2012

On a division, there voted:-

For the motion (7) — Councillors Corral, Cormie, Delaney, Jaffrey, MacGregor,
Townson and Yuill. For the amendment (8) — the Convener; the Vice-Convener; and
Councillors Boulton, Finlayson, Forsyth, Grant, Laing and Thomson.

The Committee resolved:-
to adopt the amendment.

In terms of Standing Order 36(3) Councillor Yuill intimated that he wished
the matter dealt with in the preceding article to be referred to Council for
final decision. He was supported by Councillors Corall, Cormie, Delaney,
Jaffrey and Townson in this respect.

MATTER OF URGENCY

The Convener intimated that he had directed in terms of Section
50(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the
following emergency notice of motion be considered as a matter of
urgency in order that the Committee could consider the information at
the earliest opportunity.

EMERGENCY NOTICE OF MOTION — COUNCILLOR THOMSON — BROADBAND
SPEEDS AND 4G WI-FI COVERAGE

3. The Committee had before it the following emergency Notice of Motion by
Councillor Thomson:-
The Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee welcomes the United
Kingdom Government’s decision to award Aberdeen a share of the £50million
Super Connected Cities funding which will hugely improve broadband speeds
and 4G Wi-Fi coverage across the city.

Committee fully recognises that this decision shows the UK Government’s
recognition of Aberdeen as the UK’s economic powerhouse and as a global
energy hub. Committee also recognises that the provision of superfast
broadband will boost business confidence in the North East, secure jobs,
secure investment and ensure new business growth.

Committee further notes that the UK Government's decision is further

evidence of how Aberdeen benefits from being part of a strong United
Kingdom.

Page 26



ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
6 December 2012

Committee instructs officers to bring forward a report to the next meeting of
the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee noting the benefits to
Aberdeen having superfast broadband.

The Committee then discussed the motion and were advised by the Director of
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure that further details on the exact amount
Aberdeen city would receive from the fund and how the funding would be spent in
the city would be detailed in the report instructed within the terms of the emergency
Notice of Motion.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the terms of the emergency Notice of Motion.
- BARNEY CROCKETT, Convener.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Agenda ltem 4.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE: Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
DATE: 22"¢ January 2013

DIRECTOR: Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT: Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone —

Review of Rural Speed limits Countesswells,
Baillieswells and Blacktop area

REPORT NUMBER: EPI/13/ 004

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide the Committee with background information and details
relating to the local rural road network within the Countesswells,
Baillieswells area and matters related to a speed limit assessment.

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Should a reduced speed limit be approved funding for any future
scheme will require to be identified.

3. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None at this time, however should a reduced speed limit be approved
at a future date it may not be supported by Grampian Police and
receive limited enforcement.

4, BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

4.1 At its meeting of the 19" December 2012 the Council referred the
following Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone to this committee for
consideration. The Notice of Motion states that

“ In view of the recent decision to reduce the speed limit from the
Kingswells roundabout to Blacktop from 60mph to 40mph, that officers
be instructed to report on the implications of this for the neighbouring
rural road network including Countesswells Road, Kirk Brae and
Baillieswells Road, and on the need to ensure consistency of speed
limits in the area instruct the Director of Corporate Governance and
Head of Finance to identify an appropriate budget from which to fund
any works which officers may propose.”

Page 29



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The purpose of this report is to provide the committee with background
information on matters relative to the nature of the local road network,
the issues related to the application and assessment of speed limits
and the possible implications of the implementation of a reduced speed
limit.

The local road network area indicated within the notice of motion is
rural in nature with the road widths typically varying from 4.5m to 6m
bounded by narrow verges.

The general road alignment is typically rural, varying considerably
throughout with a winding alignment that includes a number of sharp
bends. The natural environment includes sections of open country side
bounded by rubble walls and densely forested areas. The environment
and varying road alignment restrict speeds over much of this network
area.

The existing speed limit on the rural roads is the national speed limit of
60mph. Whilst this is the maximum legal speed limit, the natural
environment and constrained road alignment will to a very significant
degree govern the speed at which vehicles travel.

The local road network is accessed daily in the peak periods by
significant volumes of commuter traffic travelling to the city centre and
the wider industrial areas of Dyce, Westhill and Altens. It is expected
that these volumes of commuter traffic, particularly those using the
north / south routes such as Kirk Brae and Baillieswells will be
significantly reduced when the Western Peripheral Route is completed.

A review of the speed limits that would be applicable within the local
road network will require the collection of traffic data relating to existing
vehicular speeds, traffic volumes and accident records. To inform a
comprehensive study it will be necessary for surveys to be carried out
on each of the road links to capture traffic speeds and volumes over a
typical working day.

Within the assessment process it is necessary to consider the accident
record in detail as whilst it may be assumed that a speed limit reduction
will address the road safety issues it may not be the principle cause of
incidents or the appropriate self enforcing solution.

There are implications should a reduced speed limit over the section of
rural road under consideration be implemented and relate primarily to
funding of the scheme and the funding of future schemes should a
precedent be set. A future assessment would identify the detailed costs
for the implementation of a reduced speed limit.

The committee will be aware that at its meeting of the 11" September
2012 that approval, against officer recommendations, was given for the

Page 30



4.1

promotion of the traffic regulation order for the reduction of the speed
limit on the section of C121 from its junction with the Blacktop Road ,
Countesswells to the A944 roundabout junction at Kingswells.

The initial consultation process with statutory bodies has been
commenced and will be reported to the March meeting of this
committee. However it has been indicated that the proposed reduction
to the speed limit will be strongly resisted and that a formal objection is
to be lodged by the Police service.

IMPACT

This report meets with the local Community Plan objectives to
continually improve road safety.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Andrew Smith
Traffic Engineering Manager

andrews@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 538056

Page 31



Consultees comments

Councillor Marie Boulton — has been consuited 10/01/13
Councillor Aileen Malone — has been consulted 10/01/13
Councillor M Taugeer Malik — has been consulted 10/01/13

Council Officers
Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Corporate Governance — has been consulted
Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Service — has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive — has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure — has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management and Operations, E,P and | — has
been consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development — has been
consulted and have no comments.

Mike Cheyne, General Manager, Operations — has been consulted

Neal Carnegie, Community Safety Manager — has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Corporate Governance — has been consulted
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator E P & |

Mark Masson, Committee Services Officer

Page 32



Agenda ltem 4.2

BACKGROUND REPORT

Name of Committee: Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2013

Title of Report: Support for Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)
Lead Officer: Gordon Mclintosh, Corporate Director

Author of Report: Elaine Robertson, Business Growth Manager

Summary of Purpose of Report

The report provides background information in response to Councillor Martin
Greig’s Notice of Motion:

“That the Council recognises and appreciated the key role that micro, small and
medium sized local businesses, including shops and single traders in Aberdeen,
as economic generators which play a major part in determining and enhancing
the quality of life across the city.

That this Council undertakes a broad-ranging review to identify specific ways that
the Council and its partners can work together to support and foster micro, small
and medium sized business activity.

To this end, that the Council carries out a consultation exercise to enable micro,
small and medium sized business people to have their say in identifying specific
suggestions and proposals; and that report is produced with recommendations
for action.”

Aberdeen City Council is an active member of Aberdeen City and Shire
Economic Future (ACSEF), the public-private economic development partnership
for the North East of Scotland.

“Building on Success”, the Economic Action Plan for Aberdeen City and Shire for
2013-2018,

http://www.acsef.co.uk/uploads/reports/30/The%20Economic%20Action%20Plan
%20for%20Aberdeen%20City%20and%20Shire%202013-18%20-%20Final.pdf

drives the economic development strategy for the region. The Council’s activities
to support economic growth link not only to this document, but also to Smarter
Aberdeen, the policy statement of the City Council’s political administration, and
to the Council’s corporate and directorate business plans.

Page 33



Direct support for start-ups and growth is delivered by the national Business
Gateway service, funded by central Government. Aberdeenshire Council
manages this contract for the City and Shire areas on behalf of Aberdeen City
Council.

The Business Gateway service particularly targets pre-start-ups, sole traders and
micro businesses, as well as community enterprises and small-medium sized
businesses that are looking to grow.

Support is offered in the form of a very wide range of online and face to face
training, advice and guidance and workshops on finance, marketing, employing
people, business planning etc.

Successful partnership working is particularly important in the field of economic
development and business support, to ensure there is no duplication of service,
and likewise to minimise any gaps in provision.

The Council’s Economic and Business Development team works with other
organisations and trade associations, such as the Federation of Small
Businesses, Scottish Business in the Community, Enterprise North East Trust,
Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce, to support small and medium
sized businesses.

The Centre for Cities Outlook 2012 reported that “...some cities such as London,
Aberdeen and Milton Keynes are well placed to support the creation of the jobs
and growth that will address the UK’s unemployment challenge. This is because
of their high numbers of business start-ups, high percentage of knowledge
workers and more innovative economies.”

The same report also highlighted that “Aberdeen is the only city in the UK that
had more businesses start than close in 2010.”

Some examples of the way in which businesses are being or have been
supported by the Economic and Business Development team include

Retail Rocks in Torry (focused on micro businesses)

Business Improvement District

Community Business Competition

Positive Procurement Programme

Sponsorship of two business awards

Advice on commercial land and property

Biennial International Trade Survey

Chairing North East Scotland Trade Group; Construction Forum etc
Hosting regular inward business delegations

Supporting local companies’ presence at trade exhibitions and
conferences

Catalyst to establish the Unconventional Gas Aberdeen conference
e Provision of export market intelligence

Page 34



e Major initiative to support improved digital connectivity

e Successful bids for European funding, especially in the areas of low
carbon economy, including green transport and the built and natural
environment

e Support (funding and seconded staff) for the Aberdeen Renewable Energy
Group and Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future

e Participation in ACSEF Skills Group, Aberdeen Works etc

The Economic and Business Development service is in regular contact with local
businesses, both directly including face-to-face, and indirectly via trade
associations. This regular contact enables the team to tailor its services
according to business need.

It must be emphasised that, in order to achieve maximum value for money, the
team targets its limited staffing and budget resources towards areas where they
can have most impact. This tends to be focused primarily, but not exclusively, on
small businesses involved in the energy industry, and frequently involves joint
working with partner organisations.

The recent re-establishment of the North East Scotland Trade Group, which
brings all relevant organisations around the table to share information, and
coordinate strategy and activity, is a good example of how the Council’s contact
with business and trade organisations works well in practice.

Work is currently ongoing to enhance the support to small businesses, by:

¢ identifying SME business development needs

e determining whether these needs are being met or whether there are any
service gaps that Business Gateway, Scottish Enterprise or ACC’s
Business Growth Team could effectively fill, given likely available
resources

e assessing how the Council, and existing partner organisations, might best
respond to any service gaps and/or enhance the support to small
businesses.

The team will continue to liaise closely with partner organisations to share
findings from respective surveys to avoid over-surveying companies.

The Economic and Business Development Business Plan to be brought forward
to Committee in Spring 2013 will include proposed programmes and initiatives to
continue to improve the impact of the support provided to businesses in the City.

For more information, please contact Elaine Robertson, Business Growth
Manager, at elrobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda ltem 4.3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013
DIRECTOR Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Notice of Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart that
the “Council instructs officers to report on the
feasibility and implications of removing / ending on
street Sunday parking charges”

REPORT NUMBER: E P1/12/ 307

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides information relating to the on street parking
charges in the city centre, specifically relating to Sundays. This report
is prepared in response to the Notice of Motion raised by Councillor
Jennifer Stewart that the “Council instructs officers to report on the
feasibility and implications of removing / ending on street Sunday
parking charges”.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the committee agree that no further action
should be taken with regard to the removal of the on-street Sunday car
parking charges.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An annual loss of revenue to the Council of approximately £63,500
(based on the last years revenue figures from August 2011 to July
2012) would result from removing Sunday on street parking charges.
Potentially there would be additional loss of revenue from the off street
car parks as drivers would favour the free on street spaces.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

A significant loss of on street parking availability for shoppers within the
city centre is likely, along with a reduction in turnover of parking,
reducing the number of people able to access the city centre at this
busy weekend period and subsequently a loss of income to the
businesses.

Page 37



5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

Background

At the meeting of the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Committee on Tuesday 11 September 2012 Clir Jennifer Stewart
moved her Notice of Motion in relation to the removal of on street
parking charges in the city centre on Sundays. This Notice of Motion
was referred to the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
from the Council meeting of Wednesday 22 August 2012. The
Committee resolved to instruct officers to prepare a report in respect of
the motion.

Councillor Stewart raised concerns for people attending places of

worship and in particular St Mary’s R.C. Cathedral where a Sunday
mass is held in Polish at 3.00pm

Sunday On Street Parking Charges

The operation of parking charges on a Sunday are restricted from
1.00pm to 5.00pm. This differs from the midweek and Saturday time
periods and was predominantly set in order to allow those attending the
majority of city centre churches to do so by car without incurring
parking charges.

Rationale for On Street Parking Charges

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.4

5.41

On street parking charges within the city centre are applied
predominantly to provide turnover of parking. This in turn brings new
shoppers into the retail premises of the city centre on a continual basis
over the course of the day, as parking spaces are vacated and
subsequently reoccupied.

Without parking charges, on street parking spaces would likely be
occupied for the duration of the day by those vehicles entering them
first, with little or no turnover. Those vehicles occupying the spaces
early in the morning are most likely to be those belonging to city centre
residents or workers / employees of retail establishments.

The effect of this would be that visitors to the city centre throughout the
day, primarily shoppers, would be unable to access on street parking.
There would be very limited turnover of spaces which would constrain
the effective supply of available parking within the city centre.

Sunday On Street Parking Revenue

The impact of the removal of on street parking charges would result in
reduced revenue income to the Council. It is likely that drivers would
have a preference for the free on street spaces as opposed to the
charged off street spaces, therefore filling the free spaces first. This will

Page 38



542

54.3

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

5.54

5.5.5

reduce the number of drivers parking within the off street car parks,
thus reducing revenue in these facilities.

Income associated with car parking form part of the Council's 5 year
Business Plan.

Sunday parking charges apply for a shorter duration of the day than
those on the other days of the week, and therefore contribute less to
the total revenues. Sunday on street parking in the city centre zones
contributed the following revenue in the year 2011 / 2012 — (August to
July.)

Zone Amount (approximate)
A £9,500

B £13,000

C £6,000

E £11,500

F £8,500

G £15,000

Total £63,500

The removal of Sunday on street parking charges would result in a loss
of revenue to the Council of approximately £63,500.

Implications of the Removal of Sunday Parking Charges

The removal of on street parking charges on a Sunday would result in
on street parking spaces being occupied for the full duration of the day
with little or no turnover.

Spaces would be occupied by city centre workers from first thing in the
morning for the duration of the day. This will prevent shoppers and
residents from being able to access parking within the city centre as
easily as at present and will prevent new shoppers arriving continually
throughout the day. This in turn would impact on residents parking
opportunities and subsequently there will be a reduced supply of
shoppers in the city centre.

The provision of free parking all day in the city centre will encourage
the use of private vehicles by city centre workers, acting against both
local and national transport policy.

There is a risk that residents within the city centre and those visiting on
a Saturday night will park their vehicles overnight with no incentive to
move them on Sunday morning, further reducing the turnover of
parking on street for shoppers.

An additional consequence of parking spaces being occupied both
overnight and by workers from early in the morning is how this will
impact on those wishing to attend church services within the city centre
and actually have an adverse effect to that desired by the motion.

Page 39



5.5.6

5.5.7

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

Officers have identified a total of 24 places of worship within the City
centre core zones which may currently be affected by the Sunday
parking charges. Of these only 3 have been found to conduct afternoon
services / masses.

There will be a loss of revenue to the Council of approximately
£63,500.

Summary of Findings

Should on street parking charges be removed on a Sunday, there will
likely be a reduction in available parking spaces for visitors to the city
centre and residents due to the reduction in the turnover of on street
parking as unlimited free parking results in vehicles being left for long
periods. With the competing demands for space it is important to have
a means of ensuring that spaces become available throughout the day
and this provides access for the various demands,
residents/visitors/worshipers/shoppers etc.

There will be a loss of revenue to the Council of £63,500

IMPACT

Parking charges form part of the Councils Business Plan. The current
Local Transport Strategy highlights a preference for use of sustainable
transport and identifies targets to reduce the number and proportion of
trips by single use car.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Minutes of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting,
Tuesday 11 September 2012.
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF .aspx?1D=2522
&T=1

Minutes of Council meeting, Wednesday 22 August 2012
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF .aspx?1D=2527
&T=1

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Doug Ritchie

Team Leader, Road Safety & Traffic Management
dritchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk

(01224) 538055

Page 40



Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett - email sent 12/12/12

Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne - email sent 12/12/12

Local Members

All Councillors consulted email sent 12/12/12

Councillor Jean Morrison has been consulted and has no comments

Councillor Alan Donnelly has been consulted and although he would have liked to lift
the Sunday charges he sees it as to much a financial loss in these difficult times

Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, — has been consulted and has no comments to
make in relation to finance.

Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment — has been
consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership — has
been consulted and is in agreement with the recommendations

Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager has been consulted

Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development has been
consulted

Kathryn McFarlane, Service Co-ordinator

Mark Masson, Committee Services

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Agenda ltem 4.4

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure

DATE 22 January, 2013

DIRECTORS Stewart Carruth and Gordon Mclintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Notice of Motion from Councillor Jennifer
Stewart — “That this Council considers the

possibility of scheduling future meetings of the
Development Management Sub Committee so
as to avoid meetings being held in July, with a
suggestion that meetings be held in late June
and early August instead to assist with meeting
performance indicators for dealing with
planning applications”.

REPORT NUMBER: CG/13/007

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report is in response to Councillor Jennifer Stewart’s motion to this
Committee on 6 November, 2012 about the scheduling of meetings of
the Development Management Sub Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the Committee agree to continue the practice of
holding meetings of the Development Management Sub Committee in
July in order to demonstrate sustained improvement in planning
performance in terms of time taken to determine planning applications
as required by the Scottish Government.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Government is currently considering a review of the planning
application fee structure. Current proposals include an increase in fees
but with a penalty clause included whereby planning authorities which
fail to demonstrate improved performance will revert to the previous fee
regime. It is therefore important that the Council continues to
determine applications as quickly as possible. If the Council fails to
demonstrate sustained improved performance it will be financially
burdened by the amount of planning fees being reduced as a result. . It
will also jeopardise potential future fee increases being considered by
the Government which would ensure full cost recovery of the
Development Management service.

Page 43



5.

4.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

At its meeting of 6 November, 2012, this Committee agreed to
receive a report at its next meeting on the following terms of a
notice of motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart which had been
referred from the Council on 10 October, 2012 to this
Committee:-

“That this Council considers the possibility of scheduling future
meetings of the Development Management Sub Committee so
as to avoid meetings being held in July, with a suggestion that
meetings be held in late June and early August instead to assist
with meeting performance indicators for dealing with planning
applications”.

In terms of the Standing Orders of the Council (Standing Order
31(1)), the ordinary meetings of committees and sub-committees
shall be held in accordance with a timetable drawn up and
approved by the Council. Standing Order 40(2) explains that,
although the period 1 July to 15 August in each year is classed
as the “recess”, nothing in Standing Order 40 shall prevent the
Licensing or the Planning Committee (or equivalent) meeting
when necessary to deal with matters within their respective
remits.

At its meeting of 16 May, 2012, the Council agreed the timetable
for its meetings and meetings of its Committees and Sub
Committees from July, 2012 to June, 2013. Detailed within the
agreement was that a meeting of the Development Management
Sub Committee would be held in the month of July 2012 as per
the practice adopted by the Council for the last 5 years. This
was unanimously agreed by the Council.

The reason for scheduling meetings of the Sub Committee in
July stems from both the Government’s performance indicators
relating to the speed at which planning applications are
determined and Government’s current proposals for increasing
planning fees whereby councils will revert to a reduced fee if
there is no significant sustained improvement in performance
(which includes the speed at which planning applications are
determined by the Council).

Page 44



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.

Any decision to alter the scheduling of meetings of the Sub
Committee (in order not to have a meeting in the month of July)
would have to be balanced against the possibility that this would
adversely affect the Council’'s performance indicators and future
fee income. It is also important to determine planning
applications expeditiously to facilitate economic development in
the City and deliver the aspirations of the Structure Plan and
Local Development Plan

The details of the motion suggest that meetings could be held in
late June and early August. Another reason why the Sub
Committee meets in July is to spread the number of meetings
and the workload of the Sub Committee out evenly across the
months of the year. The July 2012 meeting of the Sub
Committee considered 21 applications, all of which would have
been further delayed had the meeting not taken place until
August.

In terms of the membership of the Sub Committee substitutes
are permissible and should be used when required to cover for
the possibility of members not being able to attend meetings of
the Sub Committee.

IMPACT

Aberdeen - the Smarter City states “We will improve access to affordable
housing in both the social rented and private sectors, by supporting first-
time buyers, regenerating areas within the city and by working with
developers to maximize the effective use of developer contributions.”

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Scottish Government Consultation Paper “The Town and Country
Planning (Fees for Applications) (Scotland) Regulations 2012”

Aberdeen City Council’'s Standing Orders

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Martin Allan, Committee Manager, mallan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 01224
523057 and Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning and Sustainable
Development mbochel@aberdeencity.gov.uk 01224 523133.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Agenda ltem 4.5

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22" January 2012

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Regulatory Regime for Local Bus Services
REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/281

5.1

5.1.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This purpose of this report is to advise members on the current
regulatory regime for Local Bus Services in the UK and Scotland and to
update on any proposed changes to this. The report also advises on
the terms of motion for changes to this regulatory regime.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Committee:

(a) Requests the Convener of Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure to write to the Scottish Government welcoming the
commencement of discussions and consultation on legislative
changes to local bus services and requests continued
involvement to identify improvements to legislation that will help
to improve competition, grow patronage, make improvements in
service quality and encourage modal shift.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

MOTION RAISED

A Motion was put forward at the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Committee on 11" September 2012 by Councillors Yuill, Delaney and
Malone requesting “that this Council agrees to write to the Scottish

Government and Aberdeen’s MSPs calling for a change in the
regulatory regime for bus operators providing scheduled public services

Page 47



5.1.2

5.2

5.2.1

522

523

524

5.2.5

526

to introduce a ‘public service obligation’ which would require any bus
operator providing more than 50% of the bus services in a particular
local authority area to provide a basic level of bus service (including in
evenings and at weekends) to communities across that local authority
area’.

The Committee requested that officers submit a report on the terms of
the motion to a future meeting of the Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure Committee.

CURRENT REGIME

The Local Bus Service market is governed by the Transport Act 1985
and the Transport (Scotland) Act 2001.

The local bus service network in Aberdeen is primarily operated on a
fully commercial basis by First Aberdeen and Stagecoach Bluebird.
Under the conditions of the Transport Act 1985 and the Transport
(Scotland) Act 2001 operators have the freedom to set their own
routes, timetables and fares. Local Transport Authorities have a duty
under sections 63-64 of the Transport Act 1985 to secure the provision
of public transport in its area that it deems is required.

Bus services in the UK were deregulated in 1986, as part of the
Transport Act 1985. This created a competitive market in bus services
and moved away from Local Authority operated bus services. Following
the introduction of a deregulated market there is provision for two types
of bus service, either commercial or subsidised. A bus operator can
operate whatever commercial services they want provided that they
give 56 days notice of an introduction of a service, withdrawal of a
service or notification of amendments to a service to the Traffic
Commissioner. The operator is also obliged to consult with the Local
Transport Authority 14 days prior to registering a service or amending a
service with the Traffic Commissioner.

Commercial services are operated without any subsidy (except for the
provision of concessionary fares, through the National Concession
Scheme and the mileage-based subsidy which offsets most fuel duty,
known a Bus Service Operators Grant; both of which are funded by the
Scottish Government).

There is also no requirement for an operator to cross-subsidise
services under deregulation. This is where the profits from a better
paying route is used to pay for unprofitable routes.

If there are gaps in the commercial bus network, local authorities are
able to plan and procure bus services. These are services which the
local authority deems to be socially necessary, but are not
commercially viable. The fares, routes and timetables on these
services are set and funded by the local authority.

Page 48



5.2.7

528

5.2.9

There is no direct provision for Local Authorities to dictate as to bus
routes, timetables or fares as these are for commercial operators to
decide. As noted above, if Local Authorities feel there are gaps in the
network they can supplement the network by subsidising bus services.

Legislation also provides for ‘Quality Partnerships’. This is where a
local transport authority, or two or more such authorities acting jointly,
may make a Quality Partnership scheme covering the whole or any
part of their area, or combined area, if they are satisfied that the
scheme will either:

e improve the quality of local services and facilities provided in the
area to which the proposed scheme relates in such a way as to
bring material benefits to persons using those services and
facilities; or

e reduce or limit traffic congestion, noise or air pollution.

These can be enforced by legislation and parties required to take part.
A statutory Quality Partnership (sQP) is a quality measure whereby
local transport authorities can put in place schemes to improve the
quality and reliability of bus services, encourage patronage growth and
improve the environment by reducing levels of congestion and
pollution. Through a sQP authorities can specify the quality of buses
(e.g. age, Euro class, low floor, etc) and minimum frequencies
(including in the evenings, early mornings and Sundays). As part of the
partnership, authorities will improve the infrastructure (including bus
stops and bus priority measures such as "greenways" and priority
junctions).

5.2.10 However in most authorities Quality Partnerships are entered into

voluntarily, as is the case in our region. An initial voluntary agreement
was set up in 1998 between Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire
Council, First Aberdeen and Stagecoach Bluebird. In 2007 Nestrans
joined the agreement and a revised partnership agreement was issued
in 2010. Currently all partners work together to deliver the targets set in
the agreement. A copy of which can be viewed at
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/web/files/PublicTransport/bus _quality
partnership.pdf

5.2.11 As part of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 legislation allowed for

‘Quality Contracts’. This is where a local transport authority, or two or
more such authorities acting jointly, may make a Quality Contract
scheme covering their area, or combined area, if they are satisfied that:

¢ making the proposed scheme is necessary for the purpose of
implementing their relevant general policies in the area to which the
joint scheme relates; and

e the proposed scheme will implement those policies in a way which
is economic, efficient and effective.

Page 49



5.2.12 A Quality Contract is a franchise type arrangement and gives a

transport authority more control than can be achieved through a
statutory Quality Partnership. Under a Quality Contract authorities are
able to determine what local services should be provided and specify
routes, the standard and quality of services and fares. Local transport
authorities can introduce a Quality Contract for a particular area if they
can demonstrate that such a contract is necessary in order to
implement their local transport policies.

5.2.13 The introduction of a Quality Contract is very complex. The authority

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

534

5.3.5

would have to be able to demonstrate that the services provided by the
commercial bus operators were not meeting the requirements of the
local transport strategy. In addition, as the authority would tender for
services there would be a requirement for a substantial budget to cover
the costs of implementation. Any authority would likely face legal action
from the commercial operators and a robust case would be required.
The take up of Quality Contracts in the UK has been virtually non
existent.

COMPETITION COMMISSION REPORT

The Competition Commission undertook an investigation into local bus
service markets and published a report into the local bus industry in
December 2011 setting out comprehensive measures which it believes
will ensure that passengers benefit from greater competition.

In its final report, the Competition Commission confirmed that in many
areas bus operators face little or no competition, leading to passengers
facing less frequent services and, in some cases, higher fares than
where there is some form of rivalry.

The Competition Commission found that despite there being about
1,245 bus companies in England, Scotland and Wales carrying 2.9
billion passengers a year, the five largest operators (Arriva, FirstGroup,
Go-Ahead, National Express and Stagecoach) carried 70 per cent of
those passengers. The Competition Commission also found that head-
to-head competition between operators is uncommon and that on
average the largest operator in an urban area runs 69 per cent of local
bus services.

The Competition Commission identified a number of factors that restrict
entry and expansion into local areas by rivals and otherwise stifle
competition.

The Competition Commission set out a number of remedies which it
believes will open up competition. The remedies included the following:

* Increasing the number of effective multi-operator ticketing schemes,
by giving Local Transport Authorities additional powers to introduce

Page 50



5.3.6

and reform schemes on terms that make them effective and attractive
to passengers. Recommendations were also put forward for changes to
the Ticketing Block Exemption to assist this process.

* Introducing restrictions on bus operators making changes to service
frequency to discourage ‘over-bussing’ and other short-term actions to
destabilise competitors and recommending that Traffic Commissioners
introduce and enforce a Code of Conduct to prevent unacceptable
behaviour. It was also recommended that Traffic Commissioners be
given powers to introduce temporary restrictions on service changes
when municipal operators are subject to a sales process to preserve
future opportunities for competition.

* Ensuring that new entrants and competing operators can get access
to bus stations managed by other operators on fair, reasonable and
non-discriminatory terms.

* Recommending that the Department for Transport (DfT) update its
best practice guidance for Local Transport Authorities on tendering for
supported services and that the Scottish and Welsh Governments
develop suitably tailored guidance to enable Local Transport
Authorities to maximise the value for money obtained through the
tendering process and to be given power to obtain information about
services being deregistered with the right to disclose information in
such detail as they consider appropriate, having regard to its nature, to
potential bidders for subsequent tenders.

* Recommending that the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) applies a high
priority to identifying bus mergers between competing operators, takes
a cautious approach in exercising its discretion not to refer small
mergers and updates its competition guidance for the industry. It is also
expected, following publication of this report, that local bus operators
will review their competition compliance training, making use of the
guidance available to them, and impress upon their employees that real
competition compliance is an important part of the culture of their
organisation.

* Recommending that Local Transport Authorities consider the potential
for tailoring partnerships between Local Transport Authorities and
operators as a means of increasing competition within their local areas.
The OFT to establish a regular forum with Local Transport Authorities
and other stakeholders to ensure that such partnerships are subject to
effective competition scrutiny.

* Recommending that the DfT, as part of its review of the Bus Service
Operators Grant in England, looks at ways to incentivise operators to

participate in the above measures. This recommendation may also be
of interest to the Scottish and Welsh Governments should they decide
to undertake a similar review.

The Competition Commission has subsequently taken formal steps to
introduce an Order ensuring equal access to bus stations and

Page 51



requested that the DfT, Scottish and Welsh Governments and the OFT
take forward its other recommendations.

5.3.7 It is envisaged that following these recommendations improvements in
competition will start to be realised and improvements can be achieved
for passengers.

5.3.8 In February 2012 the Council wrote to both the Department for
Transport and the Scottish Government noting that Aberdeen City
Council believed that an increase in competition in the bus market and
the opportunity for other operators to successfully operate in an area,
such as Aberdeen, where there is a clear dominance by one operator,
would only serve to improve the local bus services in the City. The
letter also noted that the Council supported the recommendations and
remedies set out by the Competition Commission in its Local Bus
Services Market Investigation and urged the Scottish Government to
take note of these findings and encourage their implementation fully
into legislation without delay.

5.3.9 In Aberdeen in recent years competition has increased with
Stagecoach Bluebird operating increased frequency services and new
services in the City which do directly compete with services provided by
First Aberdeen, thus affording passengers a choice who to travel with.

5.3.10 The Council also since the report approved a Fares and Ticketing
Strategy. As part of the strategy there was a commitment between
Nestrans, Aberdeen City Council. Aberdeenshire Council, First
Aberdeen and Stagecoach Bluebird to work on implementation of
integrated ticketing. This would allow passengers to commute on
different operators services with one ticket or smartcard. This will
continue to be progressed through a partnership approach.

54 BUS POLICY PAPER

5.4.1 Following the Competition Commission report Strathclyde Passenger
Transport (SPT) put together a paper on improvements for the
regulation of bus services.

5.4.2 The Scottish Government is also currently looking at areas of bus
legislation with the aim of identifying improvements to legislation that
will help to grow patronage, make improvements in service quality and
encourage modal shift. These proposals largely follow those put
forward bySPT, but have not been formally determined to date.

5.4.3 Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council and Nestrans have put
together a joint response to these proposals.

5.4.4 The main points of the proposals are as follows:

Page 52



. To allow Public Transport Authorities (PTAs) — like SPT — to secure
(or provide) bus services where there is clearly a need, even if it
may be in conflict with the perceived commercial view of the
operator.

. The payment of Bus Services Operators Grant (BSOG) for new or
varied registered mileage should only be made where that
registration has been confirmed as not operating to the detriment of
overall provision in that area.

. Public Transport Authorities should be given powers to require
compulsory participation in ticketing schemes that they may
introduce in their areas.

. The modifications to provisions on Statutory Quality Partnerships
introduced in England and Wales in the Local Transport Act 2008
should also be introduced in Scotland.

. The minimum period a service should operate as registered should
be increased to 180 days. In addition, regulations should be made
in accordance with S.46 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2001
restricting dates on which local services may be varied in local
areas.

. Consideration should be given to compliance inspectors vehicle
inspection engineers employed by PTAs who would be trained and
certified to Vehicle and Operators Services Agency (VOSA)
standards, being given relevant powers equivalent to VOSA
officers.

. The Traffic Commissioner should consider not accepting local
service registrations submitted by Community Transport groups
(S.22 permit holders) unless the registration is supported by the
PTA and the group is registered on the Community Transport
database. Additionally, a date should be set for the revocation of all
existing Community Bus permits which may then be re-issued
subject to application and compliance with minimum standards.

. Where a bus operator enjoys an effective monopoly and may be
seeking subsidy from the PTA, the PTA should be given access to
service cost and revenue figures to satisfy themselves that the
operator is not seeking excessive subsidy costs or acting in an anti-
competitive manner.

. Electronic Bus Service Registration (EBSR) to become the
mandatory format for submitting bus registration particulars by
2014, and those submissions are not accepted without the PTA
acknowledging receipt of such information as prescribed in
regulations.

Page 53



5.4.5

5.4.5

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

554

5.9.5

5.5.6

A copy of the joint response to these proposals can be found attached
at Appendix 1.

It is expected that these recommendations will be put out for wider
consultation soon. Some of these may bring about improvements to
competition and the general operation of bus services.

COMPETENCY OF MOTION

In terms of the Motion which has been put forward there are a number
of options open to Local Authorities to improve bus services in their
region as can be noted from above. Quality Partnerships are often the
easiest to implement and in the North East we have a fully functioning
voluntary agreement.

Quality Contracts could be introduced in order that the transport
network fully reflects the needs of the community and region. However,
as aforementioned, these can be difficult to implement and would not
be advisable given the current financial climate. It is also arguable that
the requirement and policies under our transport strategy are on the
whole well met through existing partnership working arrangements.

The Motion requesting that operators are required to provide a ‘public
service obligation’ of basic service level is not in the spirit of current
legislation, which allows for an open market. If an operator is not
providing what is deemed to be an adequate service in an area there is
nothing to stop another operator running a service, or indeed a local
transport authority supporting a bus service to improve the provision.

The imposition of the public service obligation would be against free
competition and may deter competition in areas, as if an operator is
obliged to provide a certain level of service this would likely deter
another operator from deciding to run a competing service. This would
effectively result in a regulated market.

There would also be a requirement for greater Local Authority
involvement to ensure that operators were providing a basic level of
service. It would also have to pre determined what a basic level of bus
service is.

It is recommended that following the Competition Commission report
and ongoing discussions regarding changes to legislation regulating
bus services that the Council instead writes to the Government
encouraging legislative changes which will help to increase
competition, grow patronage, make improvements in service quality
and encourage modal shift rather than requesting the Scottish
Government to introduce a ‘public service obligation’.

IMPACT

Page 54



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

A key aim of the Community Plan is to ensure that all citizens have
access to a range of transport options that reflect differing needs of
age, gender, disability and income. The Single Outcome Agreement
items 1,2,10, 12 and 14 also set out a priority of delivering local and
regional transport strategy objectives that improve the public transport
network.

The Smarter City document sets out that we will provide and promote a
sustainable transport system, including cycling, which reduces our
carbon emissions.

The Planning and Sustainable Development Service Plan sets out that
we will have an effective and efficient Public Transport Unit. Itis a
priority of the Council’s Five Year Business Plan that Aberdeen has a
fully integrated transport network.

This report may be of interest to the public as the citizens of Aberdeen
have a vested interest in the public transport network and accessibility
to services.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Transport Act 1985

Transport (Scotland) Act 2001

SPT Committee Report, Proposals to seek variations to the existing
provisions to improve the co-ordination and delivery of bus services,
March 2012

Bus Policy Paper (ATCO) June 2012

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Chris Cormack, Team Leader, Public Transport Unit,
ccormack@aberdeencity.gov.uk, 01224 523762

Page 55



Appendix 1
SPT Policy Proposals on the regulation of buses — North East Response

10.To allow Public Transport Authorities (PTAs) — like SPT — to secure (or
provide) bus services where there is clearly a need, even if it may be in
conflict with the perceived commercial view of the operator

North East response: This proposal could be helpful as situations do
arise where supported services could be operated to the benefit of the
travelling public but would, under the current legislation, be deemed anti-
competitive. Clear parameters would have to be set as to what is deemed
appropriate and these would need to be consistent across the whole
country. Care would have to be taken so as not to undermine commercial
services and full consideration would also need to be given to how this
proposal fits within competition legislation and State Aid rules.

The implications of this proposal on the PTAs needs to also be fully
considered, particularly the financial implications of providing such bus
services and the consequences of raising the expectation that transport
authorities will ‘step in’ under such circumstances. In the current climate
subsidy of bus services is under significant pressure and in Aberdeen City
there are currently no subsidised bus services. Having said that, the
opportunity to secure services where there is a need and a full assessment
of the implications has been carried out would be positive.

11.The payment of Bus Services Operators Grant (BSOG) for new or
varied registered mileage should only be made where that registration
has been confirmed as not operating to the detriment of overall
provision in that area.

North East response: We question how this would work in practice and
whether it could encourage higher bus fares and/or reduction in services.
This proposal would give a high level of responsibility to the PTA who
would be open to challenge from bus operators. Decisions would have to
be justified and consistent and very specific guidance / regulations would
need to be produced.

Page 56



12.Public Transport Authorities should be given powers to require
compulsory participation in ticketing schemes that they may introduce
in their areas.

North East response: LTAs have powers under the Transport (Scotland)
Act 2001 to introduce statutory schemes mandating operator participation.
However, revised legislation providing for the easier introduction of
effective schemes would be welcomed The Competition Commission’s
recommendations to the Scottish Government to give LTA powers to
determine multi-operator integrated ticketing schemes in more detail are a
step in the right direction however, as proposed, do not vest any absolute
control of ticket price with a transport authority. PTAs and bus operators
should always try to reach agreement and implementation in a voluntary
and mutually agreeable manner in the first instance. Powers to require
compulsory participation may not achieve the benefits outlined by SPT if
there is no significant influence/control over the price of the ticket. In such
instances the operators would ultimately still have power over matters
which can result in the success or failure of the scheme, primarily ticket
price.

13.The modifications to provisions on Statutory Quality Partnerships
introduced in England and Wales in the Local Transport Act 2008
should also be introduced in Scotland.

North East response: Any amendment to the legislation which would
permit quicker and easier implementation of a sQP would be potentially
helpful. Under Scottish legislation minimum frequencies along with other
service standards can be specified but not maximum frequencies, the
timing of services and fare levels. The ability to prescribe timings in a sQP
would, we feel, bring benefits. The current financial climate within local
authorities may however restrict implementation of such schemes in the
near future.

In the North East a good voluntary partnership has developed and works
well. At this point in time, this is the most appropriate mechanism,
however one size does not fit all and we agree that there are benefits of
having the appropriate legislation in place to enforce this when it doesn’t
work. Care should however be taken that this is not seen as a threat that
could undermine the success of existing voluntary partnerships.

Page 57



14.The minimum period a service should operate as registered should be
increased to 180 days. In addition, regulations should be made in
accordance with S.46 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 restricting
dates on which local services may be varied in local areas.

North East response: This would be welcomed as any longer registration
period and fixed dates for registration changes would bring greater stability to
the network and ease of information provision. It would certainly give the
passengers consistency and more confidence in the service and would have
time and costs benefits for the local authorities too. However, as an operator
of supported services, local authorities can benefit, just as a commercial
operators do, from changing services at relatively short notice to respond to
unforeseen local circumstances. To achieve the anticipated benefits it would
be essential that short notice registration changes are minimised and strict
control maintained over their acceptance. Service changes outwith fixed dates
(e.g. a reduction in service to coincide with University vacations) should be
retained however these service changes should be, whenever possible, pre-
determined when submitting the relevant registration.

15.Consideration should be given to compliance inspectors vehicle
inspection engineers employed by PTAs who would be trained and
certified to VOSA standards, being given relevant powers equivalent to
VOSA officers.

North East response: PTA vehicle inspection engineers, where employed,
can preclude the use of un-roadworthy vehicles from services procured by the
authority, Regarding commercial bus services, we feel that as VOSA is
already empowered as the regulatory body to undertake such inspections it is
unnecessary for the transport authority to incur additional costs to address
issues of vehicle quality. If an operator has unsuitable maintenance / vehicle
standards, VOSA checks should identify this and if they are considerable then
they will be called to public enquiry.

16.The Traffic Commissioner should consider not accepting local service
registrations submitted by Community Transport groups (S.22 permit
holders) unless the registration is supported by the PTA and the group
is registered on the Community Transport database. Additionally, a
date should be set for the revocation of all existing Community Bus
permits which may then be re-issued subject to application and
compliance with minimum standards.

North East response: Whilst fully acknowledging the importance of safety
across the Community Transport sector, we are not clear how the proposed
actions will address the difficulties identified by SPT. VOSA and the Traffic
Commissioner should retain full responsibility for the issue of Section 22
permits and registration of local bus services under this means. The long
awaited code of practice on issuing of related Section 19 permits following the
review of designated issuing bodies would be welcomed.

Page 58



17.Where a bus operator enjoys an effective monopoly and may be
seeking subsidy from the PTA, the PTA should be given access to
service cost and revenue figures to satisfy themselves that the operator
is not seeking excessive subsidy costs or acting in an anti-competitive
manner.

North East response: This proposal seems reasonable however it is not
clear from the SPT proposal how the provision of such confidential
financial information will necessarily aid an authority in procuring
supported services or be otherwise used to the benefit of the travelling
public.

18.Electronic Bus Service Registration (EBSR) to become the mandatory
format for submitting bus registration particulars by 2014, and that such
submissions are not accepted without the PTA acknowledging receipt
of such information as prescribed in regulations.

North East response: EBSR is undoubtedly the way forward, although
2014 would be an extremely challenging timescale for some operators.
We have some concerns over the impact on smaller operators who may
find it difficult to implement this. These are the organisations we wish to
see registering services. Local authorities might have to operate EBSR
‘back-offices’ or be faced with the demise of smaller operators as market
entry could be precluded. In an area of little competition such as ours this
is @ major consideration. It should also be noted that our experience to
date is that EBSR has not on all occasions led to an improvement in data
quality. The proposal that EBSR submissions should not be accepted
without appropriate acknowledgement from the transport authority is
therefore essential. In addition to the SPT proposals, it should also be
mandatory that operators provide transport authorities with one EBSR file
per service, where the service is registered to operate under domestic
rules by means of ‘split registrations’.

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Agenda ltem 4.6

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE : Environment, Planning and Infrastructure

DATE: 22" January 2013

DIRECTOR: Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT: Follow up report - restrictions that would prevent

heavy or large goods vehicles from using
Broomhill Road as a through route.

REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/285

1.

5.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide the Committee, as requested, with a follow-up report from the
May 2012 EP&l Committee with the updated survey data for Broomhill
Road.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that Committee:

1. note the contents of this report and agree that the results of this
most recent surveys on Broomhill Road confirm that the:
e proportion of HGVs travelling along Broomhill Road is not
excessive
e speeds are appropriate for the layout and nature of the road
e daytime parking does not generally obstruct the passage of
vehicles on this major route into the City.
2. agree that no further action be taken and that officers continue
to monitor the traffic flows on Broomhill Road in line with normal
traffic management operations.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications relating to the recommendation.
OTHER IMPLICATIONS

There are no other implications with this recommendation.
BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

At the meeting of this Committee on 13" September 2011 a motion from
Councillor Yuill was raised:

Page 61



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

“That given the ongoing difficulties caused by HGVs using Broomhill Road
as a through route, Council instructs officers to report to the appropriate
committee on the introduction of an ‘except for access’ weight or width
restriction on some or all of Broomhill Road between Holburn Street and
South Anderson Drive”

This committee instructed officers to report on the terms of the motion to a
future meeting of the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
and this report was presented to committee on 31%' January 2012 with the
findings.

As a result of this report committee instructed a further report detailing the
various options and their respective merits and drawbacks, to be reported
back to a future meeting. This second report was presented to Committee
in May 2012.

The Committee approved that no further action was to be taken with
regard to an HGV restriction but that further surveys be carried out on
completion of the Puffin crossing at the primary school, and the results
reported back to a future Committee

The types or surveys requested, and subsequently carried out, are as
follows:

¢ Vehicle classification survey
¢ Vehicle speed survey (handheld)
e On-street parking survey (am and pm)
The results from the above surveys are detailed as follows:

e Vehicle classification survey
From the summarised results below it can be seen that, in the
morning peak, just over 5% of the total number of vehicles using
Broomhill Road are HGVs and in the evening peak it falls to 3%.
These percentages are of a similar magnitude to the earlier
classification surveys carried out and well within the acceptable limit
(11%) for local distributor roads such as Broomhill Road.

Page 62



Vehicle classification survey (summary)
Non-HGV HGV %HGV

Morning Peak

8-9 749 32 4.3

9-10 411 25 6.1

Total 1160 57 Av=5.2

Evening Peak

4-5 760 27 3.6

5-6 776 18 2.3

Total 1536 45 Av=3

(The full results can be viewed in Appendix A)

Speed survey results: from the speed survey the 85" percentile
speeds have been calculated in both directions. (The 85" percentile
speed is the speed at which 85% of the traffic is travelling at or
below in free-flow conditions.)

These surveys were carried out close to Broomhill Primary School
and outwith the peak flow times. These speeds are likely to be the
highest speeds recorded during the day.

The 85" percentile speed for traffic travelling eastwards is 30mph
in the morning and 27mph in the afternoon. Westwards the 85"
percentile speeds were 33mph in the morning and 30mph in the
afternoon. The corresponding mean speeds are eastwards 27mph
and 24mph and westwards 30mph and 27mph.

Although just at the higher end of the speed limit, these speeds are
acceptable for a local distributor road and not at a level at which
Grampian Police would instigate enforcement.

Speeds during the peak flows would be anticipated to be less given
the increased flows and traffic conflicts.

Morning survey Eastbound Westbound
mph kph mph kph
85th percentile speed 30.2 48.5 33.0 53.1
Mean Speed 27.2 43.8 29.8 47.9
Standard deviation 3.1 4.9 3.6 5.8
Maximum speed 35.0 56.3 40.0 64.4
Minimum speed 20.0 32.2 19.0 30.6

W

Page 63



Afternoon survey Eastbound Westbound
mph kph mph kph
85" percentile 27.2 43.7 30 48.3
Mean Speed 23.8 38.3 26.9 43.3
Standard deviation 3.4 54 4.1 6.6
Maximum Speed 36.0 57.9 40.0 64.4
Minimum Speed 17.0 27.4 18.0 29.0

Parking survey results:

Morning survey
This survey, taken mid-morning, shows no vehicles parking on the
south side of Broomhill Road along its full length.

Along the central section, between Balmoral Terrace and Salisbury
Terrace the vehicles were parked within bays denoted by physical
build-outs leaving a full width carriageway, and therefore did not
impact on the traffic flow.

Along the section between Salisbury Terrace and South Anderson
Drive there were five vehicles parked on the north side. Although
these were not in designated parking bays the road here is wide
enough to accommodate this level of parking without major impact
on traffic flowing to and from the City.

Along the eastern section there were two vehicles parked illegally
on waiting restrictions, and, as this is the narrowest section of
Broomhill Road, these vehicles have the potential for impeding the
traffic flow on Broomhill Road.

This is an enforcement issue and we have contacted the City
Wardens’ office to highlight this issue and request additional
resources at this location.

Afternoon survey

The afternoon survey was carried out between 3:00pm and 4:00pm,
the time at which school pupils were finishing school. This is likely
to be the busiest time during the day with regard to parking.

The results were broadly similar to the morning survey with parking
only on the north side of Broomhill Road between the school and
Holburn Road but with an additional six vehicles. All were parked in
the formed parking bays and none on the single line restrictions.

Page 64



6.1

There were, however, two vehicles parked opposite the school on
the zig-zags associated with the new puffin crossing on the south
side of Broomhill Road. These zig-zags prohibit vehicles stopping
along the kerbside covered by them and therefore parking on them
is also prohibited.

Again this is an enforcement issue but is an offence that can only
be dealt with by Grampian Police. Grampian Police have been
contacted with the results of this latest survey and a request that
this location be given additional attention at the appropriate times.

5.7 In conclusion, the results from the requested surveys confirm that
the HGV numbers are acceptable and typical of the layout and nature of
this road.

The requested speed and parking surveys show that the majority of drivers
adhere to the speed and waiting restrictions currently in place. However,
as previously stated, these will continue to be monitored in line with normal
traffic management operations.

IMPACT

The content of the report meets with the local Community Plan objectives
to continually improve road safety and maximize accessibility for all modes
of transport

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Minutes of Council meeting 17" August 2011
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=1972&T
=1

Minutes of EP& Committee meeting of 13" September 2011
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF .aspx?ID=1908&T
=1

Report and minutes of EP&| meeting of 315t January 2012
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF .aspx?ID=2283&T
=10
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?1D=2283&T
=1

Report and minutes of EP&| meeting of 315t May 2012
http://councilcommittees/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?1D=2284&T=10
http://councilcommittees/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=2284&T=1

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Ruth Milne, Technical Officer, rumilne@aberdeencity.gov.uk (01224)
538052

Page 65



APPENDIX A

BROOMHILL ROAD - PERCENTAGE OF HGVs at peak

hours

6%

o
o~
ADOH% <
s3asng NowoI com«- < Zfey ONNN® ¥ - P
(v) s31XV 9 cocoococo +~o+~o o &N coococoo or-+~o o &N
(v) s3Ixv s Oocoocoo oocooo o O cOocoocooo oocooco o O
(V) S3IXV v Oocoococoo oocooco o O cOocoocooo oococo o O
(v) s3IXV € coococoo oooo o O coocoocoo oooo o O
(4 saxv v coococoo oococo o O cocoocooco +~+~oo o &N
[72]
>
nuw (¥) saXVv 2 O+~ OWw ocNOo~ ™ 00 mNOOWw oooo o W
o -
AT oLor8 oI vo § &4 0oy owo~ F m -
N~ <
SIXVL/S¥VO Nyoaog ~noo 8 D woow?® mooo = 8
NCooe JIORY Q % NTOoom® oOFoq 8 %
S3ATOIH3IA ~~ooaN oocooo o N Oo0cooo oooo o O
S3TOAD O-ANMO® —OAN~— w ~o0o0o+ oOo+~-ooOo «~| &N
o
v S =
S @ wowo wowo o wowo wowo
] o T3S 2 0» S 2 | 5258 >o> o 2
L ] e TS = ] eeexw TSN 2
2 O] owouw owoww - O O] owouw owouw - O
o) o oM< O~ Mm< =20 o O M oM< =20
| 0w 0 00 6O o = o oo o H DD O o =
Z ol ococoo cooo m o ol cooco ©co oo m S

Page 66



4:00 - 5:00

0400-0415 0 0 53 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
0415-0430 2 0 45 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
0430-0445 2 0 73 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
0445-0500 0 0 85 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
4 0 256 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 7
0400-0415 0 0 66 16 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 2
0415-0430 0 0 101 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
0430-0445 0 1 116 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
0445-0500 2 2 143 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
2 3 426 41 3 2 0 0 1] 1] 3 9
Both
directions 6 3 682 69 3 2 0 0O O O 6 16|4%
760 27
5:00 - 6:00
0500-0515 2 0 77 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
0515-0530 1 1 61 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1
0530-0545 1 0 107 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
0545-0600 3 0 65 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
7 1 310 19 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 5
0500-0515 1 1 138 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
0515-0530 1 0 144 4 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1
0530-0545 0 0 88 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
0545-0600 3 0 48 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 1 418 15 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 4
Both
directions 12 2 728 34 2 0 0 0 0 1 6 9 |2%
776 18

Page 67




Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett — has been consulted
Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne — has been consulted

Council Officers

Councillor Colin Walker has been consulted

Councillor Gordon Townson has been consulted

Councillor lan Yuill has been consulted

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Resources — has been consulted and has
no comments on this report

Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement - has been
consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive - has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure - has
been consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment — has been
consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership —
has been consulted and has no comments on this report

Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager - has been consulted

Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager - has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development - has been
consulted

Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator

Page 68



Agenda ltem 5.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE

DATE

DIRECTOR

TITLE OF REPORT

REPORT NUMBER:

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
22 January 2013
Gordon Mclntosh

Capital Monitoring — Enterprise, Planning &
Infrastructure Projects

EPI1/12/283

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise the Committee of the capital spend to date for the Enterprise,
Planning & Infrastructure projects included within the Non-Housing
Capital Programme.

RECOMMENDATION
The Committee note the current position.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any
underspend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the
programme. There are no issues at present that would result in such
implications.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be
reported at an appropriate Committee.

BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

As reported at the Finance & Resources Committee in December 2011
the overall responsibility for the monitoring / management of the Capital
Programme lies with the Head of Asset Management & Operations.
The Planning & Monitoring Officer within Asset Management &
Operations is in regular contact with the Service Representative and
the Capital Accountant, reporting in the first instance to the Corporate

Page 69



Asset Group. This ensures that the spend figures are always up to date
and accurate.

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure has a total of 13 projects, totaling
£22.688 million allocated to it from the Non-Housing Capital
Programme. The projects and total budget committed to each project
included in the programme are:-

1) Corp Property Condition & Suitability Programme
£7.71 million

2) Cycling Walking Safer Streets Grant
£252,000

3) Access From the North
£430,000

4) Western Peripheral Route
£4 .1 million

5) Corporate Office Accommodation
£1 million

6) NESTRANS - Capital Grant
£960,000

7) 3R's Furniture, Fittings & Equipment and Other Works
£50,000

8) Planned Renewal & Replacement of Road Infrastructure
£3.748 million

9) Land Acquisition — Contingency
£650,000

10)Frederick Street Relocations - Crombie Road
£43,000

11)Frederick Street Multi Storey Car Park
£2.345 million

12)Hydrogen Buses
£400,000

13)City Broadband
£1 million

Page 70



Spend for all projects to end of December is £8.520 million. Variances
in monthly spend compared to predicted spend have been identified in
some cases, which has resulted in spend profiles being amended.

Appendix A provides a breakdown of this spend to date and relevant
supporting information as necessary.

An update on the capital position will be reported to this Committee on
19 March 2013.

IMPACT

Corporate - The capital programme encompasses projects which link to
the Community Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, Corporate and
Individual Service Plans.

Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the
Council’'s capital spending to date on Enterprise, Planning &
Infrastructure projects.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Non-Housing Capital Programme 2012/13 — Capital Monitoring Report
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 19 June 2012

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
David Marshall
Planning & Monitoring Officer

“B damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk
& 01224 523191

Page 71



Appendix A: Spend to date

Project Description Budget Holder Total Budget Budget Spend
Budget 13114 14/15 toend
12/13 Dec.
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Corp Property Condition & Suitability Neil Esslemont 7,710 7,400 7,400 3,077
Programme
Cycling Walking Safer Streets Grant Doug Ritchie 252 232 341 69
Access From the North Tom Rogers 430 7,010 6,400 141
Western Peripheral Route John Wilson 4,100 1,000 600 0
Corporate Office Accommodation Hugh Murdoch 1,000 0 0 54
NESTRANS - Capital Grant Joanna Murray 960 882 1,295 480
3R's Furniture, Fittings & Equipment and Other ~ Graeme Craig 50 0 0 17
Works
Planned Renewal & Replacement of Road Mike Cheyne 3,748 3,768 3,659 2,091
Infrastructure
Land Acquisition - Contingency Stephen Booth 650 0 0 1
Frederick Street Relocations - Crombie Road Jim Forbes 43 0 0 254
Frederick Street Multi Storey Car Park lan Taylor 2,345 0 0 2,305
Hydrogen Buses Jan Falconer 400 400 400 0
City Broadband Jan Falconer 1,000 1,000 0 30
Totals 22,688 21,692 20,095 8,520

At present, the Condition & Suitability Programme is currently profiled to
underspend by £1.5 million this financial year. However, the budget holder
intends legally committing as close to the full budget as possible this
financial year. As part of the three year capital plan, the committed works
can be promptly carried out and spent at the beginning of 2013/14. The
Design Team will have a full compliment of staff at the beginning of
2013/14, allowing a greater number of projects to be undertaken from day
one of the financial year.

A full spend profile is yet to be completed for the Western Peripheral Route
project. This will take some time given the current negotiations with
Aberdeenshire Council regarding this significant and large piece of work.

The Corporate Office Accommodation budget has still not been committed.
Discussions are still taking place as to exactly what works will be carried
out - cost estimates will be provided soon in order to identify what works
are possible with the available budget.

Works to Frederick Street Multi Storey Park have been completed and the
car park opened to the public at the end of December 2012. The project is
profiled to be concluded on budget.

Frederick Street Relocations — Crombie Road has concluded on budget.

Page 72



e As part of the three year capital plan, the majority of the budgets for the
Hydrogen Buses and City Broadband projects will slip to 2013/14. The only
spend to date has been on consultants fees on the Broadband project.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda ltem 5.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclintosh

TITLE OF REPORT 2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring
REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/264

1.1

2.1

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to:

i) bring to Committee members’ notice the current year revenue
budget performance to date along with forecast outturns for the
Services which relate to this Committee;

ii) advise on any areas of risk and management action.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the Committee:

i) note this report on the performance to date and the forecast outturn
and the information on risks and management action that is
contained herein;

i) instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and
report on Service strategies as required to ensure a balanced
budget;

i) instruct officers to report, in due course, on the actual outturn
compared to budget following completion of the 2012/13 financial
statements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The total Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure budget currently
amounts to £52.0M net expenditure.

Based upon present forecasts it is anticipated that the outturn for the
Directorate will be £1.3M below budget. This position will be reflected
in the overall financial monitoring for the Council when it is reported to
Finance and Resources Committee at the end of this committee cycle.

Further details of the financial implications are set out in section 5 and
in the appendix to this report.

Page 75



4.1

5.1

5.2

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

This report informs Members of the current year revenue budget
performance for the Directorate to Period 7 (end of October 2012) and
provides a high level summary for the consideration of Members. It also
outlines whether or not there are any cost pressures that are
immediately identifiable from the expenditure incurred to date and
actions being undertaken to manage these.

The Directorate report and associated notes are attached at Appendix
A.

Financial Position and Risks Assessment

The overall position for the Directorate at Period 7 is a net underspend
of £110K. The forecast outturn for the full year is a net underspend of
£1.3M. The reason for this movement is that a number of recharges to
the Directorate do not take place until the year-end.

The outturn is based on a detailed review of progress towards
achieving the income and expenditure budgets of each service and
takes account of any factors which are expected to influence them.
Detailed below are the main variances that are forecast to apply for the
full year:

e Staff costs across a number of services are forecast to be £1.2M
below budget due the ongoing management of vacancies.

e Fee income for the Non-Housing Design Team is forecast to
exceed budget by £300K as the Service’s workload for the
current year is expected to increase in line with the Non-Housing
Capital Plan.

¢ Fleet Management costs are forecast to be £140K below budget
with increased short-term hires costs being offset by savings in
vehicle lease costs.

e The cost of school catering provisions is forecast to be £100K
above budget due to continuing pressure on food prices.

e Recharges for services to non-General Fund accounts are
forecast to exceed budget by £430K. None of these recharges
are new but some were not included in the budget and others
were reviewed in 2011/12 and revised charges for 2012/13 are
anticipated as a result.

Page 76



e Advertising income is forecast to be £260K below budget. The
service will not achieve the additional income required by PBB
option EBDO3a.

e All other variances across the Directorate as a whole total
£190K above budget.

e The outturns detailed in Appendix A incorporate the main risks
identified by the Service to date. The most significant additional
risk faced by the Service relates to the severity of the winter and
its impact on roads maintenance budgets. This could add up to
£100K per week of severe weather and would reduce the
Directorate’s overall favourable variance.

IMPACT

Corporate - as a recognized top priority, the Council must take the
necessary measures to balance its budget. Therefore Committees and
Services are required to work within a financial constraint. Every effort
is being focused on delivering services more efficiently and effectively.

Public — this report is likely to be of public interest due to the size of the
budgets involved and the nature of the services provided by Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure, a number of which are front line services
delivered directly to citizens and the business community within the
city.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Financial ledger data extracted for the period.
REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Brian Downie

Finance Manager

bdownie@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 346351

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2012/2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN
CHANGE
ANNUAL FORECAST FORECAST FROM
AS AT 31 October 2012 BUDGET PLANNED  ACTUAL  VARIANCE TOTALS VARIANCE LAST
REPORT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD 7 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
STAFF COSTS 27,973 16,318 15,578 (740) 26,817| (1,156) (4.1)% (425)
PROPERTY COSTS 10,590 7,243 5,655 (1,588) 10,203 (387) (3.7)% (108)
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 2,029 588 842 254 2,342 313 15.4% 192
TRANSPORT COSTS 5,177 3,020 2,943 (77) 5,139 (38) (0.7)% 46
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 17,153 10,006 11,133 1,127 17,586 433 2.5% 128
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 2,608 1,521 1,560 39 2,583 (24) (0.9)% 46
CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 11,703 0 0 0 11,703 0) (0.0)% (12)
GROSS EXPENDITURE 77,233, 38,696] 37,711 (985) 76,374 (859)] (1.1)%| (132)
LESS: INCOME
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (2,936) (1,675) (1,466) 209 (2,822) 115 (3.9)% (532)
OTHER GRANTS (906) (528) (433) 94 (805) 100 (11.1)% (153)
INTEREST (3,806) (2,220) (2,350) (130) (3,790) 16 (0.4)% 6
RECHARGES (8,648) (5,044) (3,950) 1,094 (9,098) (450) 5.2% 1,168
OTHER INCOME (8,963) (5,229) (5,622) (393) (9,185) (221) 2.5% 177
TOTAL INCOME (25,259) (14,696)] (13,821) 875 (25,699) (440)] 1.7%) 665
NET EXPENDITURE 51,974, 24,000] 23,890, (110) 50,674] (1,300)] (2.5)%) 533
VIREMENT PROPOSALS
Several. See details within individual Head of Service summaries.
FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE
REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs
Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across all services. (1,156) (425)
Property Costs
Savings are forecast in energy and repairs costs. Janitorial rents have been budgeted for but no costs are
being incurred. (387) (108)
Administration Costs
The postages budget is forecast to be overspent pending reorganisation of the postages budgets corporately.
Sponsorship, subscriptions and printing costs are also forecast to exceed budget. 313 192
Transport Costs
Vehicle leasing costs will be below budget while external hires and repairs are forecast to exceed budget. (38) 46
Supplies & Services
School catering food costs are forecast to be higher than budget, in line with current trends. Supplies and
services within Roads Services are above budget in line with the level of workload. 433 128
Transfer payments
The forecast cost of contributions to a number of external bodies has been reduced on the basis of the actual
level of payments made in 2011/12 (24) 46
Capital Financing
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 0) (12)
Government Grants
Recoveries for the AWPR project are forecast to be less than budget in line with the level of expenditure
incurred. 115 (532)
Other Grants & Contributions
Sponsorship and advertising income is forecast to be below budget. 100 (153)
Interest
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 16 6
Recharges
Accommodation recharges to non-General Fund accounts for Marischal College and the other main sites is
forecast to be above budget. The Architectural Design team is forecasting income in excess of budget in line
with their increased workload associated with the capital plan. (450) 1,168
Other Income
Building application fee income is forecast to exceed budget. A review of budgets has identified a number of
recoveries that are unlikely to be made and the outturn has been updated to reflect this. (221) 177
[ (1,300) 533]

Page 79



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 /2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
HEAD OF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN
CHANGE
ANNUAL FORECAST FORECAST FROM
AS AT 31 October 2012 BUDGET PLANNED  ACTUAL VARIANCE TOTALS VARIANCE LAST
REPORT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD 7 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
STAFF COSTS 19,350 11,287 10,576 (712) 18,515 (835) (4.3)% (611)
PROPERTY COSTS 10,274 7,015 5,378 (1,637) 9,879 (395) (3.8)% (109)
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 897 370 596 226 1,138 241 26.9% 94
TRANSPORT COSTS 1,947 1,136 1,010 (126) 1,911 (36) (1.8)% 35
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 12,851 7,496 8,014 518 13,260 409 3.2% 99
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 25 15 21 6 21 (4) (16.0)% (4)
CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 11,102 0 0 0 11,102 (0) (0.0)% (0)
GROSS EXPENDITURE 56,446 27,320 25,595 (1,725) 55,827 (620)] (1.1)% (497)
LESS: INCOME
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (1,050) (613) (653) (40) (993) 58 (5.5)% 64
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS (140) (82) (66) 16 (88) 52 (37.1)% (81)
INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
RECHARGES (8,147) (4,753) (3,658) 1,094 (8,749) (602) 7.4% 723
OTHER INCOME (7,340) (4,281) (4,412) (130) (7,748) (408) 5.6% 146
TOTAL INCOME (16,677) (9,729)] (8,789) 940 (17,578) (901)] 5.4% 851
NET EXPENDITURE 39,769 17,592 16,806 (785) 38,249  (1,520)] (3.8)% 354
VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle
FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE
REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs
Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service. (835) (611)
Property Costs
Energy costs within the main offices are forecast to be £160K below budget. Property repairs for are forecast to be
£110K below budget. The budget to cover the cost of rents for janitors homes is no longer required, saving £130K. (395) (109)
Administration Costs
The main item of overspend is forecast to be postages at £180K. It was expected that this budget would have been
consolidated across the organisation but work on this is still ongoing. 241 94
Transport Costs
Underspends are forecast in vehicle leasing costs (£230K). The cost of external hires is forecast to be £100K over
budget and the cost of vehicle repairs is forecast to be £90K over budget. (36) 35
Supplies and Services
The cost of catering provisions is expected to be £100K above budget in line with current trends in food costs. The cost
of fleet spares is forecast to be £50K above budget. The cost of supplies and services across a number of Roads
Services functions is forecast to be £250K above budget, based on current levels of activity. 409 99
Capital Financing Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. (0) (0)
Income
Fee income for Non-Housing Design team is forecast to exceed budget by £360K based on a forecast of increased
workload associated with the current year's non-housing capital plan. Recoveries of accommodation costs are forecast
to exceed budget by £270K, primarily due to there being no allowance for recoveries for Marischal College being
included in the budget. The level of recoveries made by Roads Services is expected to exceed budget by £60K,
reflecting an increased workload. (901) 851
[ (1,520) 354]

Page 80




ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012 /2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
HEAD OF PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN
CHANGE
ANNUAL FORECAST FORECAST FROM
AS AT 31 October 2012 BUDGET PLANNED ACTUAL  VARIANCE TOTALS VARIANCE LAST
REPORT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD 7 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
STAFF COSTS 5,763 3,362 3,494 132 5,540 (224) (3.9)% 43
PROPERTY COSTS 307 219 275 56 314 7 2.3% 2
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 901 83 58 (25) 881 (20) (2.2)% 90
TRANSPORT COSTS 3,149 1,837 1,775 (62) 3,146 3) (0.1)% (3)
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 2,581 1,505 2,194 688 2,573 (8) (0.3)% (56)
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 767 448 420 (28) 745 (22) (2.9)% 0
CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 590 0 0 0 590 (0) (0.0)% 0
GROSS EXPENDITURE 14,058 7,455] 8,216 761 13,788 (269)] (1.9)% 75
LESS: INCOME
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (1,871) (1,0863) (895) 168 (1,810) 61 (3.3)% (417)
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS (270) (157) 91) 66 (274) (4) 1.4% 0
INTEREST (3,789) (2,210) (2,348) (137) (3,788) 1 (0.0)% 1
RECHARGES (157) (92) (210) (118) (140) 17 (11.1)% 189
OTHER INCOME (911) (532) (724) (192) (945) (34) 3.7% (6)
TOTAL INCOME (6,999) (4,053)] (4,267) (214) (6,957) 42] (0.6)% (233)
NET EXPENDITURE 7,059 3,401] 3,948 547 6,832 (227)] (3.2)% (158)
VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle.
FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE
REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs
Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service. (224) 43
Property Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 7 2
Administration Costs
Expenditure on courses and conferences is forecast to be below budget. (20) 90
Transport Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 3) 3)
Supplies and Services
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. (8) (56)
Transfer Payments
Contributions to external bodies is forecast to be £20K below budget based on the actual level of contributions made in
2011/12. (22) 0
Capital Financing Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. (0) 0
Income
There is currently no income forecast against the SURF project whereas a £70K budget has been set for this. Income
from planning and building applications is expected to exceed budget by a small amount overall. 42 (233)
(227) (158)]

Page 81




ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012/ 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT DIRECTOR

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN
CHANGE
ANNUAL FORECAST FORECAST FROM
AS AT 31 October 2012 BUDGET PLANNED  ACTUAL VARIANCE TOTALS VARIANCE LAST
REPORT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD 7 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
STAFF COSTS 1,987 1,159 1,057 (102) 1,953 (34) (1.7)% (19)
PROPERTY COSTS 9 9 2 (6) 10 1 6.4% (1)
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 190 111 170 59 261 71 37.4% 17
TRANSPORT COSTS 75 44 155 111 76 2 2.4% 15
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 1,648 961 907 (54) 1,689 41 2.5% 90
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 1,815 1,059 1,119 61 1,817 2 0.1% 50
CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 12 0 0 0 12 (0) (0.0)% (11)
GROSS EXPENDITURE 5,736 3,342 3,410 68 5,819 83] 1.4% 140
LESS: INCOME
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (15) 0 82 82 (19) (4) 24.4% (179)
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS (440) (257) (276) (20) (403) 37 (8.4)% (86)
INTEREST (17) (10) (2) 8 (2) 15 (86.7)% 5
RECHARGES (149) (87) (52) 35 (157) (7) 4.9% 108
OTHER INCOME (712) (416) (486) (70) (492) 221 (31.0)% 37
TOTAL INCOME (1,334) (769)] (735) 34 (1,073) 262] (19.6)% (115)
NET EXPENDITURE 4,401 2,573 2,675 102 4,746 345] 7.8% 24
VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle.
FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE
REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs
Vacancies have been identified and are being managed across the service. (34) (19)
Property Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 1 (1)
Administration Costs
Sponsorship costs within Central Marketing are forecast to be £40K above budget. Subscription costs are forecast to
be £30K above budget. 7 17
Transport Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 2 15
Supplies and Services
The cost of design work contracted out is forecast to be £30K above budget. 41 90
Transfer Payments
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 2 50
Capital Financing Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. (0) (11)
Income
Sponsorship income within the Central Marketing service is forecast to be £130K below budget. Recoveries and
advertising revenue within the Marketing and Design service are forecast to be £60K below budget. A number of other
sources of income are forecast to be under budget by a total of £70K. 262 (115)
| 345 24]

Page 82



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012/ 2013

DIRECTORATE : ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

YEAR TO DATE OUTTURN
CHANGE
ANNUAL FORECAST FORECAST FROM
AS AT 31 October 2012 BUDGET PLANNED ACTUAL  VARIANCE TOTALS VARIANCE LAST
REPORT
ACCOUNTING PERIOD 7 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
STAFF COSTS 873 509 452 (58) 810 (64) (7.3)% 163
PROPERTY COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 40 24 18 (6) 62 21 52.9% 9)
TRANSPORT COSTS 6 4 4 0 5 (1) (18.9)% 0
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 73 43 18 (25) 64 (10) (13.4)% (4)
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
GROSS EXPENDITURE 993 580] 491 (89) 940 (53)] (5.4)% 150
LESS: INCOME
GOVERNMENT GRANTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS (55) (32) 0 32 (40) 15 27.1)% 15
INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
RECHARGES (194) (113) (30) 83 (52) 142 (73.2)% 148
OTHER INCOME 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
TOTAL INCOME (249) (145)] (30) 115 (92) 157] (63.0)% 163
NET EXPENDITURE 745 434] 461 26 848 103] 13.9% 313
VIREMENT PROPOSALS
None this cycle
FORECAST
VARIANCE CHANGE
REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000
Employee Costs
Savings are forecast from the management of vacancies and there is a provision of £30K for redundancy payments
which is forecast not to be needed. The movement in the variance since the last report is due to the removal of the
budget provision for possible living wage adjustments. (64) 163
Property Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. 0 0
Administration Costs
Adverse variances are forecast in storage and archiving based on a comparison of actual spend in 2011/12 with the
budget provision for 2012/13. 21 9)
Transport Costs
No significant variance from budget is forecast at this stage. (1) 0
Supplies and Services
Various small savings are forecast in a number of areas. (10) (4)
Income
The budget provided for recoveries of costs from the HRA and Housing Capital budgets totalling £140K that will not now
be made following the reorganisation of the Service in 2011/12. These recoveries have been removed from the
2013/14 budget. 157 163
103 | 313]

Page 83




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Agenda ltem 6.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22" January 2013
DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Twinning & International Partnerships

REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/268

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to bring before Committee applications for
financial assistance from the International Twinning Budget 2012-2013 and to
make recommendations.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

That the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee recommend the
approval of the following grants from the International Twinning Budget 2012-
2013:

i) £2,246 contribution towards the visit of a group of 15 English pupils and 2
teachers from Von Muller Gymnasium, Regensburg to Aberdeen as part
of their social enterprise project to donate money to an Aberdeen
charitable organisation who have the same kind of motivations and
targets as the Regensburg %roup, based on the idea of mutual help and
understanding, Aberdeen, 8" February to 12" February 2013.

i) £4,300 contribution towards the visit of pupils and teachers from Jean
Jaures Ecole, Clermont-Ferrand to Manor Park Primary, Aberdeen, 24
June to 28" June 2013.

i) £7,000 contribution towards the visit of Aberdeen Girl Guiding to the
National Scout Jamboree Event in Stavanger, 6™ July to 13" July 2013.

iv) £3,170 contribution towards the visit of a group of school pupils of
Gymnasium 71, Gomel to Kincorth Academy, Aberdeen 4" to 14"
October 2013.

v) £2,500 contribution towards the educational and cultural visit of a group of
21% Aberdeen Scouts (Cults) to Gomel, Belarus, 9" to 16" October 2013.

Page 85



3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Full council approved the International Twinning Budget for 2012-2013 of
£137,350. The approved budget from the Common Good Fund, provides
£102,000 of monies towards the support of twinning projects and/or visits.

Balance of Budget Available Remaining or at | £47,500
January 20137

i) Contribution towards the visit of a group of 15 | £2,246
English pupils and 2 teachers from Von Muller
Gymnasium, Regensburg to Aberdeen as part of
their social enterprise project to donate money to an
Aberdeen charitable organisation who have the
same kind of motivations and targets as the
Regensburg group, based on the idea of mutual
heIE and understanding, Aberdeen, 8" February to
12" February 2013.

i) Contribution towards the visit of pupils and teachers | £4,300
from Jean Jaurés Ecole, Clermont-Ferrand to
Manor Park Primary, Aberdeen, 24" June to 28"
June 2013.

iii) Contribution towards the visit of Aberdeen Girl £7,000
Guiding to the National Scout Jamboree Event in
Stavanger, 6" July to 13" July 2013.

iv) Contribution towards the visit of a group of school | £3,170
pupils of Gymnasium 71, Gomel to Kincorth
Academy, Aberdeen, 4th to 14™ October 2013.

V) Contribution towards the educational and cultural | £2,500
visit of a group of 21 Aberdeen Scouts (Cults) to
Gomel, Belarus, 9" to 16™ October 2013.

TOTAL £19,216

Amount remaining in budget if | £28,284
recommendations approved:

4 OTHER IMPLICATIONS
The health and safety implications of all visits are taken into account
during planning, with any exceptional implications addressed at the time
of application.

The International Partnerships Officer regularly reviews the travel advice
provided by the Foreign and Commonwealth Office and is in close contact

Page 86



with counterpart officers in the twin cities to ensure information provided to
participants is accurate and up-to-date.

Where individuals/groups from Aberdeen are travelling overseas,
comprehensive pre-visit briefings are offered by the International
Partnerships Officer and all have the opportunity to ask questions and
request support.

When participating in overseas visits, Council employees are covered by
the Council’s insurance policy while non-Council employees are instructed
by the International Partnerships Officer to obtain comprehensive travel
insurance.

Long established twinning links will not be maintained without regular
reciprocal visits and ongoing projects being initiated by communities,
groups and individuals and there is the potential for the city’s international
image to be damaged if we don’'t continue to support established
relationships.

Without support from the twinning budget, exchanges and visits of this
nature could not take place and people in Aberdeen would lose a wide
range of opportunities to engage with the international community. In
addition, incoming visitors to the city on twin city projects support the local
economy through their participation at events and hospitality and retail
expenditure while visiting the city.

The International Partnerships Officer will provide a strong link between
Aberdeen and our twin cities who also provide organisational support,
advice and guidance when required.

They will also make recommendations on funding available to the group
and offer support to foster a relationship with the city so that it is long
lasting and beneficial to the people of Aberdeen without requiring on-
going financial support from the public purse.

All groups participating in twin city activities are encouraged to develop
sustainable relationships with their partner groups. Links between most of
the twin cities of Aberdeen are active, and links which have not recently
been engaged have been contacted to re-establish communications. It is
important that all visits and projects through twinning are long-standing
and fruitful to ensure their benefit to the local people of Aberdeen, to
establish and promote positively the overseas image of Aberdeen and for
best practice to be shared between cities.

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES
i) Contribution towards the visit of a group of 15 English pupils and

2 teachers from Von Muller Gymnasium, Regensburg to Aberdeen
as part of their social enterprise project to donate money to an

Page 87



Aberdeen charitable organisation who have the same kind of
motivations and targets as the Regensburg group, based on the
idea of mutual help and understanding, Aberdeen, 8" February to
12" February 2013.

An English teacher from the Regensburg Secondary School ‘Von
Muller Gymnasium’ contacted Aberdeen City Council regarding a
current English class who are undertaking various social enterprise
projects to raise money to donate to an Aberdeen charitable
organisation. The pupils of Von Muller Gymnasium chose Aberdeen to
donate the money raised from their activities as they would like to
demonstrate to Aberdeen and the local people what twinning means to
them. Regensburg and Aberdeen have been twinned since 1955 and
by this project it would take the twinning partnership to another level.
The project is also to allow the Regensburg students an insight into the
"difficult" sides of their twin town of Aberdeen and raise their awareness
of what kind of problems young people of their age have to cope with in
Scotland. At the same time this might make the Regensburg group
more interested in, and aware of, the social problems of young people
of their age in Regensburg. These fund-raising events have taken the
form of selling products in Regensburg and online, reading classes to
younger pupils during ‘International Reading Day’ as well as a
sponsored work in the Regensburg community. In total, fifteen pupils
and two teachers from Von Muller Gymnasium will visit Aberdeen.

The pupils have decided that with the monies raised through the
various projects they initiated, it will be donated to an Aberdeen charity
of their choosing. The group has not yet decided which organisation will
benefit from their charitable donation, but it will be a charity local to
Aberdeen and supporting Aberdeen citizens. The group will base who
will receive their donation on the following;

e To help a group who are the between the age of twelve to
nineteen to allow the exchange to have a sustainable effect,
meaning other groups from the Von Muller Gymnasium, with
partners in Aberdeen, be allowed to continue in the future.

e To help an Aberdonian group with the same targets and
motivations as the Regensburg group, basing the twinning
project on the idea of mutual help and understanding.

e To try and help a group which do not receive funding from any
official organisations.

Whilst they are in Aberdeen, the Regensburg school group will also
undertake voluntary work with the charitable organisation with who they
donate their fund-raising proceedings, which will be chosen based on
the objectives given as above. The group has also said they will meet
with the staff, and undertake voluntary work for the charity ‘Guide Dogs
for the Blind’. A list of voluntary organisations has been provided to the
pupils in order for them to make an informed decision as to which group
they will undertake voluntary work and make a donation. An estimated

Page 88



total of 1000 Euros is expected to have been raised by the time the
group comes to Aberdeen.

Additionally, it is the intention of the group to attend school or college
classes in Aberdeen, particularly where German is offered. The
Regensburg pupils will provide assistance with teaching and allow
Aberdeen pupils the opportunity to converse with native German
speakers.

Through their volunteer work both in Regensburg and in Aberdeen they
will raise awareness of their social enterprise project and aim to
establish a group in Aberdeen to start a similar initiative in the city. This
would enable project sustainability by deepening the links between the
young people of both Regensburg and Aberdeen. The project would
further help support global citizenship in the school curriculum as well
as developing business and entrepreneurial skills. This project will
develop and strengthen the relationship by demonstrating a model of
best practice supporting youth development and global citizenship.

A Scottish evening is planned for the Regensburg group during their
visit to Aberdeen so they have the opportunity to experience Scottish
culture and tradition as well as taste the quality food product the region
Is known for, leaving them with vibrant memories and positive
messages to share with their colleagues and families when they return
home.

The application requests a total of £2,246 to contribute towards the
cost of accommodation while they are in Aberdeen and some
subsistence costs. A full break-down of costs is given below:

Expenditure

Flights £5,100
Accommodation £1,746
Subsistence £1,700
Total £8,546
Income

Contribution by Participants £1,200
Other Sources of Income £5,100
Total £6,300
Expenditure-Income 8,546-6,300
Total Applying For: £2,246

ii) Contribution towards the visit of pupils and teachers from Jean
Jaurés Ecole, Clermont-Ferrand to Manor Park Primary, Aberdeen,
24" June to 28" June 2013.

Page 89



The newly opened Manor Park Primary School, which is an
amalgamation of Smithfield Primary and Middlefield Primary in 2010,
has a long-standing link with the Jean Jaurés Ecole in Clermont-
Ferrand which has not been active in recent years due to changes in
staffing however both sides are eager to re-engage the twinning
partnership. The last time a twinning project took place between the
two schools occurred in 2010 before the amalgamation when a group
from Aberdeen visited the school in Clermont-Ferrand.

The staff and Head Teacher of Manor Park are now eager to re-
establish the links with Jean Jaurés by inviting a group of twelve pupils
aged between ten to twelve years old from the French school as well
as two of their school teachers. Since early 2012, there has been
communication between the two schools to establish dates, numbers of
people involved and how the programme should be best organised to
provide maximum benefits and outputs from the visit. In the lead-up to
the visit, pupils of both schools will research and present on the
respective schools and the Aberdeen pupils will include photos and a
film on Manor Park.

The teachers have created a draft programme for the Clermont-Ferrand
visitors which will include the following activities:

e Shared lessons at Manor Park Primary

o Participation in a sports event at Manor Park Primary where
parents will be invited to watch followed by a celebration of the
visit in the school dining hall

¢ Showing of Manor Park Primary Film in the main hall as well as
work Jean Jaurés pupils have prepared

e Sports Event at Aberdeen Sports Village with the help of Sport
Aberdeen which will allow other local Aberdeen City schools to
get involved

e A number of sea and shore related activities to appeal to the
children from Clermont-Ferrand who live far from the sea.

e Outdoor pursuits with the help of Adventure Aberdeen

One of the events at Aberdeen Sports Village will be
a 7-aside Football Tournament where sixteen other schools are
participating. Following the football tournament, there will be a multi-
sports event with the help of Sport Aberdeen. For the Football
Tournament, Manor Park Primary and Jean Jaurés will create their own
joint team to compete against the other schools. The event will allow
the French pupils to experience playing as a school team because in
France, teams are run privately.

The visit of the children and staff from Jean Jaurés will reinforce and
build on the links established on the last twinning visit in 2010 to
Clermont-Ferrand. As a result of the proposed visit, it is envisaged that
the Aberdeen young people will have an increased interest in learning
about French culture and language. For most of the pupils, it will also

Page 90



be their first contact with French people and French speakers. Manor
Park Primary has a diverse range of nationalities within the school and
has an increasing number of Eastern European pupils. The visit to
Aberdeen will provide the opportunity for the Eastern European
children living in Aberdeen to speak to their counterparts from the Jean
Jaurés as the pupil profile in both schools is quite similar.

The visit fits appropriately within the aims of the Education Department
at Aberdeen City Council, and approval has already been sought for
the visit from Education. For the teachers of both schools it will allow
the opportunity to broaden their horizons as both the national and
international teachers will experience how classes are taught in both
countries. It will also allow younger teachers to become involved and
take over from the teacher organising the 2013 visit. Additionally, the
visit supports the aims of the Curriculum for Excellence, ‘to enhance
understanding and enjoyment of other cultures...and gain insights into
other ways of thinking and views of the world...to develop skills to use
and enjoy in work and leisure throughout life’.

The project will have a positive impact on the Aberdeen community as
it allows other schools to be involved in the twinning link so it is not
solely limited to Manor Park Primary. The parents and communities are
invited to watch the young people engage in sport and football
tournaments. The young people involved both from Manor Park and
other city schools will benefit from the exposure to a different culture
and language as well as develop their international outlook.

During a French delegation visit to Aberdeen in October 2012 they
asked Manor Park Primary to submit a short film on their school and
area to be shown at Clermont-Ferrand’s ‘Vidéocollectif'. The teachers
of Manor Park Primary have responded positively to this and are keen
to showcase the school and Aberdeen internationally. The School is
working with the Education Film Officer at Belmont Cinema to create
and edit a short film to be premiered in Clermont-Ferrand. By doing so,
it will create a favourable impression of the city, its surroundings, its
people and its facilities.

The application requests a total of £4,300 to help support the cost of
accommodation, transport and food. In the future the staff at Manor
Park will seek sponsorship from companies with French links to ensure
the sustainability of the twinning link. A full break-down of costs is given
below:

Expenditure

Flights £5,400
Insurance £100
Hire of Mini-Bus/Coach £350
Accommodation £3,500
Some subsistence in Aberdeen £100
Cost of Tutors and Equipment £350

Page 91



Cost session Aberdeen Sports Village | £60

Cost of Harbour Tour £140

Total £10,000
Income

Contribution by Participants £5,000
Other sources of Income £700

Total £5,700
Expenditure-Income 10,000-5,700
Total Applying For £4.300

iii) Contribution towards the visit of Aberdeen Girl Guiding to the
National Scout Jamboree Event in Stavanger, 6" July to 13" July
2013.

Girl Guide units from across Aberdeen have submitted an application to
help for funding to attend the National Scout Jamboree in Stavanger.
The wish to establish a twinning link with the Guides and Scouts in
Stavanger came about after two guides researched possibilities and
came back with the idea of attending the International Camp in
Stavanger 2013. The guides carried out independent research and
collected details to report back to their seniors demonstrating their
enthusiasm to create and maintain links with the Norwegian twin city of
Aberdeen. The Executive Committee of Girlguiding Aberdeen approved
the trip and has thought it an excellent way of fostering links between
the youths of the two cities. In total, 28 Guides aged between 11-16
years and 7 adults have signed up for the trip. The girl guides come
from different Girl Guiding units within Aberdeen City ensuring that all
guides have had an equal opportunity to attend the scout camp in
Stavanger.

The Aberdeen Guides will meet with many of the 15,000 Guides and
Scouts attending the camp and it will be an excellent opportunity for the
young people to hear different languages, learn about different
cultures, to live in a tented village without many modern day appliances
and to make to friends from Norway and the rest of Europe.

The Guides are involved in every aspect of planning the trip to ensure
their opinions and preferences are taken into account. The trip will also
develop their leadership, decision-making and ability to compromise all
of which are essential life and work skills.

Prior to travelling to Stavanger all participants shall attend various
events for team building, trip organising and outline planning for a
future, reciprocal event in Aberdeen in 2014. Some specialist skills are
required by the participants including cooking, orienteering, map
reading and compass work for the Aberdeen group camp contribution
which will be gained through workshops before leaving for Stavanger.

Page 92



During the event in Stavanger, Girlguiding in Aberdeen have to host
activity sessions at the camp and it is envisaged that these activities
will have an Aberdeen focus and Scottish influence to highlight and
demonstrate to our European and Norwegian counterparts our culture
and traditions. There is also a Cultural Market where participants have
the opportunity to swap items or have entertainment from their home
area. This will provide the ideal opportunity to advertise Aberdeen. The
project will particularly help those who may be shy and encourage them
to get involved with every aspect of the camp so when they return to
Aberdeen they will have much more confidence. The leaders of the
Girlguiding units expect the girls to take the lead on inviting groups to
Aberdeen in 2014 and the format of future events, developing their
project management and research skills.

Anticipated outcomes of their participation at the camp in Stavanger will
be increased confidence and development of teamwork, leadership,
social and communication skills which will benefit not only the girls but
also their schools, Guiding units and their local community. The girls
who participate in this project will speak at various events on their
experience and are willing to present to interested Councillors and
officers to demonstrate the benefits of ACC’s support and legacy of
participation in this event.

This will be the first time that Girlguiding have ventured into a project
with the Stavanger Guide and Scout Association and the participants
will build relationships with their Norwegian counterparts which will be
continued and strengthened beyond camp. Their visit will attract
Stavanger, Norwegian and other European Scouts and Guides to
attend a camp in Aberdeen in 2014.

The application requests a total of £7,000 to help cover some of the
costs of the camp fee and air flight costs. A break-down of the costs are
provided below:

Expenditure

Airfare £200
Camp Fee £220
Group Clothing £30
Transfer to camp £20
Equipment Hire £30
Training in Aberdeen £20
Insurance £20
Contingency Fund £60
Camp Activities £30
Shipping Costs £100
Total £730 x 35 participants
Total £25,550
Income

Page 93



Contribution by Participants £10,550
Fund-Raising £3,000

Other sources of income £5,000

Total £18,550
Expenditure-Income 25,550-18,550
Total Applying For: £7,000

iv)Contribution towards the visit of a group of school pupils of
Gymnasium 71, Gomel to Kincorth Academy, Aberdeen, 4" to 14t
October 2013.

Kincorth Academy and Gymnasium 71 in Gomel are now in their eighth
year of their educational and social partnership and Kincorth Academy
are very proud of the record that they have of engaging young people
from the two cities, through a wide range of activities including the
exchange visits. To date the school partnership’s main aim has been to
engage in active learning and teaching in each other's school. For
October 2013, Kincorth Academy has invited a group of seven pupils
and two adults from Gymnasium 71 to Aberdeen on a reciprocal visit
from June 2012. This will be the first time a pupil’s visit from Gomel has
taken place since 2008 and their visit will provide the platform for
continuing the professional dialogue had with teachers in June 2012
with regard to sharing of resources, supporting English in their
curriculum and promoting the benefits of twin city links. Kincorth
Academy are continuously ‘always aiming for excellence’ and want to
become an example of good practice in working with a partner school.

Staff at Kincorth Academy wants to develop and move the project
forward by using the expertise of the Expressive Arts faculty at the
Academy. By doing so, it will allow both pupils and staff from
Gymnasium 71 the opportunity to access native speakers through the
visual arts of music and drama whilst continuing to promote lasting
friendships, mutual appreciation and understanding between the young
people of the two cities. During the visit both Scottish and Belarusian
cultures will be explored as stimulus and this will give both sets of
students the opportunity to engage and contribute towards the drama
and music process in the production of a joint theatre production. Staff
of Gymnasium 71 will have the opportunity to observe and participate
in this active learning process as well as observe learning and teaching
taking place across the school.

During the course of the visit the Gomel pupils will be staying with host
families. Staying with local families has always had a positive impact on
the host and extended families of the exchange, for example a previous
host notes

‘We had a wonderful week and learned so much about their culture.
There were tears from the children and parents at the airport. The

Page 94



children still keep in touch with each other and have made a friend for
life’, Host parent

Kincorth Academy has decided that the Gomel teachers will stay in
separate accommodation to allow them sufficient rest time. The staff of
Kincorth Academy will find the teachers accommodation in the Kincorth
area so they are close to the Gomel pupils and academy.

Kincorth Academy will liaise with the organisation ‘Blue Horizon’ on the
project, who are an organisation dealing with youth issues to fully
embed the visit into the local community. As a group will be visiting
from Gomel, it will allow the wider school community the chance to
meet and experience students from a different country and culture.
Kincorth Academy have an excellent partnership with the International
School in Aberdeen, who have kindly offered to invite the students from
Gymnasium 71 into their school for the day, as well as host a social
event to bring the students together.

At the end of the week a joint performance will be given from the
students of Gymnasium 71 and Kincorth Academy which will help to
raise the profile of the twin city agreement further. Kincorth Academy
will continue their partnership after the visit by the following means:

e Blogging

e Exchange of DVD’s of expressive arts performances

e Arrange Glow meetings which is the online community for
Scottish schools and used nationally by teachers

e Sharing resources

e Sharing scripts

¢ Planning for future exchanges through a Gomel pupil working
group at Kincorth Academy who will take responsibility for
leading events and sourcing materials.

The anticipated project outcomes are as follows:

e Strengthen and foster existing relationships between the two
schools

e A shared cultural appreciation

e The show will enhance the confidence of all students involved

e Learning in the expressive arts will assist the pupils to recognise
and value the variety and vitality of culture globally

e Experience the enjoyment and contribution to other peoples’
enjoyment of the expressive arts

e Develop and enhance important transferable skills through the
creative arts

e Breakdown cultural barriers

The application requests a total of £3,170 towards the cost of air flights
and some subsistence. Pupils and staff will also be undertaking a

Page 95



number of fund-raising events such as car boot sales, selling hand-
baked Belarusian pastries, concerts and school show. Any monies
raised through the joint performance will be put towards the Gomel
fund to support future projects. A break-down of costs is given below.

Expenditure

Flights £3,960
Transport £120
Subsistence £120
Accommodation for 2 teachers £850
Visa Reimburse £720
School Activities/Costs £600
Total £6,370
Income

Estimated Revenue £500
Estimated Fund-Raising £1,700
Other sources of Income £1,000
Total £3,200
Expenditure-Income 6,370-3,200
Total Applying For: £3,170

v) Contribution towards the educational and cultural visit of a group
of 215 Aberdeen Scouts (Cults) to Gomel, Belarus, 9" to 16"
October 2013.

The 21% Aberdeen Scouts (Cults) are applying for funding to help
support their long-standing partnership with schools in Gomel. Nine
Scouts and two adults will travel out to Gomel between the 9™ and 16"
October 2013 in order to continue their working relationship with Gomel
schools.

The aim of the Aberdeen Scout project aims to help teach
conversational English in schools in Gomel by a small group of Explorer
Scout Young Leaders visiting schools in Gomel and working in
classrooms with Gomel pupils on English projects under the guidance of
the English teaching staff. During the Scout visit in 2012, the Scout
Group was invited to sign a Friendship/Partnership agreement with
School No.10 and 71 as well as Irininskaya School to promote and
develop English language projects with each School. The partnership
agreement is to also focus on the development of cultural awareness,
exchange knowledge in the sphere of school education and projects
aimed at widening horizons about Scotland and Belarus.

The project starts January 2013 by identifying suitable projects in
consultation with Gomel schools. The work on each project, including
Scots Language; Scouting in Aberdeen, the School Curriculum in
Aberdeen and Food and Leisure continues throughout the year

Page 96



culminating in the visit to Gomel in October to present the projects to the
schools. In addition to work in the classroom, the group of Young
Leaders will be accompanied by Gomel pupils on practical
English/Russian language projects in Gomel.

Consultation is undertaken with the English teaching staff in Gomel in
order to identify suitable joint projects for the Young Leaders and Gomel
pupils. Once the project headings are agreed, the Young Leaders will
meet about monthly, prior to the October visit, to prepare and plan for
the projects, including preparation of the multi-media presentations, oral
presentations, gathering information and materials to deliver the projects
in Gomel. The Scouts will also learn some basic Russian, history of
Belarus and Gomel as well as take some of the lead in planning their
journey to Gomel.

During the year, the Young Leaders will be collecting books,
newspapers, maps and other suitable educational to be donated to the
schools. The Young Scout Leaders also have a link with Gomel State
Children’s Centre and will be visiting the centre to meet with the pupils
and donate toys, clothing, stationary and educational games to the
Centre.

The anticipated project outcomes of the Scout visit to Gomel are
outlined below:

e To promote and develop the twining link between Aberdeen and
Gomel

e To promote the international dimension of The Scout
Association’s training programme

e To give Gomel pupils an opportunity to meet pupils from
Aberdeen

e To give Gomel pupils exposure to hear native English speakers

e Provide an unique experience for young people in Aberdeen and
Gomel to learn of different cultures of both countries.

The 21 Aberdeen Scouts (Cults) received funding from the
International & Twinning Grant for their visit to October 2012. If funding
is approved for their visit in 2013, the group will use this funding to
enhance and maintain their ground work in Gomel, especially by the
signing of the friendship/partnership agreements with the three schools
enabling more pupils in Gomel to meet with the Young Leaders.
Through the work of the Scouts and International Partnerships Officer,
other schools have requested the Scouts to visit. It is expected that over
200 pupils from various schools to be visited will have the opportunity to
engage in conversational English with the Young Leaders during the
visit to Gomel. Scouts which have not previously visited will be chosen
for the 2013 visit.

The Gomel project will encourage other members to become involved
and for new individuals to join the Scouts. The participants from

Page 97



Aberdeen will give a feedback presentation on the project to
organisations connected with Gomel. The Scouts will also give reports to
their own schools in Aberdeen, as well as to Aberdeen Third Sector
Interface, Aberdeen Council of Voluntary Organisations (ACVO) and be
interviewed for broadcast on SHMU local radio.

The application requests a total of £2,500 to help cover some of the
costs of the Gomel visit. Most of the balance of funding required will be
met by fund-raising and contribution of the participants. A break-down of

costs is provided below:

Expenditure

Air Flights £4,070
Hire of Mini-Bus £550
Scout Insurance £165
Visa Costs £990
Interpreter £55
Basic Accommodation £1,650
Meals £440
Total £7,920
Income

Estimated Fund-Raising £400
Contribution by Participants £3,620
Other sources of Income £1,400
Total £5,420
Expenditure-Income 7,920-5,420
Total Applying For £2,500

IMPACT

Aberdeen — the Smarter City

e We will promote Aberdeen as a great place to live,
bring up a family, do business and visit.

o We will ensure that Union Street regains its
position as the heart of the city and move cultural
activity centre-stage through re-invigorated cultural

leadership.

Smarter Living (Quality of Life)

e We aspire to be recognised as a City of Culture, a place of
excellence for culture and arts by promoting Aberdeen as a
cultural centre hosting high quality diverse cultural events for
the whole community and beyond.

Page 98




Smarter Economy (Competitiveness)

o We will work with partners to promote the city as a place to
invest, live, work and export from.

Community Plan
o Work with other organisations, agencies and groups, including
Visit Scotland and Visit Aberdeen, to encourage tourism and the
provision of facilities for tourists.

Promoting and supporting international exchanges, involving various
communities of interest, significantly contributes to Aberdeen City
Council Vision as outlined above and to the actions of the Single
Outcome Agreement. The outlined twinning projects also align with the
cultural strategy vision as it allows for improved communication of
cultural opportunities, helps with changing the perception of the city, to
develop a stronger cultural identity and to have increased levels of
effective partnership working.

Aberdeen’s twin city partnership initiatives:

¢ Foster international understanding and friendship and an appreciation
of cultural diversity

eProvide Aberdeen’s citizens with an awareness of, and insight into,
international issues and perspectives and their impact on Aberdeen
and Scotland

ePromote the image and raise the profile of the city overseas; and

eProvide a forum for the exchange of knowledge, expertise, skills,
ideas and best practice in any given field.

Opportunities for groups, communities and organisations to access twin
city projects and exchanges and for possible sources of funding are
advertised through the Council’s website, press releases, school
circulars where appropriate and the Aberdeen Council of Voluntary
Organisations e-bulletin.

Human Rights, Equalities and Diversity: Aberdeen City Council has in
place a range of statutory and discretionary plans, schemes and
policies to promote equality. Officers endeavour to target groups and
communities which have not previously had experience of international
visits or exchanges, or have been under-represented in twin city
activities. Applicants complete an equal opportunities monitoring form
as part of the application process.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None used

Page 99



REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Amye Robinson

International Partnerships Officer
ARobinson@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 523749

Page 100



Agenda ltem 6.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Sponsorship of Business Awards
REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/261

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The report seeks approval of proposals by the Economic and Business
Development team to sponsor business awards in 2013/2014.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that Committee:

1. Approve the proposals by the Economic and Business Development
team to sponsor business awards, as detailed in the report and
Appendix One, in 2013/2014.

2. Receive an annual report on the impact of this activity.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The delivery of the proposals is dependent upon the Economic and Business
Development budget for 2013/2014, covering staffing costs and operational
programmes. This will be determined in February 2013 as part of the Council’s
corporate budget setting process. A combination of existing budgets within
Economic and Business Development will be utilised to fully cover the costs.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Health and Safety: There are no specific health and safety implications to
report.

Risk Management: The risks associated with not undertaking this activity are:

e Relationships with key partner organisations in the local business
community would be significantly compromised.

e The profile of Aberdeen City Council’s support for local businesses would
be harmed.

1
Page 101



However, these risks must be balanced against the need to operate within an
extremely constrained budget.

Staffing: Enterprise and Sector Development comprises two full-time posts —
one Senior Officer and one Officer.

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

Within the Economic and Business Development team, the Enterprise and Sector
Development section has traditionally sponsored a number of business awards
schemes. In the past, requests have been dealt with on an ad hoc basis and the
team now wishes to set an agreed approach.

The team has sponsored business awards schemes as part of its general
support service to the business community. Other forms of support from
Enterprise and Sector Development have included:

hosting seminars and workshops,
providing specific business advice,
reviewing business plans,

supporting businesses in difficulty,
providing land and property advice,
supporting youth enterprise,

monitoring the Business Gateway service,
responding to inward investment enquiries,
managing a loan scheme.

The majority of these activities require staff time and expertise rather than a
significant operational budget. However, the sponsorship of business awards is
seen as an important component of the City Council’s support for the business
sector and the Council currently sponsors the following business awards
schemes:

Northern Star Business Awards (Lifetime Achievement Award category)

e Grampian Awards for Business Enterprise (ACC and Aberdeenshire
Council jointly sponsor the Alick Buchanan Spirit of Enterprise Award and
the Employer of the Year Award)

e Grampian Food Forum Innovation Awards (general sponsorship of awards
ceremony, jointly with Aberdeenshire Council, non-category specific)

Sponsorship of business awards schemes is a high profile way for the City
Council to show its support for the local business community. It also
demonstrates the value the City Council places on working in partnership with
key organisations that also support the business community. Finally, it also
provides an opportunity for the City Council to showcase the work it does to
directly support local businesses.

2
Page 102



The Northern Star Business Awards, now entering its 10" year, is the flagship
event of Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce. Awards are presented
across 14 different categories to celebrate excellence and entrepreneurship.
Over 800 people attended the 2012 gala dinner. In 2012, Aberdeen City Council
sponsored the Lifetime Achievement Award Category.

Sponsorship options for 2013 include:

Category Sponsor - £8,500 + VAT

Table Gift Sponsor - £3,000 + VAT

Drinks Reception Sponsor - £3,000 + VAT
Entertainment Sponsor - £3,000 + VAT

The Grampian Awards for Business Enterprise, now in its 13" year, aims to
encourage entrepreneurship in Grampian through profiling key achievers in the
SME business community and establishing business champions. Over 300
people attended the 2012 gala dinner and 60 pieces of PR coverage were
generated for the Awards.

Sponsorship option for 2013:

Continue to contribute the same level as previous years - both Aberdeen and
Aberdeenshire Council jointly sponsor the Alick Buchanan Spirit of Enterprise
Award and the Employer of the Year Award at a cost of £7,500 + VAT (each)

The Grampian Food Forum Innovation Awards 2012 event was attended by
around 180 representatives of the local food and drink industry. Currently, a
£1,000 partnership contribution from Aberdeen City Council allows participation
of City-based companies in the Awards and a number of other Grampian Food
Forum activities. In addition, a contribution of a further £1,000 (approx, TBC)
covers hosting a table for 10 at the event.

Sponsorship options for 2013:

Continue support for the Grampian Food Forum and for the Innovation Awards at
a cost of £2,000

Continue to facilitate Aberdeen company participation in Grampian Food Forum
activities only at a cost of £1,000

Given the increasing frequency with which the City Council is asked to sponsor
various awards events, and the increasingly limited resources available to
Economic and Business Development activities in 2013/14 and beyond, it is
proposed that Economic and Business Development should:

1. continue to support the two main generic business awards (Northern Star
Awards and Grampian Awards for Business) and facilitate the continued

3
Page 103



participation of Aberdeen companies in Grampian Food Forum activities
(including the Innovation Awards).

2. refrain from sponsoring any other general, or sector specific, award
events.

Appendix One contains a set of specific proposals and recommendations.
6. IMPACT

Corporate: The contents of the report relate directly to delivering the economic
development aspects of the Single Outcome Agreement:

National Outcome 1 — We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for
doing business in Europe

National Outcome 2 - We realise our full economic potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our people

Local Outcome — Anchor the Oil and Gas Industry

Local Outcome — Diversification of the Economy

An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment is not required for this report.
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Elaine Robertson

Business Growth Manager

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Tel 01224 522940

Email elrobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk

4
Page 104



faYaW| ’\Rn 1

Appendix One

Proposed Sponsorship of Business Awards 2013/2014

UAwards
D

D
D
RN
D
N

Aberdeen or
Aberdeenshire

Annually

Name of Awards and Category ) Time, Place,
Sponsored Organiser Frequency Amount

Northern Star Business Awards Aberdeen and | 26 Sept 2013 Option 1 (recommended): Continue sponsorship of an award

ACC sponsors the Lifetime g;‘;ﬂ‘ﬂ:?of Aberdeen category at a cost to ACC of £8,500 + VAT

Achievement Category Commerce Annually Option 2 (not recommended): Discontinue sponsorship

Grampian Awards for Business Enterprise June 2013 Option 1 (recommended): Continue joint sponsorship with

Enterprise North East Aberdeenshire Council at a cost to ACC of £7,500 + VAT
Trust Aberdeen or

ACC jointly sponsors the A.I'Ck Aberdeenshire Option 2 (not recommended): Discontinue sponsorship

Buchanan Spirit of Enterprise Award Annually

and the Employer of the Year Award

Grampian Food Forum Innovation Grampian March 2013 Option 1 (recommended): Continue sponsorship at a cost to
Food Forum ACC of approximately £1,000, to enable Aberdeen companies

to participate in the wards and a number of other Grampian
Food Forum activities

Option 2 (not recommended): Continue sponsorship on the
same basis as previous years, at a cost to ACC of
approximately £2,000

Option 3 (not recommended): Discontinue all sponsorship

Total for recommended options: £17,000 + VAT




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda ltem 6.3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure

DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Community Festive Fund — 2011 and 2012
REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/270

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

Following E P & | Committee on 11 September, a recommendation was
approved to report back in early 2013 providing information in relation
to the Community Festive Fund and in particular the benefits, previous
and present uptake figures with geographical spread and what the
grants were used for.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

1. That members note the content of this report.

2. That members note the variety of groups and organisations
throughout the city that have benefitted from the fund.

3. That members approve the recommendation to grant funding to

the same group or organisation for a maximum of 3 consecutive
years before sitting out a year.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Monies totaling £29,000 were secured from the E P & | revenue budget
(£25,000) and the Common Good Fund (£4,000) to set up the
Community Festive Fund to support in financial terms individual
community groups and organisations within Aberdeen City who are
organising a celebration over the festive period for their local
community or are developing an existing event.

The £4,000 from the Common Good Fund is specifically targeted at
those communities who organise a Hogmanay event on the night of 31
December into 1 January.

These monies were secured for financial years 2011/2012 and

2012/2013. The same level of funding has been requested for financial
year 2013/2014.

Page 107



The only other financial implication for the management of the
Community Festive Fund is staffing costs which are covered within
existing staffing budgets.

Appendix 1 details the breakdown of the groups and organisations and
the amount of grant awarded. The appendix covers both financial
years 2011/2012 and 2012/2013.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS
Staffing

The Community Festive Fund is managed by the Senior Events Officer
and an IVSA Officer within the City Promotions team. These officers
promote the fund, seek and approve applications, disburse funds and
acquire receipts for all spend.

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

The City Council has for many years held a celebratory event to herald
in the new year. The last City of Aberdeen Hogmanay Street Party was
held in 2008. From 2009, budgets savings had to be identified and the
Street Party event was cancelled and downsized to a fireworks display
only from the rooftop of His Majesty’s Theatre. This was delivered in
2009 and 2010.

For 2011, again budget savings had to be identified and the Council
sought private sponsorship to help with costs to deliver the fireworks
event. The Community Festive Fund was set up to encourage
organisations and groups celebrate Hogmanay within their own
communities. The fund also extended the period to cover other festive
events and activities in the lead up to Hogmanay.

The Community Festive Fund contributes to the Common Good of the
city, is inclusive and maintains and develops the city’s continued Civic
Pride through community based festivities and events. It is a popular
fund with applications coming from a broad cross section of city wide
communities. The fund also plays an integral part in the success of
Aberdeen’s Winter Festival programme.

The fund allocated monies to 80 groups and organisations in 2011
whilst in 2012, there was an increase to 98 groups and organisations.
Applications were city wide and covered all age groups and abilities.
The amounts requested varied from as little as £46 through to the
maximum of £5600. We can deduce from the applications that the fund
has made a significant contribution to groups throughout the city,
easing the financial burden when organising festive events for their
community. See Appendices 1 and 3 for more detail.

Page 108



For both 2011 and 2012, demand has outstripped supply in that the
total amount of funding requested from communities is more than the
amount of funding available. In both years, City Events has ensured
that ALL applicants have received funding and reduced the amount
requested in a proportional manner. Applicants can apply for up to
£500 from the fund. (Appendix 2 outlines the letter explaining the fund
criteria). Receipts must be produced for the total grant allocated from
the fund.

It is also noted that there are a number of groups who have applied and
been granted funding for both 2011 and 2012. In the interest of
fairness and to encourage applications from new groups, it is
recommended that we introduce a “3 strikes and out” policy where
groups will only be granted funding for 3 consecutive years before
sitting out a year. This will not affect any group for 2013 as this will be
the third year of operating the fund. Any group who falls within the new
policy will be informed at the time of applying for 2013 funding that they
will not be considered for funding in 2014.

Appendix 1 shows the breakdown of the groups and organisations by
Council ward and those who provide a city wide service, amount of
grant received and the purpose and use of the grant. Appendix 3
shows the percentage uptake split by type of group. The appendices
cover both financial years 2011/2012 and 2012/2013.

IMPACT
Corporate

Aberdeen — the Smarter City

¢ We will promote Aberdeen as a great place to live,
bring up a family, do business and visit.

¢ We will embrace the distinctive pride the people of
Aberdeen take in their city and work with them to
enhance the sense of well-being here, building
strong communities which look out for, and look
after one another.

Smarter Governance (Participation)
¢ We will seek to develop a sense of community in Aberdeen
based on principles of openness, fairness, reciprocity and
responsibility.

Smarter Living ( Quality of Life)

Page 109



¢ We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our
citizens by offering support and activities which promote
independence, resilience, confidence and self-esteem.

Smarter Economy (Competitiveness)

e We will work with partners to promote the city as a place to
invest, live, work and export from.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None.

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Bill Farquhar

Senior Events Officer

williamf@aberdeencity.qov.uk
Ext 3575

Page 110



Appendix 1 Breakdown of groups and organisations by Council ward,

amount and purpose of grant

2012 AIRYHALL / BROOMHILL / GARTHDEE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Airyhall After School Club £200 Children’s Christmas Party — food and gifts

Airyhall Toots Playgroup £150 Children’s Christmas Party — food and
entertainment

Inchgarth Community Centre £350 Christmas Party Fun Day — entertainment,
transport and food

Janesfield Manor Tenants £350 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Association

Kaimhill After School Club £350 Christmas Party — food, decorations and prizes

Ruthrie Court Sheltered Housing £200 Christmas Dinner — food, transport and
entertainment

2011 AIRYHALL / BROOMHILL / GARTHDEE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Garthdee Community Council £400 Christmas Party — transport and gifts
Inchgarth Community Centre £400 Christmas Party — entertainment and food
2012 BRIDGE OF DON

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Bridge of Don — Our Community £350 Nov 5™ Fireworks Display

Project

Forehill School PTA £200 Christmas Fayre — food and decorations
Forehill Nursery £100 Christmas Café — food and decorations
31% Aberdeen Girls Brigade £350 Christmas Party — entertainment, food and gifts
Company — Middleton Park

2011 BRIDGE OF DON

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Braehead School £250 Christmas Concerts — food and decorations
Forehill PTA £250 Christmas Fayre — food

Forehill Primary School £200 Christmas Event — food

2012 DYCE / BUCKSBURN / DANESTONE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Beacon Bowling Club £200 Christmas Lunch

Beacon Community Centre £300 Children’s Christmas Party — venue hire,
decorations, food

Beacon Gardening Club £80 Christmas Lunch

Page 111




1% Wed Beacon Ramblers £100 Christmas Lunch

Bucksburn & Newhills Community | £350 Christmas Lights Switch On Event — food and

Council staff costs

Danestone Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment

Dyce Community Youth Group £100 Children’s Christmas Party — entertainment,
decorations and food

Stoneywood Primary School £200 Christmas Show — entertainment and
decorations

Stoneywood Primary After School | £150 Children’s Christmas Party — decorations, food

Club

and prizes

2011 DYCE / BUCKSBURN / DANESTONE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Beacon Bowlers £150 Christmas Meal

Beacon Gardening Club £60 Christmas Party — food and entertainment
Beacon Alternate Wednesday £140 Christmas Lunch

Ramblers

1% Wed Beacon Ramblers £85 Christmas Lunch

Bucksburn & Newhills Community | £400 Christmas Lights Switch-On Event - food and
Council staff costs

Danestone Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment

2012 GEORGE STREET / HARBOUR

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Castlehill and Pittodrie Community | £180 Christmas Party — venue hire, food and

Council decorations

Catherine Street Community £500 Hogmanay Party — food, entertainment and staff
Centre costs

Sunnybank Community Centre £350 Christmas Party — entertainment, food and

decorations

2011 GEORGE STREET / HARBOUR

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Catherine Street Community £500 Hogmanay Party — food, entertainment and staff
Centre costs

Froghall Community Centre £400 Christmas Party — food and entertainment
Sunnybank Community Centre £400 Christmas Fun Day — entertainment and food

2012 HAZLEHEAD / ASHLEY / QUEENS CROSS

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Cornerstone & Rubislaw Church £350 Christmas Party — entertainment, food,
Community Centre decorations, prizes

Harlaw Area Lifelong Learning £150 Christmas Concert — food

Association

Hazlehead Community Centre £350 Christmas Event — food

Page 112




| Hazlehead Wayfarers

| £85

| Christmas Lunch

2011 HAZLEHEAD / ASHLEY / QUEENS CROSS

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Hazlehead Academy £71 Christmas Concert — food

Hazlehead Academy Staff Choir £200 Christmas Concerts — food and transport

Hazlehead Community Centre £400 Christmas Party

Queen’s Cross Church £335 Christmas Concert - food

2012 HILTON / STOCKETHILL

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Cairncry Community Centre £250 Christmas Party — food, entertainment, staff
costs and prizes

Cornhill Community Centre £150 Christmas Party — food

Cornhill Thursday Friends £200 Christmas Meal

Cornhill Walkers £120 Christmas Meal

Fersands & Fountain Community £250 Children’s Christmas Party — food, decorations,

Project staff costs and entertainment

Fersanda Family Centre & Nursery | £250 Children’s Christmas Party — food,
entertainment and gifts

Hilton Community Centre £350 Christmas Party — food, entertainment and
decorations

Printfield Community Project £350 Christmas Party — venue hire, entertainment,
food and gifts

27" Aberdeen Scout Troop — £150 Christmas Party — entertainment and food

Rosehill

2011 HILTON / STOCKETHILL

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Cairncry Community Centre £350 Christmas Party — entertainment, food, prizes
and staff costs

Cornhill Community Centre £300 Christmas Party — food

Cornhill Walkers £100 Christmas Lunch

Fersands & Fountain Community £400 Children’s Christmas Party — decorations, food,

Project entertainment, staffing costs and gifts

Fersands Family Centre & Nursery | £120 Christmas Event — entertainment and food

Hilton Community Centre £300 Christmas Party — food and decorations

Printfield Community Project £400 Children’s Christmas Party — venue hire,
decorations and food

2012 KINCORTH / LOIRSTON

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Altens Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — food, entertainment,
transport, decorations

Page 113




Charleston Events Team £150 Theatre Trip for Children — food snack bags

First Class Out of School Club £250 Children’s Christmas Party — food,
entertainment, gifts and decorations

Kincorth Community Centre £200 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Management Group

Margaret Clyne Court £100 Christmas Dinner — food

Provost Hogg Court Tenants £200 Hogmanay Party -

Association

2011 KINCORTH / LOIRSTON

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Charleston School Fundraising £201.50 | Children’s Theatre Trip — food snack bags

Committee

Cove & Altens Community Council | £78.80 Christmas Concert — food

First Class Out of School Club £300 Children’s Christmas Party — food, gifts and
entertainment

Loirston Annexe Rising 2s, 5s and | £350 Children’s Christmas Parties — food and gifts

Softplay

2012 KINGSWELLS / SHEDDOCKSLEY

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Bressay Brae Sheltered £250 Christmas Dinner — food and gifts

Accommodation

Kingswells Primary School PTA £350 Children’s Christmas Parties — food and gifts

Kingswells Public Hall £350 Christmas Party — entertainment and food

Muirfield After School Club £200 Children’s Christmas Party — food, decorations
and gifts

Sheddocksley Community Centre | £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment and food

Stockethill Church of Scotland £350 Christmas Event — venue hire, food and prizes

2011 KINGSWELLS / SHEDDOCKSLEY

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Heathryburn PTA £300 Christmas Concert - food

Kingsford School £200 Christmas Concert — transport and food

Kingswells Community Centre £400 Christmas Party — entertainment, food and gifts

Kingswells Primary PTA £400 Children’s Christmas Parties — food

Muirfield Primary School £360 Christmas Concert

Sheddocksley Community Centre | £400 Children’s Christmas Party — food,
entertainment and gifts

2012 LOWER DEESIDE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Culter Christmas Lights £350 Lights Switch On Event — entertainment, venue
hire and food

Culter Community Council £100 Christmas Party — food and venue hire

Page 114




Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber £100 Christmas Carol Event — entertainment

Community Council

Milltimber Out of School Club £200 Children’s Christmas Party — food, decorations
and gifts

St Devenick’s Playgroup £200 Christmas Concert — food and gifts

2011 LOWER DEESIDE

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Culter Community Council £120 Christmas Party — food and venue hire

Culter Christmas Lights £400 Lights Switch-On Event — entertainment, venue
hire and food

Cults, Bieldside & Milltimber £155 Christmas Carol Event — entertainment

Community Council

2012 MIDSTOCKET / ROSEMOUNT

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Ashgrove Children’s Centre £200 Christmas Fayre — food, entertainment
Midstocket Community Centre £350 Christmas Events — food, entertainment
Skene Square After School Club £250 Children’s Christmas Party — decorations, food

and gifts

2011 MIDSTOCKET / ROSEMOUNT

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Ashgrove’s Children’s Centre £300 Christmas Fun Day — food, entertainment and
decorations

Gilcomston South Church £300 Christmas Parties

Growing Rosemount £400 Christmas Events — food and entertainment

Midstocket Community £400 Christmas Events — entertainment and food

Rosemount Community Centre £400 Christmas Event — food

2012 NORTHFIELD

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

67" Company Aberdeen Boys £300 Children’s Christmas Parties — venue hire,

Brigade — Mastrick entertainment

Cummings Park Community Flat — | £300 Christmas Fun Day — food and prizes

Youth Group

Cummings Park Community Flat £150 Christmas Party — food, decorations and prizes

Granitehill House Tenants £350 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Association

Mastrick Community Centre £350 Christmas Lunch and Party — entertainment,
food and gifts

Middlefield Community Project £300 Christmas Events — food and entertainment

Middlefield Community Project — £150 Children’s Christmas Lunch — food

Parent and Toddler Group

Page 115




Middlefield Community Project —
Project Volunteers

£300

Christmas Meal — food

Northfield Community Centre £350 Christmas Party/Lunch — food, entertainment
and gifts

Northfield Community Council £350 Christmas Carol Concert — food and
entertainment

2011 NORTHFIELD

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

67" Company Aberdeen Boys £300 Children’s Christmas Parties — entertainment

Brigade — Mastrick and food

Cummings Park Community £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment, staff costs,

Centre prizes and food

Cumming Park Community Flat £185 Christmas Event

Steering Group

Grandparents as Parents £400 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Granitehill Tenants Association £350 Christmas Party — food, entertainment and
decorations

Lord Provost Henry Rae £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment and food

Community Centre

Mastrick Community Centre £300 Christmas Lunch

Northfield Community Centre £300 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Northfield Community Centre £200 Children’s Christmas Party — food, decorations

Children’s Groups and entertainment

Northfield Community Council £400 Christmas Carol Concert — food, entertainment
and venue

Quarryhill School £400 Christmas Events

2012 TILLYDRONE / SEATON / OLD ABERDEEN

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Hayton Road Tenants Group £350 Christmas Party — entertainment and food

Powis Gateway Community Centre | £350 Christmas Eve Event — food

Seaton Community Creche/ASN £350 Children’s Christmas Party — food, decorations
and gifts

Seaton Community Youth Group £90 Christmas Outing — transport, entertainment and
food

Seaton Nursery £350 Children’s Theatre Visit — entertainment and
transport

Seaton Rehab / Recovery £150 Christmas Lunch

Tilly Youth Project £200 Christmas Party — entertainment, food and
transport

Tillydrone Community Centre £400 Hogmanay Party — transport and staff costs

Tillydrone Community Flat £350 Christmas Parties — food, decorations and gifts

Page 116




2011 TILLYDRONE / SEATON / OLD ABERDEEN

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Aberdeen Lads Club Community £400 Christmas Party — entertainment, food, prizes

Project and decorations

M26 Group £150 Christmas Lunch and entertainment

Old Aberdeen Community Council | £115 Christmas Party — venue hire and food

Powis Gateway Community Centre | £400 Christmas Eve Event — food

Seaton Community Project £400 Christmas Parties — food, decorations and gifts

Seaton Rehab/Recovery Project £180 Theatre Trip

St Machar Academy Citizenship, £200 Christmas Events

Enterprise and Life Skills Groups

Tillydrone Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment, food and staff
costs

Tillydrone Community Steering £300 Christmas Party — food and gifts

Group

2012 TORRY / FERRYHILL

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Balnagask Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment, food,
decorations, transport and staffing costs

Ferryhill Community Centre £350 Christmas Cracker Event — food, decorations,
entertainment and staff costs

Gairn Court Tenants Association £300 Christmas Meal — food and transport

Polmuir Bowling Club £150 Christmas Party — food

St Peter’s Court £350 Christmas Lunch — entertainment and food

Torry After School Club £300 Children’s Christmas Party — decorations, food,
gifts

Old Torry Community Centre £350 Christmas Lunch — food, entertainment and gifts

Torry St Fittick’s Parish Church £100 Christmas Meal

Tullos Community Centre £350 Christmas Party — food and decorations

2011 TORRY / FERRYHILL

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Albury Outdoor Sports Centre £300 Carol Singing Event — food, entertainment and
decorations

Balnagask Community Centre £500 Hogmanay Party — entertainment, food and
decorations

Friends of Duthie Park £175 Christmas Event — staff costs, entertainment
and food

Torry St Fittick’s Parish Church £150 Christmas Dinner

Walker Road School and Parent £400 Christmas Fayre and Concerts

Council

Page 117




2012 CITYWIDE GROUPS

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Aberdeen Christian Fellowship £150 Carols in the car park event — refreshments,
lighting, leaflets

Aberdeen Forward — Hobby Club £150 Christmas lunch and transport

Aberdeen Forward — Roots & £100 Christmas meal and transport

Shoots

Alcohol Support £350 Providing entertainment to numerous care
homes in city — transport, food and
entertainment

Bon Accord Silver Band £350 Christmas Concert — venue hire, staff costs,
transport and food

Create Aberdeen £250 Christmas Party — food and decorations

Down’s Syndrome Scotland — £300 Christmas Party — venue hire, food and

Grampian Branch entertainment

Friends for Life Club (VSA) £300 Christmas Party — food and entertainment

Future Choices £350 Christmas Party — venue hire, entertainment and
food

Grampian MS Therapy Centre £400 Christmas Lunch

Lewis United Youth Football Club | £300 Children’s Christmas Party — venue hire,
entertainment, food and gifts

Lifestyle / Community Outreach at | £350 Christmas Day Dinner — food and food parcels

City Church

Polish Association Aberdeen £350 Christmas Party — food, venue hire, gifts

Vocal Moves Senior Choir £100 Christmas Concert — venue hire and staff costs

WEA Reach Out £300 Christmas Party — food, entertainment and gifts

2011 CITYWIDE GROUPS

NAME OF GROUP AMOUNT | USE/PURPOSE

Aberdeen Campaign for Nuclear £46 Venue Hire and Food

Disarmament

Aberdeen Christian Fellowship £200 Christmas Event — food and decorations

Bon Accord Silver Band £400 Christmas Concert — venue hire, transport, food
and staff costs

City Church £400 Christmas Day Dinner — food and food parcels

Community Learning Healthy £300 Christmas Parties — food

Minds Project

Dorothy Bothwell £400 Community Event — entertainment and food

Down’s Syndrome Grampian £320 Children’s Christmas Party — decorations,

Branch entertainment and gifts

Friends for Life Club VSA £400 Christmas Parties — food, entertainment and
gifts

Homestart Aberdeen £150 Christmas Event — food, transport and
entertainment

PEER Project £250 Children’s Theatre Trip

Scottish Spina Bifida Association £360 Christmas Lunch

WEA Reach Out Project £400 Christmas Party — decorations, food and gifts

Page 118




Appendix 2 Community Festive Fund Letter

Our Ref.
Your Ref. Community Festive Fund
Contact Karen Orchard

Email korchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Direct +44 (0) 1224 522958

Dial +44 (0) 1224 523315

Direct

Fax

November 2012

Community Groups within Aberdeen City

Dear Community Contact

FESTIVE COMMUNITY FUND 2012

City Promotions
Enterprise Planning and
Infrastructure

Aberdeen City Council
Business Hub 10, 2™
Floor South

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen AB10 1AQ

Tel 01224 523575
Minicom 01224 522381
DX 529451, Aberdeen 9
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

| am pleased to confirm that once again, Aberdeen City Council have set up a

Festive Community Fund for 2012.

This fund provides a small financial support to individual community groups
and organisations within Aberdeen City who are organising a celebration over
the festive period for their local community or developing an existing event

you may already hold.

The financial support available for any group or organisation is a sum up to a

maximum of £500.

The set criteria, as detailed below, will be applied in order to determine
whether a group or organisation is eligible for financial support from this fund.

Qualifying Criteria

» The festive event must be held on or before the 31st December 2012

Page 119



» It must take place in a venue within Aberdeen City for the benefit of your
community

» The funding can only be used for the purposes of entertainment, venue
hire, transport, staffing or catering. No part of the funding can be spent
on the provision of alcohol

» There will be a requirement to produce receipts and submit them to the
Councll

» Funding will not be awarded to individual groups to the exclusion of others.
The funding is for the benefit of all in the community applying.

Failure to comply with any of the above criteria may result in a request by
Aberdeen City Council for repayment of any funds awarded.

In order to ascertain the level of interest at this time, | would be obliged if you
can complete the attached form and return to us by Wednesday 14
November 2012.

Please do not hesitate to contact either myself on the above contact details or
Bill Farquhar, Senior Events Officer on 01224 523575, if you require any
further information.

Yours Faithfully

. E20. ¢

Karen Orchard
IVSA Officer

Page 120



Appendix 3 Percentage breakdown by group

Type 2011 (%) 2012 (%)
Youth Groups 29 34
Older People 8 16
Religious 5 3
Support Groups 10 11
Community Groups 48 36

Page 121




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Agenda ltem 6.4

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Draft International Trade Plan 2013/2014
REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/260

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The report seeks approval for the Council’s planned international trade
development activities for 2013/2014, and in particular the attendance at
overseas trade events, in order to help deliver the economic development
priorities of the Smarter Aberdeen vision. The report is a “Draft” International
Trade Plan for 2013/2014 and is being brought forward now to allow adequate
lead-in times for activity planning and delivery.

The Plan’s finalisation is dependent on two factors: the approval of the
2013/2014 budget, and any significant unanticipated changes arising from the
2012 International Trade Survey, which is being undertaken at present. If there is
a significant change from 2012/2013 to 2013/2014 in the operational budgets for
international trade activity, or, if the results of the Survey indicate demand for
significantly different priorities, a revised report will be brought forward to the next
EP&l Committee on 19 March 2013.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that Committee:

1. Approve the report and the activities described herein, subject to their
approval by the Scottish Government in the normal manner

2. Approve the relevant travel by officers and Elected Members for the

activities as described in the Appendix

Receive a bulletin report on each event undertaken in the plan

Receive a presentation on the findings of the 2012 International Trade

Survey at the next Committee (19 March 2013).

»w

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The delivery of the Draft International Trade Plan 2013/2014 is dependent upon a
2013/2014 international trade budget allocation within the Economic and
Business Development budget, covering staffing costs and operational

1
Page 123



programmes. This will be determined in February 2013 as part of the Council’s
corporate budget setting process.

In 2012/2013, the allocated operational budget was £68,000, excluding staff
costs. The 2013/2014 Draft International Trade Plan is based on a budget at
approximately the same level as 2012/2013, and is therefore subject to change,
depending on the Council’s 2013/2014 budget allocations. If there are significant
changes as a result of budget decisions, a revised Plan will be submitted to the
next Committee on 19 March 2013.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Health and Safety: The health and safety implications of all overseas journeys
are taken into account during planning, with any exceptional implications to be
addressed at the time. Officers regularly review the travel advice provided by the
Foreign and Commonwealth Office and are in contact with counterparts in-
country to ensure information is accurate and up-to-date. When participating in
overseas journeys, Council officers and Elected Members are covered by the
Council’s insurance policy. A risk assessment is carried out for each overseas
journey.

Risk Management: The risks associated with not undertaking this international
trade development work are:

o City companies would have significantly reduced opportunities to enter
new export markets and exploit export opportunities;

e Aberdeen’s position as a global energy capital would be compromised if
there was no local support, for example, to host high-level visiting
business delegations; likewise, there would be a serious risk of loss of
visibility on the world energy industry stage if profile was not maintained at
key overseas trade events;

e The Council would not be fulfilling its obligations in the Single Outcome
Agreement, the vision for Smarter Aberdeen, or the role set out in the
Scottish Economic Recovery Plan, which places internationalisation as
“one of the central priorities for the acceleration of the Scottish recovery”;

e Loss of targeted local support to local businesses could contribute to their
failure, or their decision to relocate from Aberdeen.

Staffing: The International Trade team is currently staffed by one full-time Senior
Officer (International Trade and Investment) and one full-time International Trade
Officer. A third post of International Trade Officer (Energy), shared and co-funded
with Aberdeen Renewable Energy Group, is currently vacant. The successful
delivery of the Plan is dependent on a fully-staffed team. These staffing numbers
do not take account of City Promotion team personnel who lead on exhibitions
such as Offshore Europe and Offshore Northern Seas. Market prioritisation is
considered very carefully to ensure staffing resources are targeted where they
can deliver most value and benefit to local companies. However, any requests to
deliver international trade activities over and above those in this Plan will be
subject to the availability of suitable staff and budget resources.

2
Page 124



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

Regional, National and International Context

The vision of Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF) is for
Aberdeen City and Shire “to be recognised by 2025 as one of the most robust
and resilient economies in Europe with a reputation for opportunity, enterprise
and inventiveness that will attract and retain world-class talent of all ages.”
Aligned to this is the need to maintain an excellent quality of life, for which the
region is already renowned.

To achieve this vision, and ensure sustainable growth and prosperity for the
region, Aberdeen City and Shire’s public and private sector organisations need to
work in partnership to deliver on ACSEF’s 7 strategic priorities (below) in the four
key industry sectors of energy, life sciences, tourism and food and drink.

1. Deliver a fully integrated transport network

2. Maximise our intellectual capital — people and expertise
3. Anchor the oil and gas industry

4. Deliver city centre redevelopment

5. Attract and develop skilled people

6. Improve the efficiency of planning decision-making

7. Location of choice for company headquarters

This report outlines how the Council’s international trade team will contribute to
the delivery of these priorities, particularly items 2, 3, 5 and 7, and is aligned with
the new ACSEF action plan for 2013-2019, Building On Success.

The International Trade team helps to create the conditions for sustainable
economic growth in the City by providing strategic support to City businesses to
enhance their internationalisation (eg increase export of products and services).

The team does this by working effectively in partnership with key local, national
and international partners to enhance the City’s strategic profile and position as a
global energy capital, and as an even better place in which to live, work, invest,
visit and grow up.

In practical terms, this means supporting trade missions, hosting inward business
delegations, facilitating contacts between local and international companies,
holding business seminars, attending key industry conferences and exhibitions
and providing market intelligence.

In many of these activities, the team works in partnership with Scottish
Development International, UK Trade and Investment and other local and
national organisations to ensure the focus of the work is demand-led and there is
a coordinated approach to international trade activity. The team seeks to
leverage the combined benefit of partner activities to maintain profile and will
support partners’ activities at select events where the team is not represented in
person.

3
Page 125



Sector prioritisation

It is proposed that the City Council’s International Trade team should continue its
primary focus on the energy industry for the following reasons:

The energy industry, both oil and gas and renewables, remains the key
driver for the regional economy

The energy industry is where the team can add most value for SMEs
through supporting trade missions, hosting inward delegations, holding
seminars etc

There is significant industry-led demand for support to increase
internationalisation and support further exports

Support for high-value jobs in the city

Future potential of subsectors such as subsea, decommissioning,
unconventional oil and gas etc

Activity complements national support from SDI and UKTI

Existing knowledge, expertise and experience within the team is focused
on the energy industry

Other sectors benefit from existing support (eg support for life sciences
from SDI; support for tourism from the Council’s City Promotions team and
Visit Aberdeen; support for food and drink from Aberdeenshire Council)

Assuming a primary focus on the energy industry by the International Trade
team, the team must then narrow its focus further to certain key geographic
target markets, in order to direct its limited staffing and budget resources towards
optimal outcomes for local companies.

The priorities below are determined by taking into account the following:

Industry opinion, for example, through the biennial International Trade
Survey and ad-hoc questionnaires

Current knowledge, experience and expertise within the team

Forecasting of future market developments

Views of Council officers and Elected Members

Views of local and national partner organisations via the North East
Scotland Trade Group

Opportunity for best return on investment (eg of staff time, project budget)
Cities/regions where good working relationships are already in place
Accessibility of the market (eg regulations, business culture, language etc)
Ease or otherwise of market entry (ie how much help companies need to
enter the market)

Summary of target markets and priority levels

In order to focus activity where it can deliver most benefit to local companies, it is
necessary to prioritise certain markets, and to determine the type and amount of
activity to be undertaken in that market.

4
Page 126



Activity in Tier One — the top priority markets — will include proactive outward and
inward business support, for example trade missions, exhibitions, conferences,
inward visits, local seminars, sponsored events etc.

Activity in Tier Two — medium priority markets — will include continued business
support with some outward but mainly local or inward events, such as seminars.

However, given the speed with which markets and the oil and gas industry
change and develop, this framework is intended as a guide only. The team will
endeavour to maintain enough operational and financial flexibility to enable it to
respond to any unexpected opportunities that may arise which have the potential
to provide an immediate return for Aberdeen companies.

The 2012 International Trade Survey is being undertaken at present and its
findings will help to inform the activities and priorities for the year ahead. The
team anticipates a reasonably high degree of consistency in terms of the top
priority markets remaining the same or similar. Therefore the following markets
are deemed the most appropriate for prioritisation.

Tier One (top priority)

US (Gulf of Mexico)
Canada

Brazil

Norway

Tier Two (medium priority)

Australia

Iraq

World Energy Cities Partnership fellow member cities

Additional Priorities

Offshore Europe September 2013

Aberdeen will host Offshore Europe from 3™ to 6™ September 2013. The event,
which celebrates its 40" anniversary this year, is expected to attract around
50,000 delegates and 1500 exhibitors from nearly 100 countries. The City
Council’s exhibition presence is managed by the City Promotions team. The
International Trade team will be required to plan and deliver detailed business
programmes for a wide range of international and VIP delegations.

Unconventional Oil and Gas Conference November 2013

The International Trade team, in partnership with the private sector, will support a
third annual conference in Aberdeen in November 2013 focusing on the fast-
emerging global sub-sector of unconventional oil and gas.

2012 Aberdeen City and Shire International Trade Survey
5

Page 127



The biennial International Trade Survey is a vital ingredient in determining how to
tailor international trade services according to company demand.

North East Scotland Trade Group

This group was formerly constituted as Business Gateway International and was
resourced by two Scottish Enterprise staff. Following restructuring at Scottish
Enterprise, the group ceased. It was reconvened in 2012 as the North East of
Scotland Trade Group, with the partners comprising Aberdeen City Council,
Aberdeenshire Council, Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce,
Scottish Development International, UK Trade and Investment, Subsea UK, and
the Scottish Council for Development and Industry.

The group shares international trade plans to avoid duplication and address any
gaps in service provision and has developed a shared events calendar for ease
of use by the business community.

World Energy Cities Partnership (WECP)

Aberdeen City Council is a founding member of the World Energy Cities
Partnership — a 19-strong network of global energy cities that encourages the
exchange of energy industry knowledge and economic and infrastructure
development strategies.

Representatives of the City Council attend two WECP meetings per year: the
Annual General Meeting each October, and a working meeting during the
Offshore Technology Conference in Houston each May.

The focus of activity in 2013/2014 will be on maximising business development
opportunities, addressing infrastructure investment challenges and tackling skills
shortages.

Renewable Energy

An emerging component of the International Trade team’s work will be its support
for the renewable energy sector and, once the appropriate vacancy has been
filled, officers will report on planned activity in this sector. A particular focus is
anticipated in the hydrogen sector, due to the HyTrec and hydrogen bus projects
in Aberdeen.

Memoranda of Understanding (MOU)

Aberdeen City Council has six Memoranda of Understanding, established
between the mid 1990s and most recently in 2006 :

¢ Nova Scotia, Canada (jointly with Aberdeenshire Council and Moray
Council);
¢ Newfoundland and Labrador (jointly with Aberdeenshire Council and
Moray Council);
6

Page 128



Torshavn, Faroe Islands;

State of Rio de Janeiro, Brazil;

Western Kazakhstan (Atyrau);

Villahermosa and the State of Tabasco, Mexico.

A report on these MOU was submitted to EP&l Committee on 31 January 2012
and work continues in order to ensure best value from these agreements.

In line with the recommendations in this past Committee report, no new further
MOU agreements are being considered in the near future. However, it should be
noted that we have recently received an approach from Basra, in Iraq, to explore
how/whether Aberdeen may be able to help them develop their oil and gas sector
and the City administration’s capability to deliver effective public services.
Economic and Business Development officers are currently in discussions with
the Foreign and Commonwealth Office to determine how/whether this might be
possible under some kind of “economic development agreement” between Basra
and Aberdeen. Given Basra’s desired wish to explore ways in which they can
learn from Aberdeen in relation to the delivery of public services, any
development agreement will likely need to involve other services from within the
Council. If discussions reach a point where ACC are asked to enter into any
formal economic development agreement, a report will be prepared and
submitted to Committee to determine whether/how this should be progressed.

Type of activity

Having identified the priority sector (energy) and the priority markets as above,
the next step is to identify what type of international trade support activity will
deliver the best results for Aberdeen companies.

The type of activity undertaken will depend on the outcomes of the 2012
International Trade Survey, the nature of each market, the level of industry
interest/demand, resource capacity (both budget and staffing), and ability to
maximise output through working in partnership in order to ensure the Council
obtains maximum value for every pound it spends.

In general, the type of activity will include:

¢ Attending industry conferences and exhibitions — taking an exhibition
stand at some, simply having a proactive, mobile presence at others

o Where appropriate, accompanying (and, if resources allow, organising and
leading) trade missions to target markets

e Hosting (both through proactively attracting and responding to requests
from partners) key inward business delegations from main target markets
Hosting business seminars for local companies
Making better use of existing networks such as WECP, MOU etc

6. IMPACT

7
Page 129



Corporate: The contents of the report relate directly to delivering the economic
development aspects of the Single Outcome Agreement:

National Outcome 1 — We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for
doing business in Europe

National Outcome 2 - We realise our full economic potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our people

Local Outcome — Anchor the Oil and Gas Industry

Local Outcome — Diversification of the Economy

The contents of the report also relate directly to delivering the economic
development aspects of the Administration’s Smarter Aberdeen vision.

An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment is not required for this report.
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Scottish Government Economic Strategy

Scottish Government International Framework

The Economic Action Plan (2008) for Aberdeen City and Shire — ACSEF
Aberdeen City Council Single Outcome Agreement

Scotland’s Oil and Gas Strategy 2012-2020

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Elaine Robertson

Business Growth Manager

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Tel 01224 522940

Email elrobertson@aberdeencity.gov.uk

8
Page 130



DRAFT INTERNATIONAL TRADE PLAN 2013 — 2014

MARKET TRADE EVENT TIME AND JUSTIFICATION OFFICER COMPANY MEMBER BUDGET*
PLACE INVOLVEMENT INVOLVEMENT INVOLVEMENT *Estimates pending 2013/2014
allocations
Norway SDI Trade Norway Norway is the top market One Officer Yes Not required £2,000
Mission April/May 2013 | for current exporters, and
3" most important target
market.
USA Offshore Houston, OTC is the biggest global Up to four Officers Yes Yes, Lord Provost and | £21,000
Technology USA oil industry show. The City Leader
Conference Council is obliged to
(OTC) 6 — 9 May attend WECP annual
2013 working meetings at OTC.
SDI Trade
Mission
Partnerships Gas & Oil Expo | Calgary, Calgary is a key WECP Up to two Officers TBC Not required. £2,000
(WECP, MOU Canada partner city; Alberta oil
etc) sands developments
11-13 June | present significant
2013 opportunities in an
- accessible market.
csﬂydrogen sector | International Vancouver, To follow directly from the | Up to two Officers TBC Not required. £2,000
(D) Hydrogen and Canada above Exhibition to
D Fuel Cell minimise costs. This is the
1IN Conference 16-19 June | leading international trade
(%) 2013 show for the hydrogen
- and fuel cell technology
sector.
Brazil SDI/UKTI Trade | Rio de Janeiro, | Brazil is a top priority Up to two Officers Yes Not required. £6,000

Mission

Brazil

market due to scale of
opportunity. MOU partner;

various markets

Various dates
TBC/on

anticipated from key target
markets during 2013/14,

civic welcomes etc

Dates TBC WECP member city.
Partnerships WECP AGM Dongying, WECP Annual General Up to two Officers TBC - Depends if | Yes - Lord Provost £6,000 (Approximately £2,000
(WECP, MOU China Meeting; development of AGM  coincides per person)
etc) WECP network; outward with Dongying Oil
16-20 October | trade mission. Show.
2013
USA Louisiana Gulf Lafayette, USA is the 2™ top current | One Officer Yes £2,000
Coast Qil Louisiana market for exporters.
Exposition
22-24 October
SDI Trade 2013
Mission
Inward visits to Inward Visits Aberdeen Inward visits from To be determined | Yes Yes — requests likely | Est. £10,000 in total throughout
Aberdeen from 2012/13 overseas delegations as required. for civic receptions, | the year




request eg

Rio Grande do
Sul in June
(TBC)

especially for

e Subsea 2013,

e All Energy 2013,

e  Offshore Europe
2013

e Unconventional Gas
Aberdeen 2013.

Number of requests for

assistance with visits likely

to be high.

Local seminars
and workshops
in Aberdeen on
various markets

Local seminars
and workshops

Aberdeen

Various dates
TBC

Programme of local
seminars and workshops
to focus on key target
markets.

To be determined
as required

Yes

Not required.

Est. £5,000 throughout the year

Est. total for activity: £56,000

Total est. budget: £68,000

Balance: £12,000**

**NB: Please note that the estimated balance of £12,000 will be required to cover WECP annual membership ($8,000), North East of
Scotland Trade Group activities, continued sponsorship of the Unconventional Gas Conference 2013, and publication and launch of

2¢| ebed

the 2012 Aberdeen City and Shire International Trade Survey.

10




Agenda ltem 6.5

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee
DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Aberdeen Digital Connectivity Update Report
REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/310

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

- This report provides an update and progress report on Aberdeen’s
Super Connected Cities Programme Bid for Urban Broadband
Funding from the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS),
and requests permission to progress the procure the various elements
of the programme to a value of £28.5 million of which £2 million has
been agreed from ACC’s 2012/2013 and 2013/2014 Capital Budget.
The programme is outlined in the bid document (see the non-
commercially sensitive redacted Accelerate Aberdeen proposal
document attached in Appendix 1).

RECOMMENDATION(S)

That the Committee:

* notes the contents of this report,

o agrees that officers should undertake the necessary procurements to
secure suitable private sector development partners to implement the
city wireless, voucher scheme, white area in-fill and open access
broadband projects outlined in the Accelerate Aberdeen proposal
document within this plan up to the value of £28.5 million as described
in Section 2 of this paper,

+ agrees that officers ensure a formal funding agreement between
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Council is put in place,

e agrees that officers to obtain both Councils agreement to recruit a
Head of Broadband Delivery and Broadband Delivery Project Manager
to oversee delivery of the Accelerate Aberdeen Programme to
December 2014,

» agrees the availability of the required budget which is part of ACC’s
overall contribution to this project for these shared post once
agreement is obtained, and

Page 133



o refers these decisions to the Finance and Resources Committee for
their endorsement.

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As a result of the Council's 2012/13 capital programme, provision has been
made to invest up to £2 million in Open Access and City Wireless Digital
Programme over the next two financial years. The scheme identifies 4 projects
valued at approximately £28.5 million will be funded as follows:-

The Open Access Fibre Network

ACC £ 2 million
AC £ 2 million
DCMS. £ 3 million
Private Sector £ 8 million
£15 million
White area in-fill
ACC £ nil
DCMS £ 3 miflion
£ 3 million
City Wireless
ACC £ nil
DCMS £ nil
Private Sector £10 million (estimated)
£10 million
Voucher Scheme
ACC £ nil
DCMS £ 0.5 million

£ 0.5 million

It should be noted that at the date of writing this report, that the DCMS has yet to
confirm the level of funding that will be made available to the programme but they
have indicated that it definitely will not exceed the amount applied for £6.5
million.

Funding for the two additional, fixed term project management roles described in
section 6.2 below. will be funded from ACC, AC and DCMS funding streams
outlined above. No additional revenue funding is required as consideration needs
to be made regarding the use of capital funding.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

An Equalities Human Rights Impact Assessment was undertaken as part of the
report to this committee on 13 September 2011. These significant infrastructure
projects have the potential to provide benefit in the delivery of frontline services
which use digital connectivity in their delivery. This covers services in social care,
education, community wardens' work, environmental health, building services
and planning. The contents of the report relate directly to delivering on key
National Outcomes of the Single Outcome Agreement: National Outcome 1 -
We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing business in
Europe; National Qutcome 2 — We realise our full economic potential with more
and better employment opportunities for our people; and National Outcome 3 -

Page 134



We are better educated, more skilled and more successful, renowned for our
research and innovation.

Delivering Next Generation Access (NGA) with associated affordability levels for
disadvantaged communities (geographical and societal) will support and enable
community engagement to improve life chances and opportunities. This also
supports the administration’s Smarter Aberdeen Policy Statement. Aberdeen
City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF) identified a number of areas within the
Economic Action Plan where NGA can play a critical role in transport, global
connectivity, anchoring the energy sector, and attracting and developing skilled
people and company headquarters.

The delivery of this project is consistent with ACC's administration policy —
“Aberdeen a Smarter City", supporting ACC’s aspiration for Aberdeen to be a
Smarter City. The widespread availability of NGA will allow public services to be
more cost effectively delivered — this will become increasingly important as
Council budgets reduce in real terms.

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The European Commission currently has Draft EU Guidelines for applying State
Aid rules in relation to the rapid deployment of broadband networks. Digital
Connectivity Procurements have significant State Aid implications. The UBF bid
required all bidders to provide a State Aid apinion for their options. ACC
obtained expert advice from TaylorWessing, the advisors to Birmingham City
Council which has already obtained State Aid clearance from the European
Commission. DCMS is working with the EU with the potential aim of obtaining an
umbrella State Aid agreement and is consuiting with successful bidders on this
option.

The plan would see ACC partnering with third parties to deliver services across
the city and the potential that ACC utilise current property and asset portfolios to
assist this delivery. This plan may also provide an opportunity to identify ongoing
revenue income, which could be reinvested into infrastructure to provide high
speed broadband services, access to areas which would be otherwise
uneconomic etc.

As noted above, both Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Council's are partnering
in the Open Access project within the overall Digital Connectivity Programme.
Whilst there is a clear governance relationship as part of this process, it will be
useful to develop a formal agreement regarding funding between both partners.
Where possible, ACC will endeavour to work collaboratively with other UK Super-
Connected Cities to ensure the best and effective use of public funds.

If any further developments occur regarding this these will be reported to
committee as part of ongoing process.

6. REPORT

6.1Background

Page 135



On 9 November 2010 this Committee instructed officers to develop a programme
to enable the delivery of improved broadband connectivity to domestic and
commercial users in Aberdeen. On 11 September 2012, the Enterprise Planning
and Infrastructure Committee agreed to support efforts to lobby Scottish
Government for funding, appoint an advisor to assist officers to implement the
recommendations of ACSEF’s the ‘Maximising Digital Connectivity’ priority and
ACC's 2012/13 capital programme has a provision to contribute £2 million fo
invest in Digital broadband infrastructure. On 6 November 2012, this commitiee
endorsed the ACC’s Accelerate Aberdeen Super Connected Cities Programme
Bid (see Appendix 1} and instructed officers to undertake the procurement of
expert advice.

Following confirmation of ACC’s successful bid and in order to fit with the agreed
project delivery timescales (see the Project Plan in Appendix 3) officers need to
initiate an accelerated procurement process. This will be so that the four key
elements of the bid can be procured in parallel-

e Open Access Fibre Network - a network built around the key
developments areas in the City including the new growth areas defined by
L.DP12 and existing key business hubs such as Aberdeen Airport,
Kingswells and the Bridge of Don. This also includes 20,000 homes and
196 hectares of employment & industrial land. It also includes 3,000
houses and 10 hectares of employment land in Countesswells. These
plus Westhill are areas in the City and Shire that form part of the
contiguous area. Both Councils are partners in this project and will
contribute funding to this.

» City Wifi Scheme — to provide next generation wireless network deployed
across the City to give enhanced broadband access capability for both
residents and businesses. The access speeds obtained will be a function
of the number of base stations deployed delivering download speeds of
greater than 20Mbps. A deployment of this nature will provide citizens with
an alternative to the ADSL services typically used in the City that suffer
from contention and hence limited performance. It would also provide a
commercial incentive to upgrade the City's exchanges. Implementation of
WiFi hotspots across the City would provide benefits to businesses and
consumers — providing remote access {o key applications and flexible
working. It is also likely to be attractive to visitors — enabling tourists to
access local information and travel data. This is a concessionary scheme
and would require the use of Council assets as an investment stake.

¢ Voucher Scheme- available to SMEs including Non-Government
Organisations, Charitable organisations etc to provide a grant up to £500
for each organisation to contribute towards capital works to enable digital
connectivity at specific locations which may not otherwise be commercially
attractive to service.

» White area infill’- use UBF funding to gap fund the elimination of such
white areas (subject to State Aid approval). This will be undertaken either

! An area where there is an absence of affordable services at 2Mbit/s or above could be a useful retail
indicator of a lack of effective competition and/or lack of economic viability for basic broadband
networks, which will be surrounded by grey and black areas. Grey areas In a grey area NGA networks may
exist or be planned, but such network or networks have not been constructed in an open way such that
competition in high speed broadband services can be assured and there is no proven ¢ commitment by

Page 136



through a separate ACC procurement or as part of wider national
procurements currently being undertaken by the Scottish Government.
Should this procurement fail to eventuate ACC and AC will make efforts to
meet the DCMS’s requirements within the given timeframes.

To deliver this project on page 12 of Appendix 1 Figure 7 shows the Team that is
required to deliver the programme.

any operator to depioy an inherently open NGA network in the coming 5 years. A black area has access to
NGA. The in-fill is providing NGA,

Page 137



6.2- Project Management Arrangements

The Project Management Team required to deliver the programme is outlined in
the following diagram (Figure 7 of Appendix 1)

Team Structure

T ™ E—— - ~
Procurement | _ Technical Stakeholder
Evaluation Expert Management & e
i F W c e
- ommunication 4
e — . —~ e - -
Commercial Data Collation &
| SRS . —
Negotiator l Fegal Lead Research
e ¥ g \ J
e —
Funding - DCMS, Scottish
GovernmentandEU |
liaison
N J

At the meeting of the Aberdeen City and Shire Digital Connectivity Board it was
agreed that whilst both the ACC and AC could undertake components of the
proposed Delivery Team Structure, additional resources in the form of a Project
Head and Project Manager would be required to manage such a complex project.

This additional input will be required for the two year duration of the project, with
the costs being shared between ACC and AC. In Appendix 2 are the details of
posts which are intended to be fixed term posts to December 2014 at a total
employment cost of £160K pa (to be met by the two authorities). Should DCMS
agree to extend the programme to 31 March 2015, the fixed term would extend to
this date. In consideration of such joint arrangements, it would benefit from a
formal arrangement between ACC and AC.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Jan Falconer

Manager Projects Partnerships and Funding
ifalconer@aberdeencity.qov.uk

01224 522662

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 138



The Scottish Government (2012) Infrastructure Action Plan - Step Change 2015
Rest of Scotland Procurement Public Consultation

The Scottish Government (2012) Scotland’s Digital Future First Annual Progress
Report and Update — 2012

European Commission, (2012) Draft EU Guidelines for the application of state
aid rules in relation to the rapid deployment of broadband networks

The House of Lords Committee Communications Session 2012-2013 (2012)
Broadband for all— an alternative vision

The Scottish Government (2012) Scotland’s Digital Future - Infrastructure Action
Plan

ACSEF Management Team Paper (2011) Maximising Digital Connectivity — Next
steps and Action Plan

The Scottish Government (2011) Scotland’s Digital Future A Strategy for
Scotland, http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/981/0114237.pdf

DCMS (December 2010) Britain’s Superfast Broadband Future

Page 139



Appendix 1 - Redacted Bid

Accelerate
Aberdeen

Super-Caonnected Cities Programme - Rberdeen

(L
ABERDEEN

gl:‘;{:;e;iaéd}s CITY COUNCIL

Page 140



, Accelerate —
oall H b = I'd een ABERDEEN

culture, media

and sport C'TY CUUNC'L

Super-Connected Cities Programme — Aberdeen

Prepared by: Aberdeen City Council
Date: 14 September 2012

Page 141



Contents

Application Information
Foreword
Scoring
A — Strategic Outline Case — Vision and Objectives
B - Project management structure & governance
C - Funding and resources
D — Delivery and procurement plans
E — Digital-led economic growth and innovation
F — Strategy for achieving State Aid compliance
G — Education, profile-raising & demand stimulation
Appendix A Network Infrastructure in Aberdeen
Appendix B Market Research Summary
Appendix C Open Access Network Financial Model
Appendix D Project Plan
Appendix E State Aid Opinion

Appendix F Letters of Support

Page 142

14

18

26

28

30

31

33



Application Information

Project Name: ‘Accelerate Aberdeen’

Lead organisation:

Aberdeen City Council

The Town House

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 FY

Lead Contact: Jan Falconer: Manager, Projects, Partnerships and Funding
Contact telephone number: 01224 522662
Email address: jfalconer@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Postal address:

Marischal College

Level 2 South, Hub 10

Broad Street

Aberdeen
AB10 1AB

Proposed start Date of Project: 01 October 2012

Proposed end Date of Project: 31 December 2014 (all UBF funds spent in 2013/14)

Page 143




Foreword

The North East of Scotland’s economy continues to
grow with the number of jobs here increasing in the
midst of the global economic crisis. As a world energy
city Aberdeen is second only to Houston, Texas.
Aberdeen City and Shire has a sophisticated, globally
connected knowledge infrastructure. Its talents are in
global demand and those working in Aberdeen come
from all over the world. The Oil and Gas industry
accounted for almost 25% of total corporation taxes
received by the Exchequer in 2011. It is innovation-
driven and has responded over the past 30 years to
the complex demands of extracting oil and gas from
hostile conditions as well as producing quality food and
drink, creating innovations in life sciences, contributing
to music and culture, attracting visitors and exploiting
its ‘know how’ in education. Aberdeen City and Shire
has a dynamic, connected and global economy in a
unique UK region.

The global connectivity required to maintain and grow this area is challenged by ageing information technology
infrastructure. This challenge poses a key risk to a knowledge economy relying on transferring information across
the globe at speed. Our competition is global and should we be unable to continue to compete in these knowledge
markets companies currently based here and the skilled supply chain that supports them would move not elsewhere
in the UK but to other countries with faster ways of transferring and sharing knowledge.

Aberdeen City and Shire has suffered from a lack of investment in digital infrastructure. Investment in Aberdeen’s
infrastructure has been slower than that in comparable cities as shown by OF COMs analysis in February 2011 which
placed the city at the bottom of the league table for superfast broadband provision.

Through public and private partnership working, our two Councils identified the need to develop a comprehensive
regional plan to provide the means to accelerate Aberdeen City and Shire's ability to maintain and grow its economy
through state of the art digital connectivity. This plan was agreed by both Councils in 2011 along with significant
capital investment for our individual and joint projects.

We both welcome and support the opportunity given to Aberdeen City to put forward a bid to the Urban Broadband
Fund. It is our belief that through accelerating investment in connectivity infrastructure we will also accelerate our

plans to maintain and grow the North East of Scotland’s economy by attracting investment. We know that Aberdeen
City Council and its partners are well placed to exploit the opportunities that a successful bid will bring

N MN.LX VA IoHS

Colin Mackenzie Valerie Watts
Chief Executive Aberdeenshire Council Chief Executive Aberdeen City Council

Joint Chairs Aberdeen City and Shire Digital Connectivity Board

_o (i cp
Page 144



Scoring

; Sk Qualifying
Section saition Content score out
of 10
A — Business Case A1 Strategic Outline Case / Project Initiation 7
Document
A2 Connectivity table ngs’
A3 Business and jobs creation table ngs
B — Project management B1 Project governance structure ngs
B2 Project management team ngs
B3 Risk management strategy 5
B4 Indicators and monitoring effectiveness 5
C - Funding and resources C1 Matching funding and resources 7
c2 Modelling used for funding estimate ngs
C3 Capital and revenue spending ngs
C4 Commercial model(s) to be used ngs
C5 Details of infrastructure ownership nqs
Cé Benefits realisation strategy 5
Cc7 Funding table ngs
D - Delivery & procurement D1 Scope of project and procurement routes 6
D2 Project plan and dependencies 6
D3 Expedited planning, wayleaves, streetworks &c. ngs
D4 Engagement with private land & property owners ngs
D5 Fit with government's SME strategy ngs
E — Growth and innovation E1 Job creation initiatives and strategy ngs
E2 Growing business capability ngs
E3 Proposals for innovation and on-line services ngs
E4 Stimulation of additional private sector investment ngs
E5 Raising the level of knowledge based skills ngs
F — State Aid F1 Fit with State Aid Guidance 7
F2 Evidence of State Aid compatibility ngs
G — Demand building G1 Demand stimulation activities - consumers 5
G2 Demand stimulation activities - businesses 5

1 No qualifying score.

Page 145

(iii)
o X |



A - Strategic Outline Case — Vision and Objectives

A1l Set out the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) for the UBF project in your city. This should clearly
demonstrate the strategic vision for the project and how its objectives link to city and national
strategies, at a level of detail appropriate to the scale of the project. For PRINCE 2 users, a Project
Initiation Document (PID) providing the same strategic case would be appropriate.

Part A: The strategic context
A1.1  Organisational overview
A1.1.1 Aberdeen City & Shire Economic Future (ACSEF)

Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF) is a partnership of private and public sector representatives who
are committed to managing strategic economic development issues for the benefit of the area and its people. The
Economic Action Plan for Aberdeen City and Shire outlines the actions we will take to achieve the vision for 2025
which aims to ensure a high quality of life, and sustainable economic growth. ACSEF has a five year economic action
plan which has delivered progress despite regional and global setbacks. This public private sector partnership which
brings together all the players in economic development has ensured a fully joined up approach to strategic and local
development plans, transport and economic growth.

In spring 2011 ACSEF undertook a strategic overview of the work required to identify opportunities and develop
infrastructure based on NGA (Next Generation Access) communications technologies. The objective was to accelerate
economic growth and to identify targets for the quality of broadband services required for business and consumers
throughout Aberdeen City and in contiguous areas in the neighbouring Shire. Both the public and private sector are
using digital media more as part of their business. Access to faster and flexible digital infrastructure will support the
delivery of education services, enable more cost effective delivery of public services including telemedicine and
social care thereby facilitating social inclusion through increased access to social media and other networks

The area generates significant value to the UK economy and revenue for the UK Treasury. It has a key role in
supporting activities in the offshore oil and gas industry and though production in the UK sector of the North Sea has
peaked, there will still be significant employment associated with these activities for at least another 30 years. Three
quarters of locally based oil and gas firms hope to take on new workers in the next two years, with 28% aiming to
increase their workforce significantly. Aberdeen has a sophisticated, globally connected knowledge base with talents
that are in global demand. The City, over the past 30 years, has responded to the demands of extracting oil and
gas from hostile conditions. Oil and gas contributes 25% of the UK Treasury’s corporation tax. The contiguous area
referred to in this proposal is approximately 76 sq miles, covering Aberdeen City and Westhill (an adjacent settlement
just outside the city boundary in Aberdeenshire). This area has an approximate population of 230,000. The city’s
contribution to UK GVA rose by 1 1% in 2010 from £28,442 to £28,731 per resident (UHY Hacker Young). The area’s
GVA per head of population was 38% above the Scottish average in 2006 - this varied from 88% above the average
in the City to 6% below the average in Aberdeenshire. There are large commuter flows into the city with an estimated
50,000 people travelling daily into Aberdeen for employment. Currently, GVA in the region per head of population is
second only to inner London at £27,388 per head. Our business rates contribute some £266 million to Scotland every
year. Decades of experience in oil and gas operations have built up our reputation as one of the most robust and
resilient economies in the continent.

The other key sectors of the economy are Life Sciences, Food and Drink and Tourism. 20,000 people are employed
in tourism, Aberdeen City and Shire accounts for 14% of Scotland's total food exports and 2,000 life scientists' work
in the area.

ACSEF's agenda includes anchoring the oil and gas industry to the area (by making Aberdeen a home base for
global oil and gas service companies), developing employment in the low carbon, renewable and the wider energy
related markets and developing the Energetica corridor between Aberdeen and Peterhead into a world class location
for living and working.

Technology developments have seen employment grow in knowledge and intellectual property based firms, many
of which trade in global markets and for whom robust, secure and high speed broadband links are vital. It is also
important to retain key personnel in the energy sector and to prevent the premature fragmentation of the energy
industry’s presence in the areas. Ultra fast digital connectivity provides the means to ensure that the city and region
will maintain a high regional GVA through activity in the North Sea and the export of goods and services to other
exploration and production zones.

1
=iy
—_—a

Page 146



The area’s geographical remoteness from its markets within the UK and Europe means higher transport costs for
the substantial cluster of traditional industries involved in food and drink production, timber processing and paper
making- high speed broadband links would help offset some of this competitive disadvantage.

Aberdeen has a vibrant higher education sector but its graduate retention rates are low. There are the high aspirations
of the wider business and resident communities to be met, which includes a higher than average proportion of
graduate jobs, a significant cluster of academic, research and learning institutions. Aberdeen City is home to an
increasing number of Intellectual Property and knowledge based businesses, many of which trade in global markets
where high speed and reliable broadband connections are vital to their businesses for data transfer.

Part B: The case for change
A1.2 Infrastructure Objectives

Across Aberdeen the provision of broadband infrastructure is inadequate with the City suffering from a lack of
investment by the private sector. In urban areas the majority of business and residential users are still limited to ADSL
services. The exchange and cabinet infrastructure requires significant investment. The overwhelming majority of
users are supported with a maximum bit rate of 7.15Mbps and in practise often receive much less due to contention.
As a result both business and residential users are constrained in their ability to use the internet for both economic
and social applications. Also many large businesses seeking to locate in the regions major business parks and
development corridors require access to world class ultrafast digital infrastructure to enable them to compete on an
international basis. This is lacking in most parts of the region.

The investment in Aberdeen by BT has been slower than that in comparable cities and this was shown by
OFCOM’s analysis of February 2011 which showed Aberdeen at the bottom of the league table for superfast
provision amongst UK cities with zero coverage....a situation that was rightly condemned by Jeremy Hunt
MPF, when he described it as “shocking” that “no-one in Aberdeen can get superfast broadband”.

Subsequently BT has upgraded two of the exchanges in the City and has plans to invest in other exchange and
cabinet upgrades over the period up to 2013.

Aberdeen has one of the highest rates of domestic broadband uptake in the UK. OFCOM's 2011 data demonstrates that
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire have the highest rates of broadband uptake in the UK (74% and 72% respectively
of population) where there is NO availability of superfast broadband. A consequence of this is the infrastructure is
frequently overloaded resulting in much lower connection speeds than advertised and for which consumers believe
they are paying.

So Aberdeen has four challenges to address in order to improve digital connectivity:

* Ensuring that businesses and residential customers in the City have access to a competitive market for
superfast & ultrafast broadband services which will, in turn drive enhanced connection speeds, improve
customer service and support and enhance reliability

= Provide major business parks and development areas in the region with access to world class ultrafast digital
infrastructure that will drive inward investment, increase the competitiveness of businesses in the region and
create employment.

* Ensure that the City has ubiquitous access to next generation wireless services.

= Ensure that public agencies are able to deliver cost effective services, particularly in the fields of education,
health and social care.

In order to address these needs four streams of work/projects have been identified as part of the broadband
development plan for the City;

= Ensure that all necessary in-fill of infrastructure is delivered across the City to address white areas and
deliver ultrafast capability to ALL premises in these areas

* Build an open access fibre network covering a contiguous area linking the key business and residential
growth areas defined in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 (LDP12) around the City and in the
neighbouring Shire. In the longer term there is potential to expand the coverage of the three areas of
strategic development defined by the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure plan namely, the Energetica corridor
north to Peterhead, along the A96 to Inverurie and south to Stonehaven.

Page 147




A13

Enhance competition and improved service provision in the City by encouraging and driving the deployment
of next generation wireless technology. The City will use its existing property portfolio as an incentive for
wireless operators to deploy base stations across the City and it is our intention that this should address the
community as a whole and deliver social as well as economic benefits

Provide a fund to drive the adoption of broadband services into SMEs and sectors of the community where
adoption needs to be stimulated (eg elderly, low income groups etc).

Economic and Social Objectives

The economic objectives are to:

stimulate economic growth in local businesses by driving up demand for digital connectivity and the innovation
which it can support

encourage inward investment from larger digital dependent businesses, including those in key strategic
industries such as energy, food processing, health and knowledge based industries

establish Aberdeen as a priority destination for innovative use of digital technologies and services by the
public and private sector and retain the existing employment in the energy sector by enabling it to compete
effectively on the world stage

bridge the digital divide across the region and ensure both economic and social cohesion

In terms of our social objectives we aim to:

Al4

drive adoption across the community to aid social inclusion and ensure the ability to harness the digital
economy and access public services is delivered to all

build on Aberdeen’s reputation in the field of health related applications. The University of Aberdeen has a
pedigree in medical advances that has moved into using digital and mobile technology.

provide a platform for the cost effective delivery of key public sector services.

Existing arrangements

A1.4.1 Overview of Area

Demographic Profile and Addressable Market Size

Businesses

Figure 1 presents the number of business sites in the City by sector and size. There are over 9,000 sites in the region
of which >90% have less than 50 staff. This is key when assessing broadband delivery in the region. Although major
business sites will be well served in terms of digital connectivity via private corporate networks, the overwhelming
majority of employees in the regions are small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) for whom the availability of cost
effective, high speed digital connectivity is limited.

Figure 1: Aberdeen City business sites by sector and size

Local Employee size | Primary Manufacturing  Construction Wholesale, Hotelsand  Transport, Fnancial Business  Education,  Other Total
Autharity band Industries retail & restaurants  storage and intermediation activities, health community,
repairs communication real and social  social and
estate, work personal
renting services
Aberdeen City | 0-4 employees 180 250 415 805 265 195 15 3.150 240 380 5,955
5-9 employees 15 105 85 395 170 65 H 330 90 120 1,390
10-14 employees | 10 35 3 165 85 40 20 150 55 40 630
15-48 employees | 20 100 45 775 140 75 30 220 100 60 1.015
50+ employees 55 60 20 B0 35 3 5 150 50 15 480
Total 280 550 580 1,650 695 405 165 4,000 535 615 9475

Source: Scottish Government

Residential
The population of Aberdeen City is 210,400 (Source: Office National Statistics 2008). The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure
Plan envisages a 15% growth in the working population by 2030. This equates to an additional 32,100 people.

3
— 5

—_—

Page 148



A1.4.2 Overview of existing infrastructure
Infrastructure Audit Conclusions

Based on the infrastructure audit and stated plans of operators in the area, the following conclusions can be drawn:

« Although Aberdeen City is well served with fibre infrastructure it is largely unexploited, so businesses and
residential customers continue to use ADSL services on exchanges that are suffering from a high degree of
contention and which would benefit from upgrading to FTTC andfor FTTR.

+ Anumberofkey business centres suffer from a lack of supply of competitive infrastructure and are notreceiving
the speeds, choice of service and quality that the businesses require to compete effectively on an international
basis

Unless these failures are addressed Aberdeen runs the risk of declining competitiveness and will not receive
the social and economic boost that next generation broadband services have been demonstrated to deliver
to the detriment of the region and the taxation income to the nation.

A1.6 Business needs

Aberdeen City and Shire has undertaken a range of market research assignments in order to explore user requirements
for broadband services as well as views on pricing, service and support, service availability, applications and the
commercial impact of broadband services on their businesses.
In May 2011 two parallel surveys were undertaken with:

* 76 members of Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce

* 132 members of the Federation of Small Businesses in Aberdeen City and Shire.
Asummary of the key findings of the research is presented in Appendix B.
Conclusion

The conclusions from the user research may be summarised as follows:

+ Businesses have anincreasing requirement for superfast broadband and view existing services as inadeqguate
for their future needs

+ [fthe provision of enhanced digital connectivity in Aberdeen City is not addressed, businesses perceive a risk
to their competitiveness and the economic development of the region may be adversely affected

* There is a clear frend for increasing use of bandwidth intensive applications such as video content

+ Businesses in the area would welcome and use upgraded broadband infrastructure if it were available at an
affordable price

A1.6 Tele-health

NHS Grampian, the health authority for North East Scotland, is regarded as one of the world leaders in its use of
telemedicine. Consultant James Ferguson, National Lead of the Scottish Centre for Tele-health and Tele-care and
his team based at Aberdeen Royal Infirmary, deliver stroke care via video link to peripheral hospitals. Stroke can
be a devastating condition, caused either by a clot in a blood vessel in the brain or by a haemorrhage. Treatment
to dissolve the clot has been shown to improve outcomes but has to be delivered within four and a half hours of the
onset of the stroke. Improved bandwidth would allow more patients to be treated and improve patient care.

Other tele-health applications include patients with bronchitis being monitored in their own homes by nurses monitoring
data coming in via computer and specialist medical advice is being given via video link to non-specialist medical staff
treating patients hundreds of miles away. Finally the area has seen a reduction in sick children being transferred to
hospitals with more specialist care and patients receiving psychiatric help via Skype.

Mr Ferguson stated "1 expect the way we deliver healthcare in the years to come will be a completely different routine
to what we have at the moment with healthcare advice delivered via mobile phones and TV's in our own homes"

Improved digital connectivity in Aberdeen will allow health care providers to address UK market failures in healthcare

and so improve Britain’s health and reduce NHS service costs.
4
00 l

Page 149



A1.7  Overview of proposed solution - Technical Strategy

The proposed technical strategy to deliver enhanced digital connectivity across Aberdeen will be addressed within
the following four parallel streams of work

A1.7.1 White Area In-Fill

ACC is committed to ensuring that all business and residential premises in the City have access to ultrafast
services by 2015. As we have seen there are extensive areas of the City that are not being addressed by the
commercial market. In addition ACC (unlike cities in England) has not been in direct receipt of BDUK funding to
address this issue. The Scottish Government received BDUK funds at a national level and is focusing its resources
on meeting the requirements of rural areas. There are therefore two potential mechanisms to address the issue of
white areas;

* gap funding to ensure that the proposed roll out of ultrafast services delivered by FTTC based
solutions is accelerated and augmented to achieve 100% availability across the contiguous area in the City

* build a parallel overlay fibre network infrastructure in the City.

Additionally we propose complementing and augmenting both of these approaches by providing a next generation
wireless network overlay.

Scenario 1): Cabinet based approach:
One scenario is to use UBF funding to gap fund the elimination of such white areas (subject to state aid approval). This
will be undertaken either through a separate ACC procurement or as part of wider national procurements currently
being undertaken by the Scottish Government (ie ACC's requirements will be added to the rural requirements to be
addressed under programme 1 — the Rest of Scotland). Points to note are as follows:
+ although the Scottish Government has set a target for achieving 75% coverage at 40Mbps across premises,
ACC is committed to 100% coverage at ultrafast speeds across the City
+ the feasibility of this approach will be subject to State Aid issues and much will depend on the outcome of
national discussions to create an umbrella state aid clearance to gap fund white areas across the country. At
the time of writing this umbrella agreement was still under discussion and the situation regarding urban
requirements remains unclear. However in the event that a national agreement is not reached Aberdeen will
seek clearance from the EU (possibly in partnership with other Cities with a shared aspiration) to in fill its
white areas in a similar manner

Scenario 2: Open access fibre:
It is Aberdeen’s strategy to work with a private sector partner to build and operate an open access fibre network
serving the key development areas to the west of the City (see section 1.7.2).

A1.7.2 Open Access Fibre Network
Service Definition

Itis proposed to establish and build an open access wholesale fibre network along a route circling the key development
areas in the western perimeters of the City that are not being addressed by the private sector. This will:

* address the market gap in ultrafast service supply offering symmetrical services from 100Mbps to 40Ghps to
the market

* lower end user prices by encouraging innovation and competition at the supply level
= drive economic growth and regeneration
* improve residents quality of life and help retain firms in the area.

The concept is illustrated in Figure 4 overleaf. Aberdeen City (and potentially Aberdeenshire) will work with a private
sector partner(s) to build and operate the open access wholesale fibre network. Arange of national and local service
providers will sell retail services to the end user market. They will be able to procure the following services:

«  Dark fibre

*  Wavelength services (40 Gbps, 10 Gbps, 2.5 Gbps)

+ Ethernet services (1 Gbps, 100 Mbps). These may be point-to-point services, or may support mesh networks
+ Co-location services to enable service providers to locate equipment appropriately eg ADMs, wireless

equipment/base station.
5
—° " %

——D
Page 150



Figure 4: Open Access Network Value Chain

_ _System
Integrator

Duct ownership Dark & Lit Fibre providor end
& management from 40 Gbps Service customers
down to 100 Fovidor
Mbps + Telco co- g
location 7
Service
Service
provider
Wholesale: “bandwith” Retail bundled
in very big chunks ICT services

The fibre infrastructure will be housed in a set of new ducts constructed alongside roads in the proposed locations.
This will allow initially peak access rates of up to 1 Gbps per site. We have assumed that initially 100 Mbps access
is the peak required for the majority of users, with only a small number taking the higher speeds. It is also feasible to
increase the delivered peak rate per building to 10 Gbps and 40 Gbps in the future. This will ensure that Aberdeen
has genuinely world class infrastructure that will be key to maintaining the competitiveness of the local energy
sector. We believe the fibre and ducting are a sound investment for the future, our choice of electronics will suit a
range of medium sized service providers and system integrators allowing them to connect directly to the premises.
The dark fibre products will suit larger service providers who may wish to select their own layer 2 (L2) solution.

The ducts and fibre are expected to have a long lifetime, the electronics are upgradeable, under the control of the
proposed SPV (Special Purpose Vehicle) or operating partner, to 10 Gbps and 40 Gbps access as demand requires
and delivery electranics become available.

The network will support at least two interconnect points. One is proposed at a BT exchange and the other potentially
at another carrier in the region. It is proposed that the aggregation points are co-located at these premises if feasible
alternately they may be co-located in a local data-centre.

Proposed Route

Figure 5 presents the proposed route of the fibre network. The proposed route will enable access to

= The key developments areas in the City including the new growth areas defined by LDP12 and existing
key business hubs such as Aberdeen Airport and the Bridge of Don. This also includes LDP12 additional
20,000 homes and 196 hectares of employment & industrial land. It also includes 3,000 houses and 10
hectares of employment land in Countesswells and up to 8,000 homes in Elsick. These are areas in the City
and Shire that form part of the contiguous area

< Access to the major business parks in the neighbouring Shire (notably Westhill). It should be noted that these
are in a contiguous area and are not in receipt of BDUK funding via the Scottish Government Programme
which will focus on the provision of superfast services to rural areas (delivered by FTTC), whereas here we
will provide ultrafast connectivity delivered by FTTP. Hence it is a complementary investment.

It is envisaged that the core route shown in Figure 5 would be built as part of this project and connectivity to other
Strategic Growth Areas could be leased from existing fibre providers who have infrastructure in the area (ie SSE, BT
and Cable & Wireless). This could include a route south down the coast to Dundee and north to Peterhead.

We envisage that the core ring shown in Figure 5 below will be built by the private sector and will be completed
by a comprehensive FTTP access network, part funded by UBF, delivering world class connectivity in the key
development areas adjacent to the ring along with Westhill.

Page 151




7 Léggnd

s Existing Fibre Infrastructure

== Onen Access Fibre Network
| | Opportunity Sites

S
e

Lo

Source: Aberdeen City Council/Mott MacDonald
Partners

ACC will undertake a procurement exercise in order to select the most appropriate partners to deliver this project.
A key procurement criterion will be the ability to deliver a community of business and consumer ISPs by the selected
partner. We are aware of the situation on other projects (eg Digital Region) where adequate channels to market have
not been established.

Timescale
A detailed project plan is presented in Appendix C
Dependencies

The project is subject to the following external dependencies that will be carefully monitored and managed throughout
the lifespan of the scheme:

* Legal and regulatory: This includes State Aid approval which will be required. Initial discussions with the legal
team who represented Birmingham has shown that the Aberdeen case is compelling

= Funding: Private sector funding will be required to match any public sector investment

= Partner: It will be necessary to identity appropriate private sector partner(s) and establish the appropriate
commercial vehicle

*  Userrequirements: The requirements of end users should be monitored, particularly with regard to purchasing
propensity, pricing, service bundles, education and training and service and support needs

* Public sector contracts: As these arise for renewal they should be examined to see if there is scope for
aggregation and cost savings

« Complementary projects: There are plans for parallel projects, notably next generation wireless services.
These should be coordinated with this project to ensure there is no duplication of resources and common

Page 152



platforms and network infrastructure can be used

A1.7.3 City Wireless Network
Concept and Service Definition

The objective would be to give Aberdeen world class wireless infrastructure. In particular;

* A next generation wireless network deployed across the City would give enhanced broadband access
capability for both residents and businesses. The access speads obtained will be a function of the number
of base stations deployed and user demand but commercial deployments elsewhere in the world typically
deliver download speeds of greater than 20Mbps. A deployment of this nature will provide citizens with an
alternative to the ADSL services typically used in the City that suffer from contention and hence limited
performance. It would also provide a commercial incentive to upgrade the City's exchanges.

* Implementation of WiFi hotspots across the City would provide benefits to businesses and consumers —
providing remote access to key applications and flexible working. It is also likely to be attractive to visitors —
enabling tourists to access local information and travel data.

Applications and Implications for ACC

In addition to the benefits for businesses, consumers and visitors, it is likely that the ACC and other public sector
bodies in the City could use the wireless infrastructure to deliver public services. Examples include:

+ Education services

*  Crime

= Traffic management and control

+ Delivery of community and social services (eg monitoring of sick and vulnerable)
+ Public information services.

A programme has been initiated which involves rejuvenating some of the shops, modernising street and roads to
facilitate better access for the mobility impaired. In addition WiFi hotspots are being implemented which will enable
CCTV surveillance and consequent increased safety/reduced crime in these areas. A £250k fund has been receivead
to support this programme for CCTV and enhanced lighting.

Grampian Police have access fo a fibre network and the majority of their CCTV cameras are connected over fibre.
There are a number of 3G cameras but these have suffered from latency and have not allowed tracking around
corners because of this.

ACC’s Intelligent Transport Systems (ITS) Unitis responsible for systems that control and encourage traffic movement
on Aberdeen’s road network. This includes systems such as traffic signal control, Variable Message Signs (VMS) and
the Car Park Guidance System (CPGS). These systems ufilise a variety of communications profiles such as fixed
analogue private circuits and the mobile phone data network. Traffic signals that are located outwith the city centre or
are notlocated on the main traffic sensitive corridors also utilise the same 3G network. Traffic signals that are located
within the city centre or reside on traffic sensitive corridors operate under the control of a centralised computer called
Urban Traffic Control (UTC). The traffic signal installations that operate under UTC require fixed analogue private
circuits to allow constant communications for continual control. ACC was the first Scottish local authority to publish
any open data, and the first to establish a linked data triple-store. This has been achieved by working with local
developers and the academic community, collaborating in hack days and similar events. Providing such open data,
not only assists both Councils in delivering services but also private sector organisations with travel logistics. The
challenge being ACC requires improved digital connectivity to ensure an integrate transport system.

ACC has across its services invested in information technology in the delivery of front line services, wireless and
3G PDAs and tablets have been used since 2008 in Environmental Health Services and enforcement services. This
technology is now being used in the delivery of care and repairs services, building services, housing, education
and social care. Through its new ways of working initiative, staff have remote access from across the city into the
city’s servers. This plays a key role in its disaster recovery strategy. The challenge is that the band width in the city
is inadequate to provide timely real time service and access. It may be possible to harness all of these initiatives to
support attracting a strategic partner or to share backhaul facilities between them. ACC proposes to deliver the City
Wireless Network via a Public Concession Model.

Page 153




A1.7.4 Voucher Scheme

The three streams of infrastructure development described above will provide ubiquitous coverage of ultrafast
broadband services across the City along with access to world class infrastructure in key business parks and
development areas.

However there may be segments of the market where access to such services remains constrained by the initial cost
of connectivity. This may include:

= SME's
» Parts of the third sector organisations such as Housing Associations, Charities etc

In these cases we propose to run a voucher scheme whereby businesses and the third sector can apply for a subsidy
on the capital cost of initial connection charges (but not on-going usage charges).

A3 Please indicate the expected business outputs to be achieved:
Business growth to be achieved with UBF investment

2013-2014 Future Totals

Business start-ups resulting from 900 over 15
UBF funding 2 BUjyeaT years
Jobs created as a result of 14,400 over 15
UBF funding Bgd S year years
Anticipated extra Gross Value Added £6m Eamilvesr £87m over 15
(GVA) due to UBF in £'m y years.

(1) Aberdeen has the highest rate of growth of business start ups in Scotland (source: ONS). The business ‘birth
rate’ in Aberdeen in 2010 was equivalent to 57 registrations per 10,000 adults. Over 1000 were established
in 2010. In addition business start ups in Aberdeen have a long survival term (of the 830 newly registered
businesses in 2005, 47.1% were still active five years later). Typically Aberdeen has a net growth in
businesses of approx 100 per year. World Bank analysis has revealed that a super connected city can expect
to see a higher rate of growth of business start ups of up to 0.5% - 1.2%. Aberdeen has a business start
up rate of approx 900 businesses per year out of 8000 total ie 11%. If this grew to 12% we expect an
additional 60 companies per year

(2) Assumes Aberdeen average of 16 staff per company

{3) Broadband generates productivity gains and opens up new commercial activity for business. A 2008
EC study estimated the productivity impacts under first generation ADSL broadband. (Micus Management
(2008). ‘The Impact of Broadband on Growth and Productivity’) EC, DG Information Society and Media.
This varies by sector and it is assumed that the impact of NGA mirrors that of first generation broadband.
This would imply an uplift in GVA across Aberdeen City of approx 0.3% per annum = £28,000 per head *
population of 210,000%0.3% = £17.6m/annum. Of this it is assumed 1/3 is attributable to UBF.

Page 154



B — Project management structure & governance

B1. Set out the project governance structure and terms of reference. Identify members of the project
Board by function.

The Digital Connectivity Board is a joint board between ACC and Aberdeenshire Council. It is co-chaired by its Chief
executives. Its membership consists of the two councils' Directors of Enterprise, Directors of Corporate Governance,
Project Sponsors and Project Managers, Super-users - ACSEF representative and a business representative from
the Federation of Small Business. The remit of this board is to receive reports and oversee all Digital Connectivity
projects across the North East of Scotland. The board meets bi-monthly and all meetings are documented. The
Project’s Terms of Reference have been developed to give a focus of the expectation and requirements of this Board.

The purpose of the Project Broad is to collaboratively assist in:

= Supporting the development of a market sounding brief for enabling the implementation of a City Wifi services
which increases the connectivity in the Core City Centre;

= Considering the digital connectivity of other media such as broadband;

= Advising on any opportunities that will advance the delivery of this project and improve digital connectivity in
the city;

+ Ensuring that assets chosen to site the digital capacity in the city not only meet the technological requirements
but, are available for access as per our asset management, legal, statutory planning and OJEU procurement
requirements;

+ Address State Aid issues using specialist advisers and in-house expertise;
+ Advising on and approving the pre-tender questionnaire and an evaluation tool so as to shortlist preferred
providers;

= Advising on and approving detailed tender documents;
= Advising on and approving contractual terms, conditions and duration, and

+ Evaluating tenders and determining preferred development partner to be presented by the Project Manager
to the appropriate committee.

The Digital Connectivity Project Delivery Board is tasked to deliver the city wifi project but this is being extended to
include broadband connectivity in the City’s contiguous area, including Westhill. The Delivery Board consists of the
Project Sponsor, Project Manager, Project Co-ordinator, Head of Procurement, Head of Asset Management, Head
of Planning, Legal Advisor, Financial Advisor, Programme Management Office (PMOQ) representative, Super-user
(ACSEF), Advisor from Aberdeenshire Council and Broadband Specialist. It meets monthly and its meetings are
documented. The governance structure is presented overleaf.

10

Page 155




Figure 6: Governance Structure

Digital Connectivity Project Board

Co-Chairs

Colin Mackenzie / Valerie Watt

Members
Gordon Mclintosh
Stephen Archer
Stewart Carruth
Christine Gore

Gerry Brough
Jan Falconer
Roddy Matheson
Rita Stephen

Business representative
Andy Willox (FSB)

City Digital Connectivity Project Open Access Project Rural Access Project
Delivery Board Delivery Board Delivery Board

Sponsor Sponsor Sponsor
Gerry Brough Christine Gore Stephen Archer
Members Gerry Brough Members
Jan Falconer Margaret Bochel Members Murray Ferguson
PM (PSD) Alistair Reid (CNP)
Andrew Win Brian Downie Roddy Matheson Gordon Ogilivie Les Allan
PC (Finance) Jan Falconer (Angus Council) Belinda Miller
Henrietta Pallos Scott Patterson Rita Stephen Paul Allan
(PMO) (Finance) (NHS Grampian) ROy MeAthEso)
Craig Innes Jane MacEachran Mike Powell Nicola Grabaim
(CPU) (Legal) (Marr Area Partnership)  Alistair Reid
Hugh Murdoch Rita Stephen Andy Willox Jackie Buchanan
(AMO) (Super User/ Client) (FSB) (all AC)

Roddy Matheson, Charlie Adam

Aberdeenshire Council (NUF)

Vacancy

Broadband Specialist

B2. Identify the project management team by function.
Indicate where external contractors or consultants will be called on and the process and timescale for
appointment if not already available.

Gordon Sutherland
(Moray Council)

ACC has defined a project team with a unique blend of technical, commercial and legal and regulatory expertise.

This has been sourced internally, from local enterprises and from external sources (Mott MacDonald has been the

on-going technical and commercial advisor in the development of the region's broadband plans). The key tasks this

team need to drive forward are:
*  Funding applications

* Legal and State Aid issues: - Here we will also call on the specialist legal team from Taylor Wessing who

successfully managed Birmingham's state aid application

= Procurement — open access fibre network, white area in fill, city wireless network

= Establishment of contracts and commercial vehicles

* Programme management and implementation including financial control

* Demand stimulation and marketing

» Governance.

11

Page 156



As an illustration, Figure 7 below presents the project structure.

Figure 7: Team structure

Project Manager

Head of Governance

Stakeholder
Management &
Communication

Data Collation &
Research

Funding-DCMS, )

Scottish Government
and EU liaison

v

d R
Procurement Technical i@
Evaluation Expert
u J \ S
.
[ ) B [ 4
Ch? mmgrmal Legal Lead
egotiator
\ J \. J e
r
.
B3. Describe your risk management strategy and key risks.

You should include how you will deal with timetable risks in procurement and delivery, and any cost
overruns in either supplier bids or post contract(s) award.

ACC has established a rigorous project management structure of which risk management forms a key part. A regularly
reviewed risk register is maintained and updated by the project manager and discussed at regular meetings. All
risks are corporately logged using ACC's corporate management/ risk management tool Covalent. The projects and
associated risks considered on a monthly basis at a corporate level. An example is shown overleaf:

Page 157

12
00 |



Figure 8: Example Risks Register

i~Likelihood

Eoew | =
-Description Severity | Action to Resolve

1 Failure to attract private | Low High Continuous dialogue.

Seclor partner () Ability to stop project at procurement stage if no
strong partner.
Possible partners have already indicated
willingness.

2 Danger of not obtaining | Medium High Need to make case for intervention to EU.
state ald approval Strong legal advisors are lobbying decision

makers.

3 Low User demand for Low High Lower prices.

Sprpes Marketing and promotion activities.

4 Competitive actions Medium Low If BT change roll out plans, ensure open access
from telecoms roll plan is flexible to avoid duplication of
operators resources.

5 Unable to attract service | Low High Private sector partner to liaise with national
providers to market service providers.

Sl Aberdeen City & Shire to liaise with local
companies.

6 | Slow service adoption — | Medium Medium Aberdeen City & Shire to run awareness and
need for anchor tenants education campaigns.

Use public sector as anchor tenant?

7 Need to avoid technical | Low Medium Liaise with equipment vendors to ensure state
obsolescence of art technology.

8 | Availability of funding Medium High Discussions being held with ScotGov, EU and

others.

9 Availability of skilled Medium Medium Recruitment campaign late 2012/use external
staff support.

10 | Ability to deliver cost Medium Low Design will ensure that price point to users are
savings lowered.

Liaise wilh public seclor bodies in lhe area lo
deliver cost savings.

11 | Roll out delays Low Medium Co-ordinate and brief all internal departments

including Roads, Planning and Legal.
B4. List the indicators identified to monitor the implementation and effectiveness of programme delivery.

Insert in tables in Section A2 and A3 your headline figures for network roll-out, businesses, jobs and
Gross Value Added (GVA). A project plan should be provided in Section D2.

ACC has defined a range of indicators to monitor the effectiveness of this project. The programme of market
research previously presented will be updated at regular intervals to monitor the effectiveness of the investment
programme. We will continue to work with the Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of Commerce and the Federation
of Small Businesses on this matter. In addition we will also monitor the social benefits and usage of enhanced digital
connectivity through the continued drive to deliver enhanced public services usage and effectiveness is continually
monitored. Key parameters we will measure include:

13

Page 158



Economic Measures e Employment levels
® Business Start Ups
e GVA

Technical Measures e Broadband penetration and usage
e Speeds delivered

e Price benchmarks

e Number of service providers

e Coverage and service availability.

Social Measures e Adoption and usage of key public services
e Health indicators (eg usage and benefits from e-health)

e Education — delivery of adult education, schools programmes, GLOW
(Scottish national internet for schools) etc

C - Funding and resources

C1. Set out capital, revenue and non-cash resources that will augment the UBF investment to help to
achieve the objectives, including finance and the commitment to the project of physical resources:

- from the city, other local bodies and any external organisations involved;
- from the local enterprise partnership (LEP);

- EU sources; and

- the private sector.

Please note any conditions or restrictions on availability of these resources -
for instance, contractual limits to the use of public sector assets.

Aberdeen City places a high emphasis on its Digital Connectivity agenda and has been instrumental in seeking to
improve and enhance the digital infrastructure in the region. Both the City (and neighbouring Shire) have made firm
financial commitments and have also worked extensively with the Scottish Government, EU and the private sector
to increase investment.

C1.1  Aberdeen City Council (ACC)

ACC has made a capital funding commitment of £2 million to be drawn from its budget by April 2014. This is
approximately 12% of its Capital Budget.

The current Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan, approved by Scottish Ministers in August 2009, recognised
the importance of the development of a high-speed communications network in the area to support the growth
and diversification of the regional economy - building on a highly skilled and innovative workforce. In particular, the
plan focuses on deployment for new development in the three strategic growth areas - one of which is the whole of
Aberdeen. ACCs LDP12 has policy and guidance regarding Developers Contributions for infrastructure. Policy 1 —
Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions (Policy I1) covers the infrastructure, services and facilities such
as schools, roads and essential services required to support new or expanded communities. The LDP12 identifies 8
Masterplan Zones where most new development will be concentrated and sets out in more detail the infrastructure
requirements there. However Policy I1 applies to all parts of the City and to any development that requires further
supporting infrastructure. Though not specifically identified, Section 75 contributions could be used. Two developers
in a Masterplan Zone are already providing access to fibre for their developments. This is being done in order to
reflect demand and to make the developments more marketable.

ACC has already invested in digital connectivity since 2008 in a variety of areas in the region of £4.5 million. This is
augmented by fibre-optic cable in the city centre for its CCTV system which is operated by Grampian Police which
has a current book value of £1 million. ACC recently added digital cameras and 3G masts across the city at an
approximate cost of £200k. This has led to both Police Officers and ACC'’s City Wardens wearing video cameras

14
—o0— §

Page 159



which allow the footage of incidences to be filmed and downloaded. ACC has focussed its digital investment into
service delivery. Itis rolling out an initiative where officers are using digital wireless technology in its Social Care and
Wellbeing Services, this so that they may be focused in working with clients rather than spending time commuting to
the office. ACC has created a wireless network for schools using point to point technology.

ACC has utilised 30 of its tower blocks to create a wireless network for schools using point to point technology. This
£1 million Wireless Local Area Networks (WLAN) covers half of ACC's schools. For some of the schools outwith
the WLAN a further £750k has been invested in Wireless Wide Area Network. These figures exclude the cost of
hardware. An investment of £550k has been made into establishing a Virtual City Senior Campus which aims to offer
students a greater choice of curriculum where they can take a course from any school in the city at any place and at
any time. ACC has deployed a mobile computing system to support our building services team in maintaining tenants’
houses and Aberdeen’s public buildings. Based on Consilium’s Total Mobile application and handheld computers,
this has made services more efficient, effective, increasing productivity and creating cost savings in excess of £1.5
million thanks to more effective workflows resulting in increased productivity, and reduced travel and mileage. The
wireless network available through the 30 Tower blocks has been instrumental in driving down costs and improving
services ACC'’s enforcement officers in Planning, Environmental Health, Trading Standards and the City Wardens use
similar technology. The investment in technology has been in the region £1million. In the City Centre the cleansing
operations will be using Smart bins that will be funded by the Aberdeen Business Improvement District. These bins
not only will provide wireless connectivity and intelligence for the BID member’s requirements but also alert ACC's
cleansing team as to when the bins require emptying and provide intelligence for street cleaning. ACC aims to make
a further investment of £4 million. This includes a further £1 million into school WLANs and aims to extend its Virtual
City Senior Campus, £200k in additional wireless technology and a further £1.8 million in new ways of working using
digital connectivity. The aim is to roll out more client focussed services that will drive efficiencies as with those within
building, education and enforcement services.

The Intelligent Traffic System (ITS) Unit operates 115 traffic signal installations under Urban traffic Control (UTC). Out
of the 115 sites, 93 of these currently have analogue private wire circuits, provided by BT. It has been indicated within
the industry that the analogue circuits will be withdrawn from service by BT in the next 5 years. This has meant that
a migration away from the analogue communication profile to the digital communication profile is required to ensure
service levels are maintained. It is currently proposed that over the next 5 years the ITS unit will look to replace all
of these analogue private wire circuits with digital options such as private fibre optic cables, broadband services
and wireless solutions. This will allow a migration away from the older analogue circuits, which is required due to a
discontinuation of these circuits from BT. This will provide a better communication infrastructure that is quicker and a
more reliable communication service. It will also reduce revenue costs and will allow for the potential to move towards
a more integrated transport network. The fibre optic network that is proposed around the city centre for the traffic
signals will be designed to allow for additional reserve capacity should other services within the council require to
utilise the circuit within the installed network. The network will also be designed to limit the potential for single point
failure, allowing automatic re-routing of communication during failure on the cable or equipment. This will minimise
service disruption during any maintenance that may be required. An investment of £100k per annum to extend its
fibre optic network for road traffic signals will compliment its own existing dark fibre across the city. ACC’s Information
Communication and Technology is in the region of £3.5 million per annum which covers both capital and revenue
investments.

In additional it should be noted that Aberdeen will contribute access to its buildings, street furniture and
other relevant assets to facilitate the roll of next generation wireless services.

C1.2 Aberdeenshire Council

A recommendation to confirm the commitment of £18 million (currently in principle) is due to be considered by
Aberdeenshire Council on 20 September 2012. Although this is primarily focussed on rural connectivity the Shire has
stated a willingness to invest in any open access network that serves contiguous areas to the City, notably in Westhill
and in the longer term to the north and south of the City. An initial commitment of £2million has been made.

C1.3 European Union

Aberdeen aims to work with community partners: Grampian Police and NHS Grampian, along with its Private Sector
and internal services to secure funding under the Framework Programme 7 Smart Cities 2013 Calls- Smart Cities
and Communities which has an indicative budget of €209m this has two themes, €95 m for theme 3- Information
and Communications Technologies (ICT); €114 Theme 5 Energy links with its current renewable projects which have
a value of £74.3m. The FP7-2013-1CT-2013-10 ICT call €705.5 million- Challenge 1 Connected and Social Media;
FP7-ICT 2013 FET- F €108m. We would look to work collaboratively to enhance existing projects in order to gain

——D
Page 160



funds for ICT and in particular to advance the Smart Cities Programme Challenge 1 persuasive & trusted network &
service structures; ICT contribution to major socio-economic challenges-Challenge 5 - ICT for Health; Challenge 6
ICT for lower carbon economy; Challenge 7 ICT for Enterprise; Challenge 8 ICT for learning and access to cultural
resources; 4.5 Ensuring more efficient & higher quality public services though pre-commercial procurement.

The Scottish Government has decided to allocate all European Regional Development Funds (ERDF) to Programme
1 of its Procurement Plan to roll out improved digital connectivity to rural areas. The Scottish Government is yet to be
granted permission from Europe to do this. Should the Scottish Government fail to gain this permission, Aberdeen
would aim to secure funding for demand stimulation. Aberdeen also aims to position itself as a pilot area, regarding
the EU Connecting Europe Facility.

C1.4 The Scottish Government

The Scottish Government has embarked on a nationally procured programme of investment in broadband
infrastructure. Aberdeen has held discussions with the Scottish Government regarding accessing funds from the
above programmes. The Scottish Government may, however be willing to link Aberdeen procurement requirements
into its national plans.

c2. Describe any modelling that has been used to arrive at the funding estimate, including any significant
assumptions, such as the rate of cost inflation and VAT treatment.

ACC has developed a detailed financial model to support its plan for Digital Connectivity. This includes:

= Extensive dialogue with BT and the collation of the required intervention costs to deliver different rates of
coverage of superfast services. The requests made by BT have been cross checked using the Scottish
Government cost model

« The development of a full financial model for the open access network including a detailed breakdown of
capex, opex and revenues. This is provided in Appendix C

* Itis envisaged that the next generation wireless project will not require capital investment by ACC.

It should be noted that all costs exclude VAT and are at 2012 prices.

16

Page 161




C3. How will the capital and revenue funding be spent?
Please give the sources of any estimates and include a spread sheet with a breakdown of the costs.

A detailed analysis is presented in the following sections.

C3.1 Open Access Fibre Network

It should be noted that our state aid discussion has shown that public funding in projects of this nature can only be
allocated to PASSIVE infrastructure (ie ducts and fibre). Capital expenditure on equipment and on-going operations
will be generated from private sector investment of on-going revenue streams.

Given this we have assumed that this is sourced as follows:

= Aberdeen City £2.0m
¢ Aberdeenshire £2.0m
= Urban Broadband Fund £3.0m
*  Private sector partner £7.0-£8.0m

C3.2 City Wireless Network

Itis our proposal that the City Wireless network will be run on a concessionary basis and hence no public funding will
be allocated to this project. Instead the City will provide access to its buildings and street furniture at no cost.

The objective in the procurement programme will be for the wireless infrastructure partner to provide ubiquitous
coverage across the City. In the event that parts of the City are unlikely to be served under a concessionary model,
the City will make available vouchers or use its own internal buying power to drive mobile infrastructure into the less
commercial attractive areas of the City.

C3.3  White Area in-fill

Afund will be allocated to ensure that as many premises in the City has as finances permits, access to next generation
broadband infrastructure.

C3.4 \Voucher scheme

ACC seeks to establish a fund for a voucher programme of £0.5 million. This will be used to subsidise the capital
cost of connections for SMEs and the Third Sector. We have assumed in this proposal that our white area infill
programme and open access network will enable up to 90-95% of business premises in the City to enjoy next
generation broadband services. This will leave approximately 600-750 premises unconnected.

If we assume a voucher subsidy of £500 per premise for these properties, we have a potential fund of £375,000.
In addition we assume there are also a significant number of small businesses working from residential premises.
Hence our fund also includes an additional allocation of £125,000 for this segment of the market.

Page 162



Cc4. Describe the commercial model that you propose to use, giving reasons for your choice. If it is
a JV/IPPP or similar type of alternative model, set out the nature and key principles of the risk bearing
arrangements, proposed ownership / governance arrangements and how operational funding will
be met.

Include diagrams of all proposed contractual arrangements and an explanation of which contractual
risks will be borne by the different parties.

A distinction needs to be made between the open access fibre network, the in-fill of white areas in the City and the
implementation of next generation wireless infrastructure in the City.

C4.1  Open Access Fibre Network

Ownership structure

It is envisaged that Aberdeen City and Shire establish a special purpose vehicle (SPV) with private sector partner (s)
— although we do not rule out a gap funded approach and seek as many operators to participate in the procurement
process as possible. The figure below illustrates possible ownership options. The capital will be spent on building
trenches, with sub-ducting and fibre. This will be owned by the SPV. The first layer of electronics (referred to here as
Layer 2 may be owned by the SPV or could remain in the ownership of the operating partner. This layer will need to
be upgraded within the lifetime of the project. In summary, the elements in dark blue are owned and operated by the

SPV. Elements in red are owned and operated by service providers.

Figure 9: Ownership structure - SPV

providers electronics
o0
Emm —ee

Option 1 Option 2
Source: Mott MacDonald

The SPV will own:
« Trenches and sub-ducts along highways and roads up to the boundaries of customer sites
= Fibre infrastructure
*  Network management and billing systems
» Layer 2 electronics

Potential for risk transfer

The potential for risk transfer will become clearer once the operating partner has been identified and the SPV
negotiated. There are two possible models, each with a different risk profile:
+  QOption 1;
Public sector owns the passive infrastructure (ie ducts and fibres) and operating partner undertakes all
operations and owns layer 2 equipment.
*  QOption 2:
Public and private sector partner share ownership and risks across the passive and active infrastructure.
Option 1 is preferable from a clear demarcation of roles and state aid rules which only allow public sector investment
in passive elements of the network. In the long term there is potential to sell the SPV or renegotiate the ownership
structure.

18

Page 163




Proposed charging mechanisms and on-going operations

Income will be derived from service providers, carriers and data centre operators. This revenue will in turn fund the
on-going operations of the network and future investment and expansion needs.

Income for the SPV will derived from the publication of a wholesale price list covering dark fibre services, co-location
and managed services. Initial prices will have to be benchmarked against industry prices and hence comply with EU
rules for State Aid.

C4.2 White Area in-fill

In order to in-fill any white areas within the City boundary we propose a gap funding model for the upgrade of
exchanges, cabinets and fibre deployment. It should be noted that Aberdeen City will not receive BDUK funds for this
programme via the Scottish Government's Programme 1. However there are synergies with this Scottish Government
procurement (which is addressing rural areas) and there may be scope to work with the Scottish Government to
address this need under their procurements.

C4.3 City Next Generation Wireless Network

In its simplest form this may be a contractual relationship between ACC and the wireless network operator. This
will be based on a concessionary model although it should be noted that Aberdeen would wish to see ubiquitous
coverage across the City including areas of social need and regeneration. The wireless operator may be given rent
free access to public service buildings in return for a revenue stream. It is not envisaged that public subsidy will occur.
Nor will there be a necessity to establish a commercial vehicle.

ACC may seek to establish a closer relationship with the wireless operator whereby:

* Key public sector applications and services are delivered over the network as an anchor tenant (eg CCTV,
traffic lights, social services, public information systems etc). It is a risk that an operator would be difficult to
find without some form of anchor tenancy agreement

« Free Wi-Fi access is provided across the City centre.

C5. Who will own the infrastructure?
For example, do you propose to lease equipment from a private sector contractor (for example,
cabinets) or own the capital investment (for example, cable; wireless infrastructure) or will the private
sector contractor own the capital investment?

C5.1 Open Access Fibre Network

In this case the infrastructure may be owned by an SPV as part of a public private sector partnership (although
a gap funding approach could be used). The commercial structure will be agreed and finalised during any future
procurement programme and some of the options have been defined in Section C4.1. It is likely that the public sector
will part own, or have a stake in the passive infrastructure (ie ducts and fibre). Active equipment will be owned by the
private sector partner.

C5.2  White area in-fill

In this case we propose to use either a gap funding model with the infrastructure owned and operated by the selected
partner or extend the coverage of the open access network described above

C5.3 Next generation wireless network

All base stations and network infrastructure will be owned and operated by the selected private sector partner who in
turn will utilise the sites and street furniture owned by Aberdeen City Council.

19

Page 164



C5.3 Voucher scheme

Funds will be provided to companies (notably SMEs and Third Sector) to procure connectivity from commercial
service providers. This may be fixed or wireless infrastructure.

Ce6. Set out your strategy for realising benefits from the programme and how value for money will
be assured.

ACC will drive value for money throughout the procurement process. We envisage a number of parallel procurement
processes using both the BDUK framework (possibly in conjunction with the Scottish Government to achieve further
cost savings) for any white area in-fill. The next generation wireless network and the open access fibre network
procurements envisage using Competitive Dialogue process to best value for maney during the procurement process

A reverse payment mechanism will be included in any contract with the appointed supplier to address over-
compensation if demand grows beyond anticipated levels. This mechanism will be subject to continued scrutiny and
a benchmarking regime as well as being subject to best practice in respect of governance.

Moving forward ACC will continually monitor the effectiveness of the programme by monitoring key indicators
such as:

= Monitoring service penetration and usage statistics

*  Collation of regular feedback from local employment bodies such as the Federation of Small Businesses and
the Grampian and Aberdeen chamber of Commerce

* Benchmarking prices
+ Tracking employment levels and number of business start ups- particularly in knowledge intensive industry

+ Promoting and monitoring the delivery and usage of public services by ACC and other public sector
organisations.

D — Delivery and procurement plans

D1. A clear exposition of the scope of the project, including the specific sourcing/procurement routes
you are proposing to use. Viability, cost effectiveness and realism must be demonstrated.
Where existing arrangements are to be used (such as existing contracts or frameworks) provide
details of expiry dates and confirm details of the advice that you have taken on your ability to make
use of the arrangements, considering the scope of the existing contractual arrangement.

ACC will commence its procurement programme upon award of funding in the 2012 Autumn statement. The
procurement is likely to take place over a 6 month period and will consist of three parallel lots; white area in-fill; open
access fibre nelwork; next generation wireless.

The white area in-fill project requirements could be procured using the BDUK framework. It is envisaged that this
process may be bundled with the Scottish Government’s national procurement. If the Scottish Government does
not take on this role, ACC will undertake this procurement independently using the national framework using a gap
funded approach or alternatively if there is wider interest beyond the suppliers on the BDUK framework a wider
procurement will be held using competitive dialogue.

ACC will commence its procurement programme for an open access fibre network delivery partner in Autumn 2012.
This will be undertaken using competitive dialogue to ensure best value for money and to ensure that the unigue local
reguirements in terms of coverage, functionality and scope are addressed. It is envisaged that only one lead delivery
partner is required, but they in turn are likely to lead a consortium consisting of an equipment vendor, construction
company and telecommunications operator and partner I1SPs who will sell services to the end market. The contract
will be a joint venture/special purpose vehicle or gap funding.

The next generation wireless project will commence procurement in Autumn 2012 and a steering committee has
already commenced working. In this project Aberdeen will contribute access to its extensive portfolio and buildings
and is not reliant on UBF funds. The favoured model is concessionary (eg Westminster). However this was an early
model and a unigue location in the country. Discussions with mobile infrastructure providers have shown that bids are
more likely to be received from providers of backhaul street furniture and authority premises, who will in turn resell

20

Page 165




capacity to multiple mobile operators and service providers. Under either scenario we envisage that we will provide
extensive coverage across the City. Throughout the procurement process ACC will seek to expand the network in
order to improve penetration and build capacity in areas that may not be commercially viable. These might be areas
of social housing or areas of regeneration. It is expected that we will develop programmes of activity and demand
stimulation designed to encourage the uptake of services amongst the digitally excluded.

D2. Include your project plan, clearly showing timing and key milestones. Show the main dependencies
on which the project is reliant, such as other projects, procurements or initiatives, and other factors
as necessary. Demonstrate how the timescales will ensure that delivery of the UBF-funded elements
is completed before April 2014.

The project plan should cover:
- the pre-procurement phase (i.e. what you will be doing from SCCP submission to project
selection, and on until the commencement of any sourcing;
- the procurement phase for each separate element of the project; and
- the implementation phase.

You should set target dates and durations for activities, taking into account holiday periods.
Approvals which are tied to specific set dates (such as Cabinet dates) should be identified.

A detailed project plan presenting all activities milestones and dependencies in presented in Appendix D.

Clearly the timeframe will be impacted by the constraints of the spending of funds from the Super Connected Cities
Fund and we note that the City must ensure “delivery” is completed before April 2014. In order to comply with these
restrictions we will undertake the following steps:

* immediately commence drafting of procurement documents

*+ immediately commence the procurement process upon award of funds in the autumn statement but still
ensuring the adherence to transparency, non discrimination and equal treatment of bidders.

*  we will seek to use a competitive dialogue and negotiated agreement but will move to an Accelerated
Negotiated process if required to comply with timescales

* we will aim to drive the procurement process through in a six month period (including the obligatory stand
still / Alcatel period) being part of teh OJEU process.

This will result in award to contracts in summer 2013. Typically implementation will take place over an 18 month
period following this. However we have discussed this issue with prospective suppliers who have agreed for an
accelerated implementation. The funds UBF funds will be used by April 2014 with any subsequent capital expenditure
been derived from matched funding the private sector and the Authorities after this date.

D3. How will the City Authority expedite the installation of new infrastructure by ensuring that wayleaves,
streetworks and other permissions required for access to public land and properties are made
available in a timely fashion?

Within the ACSEF plan, the focus of the planning priority is “to improve the efficiency of planning decision making”.
The planning modernisation group (PMG) provides a platform for developers, planning officers and community
representatives to have more focussed dialogue between planning stakeholders both in terms of “issues” and also to
improve the understanding of the planning process itself. It also acts as a catalyst for:
* shared positive messages about planning
* helping to "educate” end-users about the planning framework, thus helping to manage expectations and
reduce conflict.

* supporting the message that planning should be considered to be a positive contributor to the future of
the area.

= consider the future infrastructure requirements for services.

=& = 5
Page 166



D4. How will engagement with large private owners of properties and land be used to facilitate access for
the deployment of infrastructure?

The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan was approved August 2009 and it recognised that to promote a diverse
local economy we will have to put into practice new ideas, including those from our universities, research organisations
and our skilled and innovative workforce, and a high speed communications network will be needed to support this
process. The current Structure Plan aims to ensure that all new development in strategic growth areas, as identified
in the map in figure 5, uses modern, up-to-date high speed telecommunications networks, such as fibre optics.
The Strategic Development Planning Authority has been in discussions with infrastructure providers to help secure
investment in this area.

Aberdeen’s LDP12 identifies the locations for future development creating certainty for communities and the
development industry. LDP12 identifies green field sites to accommodate more than 20,000 homes and 196 hectares
ofland for business and industry and it continues to support brown field development and regeneration (see attached
map). For each of the development areas ACC have been and will continue to work with developers and landowners
to prepare individual master plans. The master planning process ensures that an integrated approach to site planning,
urban design, sustainable transport, ecology, landscaping and community involvement is considered. Through the
preparation of these master plans ACC encourages the use of high speed telecommunications netwarks. LDP12 also
provides support for the expansion ofthe electronic communications network including telecommunications, broadband
and digital infrastructure providing the proposals take into account national guidance on radio telecommunications.

D5. Demonstrate fit with the government’s approach to using SMEs in delivery?.

Aberdeen City Council is fitting into the government's approach to using SME's by:

= breaking the procurement contracts into lots (wireless, white areas in fill, open access fibre network). This
will ensure that a larger section of the telecommunications community is able to tender for contracts rather
than solely those on national frameworks

* building an open access infrastructure that will encourage small and innovative local ISPs to be able to serve
the Aberdeen market, rather than just large national organisations

* encouraging winning tenders to use local sub-contractors in the design build and implementation phase

* running market awareness days to brief SMEs on potential opportunities. Throughout this project we have
been working closely with the Federation of Small Businesses

* ACC and Aberdeenshire Council have a joint Positive Procurement Programme which aims to encourages
and assists local SMEs to bid for public sector procurement contracts.

E -Digital-led economic growth and innovation

E1. Provide details of job creation initiatives and strategies for attracting new businesses into the city
including, where relevant, clear links to the delivery of successful Enterprise Zones and Tech Hubs.

In recent years we have focused on working in partnership to deliver projects that do not sit in isolation but come
together as parts of the jigsaw which make for a compelling overall picture. Integrated transport and digital connectivity,
attracting and developing skills, city centre regeneration, regional profile and anchoring an international energy
industry remain at the core of our plans. We have identified our priorities and real tangible progress in physical and
digital infrastructure centres of excellence, and flagship projects will be achieved.

‘Energetica’ is a flagship project and forms the bedrock of the drive to be a global energy hub. This 20 year project
encompasses a development corridor built on low-carbon principles and has already achieved more than 30% of the
£750 million potential investment. The vision for the programme can be summarised:

“Energetica offers a unique business environment, based on the principles of low carbon dependency, and drawing
on the dynamism and innovation of the energy industry. It is a place where living, working and recreation merge
seamlessly to create the definitive model of a 21st century lifestyle in an atfractive, high quality and sustainable
environment.”

2 See hitp./www.cabineloffice. gov. uk/content/small-and-medium-enterprise-sme-action-plans

22

Page 167




m WORKING TO POSITION ARERD |
VIS CITY AND SHIRE AS THE HOME OF |
WORK. THE NEXT AGE OF ENERGY |

P

Anumber of values have been identified that transcend all programme activities:
*  Attracting businesses founded and inspired by developments in the energy industry
+ Promoting the use of renewable technologies and adoption of cutting edge solutions
+ Designing using the principles of sustainability and with low energy requirements
+ Building high quality, low emission, energy efficient buildings
* Undertaking sympathetic development that enhances the natural environment
* Improving, radically, transport arteries that make use of low emission technologies

+ Capitalising on the City and Shire's unique natural resources and coastline to encourage and attract
tourism opportunities

= Providing world class digital infrastructure
= Providing infrastructure reflective of low carbon living

Energetica has enabled and assisted in attracting £24 million of investment form the EU, ACC, Technology Strategy
Board, Scottish Government, Scottish Enterprise and Private Sector Funding for renewable hydrogen infrastructure .
These initiatives not only create infrastructure, research and development opportunities, mobility and the opportunity
for commercialised products, create a supply chain which underpins Energetica and its ambitions. This will create the
UK's first Centre of Excellence and renewable Hydrogen technology.

Energetica has also supported the European Offshore Wind Deployment Centre. This project attracted €40 million of
EU funding and will be a test bed for offshore wind technology which will act as a catalyst to deliver the government's
target of 7,000 wind turbines of the British coastline by 2020. In February 2012 during a visit to Aberdeen, Prime
Minister David Cameron said "Aberdeen has been a destination of global investment for many years and | want to
see that continue for decades to come”.

Of particular relevance to this bid is the fact that key business hubs such as the airport, conference centre and
developments around the Bridge of Don lie within those areas we are seeking to roll out ultrafast broadband services
to. Once achieved, we are confident the private sector will expand this connectivity across the Energetica corridor,
delivering economic growth and social well being to the area.

— B cp
———— T
Page 168



E2. How will the capability of businesses, particularly SMEs, to use high-speed connectivity to increase
efficiency and revenues be enhanced?

As we have seen in Figure 1 over 90% of Aberdeen businesses have less than 50 staff and this is key to our plans
for digital connectivity in the region. Our initiatives are focussed on enabling such business to harness the economic
benefits of ultrafast services. In particular:

* Many SME's are currently only able to access ultrafast symmetrical services through the purchase of Ethernet
services. However the costs of such services are prohibitive. By driving ubiquitous coverage of superfast
services we will lower connecting costs and provide SMEs with a wider choice of services

« By offering the availability of a truly open access network infrastructure we will encourage the provision
of services from a wide range of national and local service providers. This in turn will drive service innovation
and competitive pricing which will benefit SMEs

* Ourvoucher scheme is specifically targeted at SME's and the third sector for whom connection charges are
prohibitive

+ We have a comprehensive range of demand stimulation programmes targeted at the SME that will drive
awareness and adoption.

* Many SME's trade in high Intellectual Property or IT content business sectors and require ultrafast broadband
services to remain competitive

E3. Set out your proposals for leveraging innovation, development and delivery of broadband-based
public services for businesses and consumers, making as many services as possible available
online and delivering economic benefits.

ACC has invested in new ways of working. Since 2006 Environmental Health and Trading Standards Officers have
used tablets and 3G connectivity in order to undertake their enforcement activities. Significant investment has been put
into ‘hot desk’, home and mobile working. Similarly mobile technology is used by City Wardens as part of enforcement
activities. Mobile technology is also used by building services, housing repair, logistics in waste collection, for client
contact and support in Social Care and wellbeing and is a core requirement in delivering Scotland’s Curriculum for
Excellence. There is an ambition to deliver a Virtual Campus for students who wish to study a subject that may be
offered at another city school.

Significant investments in infrastructure to date have been made by ACE including ownership of the fibre optic
network in the city centre to operate its close circuit television camera’s operated by Grampian Police. The network
has a value in the region of £1million. In 2010 it invested a further 200k in digital camera in the 4 areas in the City
and 2 wireless cameras in Cults & Peterculter. ACC is also planning to undertake a significant £1.8m investment in
a programme to assist approx 2000 staff to adopt flexible, mobile ways of working. This programme will radically
change the way ACC operates, delivers services by exploiting electronic service delivery & communication channels
and mobile technology, using modern working practices.

As can be seen there are a variety of digital solutions that are being used and planned which will be compromised in
the delivery by the poor wireless connectivity in the city.

E4. How will additional private sector investment be stimulated, to generate greater accessibility by
businesses and residences to faster broadband services.

Extensive market consultation has shown that there is an appetite for the private sector to invest in next generation
fixed and mobile infrastructure in the City. The proposed initiatives will generate:

= Up to £10 million in next generation wireless infrastructure

= a minimum of £8 million investment in open access fibre infrastructure and some operators have expressed
a desire to invest up to £35 million in the City.

In addition to this investment at the infrastructure level, it is expected that these initiatives will, in turn, stimulate local
and national ISPs to offer a broader range of cost effective and innovative services which will drive adoption levels.

24

Page 169



E5. How will skills levels be raised in the local population to equip more people with better knowledge
based skills?

IT and e commerce skills in the City are being addressed by Enterprise North East Trust & Business Gateway. It
encourages & supports entrepreneurial activity, creating a steady stream of successful new businesses and supporting
the development of established Small to Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs). As part of its programme there is an
extensive programme of training to equip SME's and the population with IT and e-commerce skills. Examples include:

« IT for Business
Effective IT and E Business adoption can significantly help companies operate more effectively and take
advantage of new opportunities that may otherwise not exist.

« Develop Your Website
Training on how to plan, develop and manage websites. This includes the factors that make a good website
and howthese influence your site’s popularity and accessibility from a legal and customer friendly perspective.

* Online Marketing
Getting your online marketing right is crucial in order to support your business development and encourage
more customers. We will highlight existing and emerging online marketing techniques and discuss options
open to you at varying levels of budget.

+ eBay and Online Marketplaces
This practical and creative course teaches businesses how to easily grow & develop a successful route to
potentially millions of customers on-line. Covering the fundamentals of security, shop-keeping, payments,
feedback and thresholds required to either convert a hobby into a business or to utilise on-line trading
through established sites such as eBay.

F — Stategy for achieving State Aid compliance

F1. Show how the proposed infrastructure investments and commercial models to be used will comply
with State Aid rules, or how State Aid is not involved.

There are four areas of infrastructure investment, each of which present different state aid issues these are deait with
in detail at Appendix D but to summarise:

+  White Area in-fill: This will require State Aid approval. At the time of writing DCMS is liaising with the EU on
establishing a national umbrella state aid clearance for the in-fill of white areas across the country. Any
gap funded investment in exchange and cabinet upgrades within Aberdeen City may be covered by this
national umbrella agreement. If Aberdeen City is not able to utilise the national umbrella slale aid in respect
of White in-fill in an urban area then it will rely on the other examples of white FTTC to obtain state aid
clearance with its own application or in conjunction with other cities

= Open Access Fibre Network: The route of this network covers white areas although, of course, it also
addresses some areas that may be grey if BT upgrades additional cabinets/exchanges. These upgrades
are currently not planned. Even so such an upgrade programme will not provide the businesses with access
to ultrafast symmetrical services. Hence this project is a complementary fibre overlay. As such Aberdeen
City proposes to apply for State Aid clearance for this project. This may be undertaken by the City itself, or if
DCMS wishes to pool the requirements of a number of similar initiatives across the UK, we will work with
DCMS on the preparation of a collective notification.

* Next Generation Wireless Network: It is the intention of Aberdeen City to deliver this via a Public Concession
Model and will ensure that the appointed supplier does not receive any undue benefit therefore there are no
state aid implications associated with this element of the project.

= Voucher to SME and Third Sector - the amount of capital subsidy per premise is below the de minims level
and therefore there are no state aid issues

F2. Include any examples of your experience of similar models that have received State Aid approval,
perhaps in other sectors. Summarise any information you have received from the Commission or
otherwise (for instance, a legal opinion) that supports the view in F1.

Please see Appendix E in respect of State Aid assessment procured from Taylor Wessing LLP.

25
— "5

-

Page 170



G — Education, profile-raising & demand stimulation

G1. Show how demand stimulation and registration activities will contribute to achieving high levels of
take up of ultrafast broadband by consumers.

ACC is committed to raising the adoption of digital services by consumers in the City. In particular we have established
a range of programmes encouraging the elderly and low income communities.

An example of this is Foolprints a web-based service that will stimulate older people’s interest in and interaction with
modern technology, enabling them to join the ‘digital community’. Footprints is specifically interested in assisting
those older people who cannot readily access services because of their inability/lack of opportunity to keep abreast
of technological changes. 60% of those over 65 years have never used the internet.

Older people are often excluded from access to technology, which can have a detrimental effect on their ability to fully
participate in society and wider community life. This social exclusion may lead to lack of confidence, isolation and, in
many cases, ill health.

Footprints wants to bring generations together, specifically on intergenerational projects where the young can act as
teachers/mentors to the elderly in the use and benefits of modern technology. Footprints will achieve these aims by
supporting our older community to be technology literate, providing a trusted ‘bridge’ to enable them to be ‘connected’
in a safe and secure environment.

It is anticipated that the Footprints initiative will have a significant positive impact in the local area initially but then
potentially rolled out across other areas/communities. Some of the positive impacts are:

+ The extension of technology training and support in accessing trusted services to include 'signposting’ of
care services (GP's, chiropodists etc) will enable elderly people to live longer in their own homes in a
supported environment.

« The increase in the number of elderly people who will become ‘connected’ to family & friends, either in their
own homes or via their local community hubs, will reduce social isolation and increases self esteem.

* An increased take-up amongst our elderly population of applying for benefits on-line, resulting in efficiency
savings/cost reductions in public sector expenditure (eg cost reductions in elderly care health budgets,
savings in DSS benefits processing admin costs etc).

* Improved employment opportunities for the ‘young elderly’ who have the skills and confidence to apply online
for jobs (both paid and voluntary).

Aberdeen has identified core funding needs of circa £300,000 per annum over a 3 year period.

G2 Set out your proposals for education, information and demand-building activities for generating
greater demand by businesses (including SMEs) for ultrafast broadband services.

ACC has established a series of initiatives to drive the adoption of ultrafast services (although it should be noted the
City has one of the highest adoption rates in the UK and there is clear evidence of pent up demand rather than a lack
of knowledge). Our initiatives will include:

* Extensive work with the Federation of Small Businesses and the Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber of
Commerce. We regularly survey members on their requirements and issues and distribute information to
members to drive adoption. An example is the market research programme contained in this submission

+  We have held, and will continue to hold a series of seminars on the use of broadband services where we
have invited industry speakers and demonstrated case studies

*  We will work with the national and local telecommunications operators and support their demand stimulation
initiatives by providing access to authority resources and services as required

*  We support local training bodies and trusts who are promoting adoption. An example is the Enterprise
North East Trust.

26
00 |

Page 171



Sign off by Local Authority CEO, Section 151 officer or Portfolio-Holding Executive Member

Name of proposal: ACCELERATE ABERDEEN

| verify that this proposal to the Ultrafast Broadband Fund fits with corporate policy

Signed: %@@W )

Name: VALERIE WATTS

Job Title: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Date: 14/09/2012

27

Page 172




Appendix F — Letters of Support

N

Federation of Small Businesses

thice of Chw | Ex
Absrdoan T4
Ve Walls )

Chisf Exgcutren 27 AlG 2612

Absyrisa CEy Cownol

Town Hause

road Stresd

e S

ABI01FY I Aupust 20492

Cimar Wailene

| o weiting on bahe® of tha Federabon of Seal Bussesiss @ Soulh Absrfesnshie In supper the
Ecunci s bed o the Super-Lonnecied Cies Initiative Urban Broadhand Fund (phase 3

Tk rofl-0uf and uptaks of rasd gersmEnon Brosshing And 40 i inpontan o e oy Absideen o aready
B gichal lesder in the of and gas indusiry wilh @ sPong pnd provwan Culumm of oriRmpriee AN Dusiness
development  However, poot brosdband speeds pa the significany petental for further poonome grossh
it risk

in Moy 3011, The Fedoraton of Small Busneszes wndenook Sabonsv mManst msaarch n collaboration
with ACHEF pnd Aberdess snd Graimpisn Chambet of Commearce Feschock showed Sl ocal
TugnEssES rean mus! laster apeeds ) e curent serces Sfows o undedlake the mamge of
applications they requim Them 5 B clear fulvs requiemaent for appicaions such 8% codaboemtva

Groated spends Mn viewed @ crtonl or o 2 500 members in 8 98a 10 compels slfectively M e
mmm-mmmn;ghwwwmupmmmww
deveinnmeet ot fae

We emedone support Aberdenn City Council's ad for lunding and babews Ml e oy b akeady wel
pinced fo dupioil e opooriunass Bl 8 successhul b would bring

I} s TG SNy further INToTmaton. Measa 150 nod Hestats 1o GrBe) e o0 podrew wiloadiish oo uk o
gt i douch with the FSB Development Manager for Morth East Sopfand, Catharing W by amating
sirerine ward Elist ook of ealing 01341 8TEE33

Yours Enoeily,

Andy Williox OBE
Branch Chgr
The Federotien of Small Businessas, Baulh Abardesnahine Dranch

28

Page 173




THE HUB
EXPLORATION DRIVE
ABERDEEN ENERGY PARK

Aberdeen & Grampian ABERDEENENE
Chamber of Commerce ABERDEEN

The Ultimaze Business Network AB23 8GX

WWW.agcc.co.uk

Valerie Watt 11" September 2012
Chief Executive

Aberdeen City Council

The Town House

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 1FY

Dear Valerie

I am writing on behalf of Aberdeen & Grampian Chamber of Commerce to support Aberdeen’s
UBF Bid which will roll out next generation broadband and 4G wireless connectivity.

This is not only important for the city region’s economy but vital for the members that my
organisation represents. High speed digital connectivity will provide improved access for both
businesses and the public and is a key issue for members of the Chamber.

A 'Constraints to Business Survey’ conducted by the Chamber in March 2012 identified broadband
as a major constraint with an index score of minus 30 from a sample of 400 businesses.

Aberdeen has some of the slowest broadband speeds in the country and yet despite this it has a
growing economy. Faster speeds will assist our members to compete more effectively in the
future. We believe that the city is well placed to accelerate the benefils thal a successful bid will
bring. This is why The Chamber supports Aberdeen City Council's bid for funding from the Urban
Broadband Fund Phase 2,

We would be happy to provide more evidence from the business community in the city region.

Yours sincerely

Robert Collier

Chief Executive

315 RNC/SDItr

British

Chambers of Regintered in Scotidnd 3: a compary lemited by

Commerce S e e
32 O i, Expdorstion Dyive,

Accredited o Enermy Pk, Badgo of Don. Abardeon A28 S5

INYESTOR IN PEOTLE VAT Numbaer 268 3164 55

29
— * 8

Page 174



gt Exacutive
office of Chig! =8 4 &
i pbergeen & . Er)

{ 4 SEP 2012 T

HOUSE OF COMMONS
LONDON SWI1A DAA

Valeric Watt

Chief Executive

Aberdeen City Council 10 September 2012
Town House

Broad Street

Abcrdeen ABID |FY

Our ref: RS/ RC 033

Dear Mrs Watt,

I am delighted to learn that Aberdeen City Council is bidding to DCMS for UBF2 monies to
enhance digital connectivity in Aberdeen City and the contiguous arca of Westhill, which falls
within my constituency.

The largest concentration of subsea engineering expertise in the world is resident in Westhill and
the global subsea market is growing at around 20% annuaily. The UK has a global market share of
30% of what is currently a sector worth £20bn annually and we are anxious that we retain and grow
this share as the sector expands to meet the challenges of both producing oil and gas in ever deeper
waters and of developing marine renewables technology. Many of the businesses in the area are
chasing export markers and in a sector which relies on large amounts of up 10 date duta, & good
digital connection is vilal to their ability to win new business and expand.

Because our oil and gas sector is now the largest sectoral contributor of corporation tax 10 the UK
Treasury (around 25% of the total), it is absolutely vital that we do everything in our power 1o relain
the sector's presence in the North east and encourage additional buginesses to locate in the UK,

I am conscious of infrastructure and perceived locational disadvantages because ol our remoteness
from London. [t is imperative that we offset these factors with world class digital connectivity
which will encourage key people to work and live in the arca and create a competitive environment
in which companies can undertake their business and 1 believe thar a successful bid will encourage
new businesses into the area and equally encourage existing businesses 1o remain and expand.

I'm also conscious of the need 1o improve our digital connectivity to address matters other than
economic development - for instance the more cost effective delivery of public services, social
inclusion and the advancement of ¢ learning opportunities - particularly for those of our citizens
resident in dispersed communities.

Please reply to Banchory Busiuess Centre,

Burn O'Bennie Rd, Banchory, AB31 SZU.
Telephone: 011330 820330

email: robertsmith.mpie parliament.uk

30

Page 175



I see a successful UBF2 bid helping to address all these issues and so am delighted 10 lend my
support 10 your submission,

Yours sincerely,

Robert Smith

Please reply to Banchory Business Centre,
Burn O'Bennie Rd, Banchory, AB31 57U,
Telephone: 01330 820330
email: robert.smith.mpl parliament.uk

31

Page 176



1

AB/AM HOUSE OF COMMONS

12 September 2012 LONDON SW1A 0AA

Mrs Valerie Watls
Chief Executive
Aberdeen City Council
Town House

Broad Street
ABERDEEN ABI10 1FY

Dear Valerie

[ am delighted to see that Aberdeen is bidding for UBF2 monies to enhance digital
connectivity in Aberdeen. Because of Aberdeen’s perceived remoteness and our
poorish infrastructure, it is important we have excellent digital connections.

| am aware of Aberdeen City Council's efforts to employ digital technology in the
delivery of care and repair services, building services, housing, education and social
care and the huge benefit that better broadband provision would bring to many of
the residents in the area.

Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire has the highest rates of broadband take up in the
UK (74% and 72 % respectively, an area which has the second highest GVA per head
of population of any region in the UK, second only to inner Londan yet there is no
availability of superfast broadband.

We hope that the Department of Culture Media and Sport will recognise the
contribution that Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire makes to the UK economy and will
support Aberdeen City in its bid for Super Connected Cities funding.

Yours sincerely

/&M‘?‘ S
e
Dame Anne Begg
MP for Aberdeen South

Dame Anne Begg MP [Aberdeen South), Admiral Court, Poynernook Road, Aberdeen AB11 50X
Tel: (01224) 252704 Email: anne.begg. mp@parliament.uk Follow on Twitter and Facebook

DAME ANNE - STANDING UP FOR ABERDEEN SOUTH

32

Page 177




The Rt. Hon. Sir Malcolm Bruce MP

!

Mrs Valerie Watts HOUSE OF COMMONS

Chief Executive .
Aberdeen City Council LONDON SWI1A 0AA

Town House
Broad Street
Aberdesn
AB10 1FY

12 September 2012
Ref: MB/AH/08/12/ACC_Watt/broadband

Dear Mrs Watt,
Super Connected Cities -Urban Broadband Fund

| was delighted to leam of Aberdeen’s intention to bid for the second round of the Urban
Broadband Fund to enhance digital connectivity in Aberdeen and the surrounding area of
Westhill.

| was pleased when Government announced this fund and contacted the minister’s office
immediately to express my support for any bid that would be forthcoming from Aberdeen, you
may recall | notified you at the time.

| am well aware of our infrastructure requirements and the need to avoid being disadvantaged
by our relative remoteness from London.

| strongly believe that it is imperative we balance these factors with world class digital
connectivity which will encourage key people to live and work in Aberdeen and create a stable
sustainable environment for business to flourish.

| am aware of Aberdeen City Council's efforts to employ digital technology in the delivery of
care and repair services, building services, housing, education and social care and the huge
benefit that better broadband provision would bring to many of the residents in the area.

I note that Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire have the highest rates of broadband take-up in
the UK (74% and 72 % respectively), and are in an area which has the second highest rate of
Gross Value Added per head of population of any region in the UK, second only to central
London. Given this it is astonishing there is no availability of superfast broadband yet

| am sure that the Department of Culture Media and Sport will recognise the conftribution that
Absrdeen and Aberdeenshire makes to the UK economy and will support Aberdeen City in its
bid far Super Connected Cities funding.

Yours sincerely,

Sir Malcolm Bruce MP

Liberal Democrat MP for Gordon

Constituency Office
Diary Secretary 67 High Street, inverurie, Aberdeenshire ABS1 3Q) House of Commons
Telephone 013398 89120 Telephone 01467 623413 Facsimile 01467 624994 Telephone 020 7219 6233
Facsimile 013398 82656 Email: info@malcolmbruce.org.ukl Website www.malcolmbruce org uk Facsimile 020 7219 2334

33

Page 178



Ak |'Wg

HOUSE OF COMMONS

Ms Valerie Watts LONDON SWIA 0AA
Chief Executive

Aberdeen City Council

Town House

Broad Street

Aberdeen, AB10 1FY

Ref: FD/JD

13 September 2012

Dear Ms Watts
Bid for Superfast Connected Cities Funding

I am very pleased that Aberdeen City Council is making the bid to
DCMS for UBF2 funding to improve the digital connectivity in the
City and Westhill.

As the European capital of the energy industry the city provides an
enormous contribution to the country’s wealth through corporation
tax, employment taxes and industry taxes. We have an incredibly
buoyant economy. At the top level the larger international
corporations, based here in the city, have the resources to invest in
their own state of the art broadband. Further down the supply chain
the vast majority of SMEs just cannot afford the investment to
upgrade their systems. We also have a substantial number of self
employed businessmen who work from home, and again
broadband improvements are beyond their resources. The quality
of broadband available is totally inadequate for their requirements
in the modern age.

It is imperative, to preserve these jobs in the city, that we see a
radical improvement in our connectivity. The support from UBF2
and the monies which | know will be raised from industry will give a
world class industry, based in the UK and delivering for the UK, the
tools to do their job even more effectively and efficiently.

Frank Doran MP, Aberdeen North Constituency Office. 69 Dee Streel. Aberdeen, ABI1 6EE
Tel: 01224 252715 Fax: 01224 252716

Email: doranf@purlinmentuk website: www. frankdoran.ore uk

34
00 |

Page 179



Beyond the oil and gas industry, as you know Aberdeen City and
Shire has the highest rates of broadband take up in the UK = 74%
and 72% respectively. They are not being well served by current
providers and | hope that DCMS will recognise the importance of
improved connectivity, not only to the City of Aberdeen and
Aberdeenshire, but to the whole UK economy.

Yours sincerely

Frank Doran MP
Aberdeen North

Frank Doran MP., Aberdeen North Constituency Office, 69 Dee Strecl. Aberdeen, AB) 1 6CE
Tel: 01224 252713 Fax: 01224 252716
Email: doronfi@parliamentuk website: www frankdorsn orguk

35
= " /5

Page 180



2 Eilidh Whiteford MP 5

Ms Valerie Walls, Chief Execulive 13t September 2012
Aberdeen City Council Our Ref: EMW/rjm
Town House

Broad Sireet

ABERDEEN

AB10 1FY

Dear Ms. Walls,
Aherdeen City Bid for Urban Broadband Fund Round 2

| note with interest the bid led by Aberdeen City Council for UBF2 funding from the DCMS for “Super-
Connected Cilies".

| am pleased to see that both City and Shire are cooperating on the bid. Although this DCMS fundjng rqund
is specifically for cities with over 45,000 households, | am encouraged that your bid includes consideration
of the needs of the wider Aberdeenshire community.

Many parts of my consliluency currently have a non-existent or woefully inadequate connection. This has a
significant impact on both businesses and the daily lives of my constituents. A successful bid by Aberdeen
City would help to lay the foundations for better conneclivity in the more rural parts of Aberdeenshire. Plans
lo provide an ultra-fast fibre network along the Energetica corridor will be particularly welcome in terms of
promoling economic development, building on the North-east's existing strengths and considerable further
potential in the energy seclor.

I will watch the progress of the bid with interest and will encourage the DCMS to consider the benefils your
proposals will provide to the wider Aberdeenshire community.

Yours sincerely,
jildl g

DR EILIDH WHITEFORD
MP for Banif & Buchan

Eilidh Vhiteford MP
Office 7, Burnside Business Centre, Burnside Road, Peterhead, AB42 3AW
Tel: 01779 822 022 Fax: 01779 822 025
eilidh.whiteford mp@parliament.uk
ilighwhicefordinf

36

—0 0

Page 181




enerco
venture

Entrepreneurial Investment ™

Enerce Venture Company Ltd
Enerco House

18 Albert Street

Aberdeen Scotland AB25 1 X0

T 441224511888
E Info@enercoventure.com
W enercoventure.com

September 10" 2012
To whom it may concern

Letter of Support for Aberdeen’s City's Urban Broadband Fund (UJBF) Bid (Phase 2)

As Chairman of Enerco Venture Company Limited | am writing to support Aberdeen’s
UBF Bid which will roll out next generation broadband and improve wireless connectivity.
This is not only important for the city region's economy but vital for innovations that
contribute to future growth and investment across all sectors.

Enerco Venture is an entrepreneurial investment firm dedicated to the oil and gas
industry. We invest in emerging, small to medium enterprise companies (SMEs) where
there is potential for growth through the successful commercialisation of technology,
products and services. One of our investments, Mintra Training Portal Limited who by
their very nature depends on having the very latest in technology to survive, thrive and
compete in what is a highly competitive market.

Aberdeen City and Region has some of the poorest broadband speeds in the country and
yet its contribution to the economy continues to grow. Through bringing state of the art
infrastructure to the North East of Scotland this will not only attract investment for current
plans and development but provide the basis for growth in other sectars. This will not
only impact the local economy but contribute to national economy as a whole. This is
why | support Aberdeen's bid.

Yours fﬁithfully

Jamie Bennett

Regriterpd in Scotiand SC3701 20

—o0 ¥ =
—_—0
Page 182



11" September 2012

Valerie Watt

Chief Executive
Aberdeen City Council
The Town House
Broad Street
Aberdeen

AB10 1FY

Dear Valerie

| am writing on behalf of Aberdeen BID to support Aberdeen’s UBF Bid which
will roll out next generation broadband and 4G wireless connectivity. This is
not only important for the city region’s economy but vital for the members that
my organisation represents. High speed digital connectivity will provide
improved access for both businesses and the public and is consistent with this
organisation’s aims and objectives

Aberdeen has some of the slowest broadband speeds in the country and yet
despite this it has a growing economy. Faster speeds will assist our members
to compete more effectively in the future. We believe that the city is well
placed to accelerate the benefits that a successful bid will bring. This is why
Aberdeen BID supports Aberdeen City Council’s bid for funding from the
Urban Broadband Fund Phase 2.

Yours sincerely

x ua?

Susan Bree
Chief Executive

Page 183

38
00 l



RS/RS

Valerie Watts

Chief Executive
Aberdeen City Council
Town House

Broad Street
Aberdeen

AB10 1FY

10 September 2012

Dear Valerie

Super Connected Cities Programme

Archibald Simpson House
27-29 King Street
Aberdeen

AB24 5AA

T: +44 (0) 1224 627679
F:+44 (0) 1224 636854
www.acsef.co.uk

Aberdeen City and Shire Economic Future (ACSEF), the public private sector partnership
charged with the delivery of the region’s economic development plan, fully supports Aberdeen
City Council in its bid for funding from the Super Connected Cities programme.

The evidence that broadband infrastructure in the North East of Scotland urgently requires
upgrading is overwhelming. There is extensive lobbying from local businesses stating that the
speed and quality of service available to them is constraining growth, efficiency and

employment.

Citizens are being impacted by difficulties in accessing community services, their ability to
work in a flexible manner and the resulting impact on social cohesion. ..OFCOM's 2011 data
demonstrates that Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire have the highest rates of broadband
take up in the UK (74% and 72% respectively) where there is NO availability of superfast
broadband. As a consequence of this the infrastructure is routinely overloaded resulting in
much lower connection speeds than advertised and which consumers believe they are paying

for.

As you are aware, Aberdeen and the contiguous area of Aberdeenshire together employ
44,000 people in the oil and gas industry. A large number of employers in the industry are
transferring data to oil provinces all over the world. Additionally food and drink and tourism
related businesses increasingly rely on fast broadband connectivity to service their existing
customers and attract new customers. Business growth therefore employment is being
hampered by the inability of companies to communicate effectively with their customers and

for citizens to access services.
| wish you every success in your bid and hope that the Department of Media Culture and Sport

will recognise the contribution that Aberdeen already makes to the UK economy and how that
contribution would be significantly enhanced with the availability of superfast broadband.

Yours sincerely

)
P\ O

Tom Smith
ACSEF Chairman

(e}

————D

Page 184



instalec technology group

September 10" 2012

To whom it may concemn

As Group Managing Director of Instalec Technelogy Group in Westhill, | am writing to
support Aberdeen’s UBF Bid which will roll out next generation broadband and improve
wireless connectivity. This is not only important for the city region's economy but vita! for
innovations that confribute to future growth and investment across all sectors.

Based in Aberdeen since 1983, Instalec Technology Group{iTG) are committed to
providing the most up to date technologies to an established biue chip olf and gas client
base with business solutions from some of the market leading vendors such as Cisco and
Microsoft,

We are in the business of enabling these customers to create a compelling and
sustainable competitive advantage by leveraging unlimited high speed connectivity - it is
ihe absolute bedrock upon which we build these solutions.

All our clients have an ever increasing demand for bandwidth and with requirements
doubling every 21 months over the past five years, and connectivity costs increasing
dramatically, some of these organisations are being priced out of the market.

Aberdeen City and Region has some of the poorest broadband speeds in the country and
yet its contribution to the economy continues to grow.

Through bringing state of the art infrastructure to the North East of Scotland this will not
only attract investment for cuirrent plans and development but provide the basis for growth
in other sectors. This will not only Impact the local economy but contribute to national
2conomy as a whole.

This is why | support Aberdeen™s bid.

Yours faithiully,

Graeme Taylor,
Group Maraging Director,

Instalec Technology Group (ITG)

Head Office

Aberdeen Edinburgh Glasgow General Enquiries
Arrdad Business Sark t1 1 Swanston Road Willger Flouse nfcfinsaieccock
Westhi Edinburgh Stegthelyde Bugnngs Pask .
Aberdesrsiire Miciothian Bagil, Lanarkshire Support Enquiries
AB3Y &UF ERIQ TD5 L4 3PR spporiimsaieccouk
244 (51224 746400 44 {0)131 2092428 +44 (0} 1698 G40570 f;'esg Efgi;;ﬁ

PFapadered n Sioted - Ragmrranon No SCISTR3L Repmired Ofice ~Arrted Buynant Pk YWothd 2ordomatre A002 (UF
40

Page 185




Appendix 2 - Team Job Descriptions

Head of Project

Ensure overall project management and direction.

Overall project management and direction

- Ensuring financial control and governance

Skills

Must be able to ensure financial control and governance with sophisticated communication skills.
Must possess knowledge of the public and private sector. Must have high level negotiation and
communication skills..

Knowledge

Understand the OJEU process, the mechanisms of the UK, and Scottish Governments. The
Internal stakeholder engagement (Reporting to ACC and AC. )

Person

This person will oversee:-

)- External stakeholder engagement (Liaison with DCMS, UK ministers, Scottish Government,
- Supplier liaison and oversight of procurement process

- Management oversight of implementation

- Oversee legal and regulatory issues

- Press and PR — Accelerate Aberdeen spokesperson

Therefore this person will be at a senior level, out-going with good contacts..

Availability
Required as needed for the duration of the programme.

Project Manager — in-house additional to current resources

Ensure co-ordination of team to achieve tasks to schedule and cost. Oversee proper application
of quality management system and appropriate peer review to ensure project quality. Work with
team and ACC to ensure that all needs and implications are well understood.

Skills
Good time and resource management skills. Ability to create and manage ongoing project

budget. Ability to determine dependencies and manage any slips on critical path. Good
communicator able to place emphasis on the right areas at the right time.

Page 186



Ability to manage meetings effectively and bring the team together. Must be capable of succinct
reports giving a good view of the progress, challenges and any roadblocks to enable appropriate
rectifying actions and escalations. Proven ability in day to day management of project teams.

Knowledge

Understanding of project management methadology, e.g. PRINCEZ2 , also good domain
knowledge gained on previous procurement projects preferably for public or corporate networks.

Person

Proven experience of managing projects and day to day management of project teams.

Diligent person, outgoing willing to walk the floor and talk with team members on ad-hoc basis to
resolve issues as they arise as well at formal project management meetings. Able to resolve
issues whilst maintaining motivation and co-operation of team.

Availability

Needed Full Time for the duration of the programme.

Procurement Lead- in-house

Determine procurement sfrategy and manages process within bounds of given approach. Leads
on supplier evaluation processes and manages version control of all procurement documents and
dialogue meeting minutes. Take part in preparation of procurement pack, dialogue process and
scripts and ITCP document. Also take lead in dialogue with suppliers and keeping the Dialogue
Support Procurement Team up to date on dialogues.

Skills - Proven experience in managing a process, including suppliers at each stage of the
process. Structured thinking with good written and verbal communication skills.

Knowledge- Previous experience of procurement process for large networks andfor network
services. Previous experience of Competitive Dialogue process also an advantage.

Person- Tenacious, good negotiator, disciplined especially on recording of all contacts, queries
and responses to suppliers.

Availability -Required on a Full Time basis for the duration of project.

Commercial Negotiator- in-house

Liaise with suppliers to negotiate Ts&Cs and negotiate hard on service level vs assets levels to
ensure best value is obtained by ACC. Draft Ts&Cs with procurement team ready for legal
review.

Page 187



Skills Good relationship management skills and ability to achieve through good communications
win-win situation for ACC and Preferred Bidder.

Knowledge -Working knowledge of contract law. Knowledge of broadband market rates/service
prices at retail and wholesale levels. Understanding of wireless operator cost bases an
advantage. Knowledge of local geography an advantage

Person -Proven track record in negotiating successful contracts.

Availability = Required from November 2012 to March 2013 to end on a Full Time basis. Needed
on an occasional basis for rest of programme. Total 4 person months.

Technical Expert - external

Responsible for writing technical /service level requirements of procurement document set. Ability
to challenge suppliers to meet required service levels, contributes to dialogue questions and
issues. Needs to define technical evaluation criteria PQQ and final stage as well as technical &
service level success factors for ACC.

Skills- Ability to map requirements and objectives onto wireless technology and service levels;
speed, contention, coverage and other targets. System engineering skills. Good written and
verbal communication skills.

Knowledge- Knowledge of current broadband services and levels and how these service are
engineered. Understanding of likely future needs and potential coverage issues. Knowledge of
2G/3G/4G network architectures and service capabilities. Knowledge of state of the art 4G
technology and handheld devices, including at specific spectrum bands. Knowledge of Wifi as a
delivery mechanism.

Person- Proven experience as analytical, pragmatic and creative problem solver.

Availability- Required Full Time for duration of programme for the duration of the programme.

Legal Support part in-house (for specialist ICT legal advice purchase
expertise)- external

To ensure that ACC does not break Scottish or EU laws in respect of competition and state aid.
Review PIN notice, PQQ and instructions to bidders, Ts&Cs from a legal review perspective.

Skills Ability to quickly grasp legal implications of procurement plan and benefit in kind plans and
outline potential issues and avoidance strategies.

Knowledge -Scottish contract and public law, EU competition law, up to date on state aid ruling
and precedents. Requires familiarity with Regulation 18-The public contract regulation 2006.

Person Proven track record working in a team environment. Rigorous approach to work. Previous
experience of supporting contracts where benefits in kind rather than payment usedand of state

aid contracts.

Availability Must be available on an occasional basis as needed throughout the project. 20-30
man days in total.

Page 188



Stakeholder Manager in-house

The projectis likely to involve a large number of stakeholders so this person must be able to keep
in contact with all stakeholders, keeping them abreast of decisions made on the project and any
forced compromises which may impact on cost or eventual benefits. The stakeholder manager
will draft and maintain a communications plan to keep all key stakeholders up to date.

Skills -Good networker, relationships across public sector within City (and possibly across the
shire, NHS, FRS, Grampian police in the case of extended scope). Excellent verbal
communication skills, influencing/persuasion skills. Politically adept.

Knowledge - Knowledge of public sector management, approvals and operations processes.
Ability to identify “hot items” for each stakeholder. Understand interface between political and
council leaders and interfaces to other relevant public sector bodies in the case of extended
scope.

Person =- Extrovert, friendly likeable but also objectives oriented. Proven experience in working
in similar role with a wide range of stakeholders with conflicting objectives. Proven ability to

negotiate and compromise among stakeholders

Availability- Needed Full Time for November 2012 to February 2013 and for the duration of
programme on a Part Time basis. Total 5 person months.

Page 189



« ofeg
© GURSOIN (BUDNG O ARuwung pafoid o L I s 21 8002 LY BT
BUPESQ [T gyer) (BUOKT  (Ae— IRULNS — a0y [EE— gy | Maamouum 20 woanady pokid
- o0 SIZOTO L Z1LROI0PSM SABD FSO UORIENHURG PUBUIN '§ 3Rl 4]
S8 PLZL/LOUOM EL/IO0GO0 301  GASD pRe UORE BuMdW y 888U 24
£ : 55E0B0G2 VoW EL0E0ONL  SiEo By MEMD 0] 03N R MY PRILGD LORdBA Mom
H L0%0, 3 £ FIZE CHAG0 oL Eij0B0enL sieDg FORIRNS [sRusD |55 |
i CSELENONL EI/GOSZONL T Z eI R 5
i ELBOMT UON C1R0SZONL SAED 1Y neaue) -]
: MWENADI I ENODSZONL  siEponk Poued IISRUEIS IBREY M 2
CAEVDMSZ ANl E1R0SZanL Q) B3O BTEXY IDfEd] . g |
i EYELDOSZONL ELOOSZANL sdEDg POUILLLISIO J0OMT DALIDSRIA ]
i SYIFOPENGOST AL ELAULLONL THWZ 2000 pasajd paRs 13
H ELO0LI BNL ELSORIUNS LOUWS L [T | 8r
CLQ0LL N ELSQZLUNS uows i et Fii
= H H CIOWLLONL ELSQTLUNS  Uowa L BIILUSSL |_&5b |
Dlm i i PYCUDSOUd  ELSOZTLUNS SARD 6L uoHENEAZ T
: EFELSOTL UNS ELSUSOUNS %MD £30UG; FBUS j0 eun-auizlioeds ke v |
Eﬂﬁ i £5/50%50 UnS  ELSOSOURS  slmpg sesucdso) erasay o
{ = r 3 ELOQTOONL  ELOGSOURS  uowe | ‘Sesu0dsal predad Ssdngs er
050 © £35S0 INS  ELSGEOURS  seDQ (135 11} 530U FEUY PLUGNS 0 UOHERAU #nSs) aw
6L CLBOTO NL  ELSOSO NS  8AED 1T ambomp-isod _or
EH SEELDONOUNS  ELBOSOUNS séepp onCOMID aSEwS 8¢
!“m : LEELSADO UNS  ELTOSONY  Lowe L SMB0ED ouBuLD EN
: EAPAD0 S EiPOS0Ud  wEDp SI5AdNS PESILOYS O) QDL PUES £E
: STELSHSOUNS ELFOSDL  mAep iz (@s11) snBomp anupued O} LoHELALY ot
: i FEELNMOMOUS  ELDOSZLA  WWD L LUDRIANS SIS
i i ECELEQBZUS  ELEGSIUY SawdZ SeR0050) MENEAT | v
€08t i ZEELEQDI U3 ELEGSLLY  sleop 56SU0ASG] ONFIOH _EE
: CEEZEHENDI I ELROEIPOM UCWE | sesundsa. oredoxd peyddng | 2¢ |
OCELEDSI U3 EWZOTEPOM uowD | sudnddns upm osETY b
zoeh, 222 42081 POM. ELROELPOM i8R0 S01GNS POISTUOE 0] QL EgRdE] ot |
ZZOIDBZ LN ZLELTZ UM SN § UL UOTENE A DUDNL “SOWNN0R Od 1| G0 62
COS0Nd  ZIZKITUOM 60 7L GctL1) 6nBopID 1y Svedgasued of uopeiaLy e
SZELZDEL (OM ELZOUODSM WeD ) BIHANA 15 1SHHOUR S0y 12
G2EN2000 POM EINOEZ POM w2 SOR00E0) D0 DIRNEAT |42
H 10EZ i P2 ESOEZ FOM EMNGEZROM SlE00 GPRe0 K300 DO a2
3 i E2EL/LAEZ FOM ZLZ1P2 UM SAB00 06 SERURA! D0 DERK SHaNg e
4t WRLAZ U 21RIBZ UM ep g R0 |80 |0 EUR LG ez
H } i 2RI UOW ZIZLTOUOW  Dewi € FYUBLUNCOD 1RAUCS PUE OOd 'E0u 1O |10 LORERGaLS 22
i J" 3 02 £4ZOTH POM ZIZNEOUON shep 7§ (00d) vopegent-aig ¥4
X H : THEWEO O A IRI UM AW E (Uono0: 3 Duilasig 02
Cp————— £ 81 EMBOME UON 247k 121 oM 848D SOT meae #0000 1§01 ] ‘e ovtug -
Cormmm TLLLTL O U0 B0y SASp COL Bumpun, 3 astyg wl
Bl oy ZLOLIOE 0L ZLRO'IDDIM SheD 1B Bunnin ;| oveus 7
—_— - =] SLZOTO L ZiHOEL B0L  s4ED yeo usid & LT 3
"Mm_!wn“mo S0SSa0008id| Uk LEIS ﬁ ucrEng | nﬁzﬂE_ A

ue|d 198loid - ¢ xipuaddy

Page 190



Agenda ltem 7.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure

DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Aberdeen Local Development Plan — Development Plan Scheme
REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/257

1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report presents the first Development Plan Scheme for the next Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. The Development Plan Scheme is a requirement of the Planning etc.
(Scotland) Act 2006 and must be reviewed annually and submitted to Scottish Ministers. It
sets out a detailed timetable and programme for the preparation and adoption of the Local
Development Plan. This report seeks approval of the Development Plan Scheme 2013
which must then be published (including electronically), sent to Scottish Ministers and
placed in public libraries in accordance with the Act. In addition, it would be beneficial to
send it to, or inform, the key agencies.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1 That the Committee approve:

(1) the adoption of the Local Development Plan Scheme, its publication (including
electronically) and sending it to Scottish Ministers, and
(i) sending it to, or informing, the key agencies and consultees.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no immediate financial implications arising from this report as the cost of
preparing the next Aberdeen Local Development Plan can be met from existing budgets.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

4.1 The Local Development Plan and associated Development Plan Scheme contribute to
“‘Aberdeen - A Smarter City” in terms of providing a clean, safe and attractive streetscape
and by promoting biodiversity and nature conservation, encouraging wider access to green
space in our streets, parks and countryside, improving access to affordable housing in the
private sectors by working with developers to maximize the effective use of developer
contributions

4.2 The document raises awareness and understanding of the development plan review
process and how long it will take.

5 OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Page 191



5.1

6.1

Preparing a Local Development Plan Scheme is a requirement of the Planning etc.
(Scotland) Act 2006 and it must be produced annually and submitted to Scottish Ministers.

REPORT

Section 20B of the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 (the Act) requires each planning
authority to prepare a development plan scheme at least annually. The scheme sets out
the authority’s programme for preparing and reviewing their Local Development Plan and
what is likely to be involved at each stage. The scheme must include a participation
statement stating when, how, and with whom consultation on the plan will take place and
the authority’s proposals for public involvement in the plan preparation process.

6.2 The Act requires Local Development Plans to be updated at least every 5 years. In order

6.3

for us to ensure this can happen, the Council will need to begin reviewing the Aberdeen
Local Development Plan this year. At the same time, the Strategic Development Plan
Authority are progressing a new Strategic Development Plan (SDP) and the next Local
Development Plan will need to comply with the new SDP.

This Local Development Plan Scheme sets a timetable to ensure that the next Local
Development Plan is reviewed in time and that it can comply with the new SDP which is
scheduled to be approved in June 2014. We intend bringing a report to the next EP&I
Committee providing further details and seeking authority to begin the review of the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

In relation to the Act, Regulation 24 requires development plan schemes to contain a
timetable, specifying the month the authority proposes to publish its next Main Issues
Report and Proposed Plan and to submit the plan to Scottish Ministers. After adopting the
scheme, the Act requires the authority to publish it (including electronically), send two
copies to Scottish Ministers and place copies in public libraries. There is no requirement to
consult on the content of development plan schemes. It would be beneficial however to
send it to, or inform, the key agencies.

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Louise MacSween

Planner
Imacsween@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 523326

BACKGROUND PAPERS

e The Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006
www.ospi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/acts2006/pdf/asp 20060017 en.pdf

e Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland) Regulations 2008
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/ssi2008/ssi 20080426 en 1

e Circular 1/2009 Development Planning Circular February 2009
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2009/02/13153723/0

APPENDICES

Appendix | — Local Development Plan Scheme

Page 192



Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeen Local Development Scheme:
January 2013

Introduction

The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 requires all Councils to prepare a
Development Plan Scheme at least annually. This Development Plan Scheme
sets out Aberdeen City Council’'s programme for preparing the new Aberdeen
Local Development Plan. This is the first Local Development Plan Scheme for
the new Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

This document provides information on the following issues;

o The development plans we have now;

¢ Why we need to progress a new Local Development Plan;

e The timetable for preparing this plan (the project plan); and

¢ The timetable for engaging people in the preparation of the plan and how we
will do this (the participation statement).

What Development Plans do we have now?

The Development Plan system in Aberdeen consists of two core statutory
documents:

e The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan (2009) - the Structure Plan will
be replaced by the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan
(SDP) which is currently in preparation;

e The Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012) — this will be replaced by the
new Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

Why we need to prepare a new Local Development Plan

Planning Authorities are required to keep under review the Plans that they
prepare.

As the Strategic Development Plan Authority (SDPA) are progressing a new
Strategic Development Plan, it is important that our Local Development Plan is
brought up to date as soon as possible to become in line with this emerging Plan

The emerging Strategic Development Plan specifies how land will be used up to

2035 to make sure there is a continuous supply of development land. Putting the
new Strategic Development Plan into practice will be achieved through new Local

Page 193



Development Plans within Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire. As such, we intend
to replace the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 (which complies with the
current Structure Plan) with the new Aberdeen Local Development Plan which
will comply with the new Strategic Development Plan.

Preparing the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2

This Development Plan Scheme sets out a number of stages in preparing the
new Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

Stage 1 — Publishing the Development Plan Scheme

This Development Plan Scheme contains a Participation Statement saying when,
how, and with whom consultation will take place and a timetable saying when the
various stages of the emerging Aberdeen Local Development Plan will be
published and submitted to Scottish Ministers.

The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 requires the adopted Development Plan
Scheme to be published (including electronically), two copies to be sent to
Scottish Ministers and copies to be placed in all libraries. We will also send it to,
or inform, the key agencies and consultees.

Stage 2 — Preparing the Main Issues Report

In January 2014 we will publish a Main Issues Report (MIR). This will be a
discussion document that will summarise the main planning issues facing
Aberdeen. It will outline the major differences in approach to the current adopted
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012). In doing so it will also take into
account the requirements of the emerging Strategic Development Plan.

The Main Issues Report will link closely to the process of Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA). All proposals (preferred and alternative) put forward in the
Main Issues Report, will be environmentally appraised and a draft Environmental
Report will be published alongside it.

Prior to its publication we will invite people to submit comments and ideas for the
Main Issues Report. These comments could be regarding new policy
approaches for the Local Development Plan or land allocations for development.
This process will likely take place between March — June 2013.

It is unlikely that the emerging Strategic Development Plan will require us to
identify any further greenfield housing or employment allocations. However, we
would like to hear about proposals to redevelop brownfield sites in the urban
area. A development options form and a sustainability checklist will be used for
any new sites that are suggested. The best time to submit proposals in the first

Page 194



instance is at the pre-Main Issues Report stage. This would allow full
engagement to take place on these proposals, which will be posted on the
Council's website. All submissions will be assessed against sustainability criteria
and, following further consultation, will inform the content of the Main Issues
Report.

We will publish a Monitoring Statement alongside the Main Issues Report which
will look at:

e Changes in the principal physical, economic, social and environmental
characteristics of the area that have occurred since the preparation of the
existing local development plan; and

¢ The impact of the policies and proposals of the existing local development
plan.

We will also publish the following documents alongside the Main Issues Report:

¢ A Development Options Assessment Report which details our assessment of
the development options submitted to us.

e An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment of the Main Issues
Report.

Stage 3 — Preparing and Publishing the Proposed Plan

The proposed new Aberdeen Local Development Plan will be written by the
Council and will respond to matters raised at earlier engagement and
participation stages. The Proposed Plan will contain a Spatial Strategy (a plan
showing where we consider development should and should not go) and policies
to guide the development of Aberdeen up to 2026.

Where appropriate, there will be indicative policies showing how Aberdeen may
develop in the longer term up to 2035. The Proposed Plan will also include a
detailed proposals map which will show land allocations (zones) where
development of particular kinds (such as housing or business) will be supported
in principle. It will also include a schedule of land owned by the Council which will
be affected by any of the policies and proposals which are proposed.

In addition we are required to publish a proposed Action Programme alongside
the proposed new Aberdeen Local Development Plan. Action Programmes
should set out how we propose to implement the new Local Development Plan
through:

e Alist of actions required to deliver each of the plan’s policies and proposals

e The name of who is to carry out each action
e The timescale for carrying out each action

Page 195



The regulations do not specify particular types of action that should be included;
however they are expected to include:

e The delivery of key infrastructure
e Preparation of Supplementary Guidance

Actions are not limited to those by the planning authority. In preparing the
proposed Action Programme, we will consult and consider the views of the key
agencies and consultees, Scottish Ministers and anyone the Council proposes
specifying by name in the Action Programme.

Stage 4 - Examination of the Proposed Plan

Up to this point, we will have tried to resolve as many objections as possible.
However, we cannot guarantee that the Proposed Plan will match everyone’s
views. At this point, assuming there are no notifiable modifications, it is likely that
the Council will publish the Plan and submit it to Scottish Ministers for
Examination. The Examination will be carried out by independent reporters who
are appointed by the Scottish Government.

Stage 5 - Adoption of the LDP

Depending on the outcome of the Examination, this is the stage at which we
would expect the emerging Aberdeen Local Development Plan to be adopted
(see Participation Statement).

Page 196



Development Plan Scheme Programme

STAGE 1 - Publishing the Local Development Plan TIMEFRAME
Scheme

¢ Pre-consultation questionnaire sent out 29 October 2012
e Pre-consultation report released November 2012
e Report Development Plan Scheme to Enterprise, Planning | 22 January 2013

and Infrastructure Committee

Publish Development Plan Scheme

January/ February
2013

STAGE 2 - Preparing the Main Issues Report

TIMEFRAME

Process and Assess pre-Main Issues Report comments
and submissions

March to June
2013

Draft Main Issues Report and Strategic Environmental
Assessment Scoping Report

June to October
2013

¢ Draft Monitoring Statement

June to October
2013

¢ Publish Main Issues Report and issue to persons and January 2014
key agencies

e Publish Monitoring Statement January 2014

e Send Strategic Environmental Assessment Scoping Report | January 2014
to consultation authorities

STAGE 3 - Preparing and publishing the Proposed

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

e Prepare and publish updated Local Development Plan January 2014

Scheme and issue to Scottish Government

Process representations to the Main Issues Report

March to June
2014

Page 197




e Prepare Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

March to

November 2014
e Prepare draft Action Programme March to
November 2014
e Prepare Environmental Report March to
November 2014
e Report to Full Council December 2014
e Prepare and publish updated Local Development Plan January 2015
Scheme and issue to Scottish Government
e Publish Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan February 2015
and notify to persons and key agencies
e Publish Proposed Action Programme February 2015
e Publish Environmental Report and send to SEA Gateway February 2015
under 2004 Regulations
¢ Notification of Neighbours February 2015
e Objection and representation period February to April
2015

STAGE 4 - Preparing for the Examination of the proposed
Aberdeen Local Development Plan

e Consider Objections to Proposed Plan and draft
Environmental Report

April to September
2015

¢ Response to representations September 2015
¢ Report of Conformity with Participation Statement September 2015
e Submit Proposed Plan, Action Programme and Statement | November 2015

of Conformity with Participation Statement (as modified if
relevant) with Note of Representations and how these have
been taken account of to Ministers.

e Publicise submission of plan

Page 198




Request Scottish Ministers to appoint an Examination of
the Proposed Plan and Environmental Report

Advertise Examination of Proposed Plan and serve Notice
on known interested parties

Examination in Public November 2015 to
July 2016

Receive the Report of Examination July 2016

STAGE 5 - Adoption of the Aberdeen Local Development
Plan

Consider recommendations and report to the Council August/
September 2016

Publish Modifications and Proposed Plan as modified. September 2016

Advertise 'intention to adopt' September 2016

Notify each person who made representations of

publication and intention to adopt

Notify Scottish Ministers of our intention to adopt the October 2016

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan is constituted November/

as the local development plan (28 days after December 2016

notification to Scottish Ministers)

Send two copies of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan | November/

and Environmental Report to Scottish Ministers December 2016

Deposit copies of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan in | November/

libraries, notify each person who made representations and | December 2016

advertise it

Publish Action Programme and Environmental Report Post | December 2016/

Adoption Statement (within 3 months of adoption) January 2017

Page 199




Participation Statement

Aberdeen City Council is strongly committed to encouraging interest and wide
public involvement in the preparation of the new Local Development Plan. This
Participation Statement explains how local communities and other stakeholders
will be engaged and have the opportunity to be involved in the preparation of the
new Aberdeen Local Development Plan. In line with the Planning Advice Note on
Community Engagement and the National Standards on Community
Engagement, Aberdeen City Council will continue to ensure that:

» arrangements for participation are inclusive, open and transparent;

» information is provided in a manner which allows for full consideration of
its implications;

» communication is provided through a range of formats and locations,
including easily understood jargon-free formats;

» all representations are fully considered;

» feedback is provided promptly on the conclusions drawn; and

* we add to our consultation list anyone who wishes to be involved with this
process.

The selection of participants is representative of the public, private, voluntary,
academic and community sectors and of the various equality groups. Regulation
28 of the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 defines the key agencies as:

Scottish Natural Heritage;

Scottish Environmental Protection Agency;
Scottish Water;

Health Boards;

NESTRANS; and

Scottish Enterprise

Guidance suggests that the following bodies should have the same level of
involvement in the development plan process:

Historic Scotland;
Transport Scotland;
ACSEF; and

The Forestry Commission

We will also involve the following groups at the same level:

Aberdeenshire Council;

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority;
Health and Safety Executive; and

Community Councils

Page 200



In addition, community groups and the general public have and will continue to
be involved in the Local Development Plan process. We will continue to email
newsletters to developers, agents and those who have expressed an interest in
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. We can add contacts to this list on
request.

This participation statement highlights the methods of consultation which are
used to ensure full and effective engagement with the community and
stakeholders. Efforts have been made to reach beyond the constituency of
organisations normally involved in planning consultations to a wider range of
public interests such as young people, pensioners, ethnic minorities and the
disabled.

The schedules below set out in as much detail as is known at this stage when,
how and with whom we will engage, and the steps that will be taken to involve
the public. It distinguishes between our statutory duties, as laid down by Scottish
legislation and the additional non-statutory actions we will carry out.

The schedules will be kept up to date on the Local Development Plan webpages
of the Council’s website (www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan) so
that stakeholders and the public know exactly how the preparation process for
the new Local Development Plan is to be conducted and what opportunities they
will have to participate and engage with it

The new Local Development Plan preparation process involves 5 stages, which
we are currently at the beginning of. Engagement with stakeholders and the
public is set to begin early in the first two stages.

Page 201



Participation Programme

Feedback on Previous Consultation (November 2012)

In preparing this Development Plan Scheme, we have also sent out a questionnaire to
people who were involved in the consultation process for the last Local Development
Plan. This invited their feedback on the engagement activity we carried out as well as any
suggestions for improvements that could be implemented during the preparation of the
new Plan.

A report was then drafted that detailed the responses we received. This was made
available on our webpage and was also advertised through the newsletter, and via social
media.

Stage 1: Publishing the Local Development Plan Scheme (January 2013)

This document raises awareness and understanding of the development plan review
process and how long it will take.

When this Development Plan Scheme is | In addition to our statutory obligations, we

approved and published, we are required | will:

to:

e Send it to Scottish Ministers e Tell other Council services about it;

o Make copies available in all the City’s Send copies to or inform interested
libraries and at Marischal College parties;

e Publish it on our website Provide Community Councils with

www.aberdeencity.qgov.uk

Toolkits consisting of various materials
to encourage participation and facilitate
discussion, potentially leading to an
exhibition at the end of the period.

Email a newsletter about it to agencies,
developers and those who have
expressed an interest in the Local
Development Plan.

Publicise on our website and via social
media sites (Facebook and Twitter)

Page 202




Stage 2: Preparing and Publishing the Main Issues Report (from early 2013)

In preparing the Main Issues Report, we are
required to consult with and have regard to
any views expressed by:

the key agencies,

Scottish Ministers,
Aberdeenshire Council and;
The SDPA.

To publicise the Main Issues Report, we are
required to publish a notice in one or more
local newspapers, setting out:

¢ That the document has been produced
and where/when it may be viewed

e A brief description of the content and
purpose of the document

e Details of how further information may
be obtained and

e A statement of how representations
may be made, to whom and by when

We also have to send this information to:

The key agencies
Aberdeenshire Council
The SDPA
Community Councils
Scottish Ministers

We must also:

e Make a copy available to inspect at
Marischal College and in public
libraries

e Publication on the internet

e Send the report to Scottish Ministers

The Planning etc. (Scotland Act 2006

In addition to our statutory obligations in
preparing the Main Issues Report, we will
also carry out the following engagement
activities:

e Hold meetings and workshops with
community groups, key agencies and
stakeholders

¢ Involve other Council Services

e Send out and publish online a
questionnaire inviting responses and
suggestions;

e Ensure that the Local Development Plan
webpages of the Council's website
continue to provide immediate access to
Local Development Plan publications
and allow responses to the Main Issues
Report to be submitted

e Continue to use the telephone and email
enquiry point allowing people to contact
the Local Development Plan team;

e Run  participation  exercises and
workshops for both stakeholders and
Councillors throughout the Development
Plan process where display material and
Local Development Plan team members
will be available;

¢ Investigate engagement with young
people through School visits by
members of the Local Development Plan
Team

In addition to our statutory obligations for
publicising the Report, we will also:

e Employ social media websites such as
Twitter (@AberdeenLDP) and Facebook
(Aberdeen Local Development Plan) as
a means of publicising Local
Development Plan documents and

Page 203




requires authorities to ensure that people
who may want to comment on the Main
Issues Report are made aware that they
can do so and are given such an
opportunity.

events;

e Email a newsletter to key agencies,
developers and those who have
expressed an interest in the Local

Development Plan updating them on the
process. The Newsletter will also be
available on the Local Development
Plan pages of our website and
publicised over social media.

Once the Main Issues Report is published,
there will be a 10 week consultation period
for representations to be made on its
content. Representation forms will be made
available in Libraries and at all consultation
meetings, as well as online. Regular news
releases will be made to local media during
this period to publicise the consultation
events and advise people of the process.

Stage 3: Preparing and Publishing the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
and Supplementary Guidance

In preparing the Proposed Plan, we are
required to:

o Consult the key agencies and Scottish
Ministers

In addition to the same minimum
publicity requirements for the Main
Issues Report (above), we are also
required to:

e Send a copy of the Proposed Plan
to/inform each key agency and Scottish
Ministers

¢ Notify any person who commented on
the Main Issues Report that the
Proposed Plan has been produced and
send them the relevant information

¢ Notify the owners, lessees or occupiers

Once the Proposed Plan has been

published, we will also:

e Inform community groups and other
stakeholders;

e Run drop-in events to give people the
chance to meet and discuss the
proposed Plan with members of the
Local Development Plan Team.

e Make a presentation to key agencies,
stakeholders and interested groups

e Hold a consultation period of 10 weeks,
4 weeks longer than the statutory
minimum

e Publish it on our website
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk and publicise
it through social media;

e Email a newsletter about it to agencies,
developers and those who have

Page 204




of sites and the owners, lessees or
occupiers, within 20m, of neighbouring
sites which the proposed plan
specifically proposes to be developed
and which would have a significant

expressed an interest in the Local
Development Plan. The Newsletter will
also be available on the Local
Development Plan pages of our website
and publicised over social media.

effect on the use and amenity of the
site;

e On the rare occasion that a Proposed
Plan is republished following changes
to the underlying aims or strategy of an
earlier Proposed Plan, consult people
who made representations on the
original plan

Once the Proposed Plan has been
published, we will hold a consultation
period of at least 6 weeks to allow
representations from any interested party
to be made (although we intend to consult
for 10 weeks).

Stage 4: Preparing for and Responding to the Examination of the Proposed
Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In the event of an Examination, we will

¢ Advertise the Examination;
e Make the Examination proceedings available on the website as soon as practicable;
o Keep all interested parities informed about the Examination procedures.

Stage 5: Adoption of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan

Once the Reporter(s) has made their recommendations on the Plan, and any
modifications have been made, formal adoption of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan
would follow. At this stage we will make public our intention to adopt the plan following a
28 day submission period to Scottish Ministers — providing they do not wish to raise
issues with the plan. At this point we are required to:

o Advertise the intention to adopt the Plan, as modified according to the Reporter’s
Report if appropriate, in newspapers, describing any modifications;
e Contact all interested parties and advertise the publication of the Plan to them;

Page 205




¢ Notify those who made representations;
¢ Place copies of the Plan as modified in public libraries and in Marischal College.

Parallel Assessments of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan

It will be necessary to undertake a number of parallel assessments of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan both as legislative requirements and as good practice. These
documents will be made available for comments and representations on our website, local
libraries and at Marischal College.

Strategic Environmental Assessment

Under the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 it is a legal requirement to
undertake a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA). This is because the Local
Development Plan, along with other supplementary guidance, is likely to have a
significant effect on the environment. This is being undertaken throughout the review
process and will have its own stages of consultation on a draft and final Environmental
Report. A draft Environmental Report will be published for consultation alongside the Main
Issues Report and provide an assessment of the impact on the environment of sites and
policies within it.

Appropriate Assessment

Development plans should be subject to an Appropriate Assessment according to Article
6(3) and 6(4) of the Habitats Directive (92/43/EEC). This assesses the likely significant
effects that the Aberdeen Local Development Plan may have on the River Dee Special
Area of Conservation (SAC) - the only European site within the Aberdeen City boundary.
This is to ascertain whether the Plan will have an adverse impact alone, or in combination
with the other plans and projects on the site’s integrity. The Appropriate Assessment will
be included as part of the draft Environmental Report.

Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment

At each stage of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan we will continue to consider how
our ways of involving people, as well as the policies in the plan, might affect different
groups in different ways.

Page 206




Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.
£
LY {
Ul
L @i&

ABERDEEN
CITY COUNCIL

Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessment - the Form

There are separate guidance notes to accompany this form — “Equality and Human
Rights Impact Assessment — the Guide.” Please use these guidance notes as you
complete this form. Throughout the form, proposal refers to policy, strategy, plan,
procedure, report or business case, embracing a range of different actions such as
setting budgets, developing high level strategies and organisational practices such as
internal restructuring.

STEP 1: Identify essential information

1. Committee Report No. | EPI/12/257

Aberdeen Local Development Plan — Development Plan

2. N f l.
ame of proposa Scheme

3. Officer(s) completing this form.

Name Designation Service Directorate

Louise MacSween | Planner Planning and Enterprise, Planning
Sustainable and Infrastructure
Development

4. Date of Impact Assessment. | 12 December 2012

5. When is the proposal next due for review? | Every 12 months

6. Committee Name. | Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee

7. Date the Committee is due to meet. 22 January 2013

1 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 209




Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.

8. Identify the Lead Council Service and who else is involved in delivering this
proposal (for example other Council services or partner agencies).

Planning and Sustainable Development

9. Please summarise this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA).
This must include any practical actions you intend to take or have taken to reduce,
justify or remove any adverse negative impacts. Please return to this question
after completing the EHRIA.

The Development Plan Scheme will not have any adverse negative impacts on people
with protected characteristics. It will have positive impacts as it sets out the
programme for preparing and reviewing local development plans.

10. Where will you publish the results of the Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessment? Tick all that apply.

O Para 9 of EHRIA will be published in committee report in Section 6 “Impact”
X  Full EHRIA will be attached to the committee report as an appendix
O cCopied to Equalities Team to publish on the Council website

STEP 2: Outline the aims of the proposal

11. What are the main aims of the proposal?

This is a document that sets out our programme for preparing and reviewing local

development plans.

This document provides information on the following issues;

¢ What development plans we have now

e Why we need to prepare a new Local Development Plan

¢ A timetable for preparing this plan (the project plan)

¢ A timetable for consulting people and how we will do this (the participation
statement)

12. Who will benefit most from the proposal?

People interested or involved in the preparation of the Aberdeen Local Development
Plan — stakeholders, agencies, the development industry, citizens, other Council
services

13. Tell us if and how the proposal will increase equality of opportunity by permitting
positive action to redress disadvantage?

The document raises awareness and understanding of the development plan review
process and how long it will take. Although this work has not been a statutory
requirement in the past, we have published details about how people can get involved.
The document goes into far greater detail than previous documents about how and
when people can have their say and the overall timescale/ programme for the

2 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 210




Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.

| preparation of the plan. This seeks to ensure greater inclusion in the process.

14. What impact will the proposal have on promoting good relations and wider
community cohesion?

The document raises awareness about a process in which all are invited to participate,
regardless of who they are or where they live.

STEP 3: Gather and consider evidence

15. What evidence is there to identify any potential positive or negative impacts in
terms of consultation, research, officer knowledge and experience, equality
monitoring data, user feedback and other?

\We will consult throughout the Local Development Plan process — pre Main Issues
Report (MIR) (non-statutory), MIR and Proposed Plan (statutory) stages.

An SEA will be carried out during the preparation of the Local Development Plan.

Officers in Planning and Sustainable Development and other services will be informed
of the timescale for the plan’s preparation, so that they can take account of it in their
Service Plans.

People submitting representation forms to the Main Issues Report were asked to fill in
an equalities monitoring form (EMF) which was available online and with the paper
representation forms.

STEP 4: Assess likely impacts on people with Protected Characteristics

16. Which, if any, people with protected characteristics and others could be affected
positively or negatively by this proposal? Place the symbol in the relevant box.
Be aware of cross-cutting issues, such as older women with a disability
experiencing poverty and isolation.

(Positive +, neutral O, - negative)

Protected Characteristics

Age - Younger [+ Disability + Gender 0
Older Reassignment*

Marriage or Civil |0 Pregnancy and |0 Race** +

Partnership Maternity

Religion or Belief [+ Sex (gender)*™™ [0 Sexual 0

orientation™***

Others e.g. 0

poverty

Notes:

*

Gender Reassignment includes Transgender

*%*

Race includes Gypsies/Travellers

3 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 211



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.

*k%k

Sex (gender) i.e. men, women

*kk*k

Sexual orientation includes LGB: Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual

17. Please detail the potential positive and/or negative impacts on those with
protected characteristics you have highlighted above. Detail the impacts and
describe those affected.

Positive impacts Negative Impacts
(describe protected characteristics (describe protected characteristics affected)
affected)

We will contact a representative body for
each of the equality target groups in
order to raise awareness of the process.

4 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 212



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.
STEP 5: Human Rights - Apply the three key assessment tests for compliance
assurance

18. Does this proposal/policy/procedure have the potential to interfere with an
individual’'s rights as set out in the Human Rights Act 19987 State which rights might
be affected by ticking the appropriate box(es) and saying how. If you answer “no”,
go straight to question 22.

O Article 3 — Right not to be subjected to torture, inhumane or degrading treatment or
punishment

O Article 6 — Right to a fair and public hearing

O Article 8 — Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence

O Article 10 — freedom of expression

O Other article not listed above

How?

Legality

19. Where there is a potential negative impact is there a legal basis in the relevant
domestic law?

Legitimate aim

20. Is the aim of the policy identified in Steps 1 and 2 a legitimate aim being served
in terms of the relevant equality legislation or the Human Rights Act?

Proportionality

21. Is the impact of the policy proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued? Is it
the minimum necessary interference to achieve the legitimate aim?

STEP 6: Monitor and review

22. How will you monitor the implementation of the proposal? (For example,
customer satisfaction questionnaires)

Engagement exercises will help inform us of any shortcomings in the development plan
scheme. Scottish Ministers may provide us with feedback after we submit it to them.

5 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 213




Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment — the Form.

23. How will the results of this impact assessment and any further monitoring be
used to develop the proposal?

We are obliged to produce a development plan scheme at least annually, which gives
us an opportunity to revise it in response to feedback.

STEP 7 SIGN OFF

The final stage of the EHRIA is formally to sign off the document as being a
complete, rigorous and robust assessment.

Person(s) completing the impact assessment.

Name Date Signature

Louise MacSween 12 December 2012

Quality check: document has been checked by

Name Date Signature

Andrew Brownrigg 12 December 2012

Head of Service (Sign-off)

Name Date Signature
Margaret Bochel 17 December 2012
Now —

Please send an electronic copy of your completed EHRIA - without signatures -
together with the proposal to:

Equalities Team

Customer Service and Performance
Corporate Governance

Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 13

Second Floor North

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Telephone 01224 523039 Email sandrab@aberdeencity.gov.uk

6 V5 — 25 October 2011

Page 214




Agenda ltem 7.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure

DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Aberdeen Local Development Plan Policy on

Affordable Housing Requirements for New
Development

REPORT NUMBER: EPIM2/277

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1.  The Development Management Sub-Committee at its meeting on the
8th of November considered an application for 81 units at Friarsfield
Road, Cults (this site will be developed to the extent of 280 units as
per the Local Development Plan). The Sub-Committee discussed the
affordable housing allocation for the site and the overall affordable
housing policy.

1.2.  The Sub-Committee approved the application and also made a
number of further recommendations, one of which was “that a report
be presented on the policy of 25% affordable housing provision and
when it is appropriate for the planning authority to accept a commuted
payment, and the calculation of that payment to maximise affordable
housing provision in the city.” A commuted payment is a financial
contribution made in lieu of providing affordable homes as a part of the
housing development proposed.

1.3.  The purpose of this report is to explain the details the current Local
Development Plan policy that sets out the requirements for affordable
housing for new developments. It also sets out a proposal for the
Committee to consider with the intention of maximising affordable
housing provision through the implementation of the policy.

1.4. In setting out a proposal this report summarises a variety of factors
that are relevant to the delivery of affordable housing.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1. Itis recommended that the Committee agree for officers in planning
and Sustainable Development to consult on proposals to amend the
commuted payment and report back to this Committee with the results
of this consultation with a proposed figure or method of calculation to
be agreed.

Page 215



3.1.

41.

5.1.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report, but
following a review of the commuted payment this will affect money
received when commuted payments are agreed through legal
agreements under Section 75 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS
There are no other implications resulting from this report.
BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan contains a policy that requires
new housing developments of 5 units or more to contribute no less
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing. Further
guidance on the provision of affordable housing from new
development is available in Supplementary Guidance, available at:
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=31
814&s1D=14394 . The Supplementary Guidance details that for
developments of 20 units or more the provision will be expected to be
delivered on-site. The advantages of this approach is that it helps to
deliver mixed communities and assists in the eradication of existing
concentrations of deprivation and creates more sustainable
communities where there is a range of housing opportunities for
individuals and families as they age, as their household size changes
and as their income increases or decreases. Another benefit is
providing Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) with land or property, as
at present RSLs do not hold extensive land banks in Aberdeen City.
Without land in the control of RSLs this can lead to difficulties as there
are no sites that can be delivered when funding is available.

Realities of delivering affordable housing

5.2.

5.3.

During the mid 1990s to 2007, there was considerable cross-subsidy
of affordable housing on larger private sector housing sites. This was
not enough to bridge the gap between targets and the amount which
could be achieved with the Government’s funds. During this period of
prosperity evidence suggests that targets across the UK were not
being achieved, which does not bode well for the chances in the
current economic climate. Also, ensuring that the private sector meets
its targets for the Structure Plan will be a challenge in itself.

It is important to clarify the role of the developer in the provision of
affordable housing. In the case of an on-site provision there are a
range of options currently available, and in all of the options there will
be a receipt received by the developer. For example, to deliver social
rented accommodation (or any other model of affordable housing) an

Page 216



5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

RSL will purchase the unit (house or flat) from the developer at an
agreed value. In this situation the RSL is funding a proportion of the
build cost and the land value. Therefore, the developer is only
providing a share of the unit. However, there is an opportunity lost for
a developer when providing affordable housing and the difference
between what an RSL can afford to pay with current levels of grant
and the open market value is likely to be greater than £25,000 in many
locations.

The process of securing affordable housing or contributions towards
the provision of affordable housing requires negotiation between the
Council and developer. These negotiations, at the time of the
application or pre-application discussion, will determine the actual
requirement and the form of provision. These negotiations will
consider any exceptional servicing costs for the development, and the
impact of the requirement on the viability of the development. Current
Supplementary Guidance recognises that as a part of new
development there is a need to provide or make financial contribution
towards major new infrastructure, such as schools, drainage, water
and roads. Where a developer can demonstrate that there are
exceptional costs, the requirement for affordable housing contributions
may be reduced to ensure the cumulative burden on the overall
development does not make the site unviable. In order to help the
Council reach a view on the viability of the development, the developer
must be required to provide a financial appraisal for the development
that provides detailed financial information on the development costs
and viability to be considered by the Council.

In addition to the current policy the Scottish Government wrote to
planning authorities on 15 March 2011 on the topic of affordable
housing highlighting the Government’s desire to remove constraints to
the development of housing land in the current economic climate. The
letter went on to say that “authorities will also be aware of the
significantly lower levels of public funding that are likely to be available
to support the development of affordable housing in the coming years.
In these circumstances | suggest that authorities, in drawing up and
implementing planning policies on affordable housing, should consider
whether contributions of 25% or more are likely to be deliverable in the
current economic climate. Levels of affordable housing requirement
that act to stifle overall levels of housing development are likely to be
counter-productive. In certain cases the effect could be that
development would not proceed at all.”

The current financial circumstances and reductions in grants from the
Scottish Government are having a significant impact on the ability for
affordable housing to be delivered on-site through the implementation
of this policy. With reduced Government funding for affordable housing
we will have to consider alternatives, which might include further
discounts made by the developer, additional funding found from other
sources (which is already being done with the use of money from

Page 217



Council Tax or commuted payments), mixed tenure developments that
can service required finance or a combination.

Commuted payment

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

Within the current policy there is an allowance for a commuted
payment, but this should only be considered for smaller developments,
less than 20 units. Currently the commuted payment is set at £25,000
per house, which is a figure consistent across the Aberdeen Housing
Market Area (this covers Aberdeen and the surrounding areas of
Aberdeenshire).

Given the difficulties in the delivery of housing on-site the simple
£25,000 commuted payment is an easier way for the developer to
meet the requirements of the policy and there is the incentive that,
depending on the location, there could be significant gains in providing
more open market housing on-site instead of an affordable unit. There
can in some instances be benefits to a developer of providing on-site
affordable housing, especially in the early phases as there will be a
guaranteed buyer for a set number of units and this may help to
finance some of the early infrastructure investment.

There is currently a strong presumption in favour of on-site provision
for developments larger than 20 units. Making an allowance for a
developer to provide a commuted payment instead of on-site provision
must be treated with caution, as this will generally be the preferred
option for a developer who is seeking to maximise profit and remove
any hurdles to development. A strong policy on this can help to ensure
that the full cost of providing affordable housing is factored into
development appraisals. Any negotiations with developers should,
where applicable, start from the position of on-site provision and only
after all else fails should commuted payments be considered.

Option to amend commuted sums

5.10.

5.11.

The figure for commuted sums is set by the Council, and the figure per
plot is currently £25,000 (as of August 2010). This figure can be
reviewed, but supplementary guidance has committed the Council to
consult on any changes prior to implementation. As stated in
paragraph 5.3 this figure is not equal to the opportunity value that is
lost by a developer if they are providing units on-site.

Whilst increasing the commuted sum will not practically help to deliver
additional affordable housing on-site it would make the option of a
commuted payment less attractive and with a result the delivery of on-
site may become more attractive or a more realistic commuted
payment will be received, which can meet a greater proportion of
housing need.

Page 218



5.12.

Any change to the commuted payment should be based on robust
evidence and further work is required to identify either what a payment
should be or an alternative means for calculating the commuted
payment.

Proposal

5.13.

5.14.

6.1

6.2

There are a number of issues to research further in order to improve
the delivery of affordable housing and it is proposed that we undertake
a review of the affordable housing policy, but that the most appropriate
time to do this is through a review of the Local Development Plan. The
timetable for this is set out in the Development Plan Scheme, Report
Number EPI1/12/257.

In the short-term it is proposed that a review of the commuted
payment will be undertaken to ensure that it is closer aligned to the
opportunity value that is lost by a developer. The focus will remain for
on-site delivery, but with a closer matched commuted sum it will lead
to there being no or reduced benefit to be gained from making a
commuted payment.

IMPACT

This Report is focused on ways that we can maximise the delivery of
affordable housing and sustainable mixed communities. This has a
direct link to the high-level priority in the 5 Year Business Plan 2013/14
—2017/18 to “improve access to affordable housing in both the social
rented and private sectors, by supporting first time buyers, regenerating
areas within the city and by working with developers to maximise the
effective use of planning gain contributions.” This would also support
priorities under Smarter Living to reduce levels of inequality and meet
national targets on homelessness.

This report is seeking agreement to undertake further work and
consultation and there is no impact on equalities and human rights
resulting from this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Supplementary Guidance: Affordable Housing:
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?!lD=318

14&sID=14394

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Daniel Harrington

Senior Planner
dharrington@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 523329

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



Agenda Item 7.3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure

DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclntosh

TITLE OF REPORT Adoption of Supplementary Guidance in support of

the Aberdeen Local Development Plan

REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/262

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 paragraph 22 (1) states that a
planning authority may adopt and issue guidance in connection with a
local development plan. During the preparation of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan (ALDP 2012) Aberdeen City Council prepared a
number of draft Supplementary Guidance (SG) documents in support
of the ALDP. Following examination, the ALDP was adopted on 29
February 2012 with a number of SG documents adopted in the months
following. It is intended that further tranches of approved SG will be
forwarded to Scottish Ministers in due course for adoption, whilst other
SG documents will be reported to Committee as they come forward.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to outline the results of several
consultation periods that have been carried out on five draft SG
documents by presenting a summary of the representations received
on each document, officers’ responses to these representations and to
detail any resulting action from this. A summary of this information is
attached at Appendix 1 of this report. Full, un-summarised copies of
representations are detailed in Appendix 2 of this report.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:

a) Note the representations received on the draft Supplementary
Guidance documents;

b) Approve Appendix 1, which includes officers’ responses to
representations received and any necessary actions to the draft
Supplementary Guidance documents; and

C) Agree for officers to send the requested finalised Supplementary
Guidance documents to be ratified by the Scottish Government

Page 221



3.1

41

4.2

5.1

52

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any
future publication costs can be met through existing budgets.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

This is the continuation of a significant piece of work that has involved
and will impact upon many other council services, public bodies, the
business and development industries and the citizens of Aberdeen. An
Action Programme has been prepared to consider the implementation
of the ALDP and SG.

The progression of these SG documents will provide a clear framework
for decision making, allowing comprehensive guidance for both
applicants and officers, thereby making a significant contribution
towards the Council's aim of promoting and achieving sustainable
development. Detailed area-based SG also has value in reducing
officer time spent on pre-application discussions.

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

This Committee Report relates to five draft SG documents which have
recently been subject to a public consultation. These five draft SG
documents and their respective public consultation periods are detailed
below:

SG Document Name Public Consultation Period

BP Headquarters Complex
Development Brief

9 November to 21 December 2012

Friarsfield Development Framework

16 July to 27 August 2012

Loirston Development Framework

12 November to 10 December 2012

Maidencraig Masterplan

12 November to 10 December 2012

Oldfold Development Framework 16 July to 27 August 2012

It should be noted that both the Loirston Development Framework and
the Maidecraig Masterplan were consulted on in accordance with the
Council’'s adopted masterplaning process approved by the Enterprise,
Planning and Infrastructure Committee at their meeting on 6 November
2012. Respective Community Council’'s for both areas were given
advance copy of the proposed supplementary guidance on 19th
October 2012. In addition, a requested extension to the closing date
for responses was also granted to Nigg Community Council.

The Friarsfield Development Framework, Loirston Development
Framework, Maidencraig Masterplan and Oldfold Development
Framework have been prepared as a requirement of the ALDP and the
BP Headquarter Complex Development Brief is an existing document
which has been carried over from the previous Aberdeen Local Plan
(2008) to the ALDP.

Page 222




5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Due to the size of the draft documents, hard copies have not been
attached to this report but are available on request from the Local
Development Plan team. Full copies of the draft documents can also
be accessed from

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning environment/planning/local d
evelopment plan/pla_aldp committee reports.asp

For the SG an assessment of the environmental impact was made
alongside the ALDP. Since the adoption of the Plan there has been
additional consultation undertaken, additional detail added and
amendments made. Therefore, these documents will have to go
through the Strategic Environmental Assessment Process. Given the
assessment made at the Plan level and the mitigation incorporated into
the Plan there would be no likely significant effect as a result of the SG.
To ensure that this is properly documented a Screening report has
been prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway and the
Consultation Authorities. In the case that any unforeseen issues are
raised any affected SG will be reported back to committee.

Following analysis of the representations received during the
consultation, these draft documents are now proposed for adoption as
supplementary guidance to the ALDP. Each document is nhamed and
detailed below with a summary of any amendments that have been
made to the document either as a result of representations received
during the public consultation period or by officers to provide greater
clarity.

It should be noted that all comments received as part of the
consultation are shared with the developers and their design teams for
consideration in the preparation of any necessary detailed phased
masterplans and/or detailed planning applications.

BP Headquarters Complex Development Framework

The BP Headquarters Complex Development Brief was produced in
April 2008 to help guide the redevelopment of the former BP
Headquarter Offices at Burnside Road, Dyce. This document covers
OP16: BP Dyce (part) Centre as identified in the ALDP, which is zoned
under the Mixed Use Policy (H2). No representations were received
during the consultation period and therefore no amendments have
been suggested to the document.

Friarsfield Development Framework

The Friarsfield Development Framework was produced in January
2012 and covers OP51: Friarsfield as identified in the ALDP, this site is
zoned under the Residential Policy (H1). Approximately 280-380
homes are planned for the site, in addition to roads, drainage
infrastructure and open space. A total of three representations were
received, one from SEPA, one from Camphill Communities (including
the Waldorf School) and one from Ryden on behalf of CALA

Page 223



5.9

5.10

Management Ltd. The issues raised through this representation were
not felt to require any amendments to be made to the document.

Loirston Development Framework

The Loirston Development Framework (November 2012) was prepared
as a strategy for the future development of land identified in the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) as Opportunity Sites OP77,
OP80 and OP78, to inform development of a new residential
community to the south of the City. The OP77 Loirston site is zoned
under the Land Release Policy (LR1) and identified for provision of
1500 homes, 11 hectares of employment land, with the potential to
accommodate a football or Community Stadium. The housing
provision is split into land release phases, 1100 homes proposed for
the period up to 2016 and 400 homes up to 2023.

The Local Development Plan identifies land at Charleston (OP78) to
the south Wellington Road for 20.5 hectares of employment land for the
period 2024-2030; and land at Calder Park OP80 for a new stadium
and sports facilities for Cove Rangers Football Club. The Development
Framework also considers the surrounding ALDP allocations and sites,
including a 2 hectare extension to the existing employment site OP69
Aberdeen Gateway, the Cove Masterplan and existing Aberdeen
Football Club planning permission. A total of 12 representations were
received from the following:

Aberdeen Cycle Forum,

Cove and Altens Community Council,
Historic Scotland,

Scottish Environmental Protection Agency,
Scottish Natural Heritage,

Scottish Water,

Nigg Community Council,

Kincorth Hill LNR Management Committee,
Mr George Urquhart (x2),

Nestrans and

Transport Scotland

The issues raised through representations resulted in some minor text
changes to the Development Framework document as detailed in
Appendix 1 ‘Action as a result of representation’ column.

Maidencraig Masterplan
The Maidencraig Masterplan was also produced in November 2012
and covers OP43: Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig
North East as identified in the ALDP. These sites are zoned under the
Land Release Policy (LR1) and together provide an opportunity for 750
homes. A total of 8 representations were received from the following:

e Nestrans,

e Historic Scotland,

e Transport Scotland,

Page 224



5.11

5.12

5.13

Scottish Natural Heritage,

Scottish Water,

Management Committee of Maidencraig LNR,
Hazlehead Academy Eco-Committee and

Mr lan Mitchell

The issues raised through these representations were not felt to require
any amendments to be made to the document.

Oldfold Development Framework

The Oldfold Development Framework was produced in January 2012
and covers OP62: Oldfold as identified in the ALDP, this site is zoned
under the Land Release Policy (LR1). The Oldfold site provides an
opportunity for the development of 550 homes and 5ha of employment
land. A total of two representations were received, one from SEPA and
one from Keppie Planning and Development on behalf of CALA
Management Ltd. Both representations were supportive and did not
require any amendments to be made to the document.

Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA)

The Friarsfield, Oldfold and Loirston Development Framework
documents have all been subject to a Habitats Regulation Assessment
(HRA) in accordance with Article 6(3) and 6(4) of the Habitats Directive
(92/43/EEC). Any formally adopted Supplementary Guidance which
would be likely to have a significant effect on an identified European
Site shall be subject to an ‘appropriate assessment’ of its implications.

The aim of these HRA's was to assess whether the Development
Frameworks has the potential to have any likely significant effect on the
qualifying interests of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation
(SAC) (Natura site). The impacts of any likely significant effects which
cannot be avoided need to be considered in terms of their impacts on
the conservation objectives of the site through a stage known as an
‘appropriate assessment'.

The screening process for Friarsfield, Oldfold and Loirston concluded
that some aspects of the Development Framework documents do have
the potential to have likely significant effects on the qualifying interests
of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation, either in alone or in
combination with other elements of the document or other projects or
plans in the River Dee catchment. All documents do however include
positive policies and use of buffer zones which would minimise or
eliminate the potential for likely significant effects. For Loirston, the
document included details of mitigation measures and topics for
examination during the forthcoming Environmental Impact Assessment
process. Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) were consulted on the
sufficiency of the proposed measures to avoid a likely significant effect,
for all 3 Development Framework documents.

Page 225



5.14

5.15

5.16

6.1

6.2

With reference to the Friarsfield and Oldfold Development Frameworks
SNH suggested some further project level mitigation measures to take
into account when considering applications which would further
minimise or avoid the potential for likely significant effects and these
have been incorporated in the appraisal. It was concluded that if the
mitigation proposed in the HRA is implemented then the Friarsfield
Development Framework and Oldfold Development Framework are not
likely to have a significant effect on the River Dee Special Area of
Conservation, either alone or in combination with other plans or
projects. An appropriate assessment is therefore not required.

For the Loirston Development Framework it was also concluded that if
the mitigation proposed within the HRA is implemented then the
Loirston Development Framework is not likely to have a significant
effect on the River Dee Special Area of Conservation, either alone or in
combination with other plans or projects. An appropriate assessment is
therefore not required. Final consultation results from SNH to support
this conclusion will be verbally reported to Committee on the day, along
with any suggested additional mitigation measures for inclusion.

At this stage the Masterplans and Development Framework represent a
guide as to how development will take shape on the respective sites.
As the detail of each proposal progresses, it is essential that other
Council services are involved in that process, including appropriate
services from the Education, Culture & Sport and Housing &
Environment Directorates.

IMPACT

The Local Development Plan and associated SG contribute to the
following Single Outcome Agreement priorities:

1. We live in Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing
business in Europe

10. We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are
able to access the amenities and services we need;

12.  We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and
protect and enhance it for future generations.

14.  We reduce the local and global environmental impact of our
consumption and production.

15. Our public services are high quality, continually improving,
efficient and responsive to local people’s needs.

The Local Development Plan and associated SG supports the
Council’'s Corporate Plan, in particular the aim of delivering high levels
of design from all development, maintaining an up to date planning
framework, promoting sustainable development and ensuring an
appropriate open space provision.

Page 226



6.3 The Local Development Plan and associated SG contribute to
“‘Aberdeen — A Smarter City” in terms of providing a clean, safe and
attractive streetscape and by promoting biodiversity and nature
conservation, encouraging wider access to green space in our streets,
parks and countryside, improving access to affordable housing in the
private sectors by working with developers to maximize the effective
use of developer contributions.

6.4 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable
Development Service Plan, in particular engaging the community in the
planning process, and the delivery of Masterplans/Development
Frameworks in line with the Aberdeen Masterplanning Process.

6.5 Given the wide range of policy areas the ALDP and associated SG
covers, an Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA)
was carried out on the Proposed Plan, it showed that there will be
some positive impacts of the Plan on a range of equalities groups. The
Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment is available to view on
the City Council's website at
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/Planning/ldp/pla_aldp tech appendix.a
sp or a hard copy can be obtained from the Local Development Plan
Team. Alongside this, the Masterplans and Development Frameworks
have individually received EHRIA’s through previous committee cycles.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

e Appendix 1 - Summary of representations received, officers’ responses
and any resulting amendments
e Appendix 2 — Full un-summarised representations

Aberdeen Local Development Plan
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?l1D=42278&sl
D=9484

Aberdeen Local Development Plan —Action Programme
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning environment/planning/local develop
ment plan/pla aldp action programme.asp

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority: Aberdeen
City and Shire Structure Plan

http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?llD=423&sID=149

Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/acts2006/asp 20060017 en 1

Scottish Planning Series: Planning Circular 1/2009: Development Planning
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/261030/0077887.pdf

The Town and Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008

Page 227



http://www.opsi.gov.uk/legislation/scotland/ssi2008/ssi 20080426 en 1

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Kathryn Hossack
Planner
khossack@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 523733

Page 228



uonejussalday

JO jnsai
e se uoloy asuodsay s19211JO uonejussaidey jo Alewwns
saplunwwo) [jiydwen

‘uoneoldde
Buiuued 'Yd3s
Aue jo ped 0} 9|qejdaooe g|diound ul si abeulelp |noy
se uayeuapun UO U0I}08s 8y ‘uayeuapun aq 0} (Vy4)
aq [Im JUBWUSSASSY YSIY POO|{ & 10} paau ay}

abeuleiq % ysiy
poo|4 Buipiebal

Jo uoiubooal 8y} sWodBAA "JOPLIOD uIng
ay} buoje Buipuasixe duis siaynq aoeds

Vd3S yim uado ue Jo uoneald ay} ybnouy} aus ay} Jo
uoljeynsuod AJlUIDIA By} Ul uing 8y} @dueyuS pue ulejal
Jayun4 0} s|esodoud ay} awoo|am pue ajs ay}
‘paiinbai 1o} ainjea} Juenodwl ue se pailjuapl usaq
sjuswpuawe ON ‘POION SlUBWIWOD sey uing s}nD ayj jey} ajou 0} pases|d
uonejussaidey
JO JnsaJ
e se uoljoy asuodsay s1891l0 uonejussaiday jo Alewwns
vd3s
yJomauwel Juswdojaaaq piaissieli
‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON V/N V/N
uonejussaiday
Jo Jjnsal
e se uoljoy asuodsay] s1891lO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg

"pPaAIaDal suolejuasaldal oN

jaug juswdojanag xajdwo) siayienbpesH dg

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 229



Juswabeue
juswdojanaqg
3y} 0}

uo passed usaq
aAeY sjuswwo)
‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

ay} ybnouy} pasueyua pue pauiejal aq [|im yjed 2109 siy |
"8}N0J B Yons JO suoljouny ay} 1no Alied 0} Jl J8pISU0D pjNoM
M |00YDS 0} 8}n0J djes e Se Z| ainbly ul paluapl Jou si
yyed 2109 siy} ybnoyyy . paoueyus pue pajoajoid, ‘aq [|Im
syjed 2109 }ey} Saje)s OS|e JUawWnoop 8y | |o0YdS HOpIepA
usaplaqy 8y} yum seale dn jjing Buisixe sy} Bunjuy (Z1
alnbi4) ¢£9 yjed 100 smoys yiomawel 4 juswdojanaq ay L

[|IM |O0YOS HOp|EeAA USBpIaqy dy} O} eale
uequn Bunsixa ay} wouy BuipAo 1o Buyiem
sJayjo pue sjidnd yey} pooy|ayi| ay} sjoajal
siy| ‘uswdojanap pasodoud ayy Buiuiolpe
pue uiyum sisijoAo pue sueujsapad

1o} uoisinold By} punoJe sulaouod pasiel
Alshoinaid aney saljunwwo) [iydwed ay|

"S)s siy}

Joj uoneoldde
Buiuue|d

JO Juswissasse
Bulinp
uoljelapISuod
loj wesa |
Juswabeuel
juswdojanaqg
3y} 0}

uo passed usaq
aAeY sjuswwo)
‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

Oljjel} jeuoljippe

Aue jo 10edwi ay} Junodoe ojul ).} pjnom uolebijw

SIY} ‘uoneoo|e 08z @y} anoge Buisnoy Aue 1oy palinbai aq
pinom uoljebiiw ainjoniiseljul jeuonippe jeys syybiybiy osje
ylomawel 4 juswdojanaq ay| ‘sainjea} adeospue| Aay Jo
uonuajal ay} 0} anp ajqedojaaspun aq |[Im 3)is 8y} Jo sued
1ey] Junoooe ojul Buiye) 1s[iym a)is ayj Ssoloe panalyoe

aq p|nod ey} sanisuap Buisnoy Bulhien ayj s109))81

abuel siy] "sasnoy 08¢ pue 08z Usamiaq ajepowwiodde
0] Jenjuajod sa}is 8y} 0} SI9jal Juswnoop ay} Jo gz abed

uo Xxi|\ BuisnoH pue Alsuaq ‘ybiaH, Japun uoewlojul ay |

‘sonssi A}ajes peou

Buisiel se ||om se |0oYyos ay} Ojul SS90k
10844 p|N02 dljel) ul asealoul Aue os
‘peoy uolbiel) uo uonounl pue puaq e je
pS}ed0] S [00YdS HOP[EAA USSPIaqY 3y} 0}
aoueJUS 3y "Jed Jo 9|9Ad 100} Ag [00YOS
JHOoplep) usaplaqy ay) buissaooe oignd
|eJauab ayy pue yeis ‘sjidnd jo Alojes ayy
uo sjoedwi anjebau ajeqiaocexa pjnod siy)
‘pajesauab oiyel) JO SWN|OA 3y} JO SWLIS)

ul sanssi Bunjeald ‘sswoy Jo siaquinu jo
swua)} ul pauueld Ajjeuibuo ueyy 1abie| o,0¢
punoJe aq p|nod awayds ay} Jeyy sisabbns
sIy] ‘suswaiinbai Aoljod ue|q ainjonig
Bunoajjal ‘a)Is ay} uo sasnoy QgE pue

082 Usamjaq a)epowwodde 0} [enuajod

2 p|noo alay} Jeyy sysabbns yiomawel 4
ay} Jo gz abed uo uonduosap ay |

:9pn[oul sanssi
juepodw| uJaduod JO 8q 0} SNUIBUOD YDdIym
SONSS| JO Jaquinu B aAey |[1}S InNq ‘playsiel 4
e Juswdo|ansp pasodoid sy} 10} YloMawed}
juawdo|anap e Jo uonelsedald ay} sWodBAA

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 230



B)s sy}

Joj uoneoldde
Buiuue|d

JO Juswissasse
Bunnp
uoljelapIsuod
loj wea |

‘paujuapl 8q |Im sBuisso.9 1s1j9Ao/uel}sapad mau se yons
sainseaw uonebiiw Aue jeyy abeis siyi Je aq [im §I ‘ssadoud
uonesldde Buiuue|d ay} jo yed se Jno pales aq o0} palinbal

aq ||IM JuswIssassy Jodsuel] \ seale Buipunolins

3y} pue a)Is ayj uiyum yjoq aodeds uado pue syjed

usamiaq sabexul| Jo ylomjau e apinoad |iIm yaiym (Qz ainby)
syjedjoo} mau Jo uoiesijuapl ay} ybnouyy uoijesbajul
pasealoul 0] Juswiwwo sy syybiybiy osje yiomawel
uswdoanag ayl "plaisiel e uswdojansp pasodoid

‘obeys buiuueld pajielop

3y} Je Ajjny passaippe a9 ||Im padoy

SI ) Y2oIym uladouod e si uoisinoid uelysapad
0] JUSWHWWOD Iea|d pue |Iejap JO XOr|

ay] ‘Buissoud is1194A0 / uelysapad pa||0Ju0d
|[eubis apeib-je ue Aq ‘AjLI0joe)slies SS9 ‘1o
‘peol 10Inquisip ay} Jono abplLigioo} 3s19Ad

/ uelsapad pajeledass e Buipinoid Aq
panalyoe aq p|nNod SIY| “painsud si S)sI|oAo
pue sueuysapad Aq yjedooy siy} JO asn ajes
panuijuUOd MOY JSpPISUOD 0} |BIJUSSSS 8] |[IM
}l pue peoJ oynquisip mau ay} Aq palanss
39 [Im yed siy] |ooyds Hoplep usspiaqy
3y} 0} yuou Buipes| yied 8109 auy}

S9SS0.9 }I 818YM pEeOJ J0INQUISIP MU 8y} Uo
Ajeinoiped pue aeig Yy ‘peoy piausiel
uo sbuissoid ajes ajenbape jo uoisinoid ay)
yum Jayiabo} ‘peol J0ngLisip Mau ay} pue
aelg Yy usamiaq pasodold jey; se yons
suolounl Aay je ay1q Jo 00} uo sjdoad 1o}
uoisinold 8y} apnjoul suIaduod Aay |ooyos
Arewd syn) pue Awapeoy sjnd yum
wawdojanap pasodoud ay} Bunjui saynou

0} pajwi| Ajualind si YdIym }Iom}au |ooyos
0] S8)noJ ajes ay) Jo Jed wio) pjnoys
|[ooyos ay} 0} Juswdojaaap ayy ybnouy}
sa}noJ 9|0A0 pue ueLysapad “plalysieL

1e Juswdojanap pasodoud ayj ybnouy; ssed

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 231



‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘'ssao0.d uonesidde buiuue|d ay} jo ped
SE Juawssassy Hodsuel| ay} ybnolyy palepisuod aq pjnom
peol mau Aue jJo Jwi| paads ay} ‘Janamoy ‘pajou Juswwod)

‘ssao0ud Buiuued pue ubisap pajielep
8y} ybnouy}) paispisuod aq p|noys siy |

‘peoJ Joinquisip ay} buoje pue juswdojarsp

ayj Inoybnouy} pasapisuod aqg os|e
pinoys sjwi| paads ydwog ey} pajsabbns
Aisnoinaid saiiunwwo?) |iydwe) ay |

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘sjuswaalbe

pue suoissnasip asay} Jo ped wioy pjnom sdojs snq Jo
uoisinold pue JnoAe| ay| Juswssassy podsuel] e ybnoay)
passasse pue yoeodsabelg pue isii{ ‘siapinoid podsuely
oliqnd om} ay} yym paaibe aq 0} aAeY P|NOM SSDIAISS
Hodsues} o1ignd papuawe 10 mau Auy “Jodsued; olgnd ypm
Juswdojanap mau ay} aaias 0} ajdiouud ul 9|qises) aq Aew
1ey} uondo auo spybiybiy yiomawel 4 Juswdojdaaq ay |

‘s19y|em pue sueLlsapad 1o} sbuissold
ajes buipinoid jo aouepodwi 8y} sauluepun
peoJ Joynquysip ay} buoje saoinias

snq Jo uoisinold Auy ‘ebeys Buiuueld

pue ubisap pajielop ay} 0} pJemio} palied
3q [IIm ‘(JooydS HIop|ep) USSpIaqyY O} YyUou
Buipes| yyed a0 ay} 0} 8so|o papinoid aq
p|nod sdojs snq jey} sauNwwo) |jiydwe)
ay} Aq paisabbns Ajsnoinaid sem }1) peou
Joynquisip ay} uo sdoys snq jo uoisinoid
3y} Se yons s|ie}ap pue paaibe usaq

194 J0U sey Sa2IASS Sn( |euoilippe yons

JO uoisinoid ay] ‘peod Jojnguisip ay} pue
peoy uojbiel) wolj passaosoe dooj mau e
Jo uoisinoud a|qissod ayj ybnouy} pue peoy
apisaag YuUoN Buoje saoinias Buisixa

Jo asn Bupjew ‘uoisinoid podsuely o1gnd
1o} |enuajod ay} SauljINo J}Jomawel ay |

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 232



uonejussaidoay

JO JInsaJ
e se uonoy asuodsay si891jjO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg
P37 Juswabeuely YV JO jleyaq uo uaphy
"a)Is ay} Jo} sjesodoud pue subisap pajie}ap
‘pasinpe ul Ajiny pajoajel aq ued Asy) Jeyy Japio
aq 0} Jadojanag Ul SOWOH BU|Ij\l HEM3]S / SSWOH BB WoJ}
‘paiinbal saAljejuasaldal yym sanssi 8say} ssnosip

sjuswpuswe oN

‘PRJOU SjuswWWo)

0} Ajlunpoddo Ajiea ue awod@m pjNOM apN

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘ssao0ud uonesidde Buiuue|d ayy ybnoayy
paulwlialap aq pjnom uoisinoid yjed Jo sjoadse pajielaq
‘pajou yjed a|9A0 pue uelysapad uo sjuswwod aaipoddng

"} @sn o} Ajay)|
ajdoad jo siaqwinu ay} uo Buipuadap ‘ejnou
ay} buoje siayem pue s)sijoho ayebaibas 0)

a)eudoidde aq Aew }| “peod Jonquisip ay}
JO aul| ay} buoje yjed aj9Ao pue ueuysapad
allaw 9aly) e apnoul o3 [esodoud

3y} SWooaMm saliunwwio) |iydwe) ay |

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

'(0Z 2inbly) peoy uoibiel) sjoaw peoy p|alsiel 4
3I18yM B)IS 3y} JO Jaulod ay} Je aoeds usalb pue pue|poom
Bunsixa jo eale ue sasodolid yJomawel 4 Juswdo@Aaq ay L

"sainseaw Buiw|eos odijely 0} 10algns 1nq
uado ulewsal |Im peoJ ay} Jey} ylomauwel 4
3y} wouj poojsiapun si}| ‘sanssi Alojes uo
1oedwi jejuswilap Ajjenuajod e yym ‘uado

Buluiewal speol asoy} uo diel) asealoul 0}
SAISS P|NOM SIY} SE peo. JoJNquisIp Mau ay}
0} anp (3sea Buluuni peoy uoibiel) sypaw

} ataym ‘6°8) yibus| sy buoje juiod Aue
1e peoy p|aisiel 4 0} 8sojd 00} padojanap

8Q 0} aJam sue|d JI UIB2U0D JO 8q P|NOM }|

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 233



‘suonesiidde
Buiuue|d
alnjnj Jo

Hed se yoday
[elUSWUOIIAUT
Aue uo
Pa}NSU0d aq ||IM

HNS ‘palinbai

pue adeospue| ‘yjed apisyoo| paubije-al 10 pasueyua

Ue apnjoul 0} 00| ||IM pue Alepunod SONT 3y} UIyim

wioJ) JuswdojaAap }jIng paAowal ‘S1a2IYQ |EIUSWUOIIAUT
wiol} @2IApe Buimoljo} ‘aney wea) ubisap ay]

‘saje]s Jl yJomawel{ ayj Jo (gL abed) |'g9'z ydeibeled u|
‘(L3N) YIom}aN 2oedg uaals) se pajeubisap ale SUolIAUS
ajelpawiwl S} pue Yyd07 U0}SlioT] pue uoiedo|e ay} wods |iiH
UHOoOUIY sapnjoxe uo}siio] :2/dO o Arepunoq ay} (ddv)
2102 ueld uswdojana( |20 usspiaqy ay} ybnouayy

sayis Jueolyiubis Ajjeoo| uo Joedwi aaijebau ploAe 0} 18pJo U|

‘Ao1jod Buiuueld [e207]
ybnouy} st S,SON7 10} uoijoajold "sajis pajeubisap Ajjeoo)
‘Aiojnje}s uou ale s, SONT (SONT) 8IS uoleAlasuo)

"saloljod pauoiusw anoge

ay} ||e 199304d 0} A1np 2IAID B SkeY [19UN0D
ayl -ueld yons Aue 1o} yjeap Jo Ssiy

3U} pue IS)SesIp [EJUSWUOIIAUS Ue 8q P|NOM
sIy} ainyn) jo Al e aq o} suonelidse sey
1eyy A1 e o4 "ylomjau yjediooy dlgnd 2109
3y} pue seale uoljeAIaSU0d ainjeu ‘}salajul
OliUSIOS JO SaYIS AJ|P|IM JoLsIp uo saldljod
[10UN0Y saioubi yiomawel 4 Juswdojanaq

sjuswpuaswe oN ainjeN |eo07 e se pajeubisap Ajjualind si Yoo uo}slio | doy
uonejussaiday
4O jnsai

e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns

(paAI92a4 suoljejuasalsdal ajesedas g) Jeynbin abioan

jyiomauwel{ jJuswdojaAa(g uojsiion

"uoljeso||e JapIm ay} Jo

Aianljap ayy ao1pnlaid Jou op sabueyd Aue

Jey} ainsus pue suoledljdwi ay} JapISuod

0] JOpPIO Ul pawWIoUl 8 0} YSIM pjnom

V1vD Alessaoau aq sjuswpuawe pjnoys

‘JanamoH ‘sabueysd Jayuny Aue Inoyym

‘paiinbai aoueping Arejusws|ddng se pajdope

sjuswpuswe oN

‘PRlOU JUsSWWO)

aq p|noys ylomawel{ juswdojaraq

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 234



sue|diajsew
paseyd aininj jJo
MJed se Jauue|d
[eJn}nooLIogy
S.00V uim
uoljeynsuod
panuiuo)

‘suonesiidde
Buiuue|d
alnjnj Jo

Hed se yoday
[elUSWUOIIAUT
Aue

uo payNsuod

aq [I'M HNS

‘Jusawnoop 4@
ay} 0} paiinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

poob |elanas JO UOIEaID Y} Ul pa)nsal sey a)s ay} Jo
alnjeu |einynoube Ajurew ayy, ‘yey} sajeis | ‘Juswdojansp
3y} ojul pajelodiodul aq [|im saxAp uondwnsuod ay}

moy spybiybiy yiomswel4 ay} jo (9¢ abed) |z'G uonoag

‘suoljeoljdde buiuueld pue suejdisysew aininy Jo sabels
ubisap pajie}ap ay} noybnoly} ajqissod asaym paulelal
aq |Im saaJ) Bunsixg “syaq @a.) Buipnjoul aoeds uado

JO S|IE}ap Y}IM ‘B)IS UO}SII0T] By} J0} YJomawel) adeospue)
olbajel)s ay) s|ielap 3}Jomawel sy} JO G UOI}OSS

‘papiwgns aq osje ||Im Juswssasse abeulelq

pue ysiy poo| |[ealuyoa] “pasinbai ataym uonebiyw
a)eudoidde Buipuswiwiosal yym Jayabo) JUsWUOIIAUS Ja)em
ay} uo sjesodoud ayj Jo sjoedwil [euajod ssasse ||IM pue
uoneledalid Japun Ajjuaiind si poday |ejuswUOIIAUT BY |
"a)Is siy} Joy uonjesljdde Buiuue|d Aue poddns 0} paonpoud
g Hoday |euswuoliaug pue ssa20ld (y|J) JUBWSSasSSY
10edw| |[ejuswuoliaug Alojnjels e jey} alinbal Juswdojanap
pasodoud ay} Jo sanAIsuas |enuajod pue sjeas ay |

‘abejiay Ino jo

Hed si yoiym sayAp aueiship aAIsualxe os|e
3}ied Japjed je pue yooT ayj JO pus yinos
1e Bunue|d a1} Mau Se ||oM SB UOISSIWWOY)
Ansaio4 yum diysisuped ul pajuejd sumo |
punoJy pue|poopA 8y} Jo Led ‘syeq aal)
SAISUB)Xd SBY }| JUn0doe Ojul Ud)Ee} Usaq
Jou sey siy] ‘siseq Jejnbal e uo spooy} eyl
punoib AB6oq ‘Aysiew si a)is ay} Jo yony

's1ash Jo Ajalien e 1oy paulejuiew

SI Y207 8y} 0} $sa29k 2ljgnd ainsua 0} Juswdo|aAap

ay} ojul pajelbsjul 81e Yoo UO}sII0T] punoJe syull yiedjoo
‘(£dV) € Uied 2109 jeuonelidsy Buipnjoul ‘yiomawel
uswdojanag ayj Jo Led Aay e ale ealy U0}SlIOT]

ay} uiyum sAem 80940 pue syjedioo} mau jo uoisinoid

3y} pue }lomiau yied al109 Buisixa ayj 0} suolosuuo)

" Bale SIy} ul yoo| 8y} asn jey) saloads 0} aouequnisip
asiwiuiw pue Ayjenb adeospue| pue uoisinold aoeds
uado 0} aynquIuo9 ‘Ajisianlpolq asiwixew o} bunue|d jeyqey

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 235



‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

"paulwIs}ep aq 0} 194 se ‘eoInles

Juswabeuey 19SSy S |louno) ayj o} Jajew e si pajeso|al
1o nyIs Ul paulejal g pjNOM aJ1jua) a8y} Jaylaym uo uoisiosp
[eul 8y "olleusds Aue 8)epowwoooe ued INoAe| ay}

pue anua) uonelaidiaiu] apisAluno) wie youiyoo ay}
Jo uoneoojal a|qissod ay} 1o} suondo sjielap Jlomawel ay |

"JUBWIUOIIAUS By} Jaye
300| 0} Moy si18}sbunoA i1no Buiyoes) jo qol
[E)A B Op oym 321AI9S Jabuey ay} 0} swoy
pue uieq |euonipel} auly A1an e Aolysap pue

Asuow 21|qnd jo a)sem snojepueds e aq
pINoMm sIy} aljua) anie}asdiajul youiyoo
ay} ysijowsp o} [esodoud 0} }03[qO

'sjulod Buimol|o} 8y} Jo uolippe 3y}

UM SAOQE pasSNIsIp Se SJUsSWWOo9 Je|iwis
pasiel yoiym (g xipuaddy ul payoepe

SB) paAlgdal sem uoljejuasaldal puodss
¢ day

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘Ajl@yeudoidde o0y papuodsal

aq |Im (Jomawel 4 Juswdoaaag uojsiio]) pouad
uoljeyNsuo9 siy} Bunp panigdal ale jey} suoljejuasaidal
Auy ‘pouad uoijeynsuod snoinaid e Buunp [1ouno)
Ajlunwwo) BBIN wol) panleoal sem ey uonejuasaldal e 0}
J3jal 0} asuodsal Ja21J0 SIY} JO Hwdl 3y} YIMINO g P|NOM }|

‘Juswdojanap Aue wouy

9al} 1day aq pinoys eale 9|ibel} siy} Jey}
S9)e}S YoIym uoissiwwo?) Aljsalo ay} pue
HNS :asudisjug ueldwels Agq pasiopus
pJeoq 92130U UMO S|Iounod ay} suybiybiy
pue sassassod eale SIy} a)1|p|Im pue

eune pue elo|{ Buizewe ay} |ie1op jealb ul
SMOYS }| "UOI}eIapISU0D 10} dn sem wnipels
lleqjood 8y} swi} 8y} je [1puno) Ajunwiwod
B6IN Aq wayj 0} Juas uoissiwgns

3y} 0] I9jal SIOJIoUNOD || Jey) }sanbay

‘'suoinedljdde
Buiuue|d pue

' 9|qissod

alaym yiomauwel 4 ay} ojul pajelbajul pue pauie}al usaq
aney sajdwexa poob pue eale ay} 0} Aypuspi pue Jajoeieyd
o1j10ads B SpJemo} apnquiuod asay | awli} JaAo pajesausb
uaaq aAey yoiym sayAp uondwnsuod, Jo ssjdwexa

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 236



aleme NoA ayew 0} 8| P|NOM | Uoljippe U]

‘Ajlunuoddo jsaljies ayj je siadojanap yjm

pasiel aq p|noys jey Buiyawos si siy} se
pun4 podsuel | 2169)e1)g 8] 0] 8)NqLIU0D

‘paJinbai 0} sjuawdojanap 1o} Juswalinbal ay}
Sjuswpuswe oN "PAJOU SjUBWIWOD 0] Yyoea Ul apew Sa0UsI1ajal 8} SWOIBNA
uonejussaiday
JO jnsau
e se uoloy asuodsay s1821JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns
suel}soN
'ssao0.d uonesidde buiuue|d ay}
Je pue sue|dis}sew paseyd pajielap aininy ul JUSWISSSSSE
‘'ssaooud 0} 103lgns aq |m ybiay pue salsuap di0ads [euld
uoneoldde | ‘anoge sanssi Jybiay ay} 0} ajejal YdIym suoljeoo| oi10ads 0}
Buluue|d | pajouysal si Ausuap Jaybiy ay| "papinoid spun jeiuspisal Jo
ay} Je pue azis pue adA} ay} ul AJIjIqixa)) S1ayo yoiym abues ainbly jau
suejdiajsew | e s| alejoay Jad sjun Gg-GG Jo Alobajeo Ayisuap Jaybiy ay |
paseyd

pajielsp ainjny
ul Juswissasse
0} 108lgns

aq M ybiay
pue salsuap
ol0ads

JO Juswissasse

paleleda

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

"Jsea ay} 0} pue| JuswAhojdwa uo juswdojanap

3Jeos Jabie| pue wnipels pasodolid sy} 0} Jusdelpe
POM3IA 8Q P|NOM OS|e pue Yd0| 8y} SSOJOB SMAIA doUe)SIp
Buo| eAey yoIym SUOI}ed0| UIBHSD Ul pPa}epowwodde

aq Ajjenusjod pinoo jey; wnwixew e si sAa10}s oAl G

"8)IS SIY} 10} ue|d JuawdojanaQ

[e207 ay} ul pasodoud siequinu Buisnoy ay} Bunsaw isjiym
Ajlunwiwod asIaAIp e Uns 0} sazis pue sadA} asnoy jo abuel
B Sapn|oul sy} ‘a)is ay} ssouoe sjybiay Buipjing aAijesipul

JO uoinqguisip ayj sjie}sp JJomawelq sy} Jo §°G'G UORISS

‘a1ay Juasalid AbojoipAy 1o

Aydeibodoy ayj 1oy Jybnoyy ou Buiney pue
3JIs SIY} yum Jajoeleyo Jo Jno Ajgre|dwod
pue ue|d |e20| Ul SI8QWINU [BUOIOU

192w 0} Jayjabo] pawweld sy00|q Ajisuap
ybiy ‘esu ybiy ajendoiddeul 03 0alqO

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 237



Se uayeuapun
3q [IIM

abeuieiq % ysiy
poo|4 Buipiebal

sy} ul Juawdojanap 1o} |3 Buiwooypo}
B Ul payijuspl 8q 0} sanss! uo (/1£21/S0d

494 Yd3S) [1ounog AjD usapiaqy o)
aoInpe Buidoog papinoid Apealje aney spp

VYd3S yim
uole}ynNsuod ‘paluapl usaq
Jayun4 ‘eale siyj Jo} suoljeoldde aney Yd3S 0} @oueAajal Jo sanss| Aay
‘paJinbai Buiuue|d ainyny Aue Buluiwiaiep ul pasn aq ||IMm aduepinb | 8y} JOPISUOD M pue aAIsuayaldwod aq 0}
sjuswpuawe ON pajie}ap pue SUSWWOD 8say} 4O || “PSloU Juswuwo) }Jomauwel 4 ay} JapISU0d M 3joym ay} uQ
uonejussaidoay
JO JnsaJ
e se uoljoy asuodsay s1891jjO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg
Vvd3s
"19JJ0 0} SJUBLIWIOD
Jayunj Ou 8ABY M WILUOD UBD | Ylomawe.l)
sIy} Jo uonjeledald swod|op\\ “Uolsanb
‘pasinbal ul eale ay} Jo} sjesodoud ay} Aq pajoaye
sjuswpuawe ON ‘PaJoU JUBWIWOD aq ||Im s}salajul Aiojnjels Ino Jo SUON
uoijejussaiday
JO JjnsaJ
e se uonoy asuodsay s1821jjO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns

PUEjooS dL0}SIH

‘paonpouiul saldijod mau pue papuswe
pue pajepdn aq |Im saloljod swos

‘Ise3 YLON 3y} ul yiomjau Jodsuel} ay}
Jo Juswdo|anap sy} Joj uoioallp dibsiel)s
ay} abueyo Ajueosiiubis oy Aj@yiun si siy}
ybnoyyy ‘ysal-al e buiobispun Ajuaiino
s| ABajel}g podsuel | jeuoibay ay) 1eyy

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 238



‘suonesiidde
Buiuue|d
pajielsp pue
sue|disisew
paseyd aininy
Jo uononpoud
pue Jusawssasse

|eusalxa ayj 0} 9|0Ao AQ suolpauUU0) "Ylomawel{ 8y} Jo €'G
uoI}08S Ul paIapIsuod si (s)s11oAo0 Buipnjoul) AJIAIRDBUUOD pue
$S800y "uoljejuasaldal 8y} ul papnjoul a1am saynold/syled
oly10ads 0} Buijejal sjuswwod pajie}ap Jo Jaquinu

"9SIN0D 8Np Ul 83)lWW0)-gng Juswabeuepy Juswdojaraq
8y} 0} payodal a( [|IM 8Say| "S8}Nnol JO UOIIeo0|

"SJUBLIWIOD [N}
Jo} z xipuaddy aas asea|d ‘uoljejussaldal

3y} uI papnjoul alam sajnold/syied oloads
0] Bunejas sjuswwod pajie}ap Jo Jlaquinu Y

‘abiaws Aay)
se a)Is ay} Jo} sue|d pajielsp aiow 93s 0}

ple 0} pasn pue adAj} joexa ay} uo |1ejap Jayuny aAIb |IM 8Say} pue |  paau ||IM &M Ing 2} sauo Buisixa o0} syjed
a( 0} sjuswwon uawdojanap ayj jo aseyd Buibiawa yoes 1o} padojonap mau Buijosuuod jnoge pue ‘juawdojanap
‘palinbal aq ||Im sue|dia)se\ B)IS UO)SII0T] aJ1jUd 8y} Jo) dJomawel) ay} uiyum syyed o194 jnoge
sjuswpuawe oN [enreds aulj@seq e }1no S}as yJomawel4 Juswdoaaaq 8y | sjuswajels |esauab Alan [eianas ale alay |
uonejussaiday
JO JjnsaJ
e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns
wnuo4 9|9A9 uaapiaqy
“JUBWUOIIAUD
Jajem ay} 03 sjuswanoldu)
Juswabeuew
[EJUSWIUOIIAUS pue uoljuaaaid uonnjjod
‘ebeurelq
:sanss| Buimoj|o}
3y} uo asuepinb pajie}ap 1oy z xipuaddy
ul asuodsal 43S ||} 0} Jajal ases|d
‘ssao0ud uoneoldde Buiuued ay)
slajua } se pJemio} Buiwoo Juswdojanap
alnyny Aue Buideys ul aoue)sIsSe 180
‘uoneoldde 0} 9pew uaaq SABY SJUSWIWOD JO Jaquinu
Buiuue|d
Aue jo ued ‘eale

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 239



uonejussaidoay

JO Jnsau
e se uoljoy asuodsay SI8o1l0 uonejussaiday jo Arewuwins
18)eM YSiyoos

"HNS uim ‘way)

uolje}NSuU0d
Jayunj apnjoul
[I!M UO}SIIoT

Je suolnesldde
Buiuue|d
‘'suoinesljdde
Buiuue|d ainyny
JO Juswissasse
Bulinp pasn aq
[IM SjUBWILIOD

"‘Hoday bulusalog

VI3 uojsiio] 8y} 1o} (Le¥1Z L d) uoluido buidoog ay)
pawojul OS|e aABY SjUBWWOD a3y} ‘uoljejuasaldal S,HNS
ul pauonuaw sy ‘4 U0lsJI0T] 8y} Uo usyeuapun usaq

yeadal 0} asodoud j.uop | ‘yoadsal jeyy

Ul SjlUBWIWOD papinoid aney am sy ‘eale
Juswdo|anap sy} J0} JUBWSSassy Joedw)
[eluswuoliAug ue jo Buidoos/buiusaios

3y} Uo sjuswwod papiroid

Apealje aney ap\ 018 syiomjau usalb
‘AjIs1anipolq 1o} suonielidse ay} 0} 8jnquu0d
Jou saop yoiym juswdojansp jo joeduw
|enuajod ay} Ajjeroadsa ‘sulaouod asay}

JO BWos aleys a\\ ‘pouad uoleynsuod ay}

‘palinbal | sey yoiym (YyH) |esiesddy uonenbay s jeluqeH ayl wiojul | Bulnp siapjoysayels Jayjo pue saiunuwwod

sjuswpuawe ON 0] pPasnh Uaa( SABY SJUSWIWIOD 8S3Y| ‘Pajou SjUsSWWOD) [e20] a8y} Ag pasiel Sulaouod ay} Sjo0N
uonejussaidoay
JO JnsaJ

e se uoljoy asuodsay si891jjO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg

abe}lIoH |ein}eN Yysiyjoog

‘uoneoljdde Buiuued pajelap 1o uejdisysew paseyd

e Jo Jed se palapisuod aq p|nod siapew asay) ‘ajeudoidde
pawaap §| “yomawel juswdojdaaq ay} uiyim ybnos
[1e1ap JO |9A3] 8y} apinoid 03 ajelidoidde palapisuod jou si )

‘'ssaoo0.d uonesidde Buiuue|d ay} jo ped se palinbal
S| YoIyM Juswissassy Jodsuel| ay} jo Jed se pauiwexa
aq |IM ‘sjuswanoidwi Azessadsau Aue pue ‘ylomjau

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 240



‘suolesiidde
Buiuue|d pue
sue|diajsew
paseyd ainin}
10} SUOI}O8UU0D

"3J041D UoIBUIIBAA
pue peoy SSowpay ‘pPeoy uoibul||dpn SSOIoe ‘1 /O Ulyim

JO UoleoO| | ‘BA0D 0} SUOI}DBUUOD SBPN|OUI SIY| JUBWSSaSSY Jodsuel |
oly1oads pue 3y} jo Jed se paulwexa aq [|IM ‘sjuswanoidwi Aressadoau
ubisap pajelap | Aue yum Buoje ‘suoi}osauuod yons jo ubisap pue |iejap 1oexs
ay} wuoyul a3y ‘syIomiau Bunsixa pue saiunwwod Buipunolins ay}
o} pasn aq | 0} sabeyul| apirnoid 0} Japio ul spuiod BuisS0I0/SUOI}OBUUOD
[|IM JUSWIWOY Koy om) sasodoud ylomawel4 ay] "ylomawel{ ayj ul

‘pasinbal | payybiybiy pue uoneiapisuod Asy e si saunNwwod bunsixa "SallUNWWOD

sjuswpuawe oN Jayjo pue ano) Yim ANAIZOSUUOD 8INSUS 0} paau ay | Buiulolpe Jayjo pue an0) 0} AJIAI}OBUU0D

uonejussaiday
JO JjnsaJ

e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns

[Iouno) AJluNWWo) SUdY|yY pue ano)

‘uBisap ay) jo ped se (Sans)

swajsAg abeulelq ueqin s|gqeuleisnsg

Jo [ediouud ayj spoddns Jajepn Ysipoos

"2InjonJiseljul JI9)eMa)SEM pue Jajem

3y} Jo} syuawalinbal pajielap ayy Ajjuapl

0] 19pJO Ul [BIJUSSSD 3] [|IM JUBWISSISSY

10edw)| abeulelq pue JusWSSassy

10edw| Jajep) B “Jomawel 4 Juswdojanaq

UO0}sJI07 3y} Ul JnO }8s sjuswalinbal

A1anijap ay} ul paiuapl sy awwelbolid

uonoy 4ay 2yl 1o} suoz uejdisise|y

‘paiinbal uojsJio] ayj o} sptebal ul papiwgns

sjuswpuswe oN

‘PRIOU SjuswWo)

Ajsnoinaid asoy) 0} SjUSWIWIOD |euollippe ON

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 241



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"'ssao0.d

uonesiidde Buiuue|d ay} Jo yed se papiwgns pue | ayj
JO Jed se payijuapl a4 ||IM }JoOM}au peol ay} Uo Juswlap
19U OU S| I8y} 8INSUS 0} JBPIO Ul ‘sjulod sSa29e JO
Jaqwnu pue uonebiiw Buipnoul ‘syuswalinbai jo isi| [N} v

‘Buisnoy Jo Junowe ay} 1o} ajenbapeul ale
SpeolJ $S800€ 7 Jey} ulaoduo) ‘Juswdojansp
wolj pajesauab oijesy yym adod

0} ‘pasodoud se ‘s|ge Jou 9GaY UIs2uo)

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘suoneoldde buiuueld pue \y] ayj Jo Led se palapisuod aq
[I'm sjuiod Buissouo Jo |1eyap pue Ajjiqises) ay| “sajdiound
ubisap Aq ainoas, 0} piebal yym uondo palisep e jou ale
sassediapun ‘g|ni |elauab e sy (9GeY) peoy uoibuljiapn

Jo Buiss010 By} 10} padU By} salUaP! Ylomawel 4 ay |

‘9G6Y 3U} JSA0
Aemyjem Jo ssediapun auo }ses| je }sabbng

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

RN
Y}eay 0} suonNqLIUod pue ainsiaj/aoeds uado ‘|lejal

[eo0| ‘JuswAojdwa /jerosswwod sapnjoul siy] "a)s //d0
3U} UO Sasn JO XIW e s|ie}ap ylomawel 4 Juswdojaasq ay |

‘Juswidojanap Ul saljljioe} JO 3Oe| JO UIadu0)

'looyos

0} sajnoy

9Jeg IapIsuod
M V1 "paiinbai
sjuswpuswe oN

"|loOYdS 0} S8IN0U SJES JO JUSWISSOSSE
apnjoul [jim siy| ‘suoneoldde Buiuueld pue (1)
Juswssassy podsuel] e ybnouy) paysijqelsa aq o} ubisap
pajielap ay} yum pasodoud si juiod Buissolo uelysapad

Vv “Al9 8y} Jo yinos ay} 0} uoieoo| |ooyds Alepuodas

mau e Buipiebal sapew si uoisioap DOV 3y} [I3UN panlasal
aq ||IM pue Ylomawel{ Juswdojanaqg ay} uiyum uondo ue se
payuapl usaq sey [00ydS Alepuodag e uoj ayis |enuajod v

‘looyos Alepuoosag pasodoud ayy
pusjie 0} 9GEY BuISS0IO SUB)Y puE SA0D
WIoJ} Ualp|Iyd |00yds JO sSuIaouo9 Alojes

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

CEICRUETETNER

Mau ay} uiyum Acsewleyd Ajunwiwo) auo sapnjoul

sly] ‘swwelbold uonoy pue [enuej\ suolNguUuo)
Jadojanaq 4qv aus Jad se anua) yjesH Aeg

3A0) Je saljl|Io.) Yy}eay papusixe 0} JuswuaAow d)eyl|ioe) [|IM
syulod Buissold asay] ‘daAoge passnosip se spulod Buissol)

"9GBY SS0JOE Salll|lo.) Yy}eay 0} SS90y

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 242



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"sjuswanosduwl

[suueyd pue adeaspue| J0} palyuspl usaq aney

pue anjeA adeospue| poob se Yoo| ay} IXa pue Jajua ydiym
$9SIN0D JS)eM 3} SaljjUSp! YJomawel4 8y ‘JUSWUOIIAUD
Jajem ayj uo joedwi |eluswLI}ep OU SI 818y} aINsua

[IIM SIY] "yoo0] Jo sweal)s ‘uing ay} ojul abeulelp 10a11p

OU 2INSUS [|IM YdIyM 3)IS U0}slioT] ay} Joy ABajels waysAg
abeuielq ueqin 9|geule}sng e sasodoud yiomawel{ ay |

SHIpIIMm

1o} 8|qeyns pue uonipuod Ayyesy ui desy
0} UoljeIapIsuo9 alow saiinbal yoo| sy}
JO JNO pue ojul BuILIOD Weal}s SuIsdu0)

‘'ssao0.d uoneoidde

‘paJinbai Buluueld ayj Jo ued se paulwislep aq |[IM YN YHoouIy '0)8 s9YIq penb 0} ssaooe
Sjuswpuawe ON 0] ss@20e pue ubisap yjed pajie}aq "pajou suisduo)) | buiddols pasinbal YN 0} SS820E pa}os}old
‘ue|disisew
peseyd "JUBWISSassY joedw| |BJuSWUOIIAUT

aininy Aue ul
papinold aq |Im
‘sooedsuaalb
[einyeu Buipnjoul
‘saoeds

uado jo uoneoo|
joex3 ‘pasinbal
sjuswpuawe ON

ay} Agq pawiojul aq [m pue ssaoo.id uoljeoldde

Buiuue|d ay} ybnoly) paulwisiep aq ||Im saltejybnoloy}
usalb pue siaynq JO UOIJeD0| pUE 8ZIS JOBXS 8Y| "U0}SIIOT]
}e papinoid aq 0} ylomjau aoeds usalb oibajens ay}

s|lejop YIoMawel{ 3y} JO $'G UoIjoas ‘[|IH YHodUry Sapnjoxe
a)Is //dO 3y} pue ydoeolious s)20|q Juswdojanap ou alaym
Arepunog SONT 8y} Sjelodiodul siayng asay| yiomawel
3y} Ul papn|oul uaaq aABY SYOBJ-19S pue Sau0z Jayng

‘seale Jayjo pue
UOO| ‘|IIH YyHodury usemiaq JopLIoD SJIP|IA
Jadoud ou sI ajay} uleouo) -uswdojonap

8y} wouj 10930id 0} YN YHOOUY pue
4007 Jo} pepasu ale sauoz Jaynd Jabie

‘ue|disisew
paseyd

aininy Aue ul
papirold aq [|Im
uoisinoid aoeds
uado jo uoleoo|
joex3 ‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

(SONT) Yoo uojslio] se yons saoseds usalb |einjeu
apnjoul ueo aseds uado Jo sadAj jey) saloads ©g aoedg
uadQ ayl -uonouny pue asn ajeldoidde aney saoeds

uado pasodoid ainsua 0} sia210 Buluueld Jueas|al yym
uolje}nsuod pue aosueping Aleyjuswal|ddng aoedg uadQ
S,DOV 0} 9oualajal yym paubisap usaq sey yiomawel{ ay |

‘@oeds uado se s|gesn
palapisuod aq jouued Yoo "aoedsusalb
a|gesn ‘s|gezis Aue jo yoe| saleybnoioy |

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 243



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘Buisnoy paiayays Jo} saniunuoddo spnjoul
pINO2 SIy} ‘ue|d JuswdojaAna |e20T] ussplaqy 8yl Yim auj|
ul Buisnoy s|geploye 9,6z apiroid |im Juswdojaasp ay |

‘Buisnoy pals)ays 1o} uoisiroid oN

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"paJapIsu0d aq ||IM yoiym suondo sjiejap ylomawel 4

3y} 4O 9''G uonoag ‘saodeds uadojusalb Jo soueusjuieW
Jo} ABajel)s e ainsua 0} pasinbal 8q p|nOM Juasu0d
Buiuue|d Jo asesg|al ay) 0} Joud Jeumopue|/ladojanap
3y} pue [19UN0) 8y} usam}aq juswaaibe |eba| vy

Iouno)
A9 ayy Aq uondope ainsua 0} saoeds uado
Jo daaydn Joj uoisinoid JSAO SUIB2U0D
"JuswAed asueusjulew Buojayl| JO wWId)

Buo| e apnjoul pjnoys sawoy mau ay} Jo
Jey} Jay}ig JUSWUOIIAUS S} pue ydo| ay} Jo
yjieay ayj jo daaydn ayj 0} ajnquiuod Aay}
Agalaym spaap Jiay} ojul usjum Juswaaibe
awos aAeY p|nhoys siapjoyasnoy ||

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘abeys uoneoldde buiuueld

3y} Je Jayuny passnasip ag ueo siy} ‘OOV pue Ajunwwod

[e20] 8y} yum aiojdxa o} Buljim ale siadojanap ayis

3y} SUO SI SUOJIAUS S} pue Yoo uojsiio] jo Juswabeuew

ainjn} 8y} 99sI9A0 0} }snJ} AJunwiwod e jo uonsabbns ay |

‘2oe|d saye} Juswdojanap
Aue a10j9q J8)oWIad S} pue Yoo ay) Jaye
300]| pue 108}j0.4d 0} dn }a8s 8q p|noys jsni| v

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 244



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

*Aj19 3y} JO yinos ay} 0} uoieoo| |ooyds Alepuodas

mau e Buipiebal apew sI UoIsIoap DIV aY} |IUN paAIasal
aq ||!M pue yiomawel Juawdojanaq ay} uiyym uondo ue se
payuapl usaq sey [00yoS Alepuodag e 1o} alis |eljuajod

"‘aAeY 1SNW
e 8q p|noys eale ay} Joj [00yos Alepuooss

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"salj|ioe} AJlunwwod Jo uoisinoid pue

[9A8] apnoul [m siy] “ssad0ud uonesidde Buiuueld ayj jo
Hed wuoy |Im S1821140 ules) Buluue|d pue Jadojensp usamiaq
SUOISSNOSIP pajie}a ‘|enuep suoinguiuo) Jadojenag

pue ainjonJjselju| pue swwelbold uondy 4av aul

ul paliuapl usaq aAey suolnguiuod Jadojansp ajeldoiddy

‘'sabe ||e Jo} seale Bunsaw |e1oos ajdinw
1o} s|esodoud J0/pue suoljepuswwodal
apN|oul P|NOYS YJoMawel{ ‘Sal|ioe}
Ajunwwos Jadoud 1oj payiewles aq pjnoys
sealy "-9)o sjybi| oiyel; ‘sjuswanoidwi
peoJ uo Aeme palaply Jou pue ||eH

Jo/pue a1uad Ajunwwo) se yons salyi|ioe}
Joj pasn aq pjnoys uieb Ajunwwo)

‘'ssao0ud
uonesidde
Buiuue|d

ayj Je pue
sue|disisew
paseyd
p3ajielsp ainjny
ul Juswissasse
0} J0algns

aq [Im JyBiay
pue saijsuap
ol0ads

JO Juswssasse
pajielad
‘pasinbal
sjuswpuaswe oN

'ssao0.d uonesidde buiuue|d ay}

Je pue sue|dis}sew paseyd pajielap aininy ul JUSWISSSSSE
0} Joalgns aq ||Im Jybiay pue sansuap dl1oads |eul

"aAoqe sanssl Jybiay ay} 0} 8jejal Ydiym suoljeoo| d110ads o0}
pajousal si Ajisuap Jaybiy ay] "papinoid spun jeiuapisal Jo
azis pue adA} ay} ul AJIjIqixa)) S1ayo yoiym abues ainbly jau
e sl alejoay Jad sjun Gg-GG Jo Alobajeo Ayisuap Jaybiy ay |

"Jsea ay} 0} pue| JuswAhojdwa uo jJuswdojanap

3leos Jabie| pue wnipels pasodolid sy} 0} Jusdelpe
POMB3IA 8Q P|NOM OS|e pue Yd0| 8y} SSOJOB SMAIA doUe)SIp
Buo| eney yoIym SuOI}ed0| UIBHad Ul pajepowwodde

aq Ajjenusjod pinoo jey; wnwixew e si sAa10}s oAl G

"8)IS SIy} 1o} ue|d JuawdojanaQ

[e207 ay} ul pasodoud siequinu Buisnoy ay} Bunsaw 1sjiym
Ajlunwiwiod asIaAIp e Uns 0} sazis pue sadA} asnoy jo abuel
B Sapn|oul sy} ‘8)is ay} ssouoe sjybiay Buipjing aAijesipul

JO uoinqguisip ayj sjie}sp JJomawelq sy} Jo §°G'G UOROSS

‘Buisnoy jo Ajisuap
pue SwWn[OA JOAO SUISoU0) ‘Juswdojanap
Jo abejuol} A310}s G JONO SUIBOUOD

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 245



‘'ssaooud
uoneoldde
Buiuue|d

ay} Je pue
sue|diajsew
paseyd
p3ajle}sp ainjny
ul Juswssasse

[BD07 yoea Bulinp pemalAal aie asn pue SUOIEDJ0|[. pueT

‘'ssao0.d uonesidde Buiuue|d ay}
Je pue sue|dis)sew paseyd pajie}ap ainjny ul JUSLWISSaSSe
0} J03lgns aq ||Im Jybiay pue sanisusp diioads [eul

‘anoge sanssi Jybiay ay) 0} 8)ejal Yolym suoieoo| oiyloads o}

pajolysal si Ajisuap Jaybiy ay| ‘papiroid sjun jenuapisal Jo
az1s pue adA} ayy ul Ajjiqixs|y s1ai0 yoiym abues ainbiy jau
e sl aiejoay Jad sypun Gg-Gg Jo Alobayeds Alsuap Jaybiy syl

"}sea ay} 0} pue| JuswAojdwa uo juaswdojanap

'SpUN 00z Jo uonuaul feulblio sy
Japisuooal pue juswdojaAs(] Uo}siio] 8y}
ul palinbal sjun [eluapIsal JO Jaquinu 3y}

ssasseal pjnoys ‘|louno) AjD ussplaqy

‘AioBejeo alejoay Jad sjun Gg-GG Jo
Ayisuap [enuapisal Jaybiy ay} ul 8q pjnoys
$)00|q Juswdojanap oN "alejoay Jad syun
GG JO wnwixew e 0} pajiwl] 89 pINOYs 320|q

0} 10algns a|eos Jabie| pue wnipels pasodoid ayj 0} Juaoelpe | Juswdojanap Aue Jo) Alisuap |eluapisal ay |
aq |Im ybiay pPaMaIA 8q P|NOM OS|e pue UYd0| 8y} SSOJOB SMBIA SoUE)SIp
pue saljisuap Buo| aney ydiym suoied0| Uleuad ul pajepowwodde 'sAa10]s € JO Wnwixew e 0} pajwli|
oly10ads aq Ajlenuajod pjnod jey; wnwixew e si sAalols oAl G 9( ‘Yyo07 uojsiioT] 0] Juadelpe Ajjeroadsa
JO Juswissasse ‘uswdojana ay} Jnoybnouy} sbuipjing
pajielaqg "alejoay Jad sbuljjamp
0¢ uey} ssa| ou aney Ajjesauab o} ale seale ymolb ‘Juswdojanap |einl e
‘palinbal o16ajel)s ul a1eoay auo JSA0 Jo Juswdojanap Buisnoy ||e | ueyj Jayjlel ‘eale ueqin ue Joj pajins alow
sjuswpuawe oN ey} sajels (6002) Ue|d ainjonns allys pue Aj1D usaplaqy aq 0} sieadde AjsusQ pue asn pue] ayL
uonejussaiday
JO JjnsaJ
e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns
[1ouno9 AJlunwwio) BBIN
‘paJinbai

sjuswpuswe oN

"J00yoS Alewlid e 10} 8)iS e salyjuapl yJomawel4 ay |

“eale 10} palinbai [ooyos Alewld

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘paulwlslap uaaq Apealje sey yoiym uoneoldde
Buiuue|d wnipels Alunwwod ay} 0} Jajal 0} asuodsal
12010 SIY} JO JWaJ BY} Y}IMINO g P|NOM }| "pPalou SUI82uo0)

"saIn)x1y

}oampiw |enjuajod pue wnipejls ||eqjoo}
pasodoud 0} Aywixoud uaalb ualpjiyo
[ooyos jo Ajajes Buipiebal sulaouo)

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 246



UjIM paleys ale
Sjuswwo? |je
ybnoyye ‘abejs
sIy} Je paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

uonoy :uejd juswdojanaq |e20T Usaplaqy 8y

‘0oe|d ul Bulaq aAljeuls)e
ue JNOYUM panowal aq Jouued pue ssadolid |ebs| ajeledas
e alinbal |Im Aepp Jo ybry Bunsix3 ayj Jaye 0} uolsioap Auy

Aj21aw ‘si jey yied e Aq paoe|dal bBuiaq

sI (o ebed) dew AjAi0auuo) uelysapad,
BuiAuedwoooe pue zZ'¢'G uol}0as

ulr umoys se ‘ Aep 1o by, paxiew
yjedjooy pajosjoud Ajn} e jey} ‘pauiasuod)

‘uejdisisew

| 8seyd

e paulwialap
9q 0} }93a4lS
Arewnd ay)

0} pJebal yum
Juswubije peou
pue uonoun(

‘Hoday |ejuswuolinug pue uejdiaisely | aseyd (V1)
Juswissassy podsuel | ay} ybnolyy paulwisiap aq ||IM [1eyep
pue UoI}ed0| }oBXS 8y} JO UOIJeWIIUO0D [|N4 "peoy uoibulj|apn

9G6Y @Y} WoJj Juiod sS800. UIBYINO0S 3y} Je ainjonJiselul
Buiioddns 03 saje|al uonuanisul jeluajod Ajuo

ay | "yoeououa (sbuipjing) s¥00|q uswdojanap ou alaym
Arepunoq SON @y) aielodiodul siayng asay | “}Jomawel

"SONT 8u} uiyum Aem Aue ui yoeoluoua

pajielaqg 3} Ul papn|oul uaaq aABY SYOB(J-18S pue Sauoz layng 10U pjnoys Buiyied Jeod ‘speol ‘sBuip|ing

‘palinbal | pasiubooal sI uoneubisap s} ay) Jo souenodwi ay) pue ‘sjuswidojanap ||e pue pasiubooal

SJUSWPUSWE ON lomawel 4 8y} Jo g|'G UONOSS Ul pajielap st SONT 8YL | Aliny ag pjnoys ‘Alepunog s)i pue SONT 8y L
“penowal

9q 0} £'9°¢C pue
L'9°C suoloss

ul eale
Buipuno.ins ay)
ulelp 0} pajealn,
pue epew uew,
0] S9oUaI8eY
‘'sabueyd

lenixe

‘panowal
aq [|IM £'9°Z PUB |'9'Z SUO0I}08g Ul ,eale Buipunolins
8y Ulelp 0] pajeald, pue ,apew Uew, 0} Seoualaley ‘PSIoN

"4007 uo}slioT Jo sulblio jeinjeu

ay} Jussalidai Ajjn} 0} pa1oallod ag pjnoys
Buipiom ylomawelq ay] "SlSqem puejloos
10 AIeiqr [euoneN ay) uo S|qe|iene S| jey)
dew pjo Jeak pQp e Uo payiuapl ‘ainjes)
|ednjeu e AjjeulBlLio Sem Yoo U0}siIoT]

"9NJ} JoU SI SIYy| ", 2Injes} apew uew,

e Bulag se yoo| ay} 0} siajal )i lomawel 4
U} JO £'9'Z PUE |'9'Z SUONOSS U]

ETEY

ue|d Juswdojana |e207 e ybnouy) aoe|d aye} Ajuo pjnom
Juawalinbal siy} Jo mainal Auy ‘syun 0051 1o Alaniep

10} (Z102) ueld Juswdojana [e207 usaplaqy paydope ay)
ul pajeooj|e sl aus //d0O 9yl ‘ssado.d ue|d Juswdojanaq

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 247



‘ue|disisew
paseyd

aininy Aue ul
papinoid aq [Im
‘saoedsuaalb
|einyeu Buipnjoul
‘saoeds

uado jo uoneoo|
joex3 "pasinbal
sjuswpuawe ON

"SON 8u} Jo Ajibsyul ay) Joaye

JoU pue uoieoo| Jiay} Jo} ajelidoidde sasn aney |IM SONT
3y} 0} 8S0]0 pajedo| ale Yolym sauoz Aejd ajeog abieT
"IN IIIH YHoduly pue SONT UOISIIOT 3y} YIMINo pajedo)
ale seale Ae(d ||e yJomawel 4 ay} jo /{ abed uo pajielap sy

‘JUBWISSaSSY Joedw| [BlUSWUOIIAUT 8y} AQ pawlojul 8] ||IM
pue ssao04d uoneoldde Buluue|d ay; ybnouyy pauiwisiop
aq |Im salejybnoioy} usalb pue siayng JO UOIEI0| pue
9zIs J0BXa ay] "ylomawel juswdojanaq ayj ul payiuapl
S| Y007 UO]SIIOT PUE ||IH YHOOUIY USSM}SQ UOI}OSUUOD

ay} jJo aocuepodwi pue adiouud ay| "uolslioT] }e papinoid
aq 0] }Jomiau aoeds uaalb oibajelis ayj s|ie}ap ylomawe. 4
3y} JO #°G UONOaS ‘[IIH YHodUIy sspnjoxs a)s L/.dO

3y} pue sIn220 Juawdojanap ou alaym Alepunoq SONT
ay) ajelodiooul siaynq asay ] “YJomawel{ ayj} ul papnjoul
uaaq aney S)}0eg-}as pue sauoz layng ‘Juswdojanap

ay} jo ubisap 8y} ul SIOpLIOD pue syIom}au usalb
‘Buideospue| 03 uaalb uonelapisuod pue sjesodoid ubisep
ay) ojul pajesodiooul usaq aney sainjea) adeospue| Aoy

" seale Aejd, se yons

salnjea) Buluajealy}-ajl|p|IM JO PIOASP pue
a|qissod se Jeinjeu, Se SIoplI0) Udal9)
AN II'H YHodury pue SONT Yd07 uolsiioT]
ay} buidesy 0} yuomawel{ ay} Uulyjm
JuBWHWWOD Ja)ealb e aq pjnoys alay |

"9|qissod se pajdnuisjuiun se syui|
Joplod palisap ay} buimoje snyj ‘soes
-9p-|nd speol awos Bupjew Aq pauiejqo

‘sBuisS0J0 peOl JO WNWIUIW B apn|oul
pInom siyl  "papnjoul 8q pinoys YN
[I"H ypodury pue SONT Yo07] uojsiio] syj
JO pua uJaypuou ay} usamjaq ‘yul| JopLI0D
U915 SNONUIJUOD PUE J03lIP ‘DAY Uy

‘'sue|dia)sew
paseyd
pajielsp jo
uoneledalid ay)
ul UuoI}eIapISUod
1o} wea}

ubisap Jiay} pue
sladojanap ayy

'(6002) ueld

yied 2109 8y} pauljino se yiomjau yjed 8100 8y} JO suly,
3y} 192w pue pulj 0} Asea ale syjed 2109 jey} |eljuassa

Sl ]| "}JOM}aU }931}S B Ojul pajelodiooul 8oeLNns oewle) YlIm
syled jewuoy} Buipnjoul ‘swioy Auew aye} ued yjed 8109

'SNJe)s yjed o109 aAey [|im )i pajuswajdwi 82uQ (6002)
ue|d yyed aloH pajdope ay} woly uaye) si Abojouiwiay siy |

"€ Yyled |euonelidsy, Jusws|dwi pue }0auuod 0} Juswalinbal

e sl aiay} / /40O Ulyum jey) saioads sswwelbolid

"MIOM1BU peol 8y} uey} Jaylel sioplio)
usal9) Yim syied o) Buneiodiooul
0} USAIB 8g p|noys uonelapisuod Jajesls)

‘paAowal

sl Aep Jo ybry Bunsix3 ayy 81094
paysl|gelss aq aAljeulsle pajoslold yons
Aue jey} pue ‘Aepp o Jybry Bunix3 sy 0}
aAljeulalje Aue 0} uanib aq uoiosyoid |eba)
[IN} 1By} ‘puswiwiodal sp\ - Jeuolnelidse,

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 248



‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘ubisap Jo s}oadse pajieloq ‘Mainal ue|d Juawdojanaq
[e207 e ybnoly} aoe|d axyey} Ajuo pjnom juswaiinbal

SIy} Jo malnal Auy “azis ul ey G 0 Ajejewixoidde jo

ays J9||anel ] / AsdAg ays-uo ue oy uoisinoid Ayyuspl 0} pey
ylomawel 4 Juswdojaaa( siy} syuswdojanaq |eluapisay
MB3N J0} sjuswalinbay J9||anel ] pue AsdAo :/H Adljod pue
ue|d Juswdojana |e207 ussplaqy ay} yum Ajdwod Japlo uj

psijIes sy} yioq o3 payns Isyeq aq pjnom
‘Yosloid YdMY 8y} 03 payull Ajqissod ‘ayis
[edns ajow \y “Ajunwiwod pa|as ay} pue
slg|jonel ] jAsdAg ay) yjoq 1o} ‘|nyssaoons
aq 0] Aj@yIjun si Juawdojansp ay} UIyim
pajeoo| ‘ays Juawdwesus Jgjjonel) AsdAb
pasiioyine jusuewsad Aue ey} pasuIAu0)

"sIajjonel |
| AsdAg) oy
sajis |enuajod
G Ayyuapi
Alles|d 03 4Q
3y} Jo 61 abed
uo Aay welbeip

‘uoisinold Jodsuel
21/gnd ssa22e 0} pajowold aq J0u pjNOM pue ajes 1o |eapl
paiapisuod jou si (0gY) Aemabelue) jenq e jo Buissosd ay |

"$)00|q JuswdojaAsp ||e Jo

woOp ulyum papinold ase sanioe) yodsuely olignd ainsus
pue juawsalinbal siy} 188w ||Im 8Jnos snqg pasodoud ay |
"JuswdojoAap U0)SII0T] BJOYM BY} dAISS 0} 3)N0J snq

M3U B 10} paau e saljijuapl swwelboid uoiody 4a1v 2ul

‘peoy ssowpay
JO pu® UJaYINos 8y} Je 0BY 8y} Wol) ssaooe
uelsepad pue sadIAI8S SNQ JUNOJJE O
o¥e} pINoys spomawiel] ay] (06Y dus Jo
sopIs Yjoq) pug peoy Ja)nokie| se umouy

Ausuag ‘06Y @Y} buoje saoinies yoeooabelg Buipnjoul dojs snqg ay} pue 0y @y} buoje saainies
pue asnpue, | ‘Agieau sajnol snq Buisixa ||e 0} aoualajel sayew welbelp snq Buisixa ay} Jo anjeA ay} asiubooal
abuey) | uoisinold Lodsuel] 21gnd, pue L abed pajou sulaouo) 0] s|ie} Jodsuel] alqnd, ¥'€'G Uuoioas
-o1jel) [elouab Aqg jou Ing sasnqg Aq asn sj mojje ‘paleqiasexs
0} Jejiwis 1o ayeb snq e jo sueaw Ag pasn aq 0} Ajjige sy (q) Jaypunj Jou sI peoy sojin] 1SSA\N pue peoy
‘peoy ssowpay jo Ajjenb ayy 03 sjuswanoidwi (B) | ssowpay jo uonoun( ay) je uonsabuod jey)
‘Buimojjo} ay} alnsua 0} Juswdo|aAa(q uojslio] 3y} pue
JapISUO0D 0} paau pjnoMm /| a8y ‘uUodsuel; o1gnd 1o} peoy | a)e}sa ssowpay buiisixa ay} usamiaq peoy
SSOwpay ash 0} adouaiajald e pajedlpul siojelado | SSOWpPay UO pajoayad aq p|noys ‘sainseawl
snq yjog yum suoissnasip Aliea s wea} ubisap ay| Buiwies oiyel) 819A8S 10 8INSO|0 peoy
‘9}n0J 8940 pue ueljsapad ‘sng e se peoy ssowpay asl|in
0] palinbali sjuswanoidwi Alessaosau Aue pue Ajjigelns ay} "alejybnoloy} snq
‘palinbal | aulwislep ||IM SIY| JUSWISSassy podsuel ] e ybnolyy Jayuny | e se pasn aq Jou pjnoys ‘aje}s3 ssowpay

sjuswpuswe oN

paiojdxa aq [[IM pue yJomawel{ 8y} ul sulewsal uoido uy

Bunsixa ay} ybnoly) peoy ssowpay

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 249



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"S3l}I|I0B} UOIEONPa pue Yyjeay Jo} sjuswalinbal ay)
salyijuapl swwelbold uondy 4V 8yl ‘|ooyos Alepuoosg
M3U e 1o} a)s |enuajod e pue a)is 0840 8y} 10} SUOISIOap
|euly Buipsebal Ayurenaoun juasald ay) 0} anp Alessaosau
alaym Ayjiqixayls Jayo oy padojanap usaq aney suondo
}omawel4 ay| apew aq 0} }A sey (0840) Hed Jepied
JO @SN ainjn} 8y} UO UOISIOBP |BWIO} Y “PBJOU SJUSWIWOD

(s)yond Asxoou/|jeqioo}

apis-e || Jayjeam |je JjoopinQ (9)

‘lley suods Jsjlews (q)

"0}9 ||eqA9||OA ‘sIuud)

‘lleqiexseq ‘uojulwpeq |[eqiooy Joopul
Buipnjoul spods snoluea ajepowwodoe
ueo jey} ||ley suods abie| ‘sjjesiap (e)

: saN|1oe} Buimoj|o} 3y}

ypm asjua) Ajlunwwo) e apnjoul pjnoys
yoiym ‘jooyos Alepuoosag mau e Jo Alewid
pajed0|al-yI0MaWel { B 18yl 10} UOI}ed0|
3|gelns e se palapisuod Ajny 8q mou
pinoys ‘yied J1epje) ‘sal|ioe} AHunwwod
|ejauab pue anuad AJunwwo),

e Jo panldap uaaq sey b6IN Jo Alunwiwod
aY} ‘sieah Auew 104 ‘pasde| mou

sey yled Jap[e) je juswdojansp wnipels
slabuey ano) panoidde ay} jeyy analaq
aM “Ylomawel ay} Jo uoneslgnd aoulg

"SJuSpISal Mau pue

Bunsixa yjoq o3 oiayyedwAs si ey ays e analyoe 0} Japio
ul sa)g J9||anel ] pue AsdAg :aoueping Aleyjuswa|ddng ayy
JuUNo2ok OJuUl d)e] [|IIM ssadoud siy] "sseooud Buluuejdiajsew

| 8seyd au} ybnoiyy 9OV yum pasibe aq |jim
ays Jg|janel ] / AsdAg ay; Jo Buiseyd pue Alaaiap ‘uoieoo)

‘s19||onel | JAsdA9 ay) pue Ajunwiwod
palas 8y} 'H1OG 0} }oadsal yum
pajeoo| AjleanayiedwAs aq juswdojanag
uoj]sJ107 8y} uiyum ajendoidde

ays Jg|janel | /AsdAg jusuewuad Auy

"eale a8y} Y}IMINo SUOI}ed0| aAljeuls)je je
Buoo| Aq ‘ebealoe Juswdojonag u0}siIO]

By} UIlyym ays pastioyine jusuewiad
e JO Juswalinbal ay} malAal pjnoys |Iouno)
AID usspiaqy ‘salunwwod Buljjaael) pue

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 250



uonejussalday
4O jnsau
e se uoijoy

asuodsay SI8olO

uonejussaiday jo Arewwns

29 IWwWo) Juswobeue) aAlosay ainjeN [e207 [|IH YMoouly

"SaN|Ioe}

}9]10} 213ud) AjJunwiwio) pajeoipaq (%)
‘A1abing si0300Q ()

"(Aeaqr

lounod AjQ usspiaqy jo youelq) Aeiqiq (1)
(¢11ey spods ay) uiypm) oje sheld

Jo uonjejuasald ay} Jo} sanioe} abels (y)
"SOUDIMPUBS/SYOBUS/SB)}/9400

apinoid 01 siaquiawl

Ajunwwod Aq ajgeasn Ayjioe} buuaied vy (6)
'0}J8 ayoain/dnoohe|d e J1oj pue
suolejuasald olpne/oapIA 104 8InjoNJISelul
U}IM SWOO0J uoljounj om} }ses| 1y (4)

"0} saulydoew oipJed

‘sjyBiam yym olpnis ssauyy pajeoipap v (8)
"Yoed} Buluunu asiaw 00y J0opInQ (p)

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 251



‘uejdiaysew

| 8seyd

e paulwialap
9( 0} }93l1S
Arewd ayy

0} pJebal yum
Jusawublje peou
pue uonoun(
pajielad
‘'sue|dia)sew
paseyd ainjny ul
papinold a4 [|Im
‘saoedsuaalb
|einyeu Buipnjoul
‘saoeds uado

JO ‘suolsuswip
pue uoieoo|
joex3 "pasinbal
sjuswpuawe oN

"eale SIy} Ul yoo| ay} asn
1ey} sainads 0} aoueqinisip asiwiuiw pue Ajjenb adeospue)
pue uoisinoid aoeds uado 0} aynqLuod ‘AJIsiIaAlpolq
asiwixew 0} bunjue|d jeuqgey pue adeospue| ‘yied apisyoo|
paubije-al 10 paoueyua Ue apn|oul 0} SH00| Ylomaweld ay |

"‘Hoday |ejuawuolinug

pue uejdisisel\ | aseyd ‘(V1) uswssassy podsuel |

ay} ybnouy} paulwialap aq ||IM [IE}SP pUE UOI}EI0| JoBXS aY}
JO uonEeWIRUOD |IN4 "PEOY UOIBUIIOAN 9G6Y SY} Wolj julod
$S920B UJIBYJNO0S a8y} Je ainjonyselpul Buioddns 0] sajejal
uonuanayul jenuajod Ajuo ay] "Alepunoq SONT 3yl UIyIm
WwoJj panowal usaq aney (sbuipjing) s300|q Juswdojansp
1ey} sjielap 3 ylomawel{ ay} jo |'9'z ydesbelted uj

"}Jomawel ay} ul
papnjoul usaq aAeY S)OBQ-18S pue sauoz Jayng ‘pasiubooal
S| uoljeubisap s,a)is ay} Jo aouenodwl ayj pue ‘ylomawe. 4
3y} JO g|'G Uoidag Ul pajieap st SONT YL (L3N) YomiaN
aoedg uaalg) se pajeubisap ale SUOIIAUS d)elpawiwil S} pue
4o07 UO}SJIOT] pue Uoed0||e 8y} WO} |IIH YHOodUIy Sapn|oxa
uojsiio :2/dO jo Aepunoq ay} ‘dav ayi ybnoiy)

sa)Is Jueoiubis Ajjeso| uo joedwi aalebau pioAe 0} Japlo

u] (daiy) ueld uawdojana(g |e207 ussplaqy paldope ay}
ul //d0O a)S AjunpoddQ se pajeooje si 8)is uojsiloT ay |

"JUSWUOJIAUS |elnjeu 8y} 0} |ejuswilap
aq [|Im ‘uonnjjod pue oI ym Buoje
‘sbop pue sjeo Jiay) pue sjdoad ‘sajoIyan
‘Buip|ing asusjul woJy eale uo pedw|

"JUSWUOIIAUSD

JIay} pue u0j}siIoT JO Yoo ay) ‘anIasay
alnjeN |e207 YyUoouy ay} Jo wa)shAs-009
lesano pue AyuBajul ayy pue jejqey ajp|im
a3y} uo aney ||Im Juswdojanap pasodoud siy)
10edwi |ejuswilap ayj JN0ge pauladsuo)

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 252



‘pasinpe aq
0] wea} ubisap
pue Jadojanaqg

‘pasinbal
sjuswpuawe oN

'ssa204d uoneoldde Buiuued ayy jo yed

Se paulwialap aq ||Im sainpadold Alessaoau Auy ‘sanssi
9say} JO soI10ads JapISuod 0} ylomawel Juswdojanaq
3y} JO Jiwal 8y} UIYYIM JOU SI JI JOASMOY ‘PaJoU SUIadU0D)

J3))l| pue
Buiddiy-Aj4 Jo 1088 |ejuawL}Bp By} SsiwiulW
0} @2oe|d ul ind aqg pjnoys ainpadoid \y

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘'ssao04d uoneoldde
Buiuueld ayj Jo ued se paulwisiep aq |[IM YNT YHoouIy
0] ss820e pue ubisap yjed pajie}aq "pajou suiaduo)

‘Aua
Buiureb wouy "0}a ‘sajoAdiojow Juanald
0] pajol}sal aq jsnwi juiod ssaooe Auy

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"‘palnuap!
SeM saljiunwiwod Buipunolins YIm g/ Yied 107 108uUuod 0}
alisop ¥ *600¢ IMdy Ul psjdope sem yolym ue|d syied 9109
U} UIYJIM PaLUSPI SEM )i ‘Yjed 8100 [euOljelidsE Ue SI £dY

‘alay} mou si
ey} jejiqey pspn|oss JO Yjjeam sy} aonpal
M (62 Ured 8109 [IIH yHooury Bunsixa
pue yjed 2109 ¢4y Usamiag Uuoijoauuod
pasodolid) juiod a|buls wol) aAIasay

ay) buissaooe g|doad Auew jo joedwi ay |

‘palsinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

"'ssao0.d

JuUBWISsassy joedw| [eluswuolIAUT By} AQ pawoul 8] ||IM
pue ssao04d uoneoldde Buluue|d ay; ybnolyy pauiwisiop
aq |Im salejybnoloy} usalb pue siayng JO UOIEI0| pue
9zIs J0BXa ay] "ylomawel Juswdojanaq ayj ul payiuapl
SI Y007 U0JSIIOT pUe [|IH YHOoduly usamiaq uoljosauuod

ay} jJo aocuepodwi pue adiouud ay| "uolslioT] }e papinoid
aq 0] }Jomiau aceds uaalb oibajelis ay; s|ie}ap ylomawe. 4
3y} JO #°G UoNOaS ‘[IIH YHodUIy sspnjoxs a)s L/.dO

3y} pue sInd20 Juawdojanap ou alaym Alepunoq SONT
ay) ajelodiooul siaynq asay ] “YIomawel{ ayj} ul papnjoul
uaaq aney S)oeg-}as pue sauoz layng ‘Juswdojanap

ay} jo ubisap 8y} ul SIOpLIOD pue syIom}au uaalb
‘Buideospue| 03 uaaIb uonelapisuod pue sjesodoid ubisep
ay) ojul pajesodiooul usaq aney sainjea) adeospue| Aoy

‘ajenbapeul a1e SONT Yoo

uo)sJio pue YN [IIH YHoduIY Joj SeuozZ
Jayng pasodoid ay] "J1ayjo yoes wouy
pale|os! a( [|IM pue Yiomawel 8y} Ul yons
se pajeal} JON ‘swa)sAs-008 payul| ale
INQ SWI8) ayi|p|IM Ul saiue ajesedss jou
aJe U0j}slIoT 4O Yoo 8y} pue ¥YNT yuooury

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 253



‘uonjeoldde
Buiuue|d

Aue jo ued se
pa}NSuU0d 8q |[IM

HNS ‘palinbal
Sjuswpuswe oN

'SSO| jejqgey

eoyiubis Aue pioae pjnoys yoiym sadeds usaib |einjeu
JO uolneald ayj spoddns pue palaalap aq 0] }Jomawel)
adeospue| o169)e.)s e sajowoud s uonippe u| “(enoge
pauoljuaw Sse) Yoo U0}SIIoT] pUe ||IH YHoouly usamiaq
yul| usalb e jo souepodwi ay} sybiybiy yiomawel4 ay |

‘way} 0} Joedwi [eyuswiyap Buisned
Jajem Bupjuup 0} ss920e aonpal pue 18a(g
20y 9je|0sI pue }o)00d |m jesodoud ay |

‘siauue|d
[elUSWIUOIIAUT
JIV yim
uole}ynNsuod
panuiuo)
‘paJinbai
sjuswpuawe ON

‘JUBWISSassYy joedw| [eluswUOlIAUT 8y} AQ pawiioul a4 ||IM
pue ssao0ud uoneoldde Buiuue|d ayy ybnouyy pauiwisiep
aq ||Im salejybnoloy} usalb pue siayng Jo UOEIO| pue
9ZIS 10BXd 9y “Jomawel juswdojaaaq ay} ul payiuapl
SI Y007 U0JSIIOT] pUe [|IH YHOodUuly Usamiaq uoljoauuod

ay} jJo aosuepodwi pue sdiouud sy "uojsiioT] }e papinosd
aq 0] ylomiau adeds uaalb oibajelis ay; s|ie}ep ylomawe. 4
3y} JO #'G uondag '[IIH YyHooury sepnjoxs sis L/.d0O

3y} pue sIn220 Juawdojanap ou ataym Alepunoq SON
3y} aje10diodul siayng asay| “JJomawel sy} ul papnjoul
u2aq aAeY SYOB(-}9S pue Sauoz Jayng ‘Juswdojanap

3y} Jo ubisap ay} ul SIOPLIOD pue SYIoM}au uaalb
‘Buideospue| 03 uaaIb uoielapisuod pue sjesodoid ubisap
3y} ojul pajelodiodul usaq aney sainjea) adeospue| Aoy

‘lajem
0} $S800€ pajdniiajuiun spasau ayi|P[IAA
‘papinoid g p|NoyYs J0pLIoD payul| [|ny

e pue a|qeidaooeun si Yoo pue |jiH Bunjul

sBuimelp 8y} UO UMOYS JOPLIOD SJIIPIIAA

‘sabe)s ubisap

pajie}ap Jaje| Bulinp palapisuod aq ||IM INg Ylomawel 4
wawdojanag ayj 104 ajelidoidde pasapisuod jou si

[1e}Sp JO |9A3| SIY} JOASMOH "Sanssi uon|jod JO sjuswssasse
Buipnjoul ‘spodal [eoluyoa} Jo salas e sapnjoul jdiduld ul
uoneolddy Buiuue|d ayj jo ped wloj [|IM YdIyM UO)SIIoT] IO}
(sse20.d \y|3) Loday |eluSWUOIIAUT 8y PaIoU SUIBoU0)

"eale 9y} Ul SJ1|p|im O} [eJUSWILIIOP
aq ||!Im pue onb snjejs ayj Bulureyuiew
0} ®A1ONPUOD Jou sI uonnjjod b1 pue asioN

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 254



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

'ssao04d uoneoldde buiuued ayy jo yed

Se paulwialap aq ||IM sainpadold Alessaoau Auy ‘sanssi
asay) JO SoI08ds JapISU0D 0} yJomawel 4 Juswdo|ana
3y} JO Jiwal 8y} UIYYIM JOU SI I JOASMOY ‘PaJoU SUIadU0D)

"pasIWILIL SI [[IH YHooury|
Uo sl all} Jey} ainsua pjnoys siadojana(

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘ajeudoidde pawaap I YN YHOUIY Sy} Jo Juswabeuew
ay} 0} uonnguod Alessaosau Aue apnjoul |IM SIYy |

'ssa00.4d uoneoljdde Buiuue|d ayj jo Jed wio} |[IM SIS210
ules) Buiuue|d pue Jadojonap usamiag suoISsSnasIp pajielaq

‘uonoajoud

wua) Buoj ay} Jo} ‘yuswdojanap sy}

W0} 8AISSaY 8y} ulelulew pue adueyus

0} siadojanap Aq apew aq p|noys uoisinoid
[eloueUl{ "dAI8SaY ainjeN 8y} 1osjoid pue
ulejuiew O} a|qejieAe aJe sadueul) pajwi]

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 255



‘'suonedljdde
Buiuue|d
p3ajielsp

alniny Aue pue
sue|disisew
paseyd

Buunp HNS pue
Vd3S ‘sisuueld
[EJUSWUOIIAUT
00V Uim
uolje}nsuod
panuniuo)
‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘JUBWISSasSSY joedw| [eluswUOolIAUT 8y} AQ pawojul 8] ||IM
pue ssao0ud uoneoldde Buluue|d ay; ybnouyy pauiwisiop
aq |IIm salejybnoloy} usalb pue siayng Jo UOIEI0| pue
9zIs J0BXa 9y "Ylomawel Juswdojanaq ayj ul payiuapl
S| Y007 UO]SIIOT] PUE ||IH YHOOUIY USSMISQ UOI}JOSUUOD

ay} jJo aosuepodwi pue adiouud ay| "uolslioT] }e papinoid
aq 0] }Jomiau aceds uaalb oibajelis ayj s|ie}ap ylomawe. 4
3y} JO #°G UoNOaS ‘[IIH YHodUIy sapnjoxs a)s L/.dO

3y} pue sIn220 Jusawdojanap ou alaym Alepunoq SONT
ay) ajelodiooul siaynq asay] “YIomawel{ ayj} ul papnjoul
uaaq aney S)}oeg-}as pue sauoz layng ‘Juswdojanap

ay} jo ubisap 8y} ul SIOpLIOD pue syIom}au usalb
‘Buideospue| 03 uaaIb uonelapisuod pue sjesodoid ubisep
ay) ojul pajesodiooul usaq aney sainjesa) adeospue| Aoy

"eale sIy} Ul yoo| ay} asn jey} saioads 0} aoueqinisip
asiwiuiw pue Ayjenb adeospue| pue uoisinoid aoeds uado
0} a)nquiuo9 ‘Alisianipolq asiwixew oy buiueld jeyqey pue

adeospue) ‘yyed apisyoo| paubije-al 10 paoueyua ue apnjoul
0} 00| [|IM Yiomawel ay} pue Aiepunog SONT U} UIyim
wioJ} paAowal uaaq sey juawdo|aaap }ing jey) s|ielap

} YJomawel{ ay} jo |L'9'z ydeibesed u| (L3IN) YlomieN
aoedg uaalg) se pajeubisap ale SUOIIAUS d)elpawiwil S} pue
4o07 UO}SJIOT] pue Uuoied0||e 8y} Wol} |IIH YHOoduIy sapn|oxa
uojsiio :2/dO jo Aepunog ay} ‘daVv aui ybnoay)

sa)Is Jueoliubis Ajjeao| uo joedwi aalebau pioAe 0} Japlo

u] (daiy) ueld uawdojana(g |e207 ussplaqy paldope ay}
ul //d0O a)S AjunpoddQ se pajeooje si 8)is uojsiloT ay |

‘eale Buipunolins
S}l pue Y207 ay} uo juswdojanap
sy} Jo Joedwi 8y} 0} USAIB uoielapISUOD ON

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 256



‘abeys uoneoldde Buluueld
3y} Je Jayuny passnasip ag ueo siy} 9OV pue Ajunwwod
[e20] 8y} yum aiojdxa 0} Buljim ale siadojanap ayis

"alnjny 8y} J0} pue MOU padueul} 8q
ued }sni] 8y} MOy MOYS 0} pajuawinoop aq
pinoys siy} pue ‘@oe|d Buiye} sylom-punoib

Aue Jo @oueApe Ul SUOJIAUS S} pue Yoo ay}

‘paiinbai 3y} SUO SI SUOJIAUS S} pue Yd0T uojsiio] Jo Juswabeuew aoueyua pue }o8joid 0} }sni| e punj pue
sjuswpuawe oON alnjn} a8y} 98sI9A0 0} }snJ} Ajlunwiwiod e Jo uonsabbns ay | dn j9s 0} paiinbai aq pjnoys siadojanaq
‘uoneoldde

Buiuued ayj jo
Hed se yoday
[elusaWuUOolIAUTg
ay} uo
pa}Nsuod aq ||IM

HNS ‘palinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘uoneso|e /.40 dy} Jo }nsal e se adueqlnisip
Aue ypm 1no sjoaye juswaoe|dsip jueoliubis Aue
Buiuiwislep ssao0id |3 8yl yum ‘sanads yons uo sjyedul
jueoliubis Aue pioae pjnoys yooj| ay} 0} ¥oeg-}1as WG ay

‘Buysood Jybiuiano 1o) yoo ayy

uonjosjold ayy asn siaquinu abie| ul 8sa995)
"4yo07 9y} JO SN panuijuod pue Buiaq [jam
18y} 0} [eyuswiLlep 2 [|IM ‘syyed Jybil} J1oy)
1094e |Im sjybi pue sbuipjing ybiy ‘sisjem
9S8y} wolj JJo aye} pue pue| Auenbal
SUBMS pue 8s9an) sk yons spliq abieT

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

" Jalep o3 uaoelpe sdulg Jayng, aoueping
Areyuswis|ddng DOV yum BulAjdwoos saiinbal pue abejs
uoneoldde Buiuueld pajie}ap je pauiwlia}ap aq ||IM Uol}edo|
J0Bexa ay] ‘eAljedIpul ale ¢g abed uo pue yiomawel
Juswdojanag 8y} Ulyim umoys s)20|q juswdojanaq

‘eale pajoajoud uenredl pasodoud

3y} ojul ysnd e 8q 0} sSWwaas sIy| "oiyel)
MO[S 0} }20|q Yiomawel jJo abpa 0} piemioy
ysnd o} aul| Buipjing Joy} |enuajod :¢9 abed

"8NUIIUOD 0] 8snh 8y} 0} JepJo ul Jods J1ay) 0}

‘paJinbai ‘sabeys ubisap pajie}ap Bulnp palapisuod aq | aAljejal si jey} aoeds yueq alinbal [jIm oym
sjuswpuawe oN [!M uewaysly 1o} sjuswalinbal oi19adg "pajou syJuswWo?) | uswliaysly ay} 0} usalb aq 0} spasu Jybnoy |
‘uoneoldde

Buiuued ayj jo
Hed se yoday
[elusaWUOlIAUTg
ay} uo
pa}Nsuod aq ||IM

HNS ‘palinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

"SUOIJED0| DAIJISUSS PIOAB
pue suoiuaAiajul jennuajod Aue 1oy suoieodo| ajelidosdde
wuoul |Im ssad04d |3 8y} Jo Jed se sAanins |eo1bojooa
pajielaq "seale aAIlSUSS ploAe 0} paubisap Ajnjeled aq

0} paau |Im abpa s Jajem ay} 0} Jo/pue Je suoijuaAlaiul Auy
‘sjoedwi Jueoyiubis Aue pioae pinoys yoiym Aiepunoq SONJ
3y} 0} spuodsaliod Ydiym }oeqg-}os B SMOYS JJomawel4 ay |

"SWwig)sAs008 pue jelqey |einjeu

JIay}) @onpal pue eale ay} Buisijin ap|im
1a)ap |m abpae s Jajem ay) 0} ssaooe Ases
pue juswdojanap aso|) ‘sabps s Jajem
ay} Buoje speam pue sasselb ay} asn
‘sejelgapanul yum Buoje ‘1000 pue syonp
se yons spliq Jajem |jews Auew pue siajQ

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 257



pun podsuel| oiBaleng ay) 0] 9JNguIU0D

‘paJinbai 0} sjuawdojanap 1o} Juswalinbal ay}

Sjuswpuswe oN "PAJOU SjUBWIWOD 0] Yoea Ul apew Sa0UaI1ajal 8} SWOIB\A
uonejussaidoay
JO jnsau

e se uonoy asuodsay s18210 uolejussaiday jo Aiewwns

sueJ)saN

uejdiayse|y Biesouapiey

“ddMV 8y} Jo uona|dwod Jo adueApe ul

ajeudoidde aq jou pjnom ssad0e Mau e jey)

3Je)s 0} 1081109 s ue|dis)sel) Y} ‘JSASMOH

‘lounNo) 8y} 4o} Jayiew e si Bujunijop

Buimo||o) 0gY SY} OJUO SS820B MBU

B JO UOISINOld "pun4 podsuels] oibajesis

‘palinbal 3y} 0} 8)nNQgLIIUod 0} paau ay} sasiuboodal

sjuswpuawe oN "PAJOU SjUBWIWIOD ue|dis)se\ ay} }ey} awod|am apn
uonejussaiday
4O jnsai

e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns

pueposs podsuea |
‘uoneoldde

Buiuued ayy jo
Hed se yoday
[eluaWuUOlIAUTg
ay} uo
pa}Nsuod aq ||IM

HNS ‘palinbai
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘uoljeoldde

Buiuueld ayj jo ped se suonejuswnoop buipoddns

Jayjo ay} yum Buoje suonejuasalidal 10} s|gejiene aq

[I!M yoiym ajdiduiid ui uonesnddy Buiuueld ayy jo Jed wuoy
M (ssa20.d |3 JO }nsal) JuUsWwale)S |eluswuUoIIAUg BY |

"}l UO JUBWIWOD Ued

aMm Jey} os JI Jo Adoo e anieoal 0} pases|d
3q p|nom am pue paiinbai si a)is sIy}

JO JuBwWIssassy joedw| [ejuswUOIIAUT [N} Y

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 258



‘PawWOd|dM 8 0} SI d)US
3y} uo sjjem auols Bunsixa ayj Jo g|qissod
se Auew se uiejal 0} uoljepuawWLIodal

3y} Se ||am se ‘a)Is ay} 0} 8so[o sbuipjing
pajsi| ay} Jo Bumas ay) 109j0.1d 0} pasu

3y} JO uoIljeIapISU0d 8y} ‘JanamoH "uolsanb
ul eale ay} Joy sjesodoud ay} Aq pajoaye aq

‘palinbal [IIM s}salajul Alojnje)s uno JO auou Jey} ajou

sjuswpuawe oN "pPoJOU SUBWIWOYD) | uedialsel palddns ayy paipnis buineH
uonejussaidoay
JO JnsaJ

e se uoljoy asuodsay si82ljjO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg

puepoag 91O}SIH

‘Abajens bunyied

|[euoibay sise] YUON 8y} Sl sjuawnoop
asay} Buisijeul ul noA 0} asueasjal

JO aq Aew ey} JUBWN20P Jayuny

‘paonpouul saldijod mau pue papuswe
pue pajepdn aq |Im saloljod swos

‘Ise3 YLON 3y} ul yiomjau Jodsuel} ay}
JO Juswdojanap ay} 1o} uonoallp oibsiel)s
ay} abueyo Apueoiiubis oy Aj@yiun si siy}
ybnoyyy ‘ysaij-al e buiobispun Ajuaiino
s| ABajel}g podsuel | jeuoibay ay) 1eyy
aleme NoA ayeuw 0} 81| p|[nOM | uoljippe u|

‘Aylunuoddo 1saljues ayj 1e siadojansp yym
pasiel aq p|noys jey} Buiyiawos sI siy} se

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 259



‘paiinbal
Sjuswpuswe oN

2102 pue ua( ay} 0} }02uUu0d 0} uonelidse yum aAleIpul
se umoys ale Bielouapiepy Jo uaq ayj ulyum syied ay (e

syjedjooy aaly} sdeysad 1o om] 1o} sue|d
a3y} uo uolisinoid aq 0} sieadde atay| (e

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

pajou Sjuswwo)

"“9AJ9SalJ 8y} 0] UOI}IppE SWOod|aM e 8q
pINOM SIY] "uo }jing a8q 0} das}s 00} sI ado|s
SIY| "9AIasal 8y} 0} JOA0 UaAIb ag uinquaq
ay} 0} umop Buluuni adojs Buioey yinos

ay} 1eyy pajsabbns si )i ‘suoljepuswwIoddy
uonebiy Japun , abed ‘(sysqgam uoosueg)
Hoday |eo160j003 ay} ul eyl ajou SpA

‘Bresouapiey Jo usq ay} 0} Juadelpe

Alreinoiued yiomjau aoeds usalb Jo Junowe |eniuelsqns

e sajelodiooul JnoAe| ay} pue Bieiouspiel) Jo usq juadelpe
3y} pue ayis ay} palapisuod Anjaied sey uejdisisew ay |

‘ajelidoidde pawasp sem a)is SsIy} uo

Juawdojanap Buisnoy jo ajdiouid ay | “ueid zL 0z 2y} ol
uoljeulwexa uadal ajow ay} pue uejd gooz 3y} Joj Ainbuj
|e207 211gnd 8y} yjoq Jo Led se palspisuod sem a)is ay |
‘Juswdojana( |20 UsBPISQY dY} Ul pajedo||e SI pJemlio}

"SOX04 pue 1aa( 90y
se yons sjewuweuw Jabie| ayj Jo swos Aq
BunoA Buisiel pue Buipaaiq 1o pasn sI pue
speol pue Buisnoy juaoelpe pue anIasal
ainjeu ay} UsaM}aq auoz Jayng juepoduw
ue sI }l ‘aAI8sal ainjeu ayj 0} UOISUS)Xa ue
se sjoe Ajjuaiino Juswdojansp 1o} pasodoid
pue| ayL ‘SH|p|im Juspisal pue jeliqey
S,8AI9S3l alnjeu ay) joaye Ajasianpe

[I'M Juswdojanap pasodoud ayj jeyl 984 S\A

"4INOS 8y} 0} )l SISPIOY YDIYM
aAlasal 8y} Joaye |im ueld sy} uo jseg

‘palinbai pallied usaq sey uoljedo|e siy} pue ue|d [e207 800Z @Y} yinos Bielousapiely se payiuapl eale ay}

sjusWwpuawWwe ON | Ul 8Alasal pue| olbejel}s se palijuapl sem a)is UIBynos ay| | o Juswdojanap ayi Moy aJe sulaouod InQ
uonejussalday
4O jnsau

e se uoljoy asuodsay SI8olO uonejusselday jo Liewwinsg

aAIas9Yy ainje|N |e20 Bielouapiepy ay) jo aapIWIWO Jusawabeuey - piejjeg uaydayg J\ pue ueosunq Jiejsely J\

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 260



'ssao004d uoneoldde Buiuued ayy jo yed
se paonpoud aq |Im sawayos Buideospue| pajielaq ('L
uoinoas) pasodoud si uoneoo| siyy ul bunuejd puejpoopn (o

‘Buiddiy-Ajy doys pjnoys sasnoy Aq uanib aoue|jlaains [einjeu
pue pauleb Ajises Buiaq ssaooe dois Aj@y1| pjnom adojs ay |
"}JOM]BU 3Y} punoJe sjusawaAowW |ewiue Jiqiyul oy [eiuajod
3y} aAeY pue 3|gelisapun AjjensiA 89 pjnom siy} ‘1alleq

B UlIM ua( 8y} 3o0|q 0} ajelidosdde pawasp jou si | (q

SHIpIIM

pajeIdosse 10 ua( 8y} uo joeduwl [Bjuswi}ap Ou 8g p|NOM
alay} Jey} pajesisuowap sem i i aoe(d ul ind aq Ajuo pjnom
pue abejs uonesidde Buiuue|d ay} Je saied pajsalajul
J3YJ0 pue [1I9UN0Y 3y} YIM SUOISSNISIP pUB JUSWISSSSSE
a)Is pajielap 0} Joalgns ale asay] yJomjau yjed

0} sue|d yoddns osje pjnom pue

SIy} a1ebiiw pjnom uinquaq ay} 0} umop
ado|s Buioe} yinos ay} uo ‘(sujsanAS
Snui4) auld S}00S Se yons ‘saal}

[1ey jo Bunued ay| -uswdojansp ayy Aq
Jlods aq ||m ‘saaJ} pue pue| uado ojuo
Ajuaung ‘Asjjea uinquaq ay} ssoloe
9AJ9Sal dInjeu ay} Wolj BISIA ay |
‘()Jed 1ed anlasal ainjeu Buisixa

ay} u1 anssi Bulunoal e usaq sey Siy})
Buiddn Aj} Jusnaid pue adojs ay} umop
BAJasal By} 0} SS8298 JIqIyul 0} abpay
1O ||lem ‘@ous} e se yons Jalieq }snqou

e 9 p|noys alay} adojs sy} jo do} au3 3y (q

‘sjuiod Ajjua Bunsixa ayj je os op pjnoys
aAlasal 8y} $S922k 0} Bulysim ajdoad

yled 1o punoibAeld Ao Jayjoue
OJul 8AI8Sal ainjeu plim Ajaaielal
e Buiuiny ysu pue oijes} ybnoay}
asealoul Ajjeonjewelp pjnoo siy| e
“SHIP[M I3]0 pue
spJiq Buipaalq 1o} a|gen|eA si Jey}
Bale p|IM B UO YOBOoIOUS PINOM SIY| e
‘A9|jen ayy Buoje
‘199 90y Ajejnoied ‘a)ipjim jo
abessed 2al) 9y} 10NI}SAO PINOM SIY|
EINERETRET
JO uonjejuawbely 0} pes| pjnoMm siy| o
:se siy} 0] Ajbuouys 108lqo app
"9AJaS3J By} OJUI UINqUa( By} SSOUIoe

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 261



pue speou se A}l uisapow e 0} |eljuassa

se isnl sI yoiym Juswiajd ue sl ainjonJiselyul
U9al9) "$3)IS P|BIIUSBIL) 0} U0 SPUBIXD
Juswdojanap ueqin se Ajjeroadsa ‘Aay

sl jey} aoeds uadoyjuaalb o AJAIOBUUO0D

ay} s1 )}l ‘sajdioulg Buiyoie-1anQ pue UoISIA
3y} ul sayiuapl uejdisisew ay} sy ‘eale
SIY} JO anjeA ay} uo Joedwl JO Wolj Joesep
Jou saop eale ue|diaysew Bielouapie|y

ay} Jo Juawdojanap jey; Juenodwi si )| ‘eale
uonealoal Jejndod pue ajgenjen e si pue
BAI9SaY aInjeN |e207 e se paliuapl si }ses
yjnos Bielouapie|y 8y} JO Yinos ay} 0} eale
ay| — sajels uejdiaysew ay) ‘g abed up

‘ue|d luawdojanag

[e007 UdapJaqy 8y} ul pauljino

Se "0]8 syJIomjau usalb ‘Ajsianipolq

1o} suojjelidse s |1Iouno) ayj} 0} saNqLUIU0d
Juswdojanap siy} yoiym ul Aem ayy

0} 9)ejal SjUBWIWOD Aw 0S paAjoAul Ajjoalip

‘paJinbai ‘Ajjqisuodsal sey abejuay [einjeN Ysijoos

Sjuswpuawe ON "pPajoU SjUBWIWOYD yolym 1o} ‘sajis pajeubisap ou ale alay |
uonejussaidoy
JO JjnsaJ

e se uonoy asuodsay S1991jJO uolejussaiday jo Aiewwns

abejla |ein}eN Ysipoosg

‘uoljejndod [auinbg
pay usapliaqy ay} Joj Jelqey asealoul

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 262



} ‘uoippe U] ‘Juswssassy joedw| abeulelq
e Se [|om se palinbal aq ||IM JUBWSSasSy
10edw| Jajep e leyy ssaoold Juswabeuew
uswdojanap ay} eln 1adojanap ay} pasinpe
aAey pue ‘|1ouno) Al usspiaqy Aq paisoy
‘J1adojanap ay} yum doysyiopn 1uswdojanaqg
B papusje JojepA Ysiods ‘uolippe u
‘Juswinoop uejdiaisepy |yl ul papnjoul uaaq
9AeY 3S3Y} pue O pue ¢idO S3Ss 0}
spJebal ul papiwgns uaaq Ajsnoinaid aney

‘palinbal SjUBWIWOY "W} SIyY} Je ayew 0} SJUsWWoo

Sjuswpuawe ON "PajoU SjUBWIWOYD [euoijippe ou aAey JSJEAA YSI0OS
uonejussaiday
JO JnsaJ

e se uonoy asuodsay S1991jJO uolejussaiday jo Aiewwns

191\ YSiods

"uo

os pue sa|A1sayl Jaiyyeay ‘Buiuies| Joopino
‘uoijealoal ‘sylomiau jeliqey ‘Alsianipoiq
Jo} ‘Aejd saoeds uadojuaaib jey} ssjol

Jo abuel ay) sasiubooal yoiym uejdisjsew
SIY} Ul uaye} yoeoidde ayj swod|om app
‘sieah Auew jo soussqe

ue Jaye uaspiaqy Jo sued 0} uinjal
sjauinbs pal uaas sey yoiym ‘swwelsboid
1ey} pyoddns pjnoo alay ubisap yoiym

ul sAem uo asinpe 0} a|qe aq Aew SYSS
‘|]21inbs Aaib aAieuU-uUOU By} |0J3U0D 0}
usapiaqy punole Ajjuadal JIOM |NjSSa2oNs
JO 10| B UB3Q Sey a1ay]| "sadl1nIas Ayjin

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 263



‘paJinbal
Sjuswpuswe oN

ay} ‘olignd ul uoieulwexa ue 0} }0algns usaq sey Yolym
ue|d Juswdojana( |e00 8y} Ul pajeodo)je ale sajs ay |

s1y} ul Juswdojanap ay} 0} 10alqo Abuosyg

uonejussaidoay
JO jnsau

e Se uonoy asuodsay s18210 uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg

29)lwwio) 093 Awapesy peaysjzeH

R=l=/\"J

3y} JO UOI}ONJISUOD Y} JO dUBAPE Ul peo.

3unJ} e ulewsal |[IM YdIym aALIQ UosIapuy

YHON Buipnjoul yiomjau peod ay} uo

sjoedwil [enuajod e Yoo |Im }eyl Aemuapun

S| JUBWISSassYy Jodsuel] e jey} pajou si }

‘pun4 podsuel | oibajens

‘paiinbal 3y} 0} 9)nNQLIIUod 0} paau ay} sasiubooal

sjuswpuawe ON ‘pPajou SjUBWIWOD ue|diaisel ay} Jey} swod|dam apn
uonejussaidoay
JO jnsau

e Se uonoy asuodsay s18210 uonejussaiday jo Aiewwnsg

puepoos Jodsuel |

"J8]e\\ USI}J00S Ul }SOA
0] Wa)sAs Jajem adens ay} ysim Jadojanap
3y} pjnoys (uolip3 pug) puepodg

1o} sJamag ul pajie}ap se suoleoiyoads ay)
1982w 0} palinbai aq ||Im yoiym ‘ubisap ay
Jo ped se (Sgns) swaisAg abeuieiq ueqin
a|qeurelsng Jo |ediound ay) spoddns

J3JB/\\ YSI}JOOG ey} pajou aq p|noys

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 264



sjuswpuswe oN

8y} Jo asn ayj uo joeduwi Jou ||Im aus siy} uo wswdojansqg

aUj} @AeY 0} 8}eUN}I0) 818 8M |00YdS B Sy

‘paJsinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘adeospue| ay} ojul uonjesbajul ypm diay oy ayis ay}

Jo ued uiayjnos ay} uo pasodoud si Buideospue| jeuoippy
"yoeoidde uo ¥00j |Im JuswdojaAsp ay} Moy pue a)Is

ay} Jo JnoAe| ay} palapisuod Ajinjaied sey uejdisisew ay |
‘pPaysligeiss

uaaq sey sajis asay} uo Juswdojaaap jo ajdiouud

ay} ‘olignd ul uoijeulwexa ue 0} }o3lqns uaaq sey YoIym
ue|d JuswdojaAa( |e207 8y} Ul pajedo||e ale sa)s ay |

"JUBWUOIIAUS
[einjeu Juauind ay} ueyy Jayjel Juswdojanap
pasodolid ay} Aq pasneo uonnjjod [ensip

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

"9AI9sal alnjeu ay} buissadoe Ajjoallp

aq jou [Im oijes] -uonebiyw jo sealse Aue syybiybiy pue
SMOJ} d1)jel} sulwexa |Im yaiym ssaosoud uonjeoldde Buiuueld
3y} Jo Jed se 1no paLed aq ||IM JUswssasse Jodsuel)

YN Brelouspiepy
JO uUa( 8y} se yons ease Buipunolins 8y} o}

|eluawi}ap uonnjjod pue olel} pasealou]

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

"SSO| Jeyqey jueoiiubls Aue ploAe pjnoys

yolym saoeds uaalb |einjeu jo uonealo ay} spoddns pue
paJanlap aq 0} yJomawel adeospue| oibsjel)s e sajowoud
}l Uolippe U] "yHou ay} 0} pue|poom ay} o} Blesousplel Jo
ua ay} bunjui ylomawely adeosspue| Buoljs e sey ays ay |
‘Paysiigeiss

uaaq sey sa)s asay) uo Juswdo|anap jo s|diouud

ay} ‘olgnd ul uoneulwexa ue 0} 10algns uaaq sey Yoiym
ue|d Juswdojana( |e207 By} Ul pajedo||e ale sa)ls ay |

"SUOISI||09 d14el) 9sned 1o
salpadold 0y abewep asned pjnod Jasp ay |
‘Jelqey pajuswbely yons yjm sanjosway}
ulelsns [|IMm Jaap ay} Moy Jesjoun -

€ dQ UO Jae( 90y uo HONQE_
[eluswiLlep e aAey pinom juswdojanaq

‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘Aessaoau

alaym papinoid uonebijiw pue ssasoid uoleoldde
Buiuue|d ayj Jo Ued se Jno palles aq |[IM sAaAINS
Jayun4 ‘jJuswuodiaug Buipunolins 8y} 0} UoljelapISuU0d
anp sanib Juawdojanap ay} jey} ainsua 0} paLlIed
usaq aAey SABAINS pPa|Ie}ap pue UoIIeIapISUoD [nidIe)

"IN Bresousapiep
JO U 8y} pue JUSWUOIIAUS |B20| BY}
uo 1oedwi ue aaey pjnom juswdojansp ay |

‘paysiige)se
usaq sey sajis asay} uo jJuswdojanap jo ajdiound

‘eale

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 265



uonejussalday

JO JjnsaJ
e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns
(14oquiapy winuo4 91949 uaapiaqy) [1I9Y23IA ue|
"alnjeu siy}
Jo Juswdojanap Aue Aq pajoaye Ajasianpe
aq Ajuo ueos I Moy pue eale |e20| 3y} JO
Ausianipolq pue Ajneaq |einjeu ay} JapISuod
0] noA alojdwi em pue awes ay} op 0}
wie am ‘dnoib e sy "Ajisianipolq pue Ajneaq
‘paysl|qelsa | |eJnjeu s puejoog ajelqalad pue ayowold o)
u@aq sey sajis 9say} uo Juawdojanap Jo adiouud | swie ydiym — puejoos |einjep Jo JeaA ay}
‘pasinbal ay} ‘ongnd ui uonjeuiwexa ue 0} }0algns usaq sey Yoiym | Ul €10z se Ajjeroadse ‘ajelidoiddeur Ajjoym

sjuswpuswe oN

ue|d JuswdojaAaa(] |e00 8y} Ul pajeoo|je ale sals ay |

aq 0} Juswdojanap pasodoid ayj Jopisuo)

‘paJinbal
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘lesodoud yied abueyn
ajewl|D Aue uo joedwi ou aAey p|NOM pue Yled peay|azeH
JO AJUIDIA 3)jeIpawwWI By} UIylIMm Jou si Juswdojanap ay |

"SAIJel}Ul SIY} 0} SAI}OBISIUNOD 8q P|NOM
uawdojanap pasodoid ayj jo Aouaoelpe
3y} Jey} uiadouo) yied abueyn ajewi|n

1SJI} S pUB|}0OS OJUI Yied peays|zeH
wojsuel} 0} ued puejoog aoedsusals

‘paJinbal

‘'sasodind jeuoneanpa 10} [ooyas ayj Aq Bresouapiel Jo uaq

‘saljiunyoddo

asay} uo joedwi pjnom juawdojaaap

3y} 90JN0Sal |BUOIBONPS UE Se

aba|inLd aiel Jey) asijiin 0} aIns ayew am
pue dajsioop Ino uo Bieiouapiep Jo uag

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 266



‘paJinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘'ssao0.d uonesidde Buiuue|d ay} pue JuswSsassy
Jodsuel] ay jo ped se dn umelp aq [|Im subisap

pajielaq "aAiedlpul ate zz abed uo umoys subisap ayy

INQ 1IN0 Y3/ Ul Y3| 3q [|IM suonounl asay] - pajou Juswwo)

9say} JO ||e Je saxoq SV ash ay} asodoud
os|e p|nom | ‘saianaouew |eba| Buiop
S1s119A0 JO aseo Jayjoue }aA je pakouue
Buimab sianup juanaid o} Ajjeuonippe

pue Jis 0} alaym mouy Ajajes ueo

s}s1j9A0 Jey} os s|ppiw By} Ul s8xoq ISV

Jo uonelodiooul ay} }sabbns p,| ‘enijeussye
ue sy "oijes} uonoalp aysoddo ayy uiol 0y
9oUBYD B 10} }JIeM pue 3|ppiw 3y} Ul puelsl
o1jel} ay} oyuo ob 1snl Ajay| }sow pjnom
Aay) pue (BsJaA a9IA 10) UMO} SpJemo)

06 0} ysim Aayy JI s|lamsbury| 0} spiemino
JO pajjauueyd Buiaq yym uasy uey ssa|
pInoMm s]s119A9 jeyy st mala A\ -adAy Jno Y9
- Ul 49|, Se 0} paliajal ale Aay) ‘sjesodoud
uonjoun( jsam pue isea ay} yioq 1o - #g bi4

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

"8IS 8y} 0} doURIUS SaIqQqo
ay} 1e g|qejieAe aq |Im uonoun( pasijeubis ¥ "wnio4 8194)
usapJaqy 8y} Aq payiuapl syjed Bupsixa ayy smoys g b4

‘peos uado ayj buissolo pue

uondo 1no uoys Moinb e Buiyey woly sjdoad
abeinoasip 0} Japlo ul ‘0s Op 0} papuswe
S| 1 Jey} puswiwodal P|NOM | UdY} 8sed

ay} si siy} 4 ‘Juswdojanap ulayinos ay}
woJy BuissoIo uls}sam ay} e }oaw Jou Saop
yoiym yjed e aq 0} sieadde aiay| - oz b4

‘palsinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

‘ajelidoidde aq Jou pjnom uoljoas

sIy} Jano ybiens Bulob yjed e ‘eniasay ainjeN |20

3y} Jo Jed juepodwi }sow ayj ploAe 0} paubisap usaq sey
3}Jomjau Buijsixa ayj 0} yied sy} JO UOI}OBUUOD uId)ses ay |

"Jnojop ay} aye}

uey} Jayjel Jnouoys Appnw e ayew jsnl

[IM sJasn asimiaylo ‘Awapedy pesys|zeH
woJ} sawod jeyy yied Buisixs ay} 0} aul|
brens e ui uiol pjnoys siy; ‘yyed Jsypwiiad
e sey Jusawdojanap ulayinos pasodoid

ay] - ,.AIAi08uu0) pue ssadoy, |LLd

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 267



‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

uonelapIsuod |nyale) ssadoud uoneoldde buluue|d ay)
Jo yed se paaibe aq [im ays ay} uiyum bunybll syeudoiddy
‘leyap 4O |9A9)] Yey) 0} umop ob jou saop uejdis)sely SIyL

p.| ‘Yiomiau syjed sjuswdojonap
3y} Inoybnouy} syyed jo Bunyb|
0} @oualajal 93s Jou pIp | - Bunybi yred

‘pasinbal
Sjuswpuawe ON

JUSWISSOSSY
podsuel| 8y} ybnoiyy paulwisiap aq [|Im spaads olyel)

pue Moy} o1el) pajoipaid ‘suonoun( ‘synoAe| peol Jo sjielaq
"S}981)S [enuapisal 8y} 0} uosledwod ul 8Jnos snq

3y} JO Injeu JejndiyaA ai1ow a8y} Usamiaq sajenualayip siy|
‘paads wnuwixew e se UsAIb sI 8)noJ snq ay} uo ydw Qg

ybiy ooy aq Aew main Aw ul

yoiym ydwy s uonoun( ssaooe |eljuad ay}
JO eale ay} punoJte pasodoud jwi paads
3Y} HuIY} | "HdMV U} jo uons|dwod pue
Bieiouapiel Jo uonajdwod usamiaq polad
ay} buunp Auenoiued ybnoyy wisybuol

Ul ylog aWwn|oA d1yjel} Jnoge suiaduon)

'ydwggz 01 paiamo|

sl )l }sabbns pjnom | JuswdojaAap sIy} 10}
‘(ggd) a1noJ snq ayj Jo} Hwi| paads ayj se
uanIb s1 ydwQg - spwi| paads JaA0 UIs2U0)

‘paiinbai
Sjuswpuswe oN

‘ssa004d uonjeoldde Buiuue|d pue Juswssassy

Hodsuels ] ayj jo Jed se jno paules aq ||im syjed

pue s}aalls Jo ubisap pajie}ap pue sjuswabuelle uonoun(
pue yons siajew pajieloq ‘syied a|o0Ao pajebaibas Buiney
1oy} [enuajod ay} moys pue aAljesipul ale swelbelp ay |

‘Juswabuelie |ewlo) aiow e apew

S| sIy} Jey) 1sabbns pjnom | aoualiadxa
Janiq wouy Ing (g¢d) sueuysepad

0] Aem aAIb Ajjeinjeu [Im siaAup uonsabbns
e Sl 818y ‘91nod snq ay} yum ino Ayuoud
Buiney se palapisuod aq p|noys 3sijoAd ay)
uonsabbns ayj si aiay) (ggd) uo ybnoyye
swdojanap ay} uiypm suonoun( peol

yym ajesbajul pijnom yied aj9Ad sy} moy Jo
uonedIpul ou si alay} os|y "yied ueLysapad
3y} uo s]s1j9A0 BSIaA 92IA 10 ‘suelsysapad
Aq asn Buipnjoul swajqoid jenuajod ale
alay} Jayaym uonsanb pjnom | “yyed ajoho
pajebaibas e 0} aoualajal S| 818y} Jey}
jou | ‘sainbi4 8say} UIYIA - L€ 8 9¢ Bi

‘suonoun(

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 268



palinbal JUSWIUOIIAUS Ja)em 8y} JO sjuawald Aay ay}

Sjuswpuawe ON "PAJOU JUBWWOY) | JO JUBWSSSSSE UE JO UOISN[OUl 3Y} SWODBAA
uonjejussaidoy
JO JjnsaJ

e se uonoy asuodsay S189ljJO uonjejussaiday Jo Liewwnsg

vd3s

yJomauwel Juswdojaaaq pPIoIPIO

‘(010 Juswaned uo aue| 9|oAd ‘sdwng paads

‘appiw ay} ul pueysi ‘subls Aus|d s,02

Buiioddns aq pjnoo siy} al) ‘|jooyos 0} 8|9Ad

pue yjem o} JaysbunoA 1o} selnol sseocoe

ajes Jo }as e Buissasse Jo swia) ul Alewld

pJojsbury| [ooyos isaseau ayj 10) poddng (i

"Ja)jealay} paalbe uonebiyiw Aressaosu "9WOH abnjay s,uswop) bBunsixa

Aue pue juswssassy podsuel] ay} jo Led se paled 3y} apiseq py S,8MOH uo Buluado ay} 0}

3 [|IM S|O0UDS 0} SBIN0J 9JES JO JUSLISSISSE PajIelap v | Spes| Yoiym yoel} wiej sy} ojuo pue sayoyd

usamiaq yyed ay} 0} umop uay} pue youd

‘'ssao04d uoneoldde | As|syooppays Jayno ay} jo doj ay} punos ob

Buiuueld ayj Jo ped se syiomiau yied Bunsixe aoueyus | 0} Jl Buimoje Gf ajnod suiol )1 ey} os uoljoss

0} apew 8q p|nod suonguiuod ajelidoidde pawaap §| Juswdojanap uiayuou ay} jo ba| uisses

3y} 1o} uoijoas Bumjul| e Jo uoisinold (1

"YHOU UOoI}08uUuU0d

‘paJinbai ueLysapad aininj Aue apnjoald Jou seop pue a)s ‘Hoddns Aew

sjuswpuawe ON 3y} UIYHIM UOI}O3UU0D YINoS/ylou smoys uejdiajsel siy L Ajlunwwod ay} suonippe pajsabbns om|

‘papnjoaid

"9NI9SaY alNnjeN |eo07 ayj} uo
aney Aew Bunybi 1oedwi jenuajod Aue 0} uaaib aq 0} spasu

Jou sI asn Buluans ey} 0s ssjnol a1od
[le uo papnjoul ale sjybi| Jey) puswWoosl

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 269



‘Aessaoau

9q Jey} p|nOYS JUBWISSISSE S |IDUN0Y)

3y} pie 0} uoiewloul jeuoiyippe apinoid

0] Ud3) 8 p|NOM YYD ‘UOIE}NSU0D 3y}
jo }nsal e se saljed ¢ woyj aslie sisjew
pinoys ‘sabueyd Jayunj Aue Jnoypm

‘paiinbai aoueping Alejuswa|ddng se pajdope

Sjuswpuswe oN "pPaJou JUSWWOY aq p|noys yJiomawel 4 Juswdojanaq
uonejussaiday
JO jnsau

e se uoloy asuodsay s18211JO uonejussaiday jo Aiewwns

"3 Juswabeuep VIV 4O §

leyaq uo juswdojanaq B Buiuueld aidday

‘ue|d Juswabeuew |EUSWUOIIAUD

1O Juawaje)s poyjaw UuoIoNIISUOD Jueas|al
ay} Jo uononpoud ay} ybnouyy passalppe aq
[I'M SIU} 1ey} pue anssi juenodwi Ajjenuajod
e se pasiubooal usaq sey uoIONIISUod
Bunnp uonuanaid uonnjjod jey} ajou 0}
pasea|d os|y 'Yd43S 0} 9|gejdasoe gjdiound
ul sI abeulelp |Noj UO UOIJOBS BY| “HJOM

sisAjeue ajis ay} Jo ped se a)is ay} Ulylm

suoljejuasalday jo Alewwng — | xipuaddy

Page 270



Appendix 2 — Full Un-summarised Representations

Ourref: PCS/121408

Your

ref:
Ross Maclennan If telephoning ask for:
Planning and Sustainable Development Nicola Abrams
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council 23 August 2012

Business Hub 4
Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

By email only to: LDP@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dear Ross

Consultation
Planning Briefs, Development Frameworks and Masterplans Consultation

Thank you for your consultation email which SEPA received on 17 July 2012.
We welcome the opportunity to provide comment on these documents. On many
of these areas we have already been involved in direct discussion with the
applicants and therefore we reiterate here the general advice we have provided
to them, in addition to any specific comments on the documents themselves. We
also take this opportunity to highlight any relevant good practice documents
which may also assist the developers as they move forward with their proposals,
these are included in Appendix 1.

1. Amended Planning Briefs, Development Frameworks and
Masterplan consultation.

1.1 We have no additional comments to make on these documents.

2. New Planning Briefs, Development Frameworks and Masterplan
consultation.

2.1 Oldfold Development Framework

Page 271



2.2

2.3

24

We welcome the inclusion of an assessment of the key elements of the
water environment within the site as part of the site analysis work. We
note that this will inform the design of the drainage strategy as the scheme
moves forward. \We have reviewed the Drainage strategy and note that
foul drainage will be directed to the public sewer and surface waters from
roads and roofs will be disposed of via swales to a detention basin and car
park run off via porous paving with filter trenches beneath. This is in
principle acceptable to SEPA as it would provide the required 2 levels of
SUDS treatment for this type of development. We are pleased to note that
pollution prevention during construction has been recognised as a
potentially important issue and that this will be addressed through the
production of the relevant construction method statement or environmental
management plan. Appendix 1 highlights the relevant SEPA and good
practice guidance.

Friarsfield Development Framework

We are pleased to note that Cults Burn has been identified as an
important feature for the site and welcome the proposals to retain and
enhance the Burn in the vicinity of the site through the creation of an
open space buffer strip extending along the burn corridor. We
welcome the recognition of the need for a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
to be undertaken, this should inform the design and layout of the site.
We note from Section 5 of the document that that foul drainage will be
directed to the public sewer and surface waters will be subject to 2 levels
of treatment for roads and a single level for roof run off, and that an
indication that ponds/basins will be incorporated into the drainage strategy
within areas of open space. This is in principle acceptable to SEPA as it
would provide the required 2 levels of SUDS treatment for this type of
development. We have already provided advice on a pre-application
enquiry (Council Ref P120340, SEPA Ref PCS/119104) for part of this
site. Appendix 1 highlights the relevant SEPA and good practice guidance.

Foresterhill Development Framework

We have no detailed comments to make on the document and note that
much of the work  proposed is underway, but would highlight the issues
set out in Appendix 1 as being  useful for any proposals coming forward
as part of stage 2 of the project.

Dubford Development Framework

Link on website not working.

Page 272



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework

We have already provided comments during the preparation of the
Framework and we are  pleased to note that many of the suggestions
made previously by SEPA have been incorporated into the document.
There is still scope for the natural environment (particularly the water
environment) to be further emphasised, for example by highlighting that
the River Dee may be protected not just as a Special Area of
Conservation but also in order to meet the requirements of the EC Water
Framework Directive to ensure that all waterbodies reach good
ecological status by a set deadline, and by highlighting the pressures and

impacts that are influencing the status of the mouth of the River
Dee (including the harbour area).

Kingswells Development Framework

We have already provided pre-application advice directly to a consultant
on OP42 SEPA (Ref PCS/119377). We welcome the recognition of
the North Burn of Rubislaw as an important feature for the site and
welcome the proposals to retain and enhance the Burnin  the vicinity of
the site. We note from Section 5.21 of the document that that foul drainage
will be directed to the public sewer and surface waters will be disposed of
via SUDS. Appendix 1 highlights the relevant SEPA and good practice
guidance.

Kingswells Phase One Masterplan (OP40)

We welcome the recognition of the Denburn as an important feature for
the site, the watercourse is currently at poor ecological status and so we
would support proposals to retain and enhance the watercourse as part of
detailed development proposals. Some areas of the site are identified as
naturally wet; we promote the retention of such features in their natural
state where possible. We note the use of swales and basins/ponds as
part of the SUDS strategy and welcome the use of such measures which
can present opportunities for habitat creation. We welcome the promotion
of water recycling measures into building design on site.

We have already provided detailed comments on a number of planning
applications for this site (SEPA Refs PCS/117038, PCS/117031,
PCS/117633, PCS/120392).

Kingswells Prime Four Business Park, Phases Two and Three

We note in Section 4B/4/3 that consideration is given to foul and surface
water drainage arrangement on site, proposing to connect foul

Page 273



2.9

210

2.11

212

drainage to the public sewer subject to the necessary upgrades. We
note that the SUDS strategy highlights that the regional SUDs

measures (extended detention basin) will be situated within Plot 1
of Phase One.

We have already provided comments on a planning permission in principle
application (Aberdeen City ref: P120649, SEPA Ref: PCS/10392)

Stoneywood Development Framework and Masterplan

We have already provided detailed comments on a planning application
for this site (SEPA Ref: PCS/114123).

Former Davidson's Mill (Bucksburn) Phase 1 Masterplan

We have already commented on a planning application for this site (SEPA
Ref: PCS/114176 and associated documents) and have no specific
comments to make on the Masterplan.

Robert Gordon University City Centre Campus Planning Brief

We have no detailed comments to make on the document but would
highlight the issues set out in Appendix 1as being useful guidance for any
proposals coming forward.

North Garthdee Farm Planning Brief

We have already provided detailed comments on a planning application
for the site (PCS/119481 and PCS/121464) and have no specific
comments to make on the Planning brief.

| trust these comments are helpful at this stage, should you have any
queries regarding this letter please do not hesitate to contact me on 01224
266698 or by email via planning.aberdeen@sepa.org.uk.

Yours Sincerely

Nicola Abrams
Senior Planning Officer
SEPA Planning Service

Page 274



Appendix 1: Summary of relevant SEPA and Good Practice Guidance

1.
1.1

1.2

2.2

Flood risk

The site should be assessed for flood risk from all sources in line with
Scottish Planning Policy (Paragraphs 196-211). Our Indicative River &
Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) is available to view online and further
information and advice can be sought from your local authority technical or
engineering services department and from our website.

If a flood risk is identified then a Flood Risk Assessment should be carried
out following the guidance set out in the Annex to the SEPA-Planning
Authority flood risk protocol. Our_ Technical flood risk quidance for
stakeholders outlines the information we require to be submitted as part of
a Flood Risk Assessment, and methodologies that may be appropriate for
hydrological and hydraulic modelling.

Waste water drainage

Details of the waste water provision for your development should be
provided in the ES or planning submission, including consideration of
options for waste water treatment facilities. Drainage is a material planning
consideration and will be assessed as part of your planning application in
line with PAN 79 Water and Drainage and Policy NE6: Flooding and
Drainage in the Aberdeen City Local Development Plan. Where there is a
public sewerage system, waste water drainage from development within
and close to the settlement envelope should be directed to that system. If
the system has insufficient capacity, then early dialogue with Scottish
Water will be required to determine if works are planned to overcome this
problem, or what developer pro-rata contributions will be necessary to
remove the constraint.

If there is no or limited public sewerage infrastructure, given the scale of
developmentwe  would still expect the development of strategic
infrastructure to adoptable standards. Contact should be made with
Scottish Water to determine the standards required to ensure
adoption of new infrastructure. Please note that we are not likely to
support proposals for private foul drainage systems for significant
development (eg more than 25 houses) where development of public
infrastructure is the sustainable long-term solution. An interim
solution may be acceptable provided an appropriate upgrade has been
agreed with Scottish Water and there will be no unacceptable impact on
the water environment. For further guidance please refer to our
Policy and Supporting Guidance on Provision of Waste Water Drainage
in Settlements

Surface water drainage

Page 275



3.1

3.2

The treatment of surface water runoff by sustainable drainage systems
(SUDS) is a legal requirement for most forms of development, however
the location, design and type of SUDS are largely controlled through
planning. We encourage surface water runoff from all developments to be
treated by SUDS in line with Scottish Planning Policy (Paragraph 209),
PAN 61 Planning and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems, PAN 79
Water and Drainage and Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage in the
Aberdeen City Local Development Plan SUDS help to protect water
quality, reduce potential for flood risk and release capacity in the public
sewerage network where the alternative is use of combined systems.
Discharges to combined sewers should be avoided to free up capacity for
waste water discharges.

It is important to ensure that adequate space to accommodate SUDS is
incorporated within the site layout. Consideration should be given to this
matter early in the planning process when proposals are at their most fluid
and modifications to layout can be easily made with less expense to the
developer. Each individual type of SUDS facility, such as a filter drain,
detention basin, permeable paving or swale, provides one level of surface
water treatment. The level of SUDS required is dependant on the nature of
the proposed development, for example residential or non residential, the
size of development, and the environmental risk posed by the
development which is principally determined by the available dilution of
the receiving waterbody. Best practice requires the following levels of
treatment:

® Residential developments of 50 houses or less and
retail/commercial/business parks with car parks of 50 spaces or
less require one level of treatment for all hardstanding areas
including roads. We encourage this first level of SUDS to be source
control.

® Residential developments of more than 50 houses and retail/
commercial/ business parks with car parks of more than 50 spaces
require two levels of treatment for all hardstanding areas including
roads. An exception is run-off from roofs which requires only one
level of treatment. We recommend, as best practice, the second
level of treatment to be a basin or pond designed in accordance
with Sewers for Scotland Second Edition.

® Industrial developments require three levels of treatment for hard
standing areas and two levels of treatment for roads. An exception
is run-off from roofs which requires only one level of treatment. We
recommend, as best practice, the second level of treatment to be a
basin or pond designed in accordance with Sewers for Scotland
Second Edition.

Page 276



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

® All roads schemes typically require two levels of treatment, except
for residential developments of 50 houses or less and
retail/commercial/business parks with car parks of 50 spaces or
less. For technical guidance on SUDS techniques and treatment for
roads please refer to the SUDS for Roads manual.

For all developments, run-off from areas subject to particularly high
pollution risk (eg yard areas, service bays, fuelling areas, pressure
washing areas, oil or chemical storage, handling and delivery areas)
should be minimised and directed to the foul sewer. Where run-off from
high risk areas cannot be directed to the foul sewer we can, on request,
provide further site specific advice on what would be the best
environmental solution.

The SUDS treatment train should be followed which uses a logical
sequence of SUDS facilities in series allowing run-off to pass through
several different SUDS before reaching the receiving waterbody. Further
guidance on the design of SUDS systems and appropriate levels of
treatment can be found in the CIRIA C697 manual entitled The SUDS
Manual. Advice can also be found in the SEPA Guidance Note Planning
advice on sustainable drainage systems (SUDS). Please refer to the
SUDS section of our website for details of regulatory requirements for
surface water and SUDS. Comments should be sought from the local
authority roads department and the local authority flood prevention unit on
the acceptability of post-development runoff rates for flood control.

Comments from Scottish Water should be sought where the SUDS
proposals would be adopted by them. We encourage the design of SUDS
to Sewers for Scotland Second Edition standards and the adoption of
SUDS features by Scottish Water as we are of the view that this leads to
best standards and maintenance.

SUDS must be used on all sites, including those with elevated levels of
contaminants. SUDS which use infiltration will not be suitable where
infiltration is through land containing contaminants which are likely to be
mobilised into surface water or groundwater. This can be overcome by
restricting infiltration to areas which are not affected by contamination, or
constructing SUDS with an impermeable base layer to separate the
surface water drainage system from the contaminated area. SUDS which
do not use infiltration are still effective at treating and attenuating surface
water. Please refer to the advice note on SUDS and brownfield sites for
further information.

Sustainable Waste Management

In accordance with Scottish Planning Policy and Policy R6 in the
Aberdeen City Local Development Plan, space for collection, segregation,

Page 277



storage and possibly treatment of waste (e.g. individual and/or communal
bin stores, composting facilities, bring banks and waste treatment
facilities) should be allocated within the planning application site layout.
Please consult with your local council's waste management team to
determine what space requirements are required within the application site
layout. Some local authorities have an information sheet setting out space
requirements.

Page 278



Friarsfield Development Framework Public Consultation

Submission by Camphill Communities with respect to impacts on the
Aberdeen Waldorf School. August 2012.

Introduction

1. This written submission has been prepared on behalf of the Camphill
Communities (Aberdeen City & Shire), including Aberdeen Waldorf School in
response to Aberdeen City Council’s public consultation on the Friarsfield
Development Framework. It follows a number of previous submissions by the
Camphill Communities with respect to the Cala Homes and Stewart Milne Homes
public consultation on the development framework for Friarsfield, the Aberdeen
Local Development Plan Main Issues Report and the Local Development Plan
itself.

2. The Camphill Communities (Aberdeen City & Shire) have an historical
relationship within the Dee Valley spanning some 70 years, serving a wide range
of users of all ages (estimated in excess of 1800). Currently more than 700
people live and work within the communities. Camphill is particularly valued as a
resource for people with special needs. The Camphill Communities provide a
range of services and facilities for vulnerable children, young people and adults
with special needs.

3. The Aberdeen Waldorf School, Craigton Road, Cults, provides Steiner Waldorf
education for around 90 children (3-16years) who do not have special needs.
The school runs a parent and toddler group (0-3 years, with 22 places) and
provides after school care until 5.30 most weekday evenings. The school also
accommodates a range of local groups who use its halls and sports facilities in
the evenings.

4. The school is located on an eight acre wooded campus on Craigton Road to
the north of Cults. The school currently enjoys a rural location a short distance
from the urban edge. From its elevated location, the school enjoys open and
extensive views south over the Lower Dee Valley. The school currently leases
playing fields (3.56 acres) from Aberdeen City Council immediately to the south.

5. The proposed development at Friarsfield lies between the school and the
existing urban edge, and therefore raises a number of issues relating to the
access and safety of pupils and other users travelling to the school on foot or by
bicycle.

Concerns and Comments
6. While the Camphill Communities welcome the preparation of a development

framework for the proposed development at Friarsfield, a number of issues
continue to be of concern, reflecting potential impacts on the Aberdeen Waldorf

Page 279



School and particularly the way that pupils and other users access the school
and its facilities.

7. A key concern is that a number of aspects of the development remain
unresolved, with the details to be defined at the detailed design and planning
stage. Important issues include:

- The scale of development: the description on page 25 of the Framework
suggests that there could be potential to accommodate between 280 and 380
houses on the site, reflecting Structure Plan policy requirements. This suggests
that the scheme could be around 30% larger than originally planned in terms of
numbers of homes, creating issues in terms of the volume of traffic generated.
This could exacerbate negative impacts on the safety of pupils, staff and the
general public accessing the Aberdeen Waldorf School by foot, cycle or car. The
entrance to the Aberdeen Waldorf School is located at a bend and junction on
Craigton Road, so any increase in traffic could affect access into the school as
well as raising road safety issues.

- The Camphill Communities have previously raised concerns around the
provision for pedestrians and cyclists within and adjoining the proposed
development. This reflects the likelihood that pupils and others walking or cycling
from the existing urban area to the Aberdeen Waldorf School will pass through
the proposed development at Friarsfield. Pedestrian and cycle routes through the
development to the school should form part of the safe routes to school network
which is currently limited to routes linking the proposed development with Cults
Academy and Cults Primary School. Key concerns include the provision for
people on foot or bike at key junctions such as that proposed between Kirk Brae
and the new distributor road, together with the provision of adequate safe
crossings on Friarsfield Road, Kirk Brae and particularly on the new distributor
road where it crosses the Core Path leading north to the Aberdeen Waldorf
School. This path will be severed by the new distributor road and it will be
essential to consider how continued safe use of this footpath by pedestrians and
cyclists is ensured. This could be achieved by providing a separated pedestrian /
cyclist footbridge over the distributor road, or, less satisfactorily, by an at-grade
signal controlled pedestrian / cyclist crossing. The lack of detail and clear
commitment to pedestrian provision is a concern which it is hoped will be
addressed fully at the detailed planning stage.

- The Framework outlines the potential for public transport provision, making use
of existing services along North Deeside Road and through the possible
provision of a new loop accessed from Craigton Road and the distributor road.
The provision of such additional bus services has not yet been agreed and
details such as the provision of bus stops on the distributor road (it was
previously suggested by the Camphill Communities that bus stops could be
provided close to the Core Path leading north to Aberdeen Waldorf School), will
be carried forward to the detailed design and planning stage. Any provision of

Page 280



bus services along the distributor road underlines the importance of providing
safe crossings for pedestrians and walkers.

8. The Camphill Communities previously suggested that 20mph speed limits
should also be considered throughout the development and along the distributor
road. This should be considered through the detailed design and planning
process.

9. It would be of concern if plans were to be developed to close Friarsfield Road
at any point along its length (e.g. where it meets Craigton Road running east)
due to the new distributor road as this would serve to increase traffic on those
roads remaining open, with a potentially detrimental impact on safety issues. It is
understood from the Framework that the road will remain open but subject to
traffic calming measures.

10. The Camphill Communities welcome the proposal to include a three metre
pedestrian and cycle path along the line of the distributor road. It may be
appropriate to segregate cyclists and walkers along the route, depending on the
numbers of people likely to use it.

Page 281



Next steps

11. The Camphill Communities welcome the opportunity to comment on the
Friarsfield Development Framework. We would also welcome an early
opportunity to discuss these issues with representatives from Cala Homes /
Stewart Milne Homes in order that they can be reflected fully in detailed designs
and proposals for the site.

Page 282



24 July 2012

Ema
Dear Sirs
FRIARSFIELD DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

! refer to the consultation curremily being undertaken in respect of the above
Supplementary Guidance. On behalf of my client, CALA Management Ltd, | wish
to record support for the Development Framework as presently drafted.

CALA Management Ltd, as part owner of the Friarsfield site participated in the
preparation of the Development Framework. The Development Framework was
prepared following extensive public consultation previously agreed with Aberdeen
City Council. Representations submitted during the public consultation process
were given due consideration and the Development Framework addresses, where
practical, the issues raised.

Following completion of the Development Framework and its approval by the
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Committee, CALA Management Ltd prepared
and submitted a planning application for the initial phase of development in
accordance with the Development Framework. There has been limited objection to
that application which would indicate conformity with, and acceptance of, the
Development Framewcrk. The application has been the subject to ongoing
discussion with Development Management Officers and is likely to be determined
by the Development Management Sub-Committee in late September.

Page 283



24 July 2012 Aberdeen City Council

As a consequence, CALA Management Ltd contend that the Development
Framework has been the subject of adequate public consultation and the issues
raised have been addressed therein. As such, the Development Framework
should be adopted as Supplementary Guidance without further changes.

However, should the Council consider that amendments are necessary to address
new matters raised, CALA would wish to be informed in order to consider the
implications and ensure that any changes do not prejudice the delivery of the wider
allocation.

| would be grateful if you could confirm receipt of this representation and advise of
the outcome of the consultation process in due course.

In the meantime, should you have any gueries, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

Yours sincerely

John Findlay
Partner

Page 284



LOIRSTON DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
Dear Sir/Madam,

AS a former Convenor of Arts & Recreation who helped to set up the Loiriston
Recreational Area and Lochinch Interpetation Centre where the Ranger Service
do such great work by teaching school children about enviromental and climate
change, | am appauled to see this do called master plan for the area. Having
been a member of the planning committee for many years | am astonished that a
plan cobbled together by developers and rubber stamped by incompedent
planners who have totally ignored long standing council policies on district wildlife
sites of scientific interest,nature conservency areas and the core public footpath
network. For a city who has aspirations to be a City of Culture this would be an
enviromental disaster and the kiss of death for any such plan. The council has a
civic duty to protect all the above mentioned policies.

It is blatenly obvious that planners do not know this area, as much of it is
marshy,boggy ground that floods on a regular basis. It has extensive tree belts,
part of the Woodland Around Towns planted in partnership with Forestery
Commission as well as new tree planting at south end of the Loch and at Calder
Park also extensive drystane dykes which is part of our heritage.

| would respectfully ask for all councillors to refer to the excellent submission sent
to them by Nigg Community Council at the time the Football Stadium was up
for consideration. It shows in great detail the amazing Flora and Fauna and
wildlife this area posesses and highlights the councils own notice board endorsed
by Grampian Enterprise;SNH;Ferestery Comission which states that this fragile
area should be kept free from any development.

Mr George Urquhart

Page 285



LOIRSTON DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK OP77

For a council that has a proud reputation of enviromental excellence and has
asperations to be a City of Culture it is really quite extraordinary that they would
even consider destroying the Loirston recreational area that the citizens have
enjoyed the use of for nearly twenty years. It is a District Wildlife site of Scientific
Interest, a local nature conservation area criss crossed with core public footpaths
which the council has a legal duty to protect under the right to roam acts etc., it is
a lovely peaceful greenspace where anglers, dog walkers, ramblers and people
with children love to use.

| regard this proposal to destroy this area as an act of criminal enviromental
vandalism,morally indefencable probably illegal and sure to be legally
challenged. | will be contacting the Public Services Ombudsman on this issue.

There is little point in having district wildlife policies and Local Nature
Conservency Areas if you ignore them when developers come calling, even the
councils own notice board endorsed by SNH,Grampian Enterprise anForestry
Commission states this fragile area should be kept free from development. It is
further compounded by the proposal to demolish the Lochinch Interpretative
Centre this would be a scandalous waste of publc money and destroy a very fine
traditional barn restored by volunteers from B.P. (should have been a listed
building) and home to the Ranger Service who do a vital job of teaching our
youngsters how to look after the enviroment. | would urge Audit Scotland to visit
this under their best value remit, as hundreds of thousands of pounds from
countryside project and other partners were spent on this Centre.

Looking at what is proposed it would seem to me that the author of this report
has recycled his previous ideas for the Seaton Area which are gathering dust in
City Archives. Inappropriate high rise, high density blocks crammed together to
meet notional numbers in local plan and completely out of character with this site
and having no thought for the topography or hydrology present here. Given the
extreme weather conditions we are facing it would be foolish to build houses on
area that flood on regular basis, as this will affect the Leggarts and River Dee
catchment area.

The council owned area at Lochinch should be retained as greenspace to protect
the Flora and Fauna and wildlife. Given the fiasco with trees at Tullos Hill and
the tree for every citizen all tree belts must be protected most of which were

Page 286



Woodland in and around Town Plantings. the Drystane dykes including a
consumption dyke are part of our heritage and must remain.

| also wish to highlight the area next to the Wireless mast in Redmoss Road whre
council as part of community planning exercise designated a community
woodland and had volunteers plant 2,000 trees. This promise must be honoured
as it provides a vital wildlife corridor to the vitally important Kincorth Local Nature
Reserve

Given this attempt to steal public open space from the citizens of Aberdeen |
would respectfuly ask elected members to create a by-law or similer leglislation
that gives statuatory protection to all public parks.local nature reserves district
wildlife sites local nature conservencies areas across the city.

Mr George Urquhart

Page 287



Laura Robertson

Senior Planner

Masterplanning, Design and Conservation Team
Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Dear Laura

Consultation on OP77 Loirston Development Framework and Consultation
on OP43 Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig North East

Masterplan

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above Development
Framework and Masterplan. We have no specific comments regarding the detail
of either of these documents. \We do however welcome the references made in
each to the requirement for developments to contribute to the Strategic Transport
Fund as this is something that should be raised with developers at the earliest
opportunity.

In addition | would like to make you aware that the Regional Transport Strategy is
currently undergoing a re-fresh. Although this is unlikely to significantly change
the strategic direction for the development of the transport network in the North
East, some policies will be updated and amended and new policies introduced.

A main issues report is currently being consulted upon and can be found on the
Nestrans website at:
http://www.nestrans.org.uk/regional-transport-strategy-refresh-1.html

A further document that may be of relevance to you in finalising these documents
is the North East’s Regional Parking Strategy which can also be found on the
Nestrans website at http://www.nestrans.org.uk/regional-transport-strategy.htmi

Although strategic in nature, both these strategies contain a range of policies that
we would wish to see supported through in developments across the region.

Yours Sincerely
Kirsty Morrison

Nestrans

Page 288



f:j HISTORIC SCOTLAND

ALBA AOSMHOR

3 December 2012
Dear Ms Qakes

Consultation
OPT7T Loirston Development Framework

Thank you for your letter of 8 November 2012 seeking our comments on the
Development Framework for the OP77 site at Loirston from the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. The following comments are based on our statutory historic
environment interests. That is scheduled monuments and their setting, category A
listed buildings and their setting and gardens and designed landscapes and
battlefields in their respective Inventories. We would advise you also seek comments
from Aberdeen City Council’'s Conservation and Archaeclogy Services who will also
be able to advise on the potential for significant impacts on the histeric environment
and of potential impacts and mitigation for any sites of regional and local importance.

Having studied the supplied development framework | note that none of our statutory
interests will be affected by the proposals for the area in question. Therefore, other
than welcoming the preparation of this framework | can confirm we have no further
comments to offer.

Page 289



Ourref: PCS/123426
Your OP77

ref:
Rebecca Oakes If telephoning ask for:
Aberdeen City Council Nicola Abrams
Planning and Sustainable Developmen
Business Hub 4, Marischal College 4 December 2012
Broad Street
Aberdeen
AB10 1AB

By email only to: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dear Rebecca
OP77 Loirston Development Framework - consultation

Thank you for your consultation letter of 8 November 2012 which SEPA received
on 12 November 2012. We welcome the opportunity to comment on the
Development Framework. On the whole we consider the Framework to be
comprehensive and we consider the key issues of relevance to SEPA have been
identified. We have already provided Scoping advice to Aberdeen City Council
(SEPA Ref PCS/123174) on issues to be identified in a forthcoming EIA for
development in this area. WWe make the following comments which we trust will
be of assistance in shaping any development coming forward.

1. Drainage

42 The treatment of surface water runoff by sustainable drainage systems
(SUDS) is a legal requirement for most forms of development, however
the location, design and type of SUDS are largely controlled through
planning. We encourage surface water runoff from all developments to be
treated by SUDS in line with Scottish Planning Policy (Paragraph 209),
PAN 61 Planning and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems, PAN 79
Water and Drainage and Policy NE6 Aberdeen City Local Development
Plan. SUDS help to protect water quality, reduce potential for flood risk
and release capacity in the public sewerage network where the alternative
is use of combined systems. Discharges to combined sewers should be
avoided to free up capacity for waste water discharges.

4.3 We welcome the recognition in the Development Framework of the need
to incorporate SUDS into the development. It is important to ensure that
adequate space to accommodate SUDS is incorporated within the site

Page 290



4.4

4.5

layout. Consideration should be given to this matter early in the planning
process when proposals are at their most fluid and modifications to layout
can be easily made with less expense to the developer. Each individual
type of SUDS facility, such as a filter drain, detention basin, permeable
paving or swale, provides one level of surface water treatment. The level
of SUDS required is dependant on the nature of the proposed
development, for example residential or non residential, the size of
development, and the environmental risk posed by the development which
is principally determined by the available dilution of the receiving
waterbody. Best practice requires the following levels of treatment:

® Residential developments of 50 houses or less and
retail/commercial/business parks with car parks of 50 spaces or
less require one level of treatment for all hardstanding areas
including roads. We encourage this first level of SUDS to be source
control.

® Residential developments of more than 50 houses and retail/
commercial/ business parks with car parks of more than 50 spaces
require two levels of treatment for all hardstanding areas including
roads. An exception is run-off from roofs which requires only one
level of treatment. We recommend, as best practice, the second
level of treatment to be a basin or pond designed in accordance
with Sewers for Scotland Second Edition.

® Industrial developments require three levels of treatment for hard
standing areas and two levels of treatment for roads. An exception
is run-off from roofs which requires only one level of treatment. We
recommend, as best practice, the second level of treatment to be a
basin or pond designed in accordance with Sewers for Scotland
Second Edition.

® All roads schemes typically require two levels of treatment, except
for residential developments of 50 houses or less and
retail/lcommercial/business parks with car parks of 50 spaces or
less. For technical guidance on SUDS techniques and treatment for
roads please refer to the SUDS for Roads manual.

For all developments, run-off from areas subject to particularly high
pollution risk (eg yard areas, service bays, fuelling areas, pressure
washing areas, oil or chemical storage, handling and delivery areas)
should be minimised and directed to the foul sewer. Where run-off from
high risk areas cannot be directed to the foul sewer we can, on request,
provide further site specific advice on what would be the best
environmental solution.

The SUDS treatment train should be followed which uses a logical

Page 291



5.2

6.2

sequence of SUDS facilities in series allowing run-off to pass through
several different SUDS before reaching the receiving waterbody. Further
guidance on the design of SUDS systems and appropriate levels of
treatment can be found in the CIRIA C697 manual entitled The SUDS
Manual. Advice can also be found in the SEPA Guidance Note Planning
advice on sustainable drainage systems (SUDS). Please refer to the
SUDS section of our website for details of regulatory requirements for
surface water and SUDS. Comments should be sought from the local
authority roads department and the local authority flood prevention unit on
the acceptability of post-development runoff rates for flood control.

Pollution prevention and environmental management

One of our key interests in relation to major developments is pollution
prevention measures during the periods of construction, operation,
maintenance, demolition and restoration. The construction phase includes
construction of access roads, and any other site infrastructure.

We note that the Development Framework highlights that a Draft
Construction Environmental management Plan (CEMP) will be developed,
this will enable the applicant to systematically identify all aspects of site
work that might impact upon the environment (not just the water
environment), potential pollution risks associated with the proposals and
identify the principles of preventative measures and mitigation.. Details of
the specific issues that we expect to be addressed are available on the
Pollution Prevention and Environmental Management section of our
website.

Improvements to the Water Environment

We welcome the recognition of the opportunity for the development of this
site to contribute to improvements to the water environment related to the
objectives of the Area Management Plan. In order to meet the objectives
of the Water Framework Directive of preventing any deterioration and
improving the water environment, developments should be designed to
avoid engineering activities in the water environment wherever possible.
The water environment includes burns, rivers, lochs, wetlands,
groundwater and reservoirs. We require it to be demonstrated that every
effort has been made to leave the water environment in its natural state
and we note that this approach is promoted in the Development
Framework.

If the engineering works proposed are likely to result in increased flood
risk to people or property then a flood risk assessment should be
submitted in support of the planning application and we should be
consulted.

Page 292



6.3 Where developments cover a large area, there will usually be
opportunities to incorporate improvements in the water environment
required by the Water Framework Directive within and/or immediately
adjacent to the site either as part of mitigation measures for proposed
works or as compensation for environmental impact. We encourage
applicants to seek such opportunities to avoid or offset environmental
impacts. We note that the site is in proximity to Loirston Loch and a
number of small watercourses which are in poor condition due to point
source a diffuse pollution and channel modifications. Improvements which
might be considered could include the renaturalisation of channels, the
creation of buffer strips and provision of fencing along watercourses.
Fencing off watercourses and creating buffer strips both helps reduce the
risk of diffuse water pollution and affords protection to the riparian habitat,
this is in line with Aberdeen City Council's Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Buffer Strips which is highlighted in the Development
Framework.

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please contact me by telephone on
01224 266698 or e-mail at planning.aberdeen@sepa.org.uk.

Yours Sincerely

Nicola Abrams
Senior Planning Officer
Planning Service

Disclaimer

This advice is given without prejudice to any decision made on elements of the
proposal regulated by us, as such a decision may take into account factors not
considered at the planning stage. We prefer all the technical information required
for any SEPA consents to be submitted at the same time as the planning
application. However, we consider it to be at the applicant's commercial risk if
any significant changes required during the regulatory stage necessitate a further
planning application and/or neighbour notification or advertising. We have relied
on the accuracy and completeness of the information supplied to us in providing
the above advice and can take no responsibility for incorrect data or
interpretation, or omissions, in such information. If we have not referred to a
particular issue in our response, it should not be assumed that there is no impact
associated with that issue. If you did not specifically request advice on flood risk,
then advice will not have been provided on this issue. Further information on our
consultation arrangements generally can be found in How and when to consult
SEPA, and on flood risk specifically in the SEPA-Planning Authority Protocol.

Page 293



Comments from the Aberdeen Cycle Forum:

1. There are several very general statements about cycle paths within the
development, and about connecting new paths to existing ones etc but we will
need to see more detailed plans for the site as they emerge.

2. ltis important that the site has good cycle connectivity beyond the site:

a) City centre direction via Wellington Rd.

The existing cycle path along Wellington Rd is on the east side only up to the
Souter Head roundabout. A path is required on the west side of Wellington Rd to
give convenient access to the development, removing the need to cross over the
dual carriageway. North of the Souter Head roundabout, the cycle path connects
to the Abbotswell Crescent route to the George IV bridge. The opportunity should
be taken to develop a cycle route all the way down to the river Dee to connect
with National Cycle route 1 over the Wellington bridge.

b) West end direction via A90 Stonehaven Rd.

The path along the A90 should be developed into a quality cycle path. There is a
path along the road (although not clearly marked as a cycle path) used by
cyclists and there are two problems here.

Firstly, the path is very narrow and it is not wide enough for two bicycles to pass
without slowing down significantly, not mentioning that the path is used by
pedestrians too. The path should be widened and signed as pedestrian & cycle
use.

Secondly, almost all kerbs (if not all of them) that are located along the path are
not dropped, extremely frustrating and with absolutely no reason.

c) Cite centre via Nigg Way & Provost Watt Dr.

This could be an alternative way to the city centre. In the report they claim they
would provide connection to Kincorth area through or close to Kincorth hill which
ACF would support. The site definitely requires a recreational cycle link to
Kincorth Hill.

d) Remoss Road

At present, this is a relatively quiet road with a rural aspect. It should be
protected as a cycle and walker friendly route, offering connections for cyclists to
routes north east to Abbotswell Cres, north to Kincorth Hill, east through the site
to Cove and south via an enhanced connection towards the 'old' Wellington Rd.
Achieving this will require Redmoss Rd to not be a through road and for the main
access to the site to be via Wellington Rd.

Regards
Aberdeen Cycle Forum

Page 294



Rebecca Oakes

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB

Date: 5 December 2012

Dear Rebecca
OP77 Loirston Development Framework

Thank you for the notification of consultation re the above development framework,
which we received on 12 November 2012.

Although there are no designated sites for which Scottish Natural Heritage has
responsibility directly involved within these opportunity sites, | do note the concerns
raised by the local communities and other stakeholders during the consultation period.
We share some of these concerns, especially the potential impact of development which
does not contribute to the aspirations for biodiversity, green networks etc. outlined in the
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

My colleague Gillian Forbes has recently been consulted by your colleague, Gavin
Evans, seeking our comments on the screening/scoping of an Environmental Impact
Assessment for this development area. For your information, | attach a copy of that
response. As we have provided comments in that respect, | don’t propose to repeat
them here. We will continue to engage with the EIA process and provide any further
comments in that way.

| trust that is satisfactory.

Sincerely

Ewen Cameron
Operations Manager
Tayside and Grampian

Scottish Natural Heritage, Inverdee House, Baxter Street, Aberdeen, AB11 9QA
Tel 01224 266500 Fax 01224 895958 www.snh.gov.uk

Page 295



Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

For the attention of Gavin Evans

13 November 2012

Our ref: Development Control/Aberdeenshire
Your ref: P121437

Dear Gavin

Environmental Impact Assessment (Scotland) Regulations 2011
Proposed development to included residential 1500 units, employment
(11ha) and associated supporting development including education and
community facilities, infrastructure/access and landscaping works
Loirston, Aberdeen

Thank you for your consultation received on the 29" October 2012 requesting
comments from Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) on an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) screening and scoping opinion, for the development specified
above.

Background

The application is for residential led mixed-use development of up to 1500 units
in association with around 11 hectares of supporting employment land, a new
neighbourhood centre comprising local retail and commercial units, community
facilities, new education facilities including a new primary school. There is also
the potential to accommodate a new football or community stadium. The
applicants are seeking to secure Planning Permission in Principle (PPP) at this
site. Presently a Development Framework is being progressed for a wider area
showing how these proposals fit with other proposed schemes within the Local
Development Plan (LDP).

This development requires to be considered in relation to the Environmental
Impact Assessment (Scotland) Regulations 2011. In answer to your first query
then given the scale of development, 130.5ha, we consider that this proposal
may require an EIA.

Page 296



Should Aberdeen City Council decide that an EIA is required then we would like
the following topics to be considered in the Environmental Statement (ES). We
note that some of these topics have already been identified within the
Environmental Screening and Scoping Report;

Nature Conservation Designations
Ecology and Biodiversity

Landscape and Visual Impacts,
Open Space, Access and Recreation

PobN =

We provide these comments in Annex A under the headings above. Please note
that the comments provided are made without prejudice to any comments we
may make at a later date. If you require any further advice or information please
do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Gillian Forbes
Operations Officer
City of Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire

Page 297



Annex A
1. Nature Conservation Designations

River Dee Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

The development site drains into Loirston Loch which eventually discharges via
an un-named burn into the Burn of Leggart and then into the River Dee,
approximately 1.5km away.

The River Dee is designated as a SAC under the EC Habitats Directive for the
important populations of fresh-water pearl mussel, otter and salmon that it
supports. Further information on this European site, can be found via our
website at www.snh.org.uk under ‘Sitelink’. See
http://www.snh.gov.uk/docs/A423286.pdf for a summary of the legislative
requirements.

There is potential for runoff of sediment and pollution, to enter the River Dee
SAC, during construction and operation of the development. We therefore advise
that such impacts should be adequately addressed as part of the EIA.
Highlighted in the scoping report, the preparation of a draft construction
environmental management plan, adherence to the River Dee Area Management
Plan, suitable SUDS scheme and compliance with SEPA Pollution Prevention
Guidelines, are various means we welcome to mitigate impacts on the River Dee
SAC.

We are supportive of SEPA’s suggestion for a review of options for water course
enhancement.

Local Nature Conservation Site (LNCS) and Local Nature Reserve (LNR)

Loirston Loch is designated as a LNCS. As you will be aware LNCS are sites
designated by the City Council, with support from SNH, as the best examples of
habitat types in the local area or are particularly valued by the local community
as a recreational, landscape and educational resource.

Loirston is notified as one of the largest open water bodies in the Council area.
The open water, reed beds and marshy grassland support wetland vegetation
communities and the site is important for overwintering wildfowl and other bird
species. In addition, the loch is valuable for amenity and education.

Kincorth Hill to the north west of the proposed Loirston site is also a LCNS and a
LNR. Kincorth is dominated by scrub and heathland vegetation, with smaller
areas of woodland and grassland. This site is also important for recreation and
education.

Page 298



The potential impacts of the proposals on the LNCS and LNR should be
considered and reported within the EIA. Further information about these sites can
be sought from the Aberdeen City Council Environmental Planners and Ranger
Service.

Given the scale of the proposal, we recommend Aberdeen City Council consider
how the development contributes to objectives for habitats and species in the
Local Biodiversity Action Plan. It should also link to the findings of the City’'s
Nature Conservation Strategy.

2. Ecology and Biodiversity

We welcome the fact that contact has already been made with the North East
Scotland Biological Records Centre (NESBReC) for species records in the area.
In addition we note that advance ecological surveys have already been
undertaken in the autumn/winter of 2011 through to spring/summer 2012, to
inform the detail of the Development Framework. Results gained can be used to
identify if further survey is required, using appropriate methodologies for specific
species. Reports should include the presence, status, potential impacts of the
proposal, suitable mitigation/compensation measures and any potential licensing
requirements for the species.

We recommend that protected species surveys should include the following:

— Bats, which are listed on Schedule 2 of The Conservation (Natural
Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as European Protected Species (EPS)';

— Otters, which are listed on Schedule 2 of The Conservation (Natural
Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 as European Protected Species (EPS);

— Water voles which are protected under Schedule 5 of the Wildlife &
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)® with respect to 9(4);

— Badgers, which with their setts, are protected by the Protection of Badgers
Act 1992 (as amended)

— Red squirrels and their places of shelter (dreys) are protected under
Schedules 5 and 6 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)

Full details of Protected Species: Legislation, Appropriate Authorities and
Licensing Purposes can be found on the species licensing part of our website at:
www.snh.gov.uk/protecting-scotlands-nature/species-licensing

' SNH website: Protected mammals - Bats
www.snh.gov.uk/protecting-scotlands-nature/protected-species/which-and-how/mammals/bat-protection

2 SNH website: Protected mammals - Otters
www.snh.gov.uk/protecting-scotlands-nature/protected-species/which-and-how/mammals/otter-protection

® SNH website: Protected mammals — Shrew and water voles
www.snh.gov.uk/protecting-scotlands-nature/protected-species/which-and-how/mammals/shrew-and-vole-protection/

Page 299



Bats

Mature trees exist within the site which may provide bat roosting and foraging
opportunities. The results of the initial foraging/roost potential survey should be
used to inform on further survey work required, in relation to bats. The impact
assessment should take into account any proposed lighting. We welcome the
fact that the Development Framework has sought to retain existing woodland,
where possible, to mitigate against disturbance to bats.

Otters

The scoping report noted that initial surveys have detected otter activity in the
area. The ES should include full survey results including an impact assessment,
proposed mitigation and detail any licensing requirements. Otter surveys can be
undertaken at any time of the year but are best carried out from about March —
May when otter signs are usually most easily identifiable.

Water voles

There is potential for water voles to be present on site. Water voles can be found
in water courses of all sizes, including ditches and drains, and so may be present
in the area surrounding the proposed development. We recommend that a water
vole survey is carried out if any works are proposed within 5 metres of a
watercourse. Water vole surveys are best carried out in the summer when the
voles are active, from May to September.

Badgers

We note that badger surveys were completed in 2011/2012. Depending on the
findings, if any badger setts are discovered within the site of the proposed
development or close enough to be affected by the proposed development, it is
the responsibility of the developer to develop the site in a manner which complies
with the Badgers Act.

Red Squirrels

Red squirrels are identified as a priority species in the UK and Local Biodiversity
Action Plan. We therefore recommend that any woodland likely to be affected by
the proposed development is surveyed for signs of red squirrels, and details of
measures to protect the long term viability of the squirrel population in this area
are developed.

Birds

Loirston Loch is known to be locally important for overwintering wildfowl and
other bird species. We note that surveys for breeding and wintering birds have
already been carried out. These survey findings and any subsequent survey
results should help inform the ES and tie in with any Bird Management Plan that
may be required.

Habitats

Page 300



We recommend that the report includes a Phase 1 habitat survey of all habitats
within 250 metres of the proposed site. This survey should be supported by a
species list of any notable species or species of conservation concern. This
should be accompanied by a National Vegetation Classification (NVC) survey of
any important semi-natural habitats encountered on the site so that any potential
impacts can be assessed more fully. Further information about Phase 1 and NVC
habitat surveys can be found online*.

3. Landscape and Visual Impacts

6.3.1.1 Methodology

The approach described in the Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (GLVIA) — IEMA and IL (2" edition, 2002) should be used.
Assessments need to be rigorously documented and explained, as well as being
integrated and objective. Their presentation should be logical, clear and well-
structured.

The site selection process should be explained in the ES. The likely effect on all
landscape and visual resources and sensitivities (including landscape character,
landscape designations and visibility) should be addressed in the site selection
process in balance with other considerations.

Landscape and visual impact assessment should make use of the appropriate
Landscape Character Assessments, and all other relevant landscape and
planning documents. This should include best practice and policy guidance,

In addition, we recommend using more detailed landscape character assessment
in the consideration and assessment of the local landscape character and visual
amenity across the site and wider study area. The current guidance is provided in
Landscape Character Assessment - Guidance for England and Scotland (LCA) —
Scottish Natural Heritage and The Countryside Agency (2002)

One of the main purposes of the EIA process is its iterative nature in influencing
and improving design. The design sequence and key changes through the
process should be made clear in the ES.

Policy Guidance

We strongly recommend a design statement is produced for this development, in
accord with PAN 68 Design Statements, to reflect the sensitivity of the location.
This statement should reflect the policy context of current guidance, in particular
the Scottish Executive’s Designing Places. This describes the important role of
design in the landscape. In particular one of several key themes in the policy is
creating distinctive places that respond to local setting.

* Joint Nature Conservation Committee webpage with links to details about Phase 1 and National Vegetation
Classification
http://incc.defra.gov.uk/page-1425

Page 301



6.3.1.1.1.1As part of this Design Statement, principles and objectives for the
design of the settlement, buildings and infrastructure should be
developed, based on the assessment of landscape and visual
character. This would help to ensure a cohesive and holistic approach
which is sympathetic to the surroundings. These ‘design principles’
should include opportunities for innovative sustainable landscape
design which can reflect the local landscape character.

A Key policy document which should be considered is:

PSS Designing Places - Scottish Executive (2001)

6.3.1.1.1.1.1 Scoping — content of landscape and visual impact assessment

The basis upon which all aspects of the landscape and visual impact assessment
have been assessed, especially judgements of magnitude, sensitivity and
significance should be defined and made clear and distinct. Measures of
magnitude should distinguish between the scale, nature, and duration of effects.
The limitations of the assessment (e.g. the scale or accuracy of topographical
information) should be clearly stated.

The landscape and visual impact assessment should include a separate
assessment of the effects on both landscape and visual resources. The study
area should normally cover an area which is at least equal to the area of the
agreed Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) unless directed otherwise by the
planning authority.

The landscape and visual impact assessment should include the following:
¢ assessment of potential impacts from fixed locations as well as along

road corridors and other routes

¢ assessment of all stages: construction, operation, maintenance and
decommissioning

¢ details and assessment of all elements of the scheme
e proposals for mitigation and assessment of residual impacts
The assessment should consider the likely effects upon the following:
¢ the key landscape characteristics of the site that make it distinctive

e physical landscape features (e.g. loss of field boundaries, woodland or
other landcover etc.)

¢ the character and experience of the landscape,

e any recognised landscape or amenity values or visual resources, e.g.
designations.

Page 302



6.3.1.1.1.2Landscape Impacts

We support the use of the Landscape Character Assessment of Aberdeen to
inform the baseline assessment. However, we strongly recommend that a
further, more detailed scale of landscape character assessment at the local/site
level, would better inform the iterative masterplanning of the site, which should
be on going with the assessment of impacts. Through this iterative process, it
should be possible to demonstrate whether the site has the capacity to
accommodate the development of 1500 houses, with community facilities and
associated infrastructure (roads, car parking) without detracting from the quality
or character of the site in its landscape context.

Guidance as to the appropriate scale of assessment in relation to this
development can be found in the LCA Guidance document (see reference
above).

Visual Impacts

The application of an assessment study area and selection of viewpoints should
be based on the production of a Zone of Visual Influence (ZVI) for the
development as part of the visual assessment. As there will probably be a
number of buildings proposed which are of different scales in different locations,
it may be that more than one ZVI is required to fully appreciate the patterns of
visibility and potential impacts resulting.

Wirelines and photomontages illustrating the development (using mass block
modelling superimposed on photographs) should be produced from key
viewpoints. These visualisations are important to understand and inform the
consideration of the full extent of the development in particular to members of the
local community.

SNH would also expect the visual impact assessment to include daily/seasonal
changes as part of the assessment, taking account of any proposed lighting in
the assessment.

4. Access and Recreation, Open Space

We welcome the requirement to clearly define and maximise the Green Space
network within development design — providing and enhancing biodiversity links
as well as having other functions. (per ALDP Policy NE1). The provision of open
space should take account of the findings of the Open Space Audit of Aberdeen
and the strategy. We recommend that open space is designed as an integral
part of the development as a whole. It should take full account of the needs of
the community that would live at this site and those around it.

Page 303



We also support the transport assessment will incorporate pedestrian and cyclist
connectivity, as well as the footpath networks and greenspace corridors being
integrated into the development proposals. In addition we recommend that
suitable access links are made to the wider green space and access networks
throughout the city and further afield.

There may be opportunities for improving access to the Kincorth LCNS and LNR.
The ES should consider this while taking into account any potential impacts on
wildlife from access and recreation proposals and how these might be mitigated.

We support the suggestion for water course enhancement and the increased

access, recreational opportunities as well as ecological enhancement that this
may then provide.

Page 304



6th December 2012
Dear Rebecca Oakes

Consultation: OP77 Loirston Development Framework

| write with reference to your letter dated 8 November 2012 requesting comments in
relation to the above consultation.

Having reviewed the document, | would advise that Scottish Water have no additional
comments to make at this time. Comments have previously been submitted in regards to
the Loirston Masterplan Zone for the ALDP Action Programme.

As identified in the delivery requirements set out in the Loirston Development
Framework,a Water Impact Assessment and Drainage Impact Assessment will be
essential in order to identify the detailed requirements for the water and wastewater
infrastructure. This will be managed through Scottish Water’s development management
team, Customer Connections.

In addition, it should be noted that Scottish \Water supports the principal of Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) as part of the design, which will be required to meet
the specifications as detailed in Sewers for Scotland (2nd Edition) should the developer
wish the surface water system to vest in Scottish \Water.

| trust that the above information is acceptable in line with your consultation. Should you
require further clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Yours sincerely

Susanne Steer

Development Planner
SCOTTISH WATER

Page 305



COVE AND ALTENS COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Chairman: Mr N. Stewart
Secretary: Mrs. S. Porter
Web Site: www.cove-bay.com

Comments on Loirston Development Framework

Please see comments below from Cove and Altens Community Council. These comments are not
necessarily our full set of exhaustive comments in regard to the development, but an iteration
of views in its regard.

Connectivity
e There does not appear to be appropriate connectivity with the Cove community and the other
adjoining communities.

e Concerns over access to the local Doctor, Dentist, Chemist in Cove across the increasingly busy
A956 Wellington Road

¢ Concerns over the safety of school children from Cove and Altens crossing the A956 to attend
the proposed Secondary School.

¢ Concerns that the lack of facilities in the proposal would means driving out with the area for
basic necessities causing traffic.

e We suggest at least one underpass or walkway over the A956 to connect with the Cove
community

¢ Concerns that we do not believe the A956 will be able, as proposed, to cope with the amount
of new traffic that will be generated, especially during peak times, given the Balmoral extension,
the proposed stadium, houses being built at Charleston and the 1,500 houses, schools and
commercial units of this development.

e Concerns that the two access roads to the scheme would appear inadequate for the amount
of housing.

Greenspace

e Concerns that thoroughfares are inadequate having green strips alongside and a lack of any
sizable, usable greenspace

¢ The loch cannot be considered usable as open space when the water covers most of the area
¢ Concerns that much larger buffer zones are needed back from the loch and also from the
Kincorth Local Nature Reserve. A buffer zone of 50m from the loch may not be enough given the
current marsh areas around the loch. These areas need to be protected from the impact of the

proposed development

¢ Concern that there is no proper Wildlife Corridor between Kincorth Hill, loch and other areas.

Page 306



¢ Protected access to local nature reserve required to stop access to quad bikes etc.

¢ Concerns that the stream coming into and out of the loch requires much more consideration
to keep it in a healthy condition and suitable for wildlife

e A Trust should be set up to protect and look after the Loch and its perimeter before any
development takes place. Measures should be put in place ensure the longevity and endurance
of any trust put in place.

e All householders should have some agreement written into their deeds whereby they

contribute to the upkeep of the health of the loch and its environment. Either that or the new
homes should include a long term or lifelong maintenance payment.

¢ Concerns over provision for upkeep of open spaces. All open spaces should be brought up to a
condition whereby they can be adopted early by the City Council to avoid all the problems that
still exist with past developments.

Housing

¢ No provision or no obvious provision for sheltered housing

e Concerns over the frontage to the scheme as the city is entered, with the up to 5 storey
buildings.

e Concerns over the volume of housing and density

e Community gain should be used for facilities such as Community centre and/or Hall

e Community gain should not be frittered away on road improvements, traffic lights etc.
Facilities

e Areas should be earmarked for proper community facilities.

e Community facilities should not be an afterthought

¢ Framework should include recommendations and/or proposals for multiple social meeting
areas (indoors and outdoors) for all ages

Schooling
¢ Secondary school for the area should be a must have

e Concerns regarding safety of school children given proximity to proposed football stadium and
potential midweek fixtures.

Page 307



¢ Primary school required for area

Best Regards

Neil Stewart

Chair

Cove and Altens Community Council

Page 308



Planning & Sustainable Development,

Enterprise, planning and Infrastructure,

Aberdeen City Council,

Business Hub 4,

Marischal College,

Broad Street,

Aberdeen.

AB10 1AB 18" December 2012

Attn.

:- Rebecca Oakes

Subject :- Consultation: OP77 Loirston Development Framework

Dear Rebecca,

Nigg Community Council wish to respond to the full “Loirston Framework Development”.

Some of the points below have previously been raised at the various consultation events leading
up to the publication of the Framework and are of continued concern.

The large majority of the area in table 5.3.3 is showing block buildings of 3 or more
storeys high, which presumably consists of “apartments and flats, terraced units and
townhouses” (section 5.5.5). Only a minority area is shown for semi detached and
detached residences.

Buildings of 5 storeys, even with the upper storey “limited” and “set back” (5.5.4), will be
overwhelming adjacent to the flatness of Loriston Loch.  Currently there are no buildings
within the viewing horizon of Loirston Loch, which are more than two storeys high. This
number of storeys, leads to some development blocks with “higher residential density 55-
85 units per hectare” (Section 5.2.2). The “higher density” category limits, are
themselves too broad, - a banding across 30 units/hectare- to represent anything
meaningful. Low, medium and high all are defined with a banding of only 10
units/hectare.

Nigg Community Council considers, with respect to 1 & 2, that the Framework
Land Use and Density appears to be more suited for an urban area, rather than a
rural development.  Nigg Community Council recommends:

¢ Buildings throughout the Development, especially adjacent to Loirston Loch,
be limited to a maximum of 3 storeys.

e The residential density for any development block should be limited to a
maximum of 55 units per hectare. No development blocks should be in the
higher residential density of 55-85 units per hectare category.

¢ In light of the Framework, Aberdeen City Council, should reassess the number

of residential units required in the Loirston Development and reconsider the
original intention of 1200 units.

Page 309



The Framework Section 2.6.1 “Site Analysis Loirston Loch” and Section 2.6.3 “Setting and
Character”, both refer to Loirston Loch as a “man made feature” “created to drain the
surrounding area”. This is not true. Loirston Loch was originally a natural feature,
being identified, and named as Loch Loirston by the Scottish topographer Timothy Pont
(1565-1614) on what is probably the first drawn map of the area over 400 years ago.

This zoomable map is accessable through the National Library of Scotland at:

http://maps.nls.uk/pont/view/?id=pont11#id=pont11&zoom=4&lat=2788&lon=3786
&layers=BT

At some stage in the past, a small dam, still in existence, had been built to further
enhance the natural features of the loch.

¢ Nigg Community Council recommends, that the Framework wording be
corrected to fully represent the natural origins of Loirston Loch.

The Framework Section 5.18.1 recognises the recently reassessed, Loirston Loch LNCS
boundary, and ensures that all buildings are outwith the LNCS boundary.  Section 5.2.1
“Landscape Features”, considers Loiston Loch and the surrounding LNCS, to be of “high
landscape value and have been safeguarded”. But the Framework clearly indicates in
section 5.18.1 that the main “Primary Street” (5.3.10) caters for a main bus route, and a
“Secondary Street” (5.3.11) dissects the southwest extension of the LNCS in an area
labelled on the aerial visualisation in 5.10 as “Environmentally sensitive area protected
and enhanced”. Futhermore, two of the dissected elements of the LNCS are
downgraded to merely “Neighbourhood Open Space” and “Local Open Space” on the
Open Space Hierarchy map Section 5.4 page 45.

¢ Nigg Community Council recommends, that the LNCS and its boundary, should
be fully recognised and that all developments, buildings, roads, car parking
should not encroach in any way within the LNCS.

The Framework Section 5.3.2 and accompanying “Pedestrian Connectivity” map (page
40) recognises an Existing Right of Way, (highlighted in blue) which was originally a farm
track, linking Wellington Road, Redmoss Road and former farmsteads including
Balderstone (now known as Kildonan) on Redmoss Road. This linking track, is an
integral part of the heritage of the area, probably dating as far back, if not further, than the
dry stone dykes that the Framework takes into valuable consideration. The Existing Right
of Way runs mostly along the northern border of the Framework OP77 boundary, passing
along the northern boundary of the planned AFC Stadium, and is indeed recognised in the
AFC Planning Application/Approval. The path is designated in Aberdeen City’s Core Path
Network as Aspirational Path 3 (AP3) and forms the only link between Kincorth Hill, across
Loirston to Cove. We believe this linking footpath is protected under Scottish Law. The
Framework Section 5.3.2 (map and text) introduces an alternative AP3, using planned
“Secondary Streets” passing to the west and south of the planned AFC stadium. Section
5.3.2 outlines how the transition of the “Existing Right of Way” might be changed to the
Framework indicated AP3.

¢ Nigg Community Council is concerned, that a fully protected footpath marked
“Right of Way”, is being replaced by a path that is, by name, merely
“aspirational”. We recommend, that full legal protection be given to any
alternative to the Exiting Right of Way, and that any such protected alternative
be established before the Existing Right of Way is removed.

Page 310



¢ Nigg Community Council recommends greater consideration be given
incorporating Core Paths with Green Corridors rather than the road network.

The Framework Section 5.4 “Landscape Framework”, outlines the importance of “Green
Corridors” toward biodiversity. But the Open Space Categories map (page 47) does not
show good “Green Space Corridors” linking Loirston Loch LNCS and “Kincorth Hill Local
Nature Reserve”. Inevitably, a continuous linkage can not be achieved across a road,
but at the northern end of Loirston Loch, there is no “green corridor” linkage with Kincorth
Hill. At the southern end of the Loch along the exit burn, there is a narrow corridor linkage
but interrupted by a “SUDS location”. It is unclear as to how land deemed “Green
Corridors”, whose “primary purpose includes nature conservation”, (Section 5.4.7 Open
Space Category) yet at the same time be “Neighbourhood Open Space” (Open Space
Hierarchy map page 45) which can include “equipped play zones”. The table Section
5.4.7 “Open Space Category” line Natural Greenspace and Green Corridors column
“Loirston Provision”, states rather subjectively, that “A large proportion of open space,
identified as neighbourhood type, is suitable for greenspace or green corridor
categorisation”.

Nigg Community Council recommends:

e An effective, direct and continuous Green Corridor link, between the northern
end of the Loirston Loch LNCS and Kincorth Hill LNR. This would include a
minimum of road crossings, obtained by making some roads cul-de-sacs, thus
allowing the desired corridor links as uninterrupted as possible.

e A greater commitment within the Framework to keeping the Loirston Loch
LNCS and Kincorth Hill LNR Green Corridors as “natural” as possible and
devoid of wildlife-threatening features such as “play areas”.

The Framework Section 5.2.5 “Connections’, states “access to the Loirston site is
primarily from Wellington Road” with additional access from Wellington Circle, the AFC
Stadium entrance and Redmoss Road. The “Access and Junction Strategy” map (page
39) gives the “Potential Bus Route” along the “Primary Street” and continuing along
Redmoss Road, past Calder Park playing fields/Redmoss transmitter mast and
presumably down the hill through the existing Redmoss estate to the junction at West
Tullos Road. Redmoss Road through the existing estate, is a narrow developed road on
a relatively steep incline. The junction at West Tullos Road is already conjested during
morning peak traffic times and the right hand turn at this junction is inadequate and
dangerous.

Nigg Community Council recommends that:

e Redmoss Road through the existing Redmoss Estate, should not be used as a
bus thoroughfare.

¢ Road closure or severe traffic calming measures, should be effected on
Redmoss Road between the existing Redmoss estate and the Loirston
Development to ensure that congestion at the junction of Redmoss Road and
West Tullos Road is not further exacerbated.

Page 311



e The Framework Section 5.3.4 “Public Transport”, outlines existing bus services, but it fails
to recognise the value of the existing bus services along the A90 and the bus stop known
as Maryculter Road End (both sides of the A90) which has an easy, very short (30 metres)
pedestrian access to the Loirston Development at the southern end of Redmoss Road at
its junction with the Old Stonehaven Road.

¢ Nigg Community Council recommends :

the Framework take into account bus services and pedestrian access from the A90 at the
southern end of Redmoss Road.

e The Framework Section 5.5 “Land Use and Density Connections” and associated map
(page 49) and elsewhere within the document, caters for the allocation of land, as a
“Potential Site for gypsy and travellers plot”. That is a permanent site for
Gypsy/Travellers. The existing rural setting, with the convenience of small retail outlets,
schools and medical facilities within a reasonable distance of Loirston, has been attractive
to Gypsy/Travellers over many years and Nigg Community Council has had considerable
involvement with previous “unauthorised encampments”. Through experience, Nigg
Community Council has encouraged Aberdeen City Council to look for a permanent
authorised Gypsy/Traveller encampment site within a reasonable distance away from a
nucleus of the settled community, yet still within distance of required retail, educational
and medical facilities. With the largest concentration of residences within Loirston, under
the Framework, Nigg Community Council is utterly convinced that any permanent
authorised encampment site, located within the development is unlikely to be successful,
for both the Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community. The Community Council have
always stated, that a more rural site, possibly linked to the AWPR project, would be better
suited to both the settled and travelling communities.

Nigg Community Council recommends that:

o Aberdeen City Council review the requirement of a permanent authorised site
within the Loirston Development acreage, by looking at alternative locations
outwith the area.

e Any permanent Gypsy/Traveller site appropriate within the Loirston
Development be sympathetically located with respect to BOTH, the settled
community and the Gypsy/Travellers.

e The Framework Section 5.20 “Framework Options”, identifies various scenarios regarding
delivery of “Cove Rangers” and “AFC” football stadiums, and the need for a secondary
school. Since publication of the Framework, Nigg Community Council believes that the
aproved Cove Rangers Stadium development at Calder Park has now lapsed.  For
many years, the community of Nigg has been deprived of a “Community Centre” and
general community facilities. Bobby Calder Park (to give its full name) was always
intended for community sporting activities.

¢ Nigg Community Council recommends :
That Calder Park, should now be fully considered as a suitable location for either a

Framework-relocated Primary or a new Secondary school, which should include a
Community Centre with the following facilities :

Page 312



a) Versatile, large sports hall that can accommodate various sports
including indoor football, badminton, basketball, tennis, volleyball etc.

b) Smaller sports hall.

c) Outdoor all weather 11 a-side football/hockey pitche(s)

d) Outdoor 400 metre running track.

e) A dedicated fitness studio with weights, cardio machines etc.

f) At least two function rooms with infrastructure for video/audio
presentations and for a PlayGoup/Creche etc.

g) A catering facility useable by community members to provide
coffee/teas/snacks/sandwiches.

h) Stage facilities for the presentation of plays etc (within the sports
hall?).

i) Library (branch of Aberdeen City Council Library).
j) Doctors Surgery.

k) Dedicated Community Centre toilet facilities.

I trust that this comments submission from “Nigg Community Council”, will be taken
into account at the next planned meeting regarding the “OP77 Loirston Development
Framework™.

Yours sincerely,

Alan Strachan (chair)

for and on behalf of Nigg Community Council

Note :- Please confirm receipt of this email.

Cc :- Clr’s. Cooney, McCaig, Finlayson

Page 313



9" December 2012

Dear Sir
Loirston Development Framework

We are extremely concerned about the detrimental impact this proposed development will have
on the wildlife habitat and the integrity and overall eco-system of the Kincorth Local Nature
Reserve, the Loch of Loirston and their environment.

The impact on this important natural area from such intense building, vehicles, people and their
cats and dogs, along with the inevitable litter and pollution that will ensue, will be detrimental to
a healthy natural environment however well intentioned.

Kincorth LNR and the Loch of Loirston are not separate entities in wildlife terms but are a linked
eco-systems but are not treated as such in this framework. However both will be isolated from
one another and their linked eco-systems which are dependant on one another will be lost.

We would also highlight our following concerns:-

Kincorth Local Nature Reserve

e A realistic Buffer Zone must be provided between the development and the Reserve to
help protect this well loved and much used public amenity

e The impact of many people (with or without pets) accessing the Reserve from this single
point (Proposed connection between AP3 Core Path and existing Kincorth Hill Core Path
79 to be integrated into housing layout) will reduce the wealth of secluded habitat that is
now there.

e This location is one of the remoter areas of the site at the moment and distant from
habitation.

e Any access point must be restricted to prevent motorcycles, etc. from gaining entry.

e A procedure should be put in place to minimise the detrimental effect of fly-tipping and
litter. Access brings litter and flytipping and is a known factor.

e Noise and light pollution is not conducive to maintaining the status quo and will be
detrimental to it.

e A Wildlife Corridor shown on the drawings linking The Hill and The Loch, with bits and
pieces of grass here and there which is unacceptable and full linked corridor should be
provided.

e Roe Deer are a major part of the enjoyment of this landscape and range the area. The
proposal will pocket and isolate them to their detriment with no escape route except
through roads and houses. It will also access to drinking water which is unacceptable.

e Limited finances are available to maintain the Nature Reserve and it should not be the
responsibility of the Reserve to protect itself from this development. Developers should
be community aware enough to make financial provision to protect the Reserve from
their own activities. Funds should be provided to protect, enhance and maintain the
Reserve and protect if from this development.

e There is an ongoing fire risk on Kincorth Hill and the Ranger Service is in constant
communication with the local schools, the Fire Service and the Police at a cost to the
City. Developers should ensure that the risk is minimised.

e Funds through Planning Gain should be made available to enhance and protect the LNR's

Page 314



environment long term.

The Loch of Loirston

The whole Development Framework is wrapped around this large area of fresh standing
water and its importance to the development is highlighted but no consideration is given
to the impact of this development on the Loch and its surrounding area.The Loch is an
important and unique feature in the surrounding area.

The proposed Buffer Zone is inadequate and a realistic BZ must be provided.

Otters and many small water birds such as ducks and coot, along with invertebrates, use
the grasses and weeds along the water's edges. Close development and easy access to the
water's edge will deter wildlife utilising the area and reduce their natural habitat and
ecosystems.

If there is indeed a wish for fishing to continue, perhaps thought needs to be given to the
fly fishermen who, through Health and Safety issues, will require bank space that is
relative to their sport.

A Wildlife Corridor shown on the drawings linking The Hill and The Loch, with bits and
pieces of grass here and there which is unacceptable and full linked corridor should be
provided. All wildlife needs an uninterrupted access to water.

Noise and light pollution is detrimental to wildlife in the area.

A procedure to protect the area against fly-tipping and litter needs to be put in place.
Access brings litter and flytipping and is a known factor.

Page 63: Potential for building line to push forward to edge of Framework block to slow
traffic. This seems to be a push into the proposed riparian protected area.

Large birds such as Geese and Swans regularly land and take off from these waters, high
buildings and lights will affect their flight paths, will be detrimental to their well being
and continued use of the Loch. Geese in large numbers use the protection the Loch for
overnight roosting.

The developers should be required to set up and fund a Trust to protect and enhance the
Loch and its environs in advance of any ground-works taking place. The finances for this
should be documented to show how the Trust can be financed now and for the future ad
infinitum.

The above list of issues is not exhaustive and it is hoped that the developers and Planners will
take these points into consideration along with any submitted by other bodies when it comes to
the protection of these areas. The Hill and The Loch can not be mended as an afterthought.

A full Environmental Impact of this site is required and we would be pleased to receive a copy of
it so that we can comment on it.

Yours faithfully

Michele V McPartlin

Michele McPartlin
p-p- Moira Hay, Jack Innes, Isobel Watson
Members of Kincorth Hill Local Nature Reserve Management Committee

Rebecca Oakes

Page 315



Planner — Masterplanning, Design and Conservation
Planning and Sustainable Development

Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marishal College

Aberdeen AB10 1AB

10 December 2012

Dear Ms Oakes,

OP77 Loirston Development Framework
Thank you for providing Transport Scotland with the opportunity to respond on
the above consultation.

We welcome that the Masterplan recognises the need to contribute to the
Strategic Transport Fund. Provision of a new access onto the A90 following
detrunking is a matter for the Council.

However, the Masterplan is correct to state that a new access would not be
appropriate in advance of completion of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route.
Transport Scotland would welcome involvement in any future Transport
Assessments in relation to this area.

Yours faithfully,

Stuart Wilson
c.c. Malcolm Forsyth, Transport Scotland
David Liddell, Scottish Government

Page 316



]f'j HISTORIC SCOTLAND

ALBA AOSMHOR

4 December 2012
Dear Ms Robertson

Consultation
OP43 Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig North East Masterplan

Thank you for your letter of 8 November 2012 seeking our comments on the
Masterplan for the OP43 and OP44 sites at Maidencraig from the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. The following comments are based on our statutory historic
environment interests. That is scheduled monuments and their setting, category A
listed buildings and their setting and gardens and designed landscapes and
battlefields in their respective Inventories. We would advise you also seek comments
from your Council’s Conservation and Archaeology Services who will also be able to
advise on the potential for significant impacts on the historic environment and of
potential impacts and mitigation for any sites of regional and local importance.

Having studied the supplied Masterplan | note that none of our statutory interests will
be affected by the proposals for the area in question. However, the consideration of
the need to protect the setting of the listed buildings close to the site, as well as the
recommendation to retain as many as possible of the existing stone walls on the site is
to be welcomed.

Page 317



06 December, 2012

Dear Miss Robertson,

Proposed Development at Maidencraig, Aberdeen - Maidencraig
Masterplan.

We have read the Masterplan regarding the proposed development at
Maidencraig and have also consulted the website of the main contractor, Bancon
Developments. Our interest is that we are members of the Management
Committee of the Maidencraig Local Nature Reserve. Our concerns are how the
development of the area identified as Maidencraig South East on the plan will
affect the reserve which borders it to the south.

1. We feel that the proposed development will adversely affect the nature
reserve’s habitat and resident wildlife. The land proposed for development
currently acts as an extension to the nature reserve; it is an important buffer zone
between the nature reserve and adjacent housing and roads and is used for
breeding and raising young by some of the larger mammals such as Roe Deer
and Foxes.

2. We note that in the Ecological Report (Bancon website), page 7 under
Mitigation Recommendations, it is suggested that the south facing slope running
down to the Denburn be given over to the reserve. This slope is too steep to be
built on. This would be a welcome addition to the reserve.

3. Three points of major concern to us are as follows.

a) There appears to be provision on the plans for two or perhaps three footpaths

across the Denburn into the reserve. We object strongly to this as:

e This would lead to fragmentation of the reserve.

e This would obstruct the free passage of wildlife, particularly Roe Deer,
along the valley.

e This would encroach on a wild area that is valuable for breeding birds and
other wildlife.

e This could dramatically increase through traffic and risk turning a relatively
wild nature reserve into another city playground or park.

People wishing to access the reserve should do so at the existing entry points.
b) At the top of the slope there should be a robust barrier such as a fence, wall
or hedge to inhibit access to the reserve down the slope and prevent fly

tipping (this has been a recurring issue in the existing nature reserve car
park).

Page 318



c) The vista from the nature reserve across the Denburn valley, currently onto
open land and trees, will be spoilt by the development. The planting of tall
trees, such as Scots Pine (Pinus Sylvestris), on the south facing slope down
to the Denburn would mitigate this and would also support plans to increase
habitat for the Aberdeen Red Squirrel population.

In summary, we must try to preserve as much as possible of the current
wildness, habitats and vistas of this unique Aberdeen city nature reserve.

Yours sincerely,

Alistair Duncan Stephen Ballard

Page 319



Laura Robertson

Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen AB10 1AB

Date: 5 December 2012

Dear Laura
OP43 Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maindencraig North East Masterplan

Thank you for the notification of consultation re the above Masterplan which we received
on 12 November 2012.

There are no designated sites, for which Scottish Natural Heritage has responsibility,
directly involved so my comments relate to the way in which this development
contributes to the Council’s aspirations for biodiversity, green networks etc. as outlined
in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. On page 9, the masterplan states — The area
to the south of the Maidencraig south east is identified as a Local Nature Reserve and is
a valuable and popular recreation area. It is important that development of the
Maidencraig masterplan area does not detract from or impact on the value of this area.
As the masterplan identifies in the Vision and Over-arching Principles, it is the
connectivity of green/open space that is key, especially as urban development extends
on to greenfield sites. Green infrastructure is an element which is just as essential to a
modern city as roads and utility services.

There has been a lot of successful work recently around Aberdeen to control the non-
native grey squirrel. SSRS http://www.scottishsquirrels.org.uk/regional/ssrs-north-east-
scotland/ may be able to advise on ways in which design here could support that
programme, which has seen red squirrels return to parts of Aberdeen after an absence
of many years.

We welcome the approach taken in this masterplan which recognises the range of roles
that green/open spaces play, for biodiversity, habitat networks, recreation, outdoor
learning, healthier lifestyles and so on. The appendices are not attached to the plan — |
assume these are still in preparation. | am sure there is more than enough expertise
within the Council to advise on the further detail of these elements, but if there is
anything where you feel Scottish Natural Heritage could add value, please do let me
know.

Yours sincerely

Ewen Cameron
Operations Manager
Tayside and Grampian

Scottish Natural Heritage, Wynne Edwards House, 16/17 Rubislaw Terrace, Aberdeen, AB10 1XE
Tel 01224 642863 Fax 01224 643347 www.snh.org.uk

Page 320



Laura Robertson

Masterplanning, Design and Conservation Team
Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Aberdeen

6th December 2012

Dear Laura Robertson

Consultation: OP43 Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig North East
Masterplan

| write with reference to your letter dated 8t November 2012 requesting comments in
relation to the above consultation.

Having reviewed the document, | would advise that Scottish Water have no additional
comments to make at this time. Comments have previously been submitted in regards to
sites OP43 and OP44 and these have been included in the Masterplan document. In
addition, Scottish Water attended a Development Workshop with the developer, hosted
by Aberdeen City Council, and have advised the developer via the development
management process that a Water Impact Assessment will be required as well as a
Drainage Impact Assessment.

In addition, it should be noted that Scottish \Water supports the principal of Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) as part of the design, which will be required to meet
the specifications as detailed in Sewers for Scotland (2nd Edition) should the developer
wish the surface water system to vest in Scottish \Water.

| trust that the above information is acceptable in line with your consultation. Should you
require further clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Susanne Steer

Development Planner
SCOTTISH WATER

Page 321



Laura Robertson

Senior Planner — Masterplanning, Design and Conservation
Planning and Sustainable Development

Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marishal College

Aberdeen AB10 1AB

10 December 2012

Dear Ms Robertson,

OP43 Maidencraig South East and OP44 Maidencraig North East
Masterplan

Thank you for providing Transport Scotland with the opportunity to respond on
the above consultation.

We welcome that the Masterplan recognises the need to contribute to the
Strategic Transport Fund. It is noted that a Transport Assessment is underway
that will look at potential impacts on the road network including North Anderson
Drive which will remain a trunk road in advance of the construction of the
Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route.

Yours faithfully,

Stuart Wilson

c.c. Malcolm Forsyth, Transport Scotland
David Liddell, Scottish Government

Page 322



09/12/12
To Whom It May Concern:
Re: Maidencraig Masterplan

We write in connection with the above masterplan that proposes the development of
housing on two parcels of land identified as OP43 and OP44 in the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2012. Representing a group that operates out of Hazlehead Academy,
a school in the vicinity of the area, and also as individuals who represent that school on
the Den of Maidencraig committee, we strongly wish to object to the development of
houses in this area.

Our objections focus on the impact the development would have on the local
environment, regardless of any precautions that could be taken. Our concerns are
heightened due to OP43’s close proximity to the Den of Maidencraig, which is
designated a Local Nature Reserve under Section 21 of the National Parks and Access to
the Countryside Act 1949. This statutory designation serves to validate the importance of
the area to the local environment.

The masterplan states that “it is important that development of the Maidencraig
masterplan area does not detract from or impact on the value of this area” but we cannot
see how this is possible. One species that we believe the development would have a
detrimental impact on is the Roe Deer (Capreolus capreolus) — a herd of which we know,
from our observations of the site, frequent the proposed development area on OP43.

Roe deer avoid areas of human activity, which will obviously increase if the proposed
development goes ahead. With the A944 bisecting the areas where development is
proposed, and with the B9119 as well as our school, Hazlehead Academy, to the south,
we do not see how the deer are going to sustain themselves with such fragmented habitat.
Potentially, the development could lead to the herd coming into conflict with locals by
damaging property or causing collisions on the road.

In addition, it seems almost tautological that the housing development will cause
increased traffic in the area and therefore increased pollution. This could only be
detrimental to the surrounding area such as the Den of Maidencraig LNR, which would
be a prized jewel in any city and should be protected at all costs. Any physical pollution
would be coupled with the visual pollution caused by the proposed development. Visitors
to the Den of Maidencraig will be greeted with the sight of the 450 homes built on OP43
rather than the beauty of the natural environment as it currently stands.

As a school, we are fortunate to have the Den of Maidencraig on our doorstep and we
make sure to utilise that rare privilege as an educational resource with Science and
Biology classes for activities such as pond sampling. It is our belief that the proposed
development would squander the availability of outdoor education that we are fortunate
to have. Recently we have been liaisoning with Greenspace Scotland in their plans to

Page 323



transform the nearby Hazlehead Park into Scotland’s first Climate Change Park. It is our
opinion that the adjacency of the proposed development site to the park will only serve to
counteract this innovative initiative.

It is for the reasons outlined that we consider the proposed development to be wholly
inappropriate, especially as we near 2013 — the Year of Natural Scotland — which aims to
promote and celebrate Scotland’s natural beauty and biodiversity. As a group, we aim to
do the same and we implore you to consider the natural beauty and biodiversity of the
local area and how it can only be adversely affected by any development of this nature.

Yours faithfully,

Stuart Hay and Calvin MacKinnon
Chairmen of the Hazlehead Academy Eco Committee

Page 324



Following up on the Maidencraig Masterplan provided on the Aberdeen City
Council website, | have the following comments to make:

P11 "Access and Connectivity"

The proposed southern development has a perimeter path, this should join in a
straight line to the existing path that comes from Hazlehead Academy, otherwise
users will just make a muddy shortcut rather than take the detour.

Fig 20

There appears to be a path which does not meet at the western crossing from
the southern development, if this is the case then | would recommend that it is
amended to do so, in order to discourage people from taking a quick short cut
option and crossing the open road.

Fig 24

For both the east and west junction proposals, they are referred to as "left in - left
out” type. My view is that cyclists would less than keen with being channelled off
outwards to Kingswells if they wish to go towards town (or vice versa) and they
would most likely just go onto the traffic island in the middle and wait for a
chance to join the opposite direction traffic. As an alternative, I'd suggest the
incorporation of ASL boxes in the middle so that cyclists can safely know where
to sit and additionally to prevent drivers getting annoyed at yet another case of
cyclists doing illegal manoeuvres. | would also propose the use ASL boxes at all
of these junctions.

Fig 36 & 37

Within these Figures, | note that there is reference to a segregated cycle path. |
would question whether there are potential problems including use by
pedestrians, or vice versa cyclists on the pedestrian path. Also there is no
indication of how the cycle path would integrate with road junctions within the
development although on (p35) there is the suggestion the cyclist should be
considered as having priority out with the bus route. There is a suggestion drivers
will naturally give way to pedestrians (p33) but from bitter experience | would
suggest that this is made a more formal arrangement. Also | see that 30mph is
given as the speed limit for the bus route (p35), for this development | would
suggest it is lowered to 20mph.

General Points

1) Traffic Volume

Considering the Tesco has just opened and that Morrison’s soon be developed
also on the Langstracht. | have concerns about traffic volume both in longterm
though particularly during the period between completion of Maidencraig and
completion of the AWPR. | think the speed limit proposed around the area of the
central access junction is 40mph which in my view may be too high if the traffic
volume increases, this may be worth a rethink.

Page 325



2) Path Lighting

| did not see reference to lighting of paths throughout the developments paths
network, I'd recommend that lights are included on all core routes so that evening
use is not precluded.

3) Suggestions for Developer support for the local Community
Two potential areas which | suspect would be viewed favourably by the local
community in support of the Developer’s proposal are:-

i) Provision of a linking section for the eastern leg of the northern development
section so that it joins route 45 allowing it to go round the top of the outer
Sheddocksley pitch and then down to the path between pitches and onto the
farm track which leads to the opening on Howe’s Rd beside the existing
Women's Refuge Home.

i) Support for the nearest school Kingsford Primary in terms of assessing a set of
safe access routes for youngster to walk and cycle to school, (ie this could be
supporting 20's Plenty signs, island in the middle, speed bumps, cycle lane on
pavement etc).

Rgds

lan Mitchell
(Aberdeen Cycle Forum Member)

Page 326



23 July 2012

Our Ref: GMC / AMN / 210461

Development Plan Team i
Planning & Sustainable Development o Tpamathe B
Enterprise Planning & Infrastructure B | L0l phss
Aberdeen City Council /1 1 24 JUL

Business Halls 4 '

i

|
Ground Floor North % b 7 | Pt 5N | Adeen §
Marischal College o masmen L P —
Aberdeen <K |
AB10 1AB :

Dear Sirs,

Planning Briefs, Development Frameworks and Masterplan Consultations
Oldfold Development Framework

Keppie Planning & Development are instructed by CALA Management Ltd to continue to liaise with
Aberdeen City Council during this pre-application consultation stage.

As you are aware, a considerable level of public and stakeholder consultation has been undertaken
prior to submitting the “Qldfold, Milltimber Development Framework and Masterplan™. This document
and accompanying report was submitted to, and approved by, The Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure Committee on 31 January 2012,

The accompanying Committee Report and papers articulate the level of public and stakeholder
participation undertaken. It was agreed that his document would form the framework for future
planning applications, following Committee approval.

CALA Management Ltd are fully committed to, and support, the content of the Development
Framework and Masterplan for Oldfold, Milltimber.

Having undertaken a proactive engagement with all parties, including the local community, we seek
the Framework and Masterplan be supported and maintained in its current form.

The client group are committed to an early delivery of this release location and, have moved on to
preparing detailed designs and plans based on the above documentation, which evolved from the
previous consultation and subsequently approved Framework and Masterplan. In addition,
preparatory survey work has been undertaken both an off site, including discussions with ACC
Education in relation to scale and impact of the development, with a view to procuring capacity in line
with site programming.

As a consequence, we earnestly hope that this second consultation process, following earlier

significant community, stakeholder and Council input, will not require any material changes as the
outcome of that could compromise the delivery timescales, a situation that we are keen to avoid.

Page 327



We trust the enclosed is of assistance and we look forward to continuing with this process through
the preparation of a planning application “in principle” including the preparation of a Masterplan for
the entire site. Applications would follow on as appropriate in relation to matters specified by
condition.

It should also be noted in this context, that the agreed pre-application procedures are now about
complete, and we are moving on 1o the Development Management stage.

Finally, should new matters arise from 3™ parties as a result of the consultation, CALA would be keen
to provide additional information to aid the Council's assessment should that be necessary.

In the meantime, should you require any further information or assistance, please do not hesitate to
contact Gordon MacCallum of Keppie Planning and Development.

Yours faithfully

Gordon MacCallum
Director

Page 328



Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 330



Agenda ltem 7.4

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013

DIRECTOR Gordon Mclintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Strategic and Local Transportation Projects

Update Report

REPORT NUMBER: EPI1/12/263

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the progress to date of
various strategic and local transportation projects within Aberdeen City and
the wider area. These projects flow from the development of the Regional
Transport Strategy (RTS) produced by Nestrans and the Council’s own Local
Transport Strategy (LTS).

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that Members:

a) Note the contents of this report;

b) Endorse development through Nestrans as outlined in section 5
of the report, including Board decisions and progress on the
2012/13 programme of works;

c) Approve a programme for the refresh of the Aberdeen Local
Transport Strategy and instruct officers to begin the process and
to routinely report on progress;

d) Agree to Aberdeen City Council participating in ‘In Town Without
My Car Day 2013’ and instruct officers to proceed with the
necessary road closure on Sunday 22™ September 2013;

e) Note the outline results from the pedestrian footfall surveys, on-
street interviews, online survey and stakeholder workshops
undertaken as part of the development of a Sustainable Urban
Mobility Plan (SUMP) for Aberdeen;

f) Inform officers if Members would like, either individually or as a
group, a presentation on the full results of the SUMP
consultation once these have been fully analysed; and

g) Approve the summary draft response to the Cycling Action Plan
for Scotland refresh and instruct Officers to submit a full and
formal response to the Scottish Government on behalf of
Aberdeen City Council.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 331



The projects described in this report are being funded through various
budgets including Nestrans, the Regional Transport Partnership. Details are
included in the relevant sections. There are no implications for approved PBB
options.

4.

None

5.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

A) Issues Requiring a Committee Decision

1

1.1

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

Nestrans Projects and Programmes

The Nestrans Board met on the 9™ October 2012 and on the 12"
December 2012 and the minutes of these meetings will be included
within a future report.

Nestrans Capital Programme 2012/13

The capital programme expenditure for 2012/13 was approved at the
Nestrans Board meeting on 18" April 2012. The programme within
Aberdeen City totals approximately £976,000 and an update on those
projects still outstanding is provided below.

Active Travel

Core Paths
A series of improvements are taking place on the following Core Paths:

e Core Path 8: Auchmill Community Woodland - now subject to a
larger scope of works than originally envisaged which should be
complete by the end of February 2013;

e Core Path 61: Hazledene Road — Countesswells Road/Hayfield
Road - the original scope of works is complete and further work
is now taking place to take advantage of savings made
elsewhere in the programme;

e Core Path 63: Den of Cults — work should be complete by the
end of January 2013;

e Core Path 66: Deeside Line — the original proposal for works is
due to be completed in February 2013. Additional drainage
mitigation works are being investigated to take advantage of
savings made elsewhere in the programme;

e Core Path 68: Den of Cults - work should be complete by the
end of January 2013;

e Core Path 69: Duthie Park - works completed in December
2012;

e Core Path 76: Lovers' Walk - works completed in December
2012; and

Page 332



e Core Path 78: Coastal Path - landslip has caused a gap in the
path. A new reduced scope of work should be completed in
February 2013.

Physical works will be accompanied by promotion and signage.

Aberdeen to Blackburn Cycle Route

Following the successful completion of the Traffic Regulation Order
(TRO) process, work is now underway on implementing the first phase
of the route, from Aberdeen to Dyce, including lining and signing and
the upgrading of two pedestrian crossings to toucan crossings, one
located on the A96, west of Sclattie Park Roundabout, and the other on
Great Northern Road, opposite Queen Street in Woodside. This phase
should be completed by the end of February 2013.

Cycle Demonstration Project

Following the successful completion of the TRO process, a number of
shared use pavements in the project area (Dubford Road and
stretches of Greenbrae Drive, Greenbrae Walk and Greenbrae
Crescent) are currently being formalised through signage. This
completes Links 2 (Greenbrae Crescent to Greenbrae Drive), 5
(Dubford Road) and 7 (Greenbrae Drive West) as outlined in the
Greenbrae Cycle Project Action Plan.

By the end of February 2013, a popular pedestrian and cycle path
running from the Seaview housing development to Greenbrae Drive
(Link 3) will be upgraded to a tarmac surface while a second path
running from the rear of Greenbrae School to Denmore Road (Link 6)
will be implemented by the end of March. These works should improve
access for cyclists and pedestrians to the school and to the retail and
employment opportunities on Denmore Road and will be accompanied
by the installation of physical build-outs on Greenbrae Drive to slow
motor vehicles down on this busy residential street and to provide a
safer crossing environment. As mentioned in a previous report to this
Committee, a grant of £35,962 was received from Sustrans Scotland’s
Community Links Fund 2012/13 to match-fund these improvements.

Signage is being installed to alert users to these new paths and to
direct cyclists to two further recommended on-road cycle routes,
one running from Seaview Place to join with Link 3 (replacing Link 10
in the original plan), the other forming the first stage of Link 11
(Dubford Gardens to Dubford Road). Some maintenance work,
including the laying of a new granite dust surface along a small section
of the route, has also taken place along Link 11 in anticipation of
formalising this as a cycle route during 2013/14.

A launch event to formally open the new routes is being planned for the

springtime and will coincide with the publication of a ‘Greenbrae Cycle
Map’, showing all the cycle routes and facilities in the area.

Page 333



1.2.3

1.2.4

1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

Officers have identified a further route for implementation during
2013/14 to link residents of Dubford to the community facilities on
Jesmond Drive, particularly Oldmachar Academy and the Middleton
Park retail opportunities. This will likely take the form of an extension of
the shared use facility along Scotstown Road and Jesmond Drive.
Should a budget be secured for this work, further details will be
provided in a future report.

Public Transport
A96 Park and Choose/Dyce Drive Link Road

Work is continuing on the specimen design for inclusion in the
Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) contract.

Aberdeen City and Shire Joint Bus Stop Information Initiatives
The programme of provision/replacement of timetable display cases at
bus stops throughout Aberdeen City and Shire is continuing.

Upgrade Bus Lane Enforcement Cameras on Strategic Bus Corridors
Bus lane camera posts are now in place, while cameras and backroom
equipment should be installed by the end of January 2013. System
testing will be carried out between January and March alongside a
publicity campaign before the scheme becomes operational in
April.

Airport Bus Turning Circle

The planning application was lodged at the end of November 2012.
Design and tender documents should be complete by the end of
March 2013.

Night Time Transport Zone
Lit signs for late night bus stops in the City Centre have been
purchased and will be installed by the end of March.

Strategic Road Safety Improvements

Road Studs and Lining
A programme of renewing road studs and relining works on Wellington
Road and the A944 is continuing.

Nestrans Revenue Programme 2012/13

The revenue programme expenditure for 2012/13 was approved at the
same meeting and details of the programme, totaling £324,000, are
listed below along with scheme updates.

Bus Action Plan

Bridge of Don Park & Ride Feasibility

Page 334



1.3.3

1.3.4

2.1

It is not anticipated that any further work will be carried out by officers
this financial year as the Council is in the process of tendering for a
development partner for the Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference
Centre (AECC) and the outcome of this will have a significant impact
on the final location of the Park and Ride site.

Bus Link Improvements to Anderson Drive

A report has been completed, identifying the possible introduction of
pedestrian phases on all legs of the Lang Stracht/North Anderson
Drive junction and possible improvements to signal timings on the east
— west movement of traffic at the Great Western Road/Anderson Drive
junction. Work is ongoing to identify further improvements that can be
made along this corridor.

Upgrade of Backroom Office Equipment for Bus Lane Decriminalisation
See Section 1.2.3.

Project Feasibility and Monitoring

Bridge of Dee - Project Feasibility & Development

The pre-appraisal report (Volume 1 of 4), the outcomes of which were
agreed by this Committee in May 2012, can be found on the Council
website alongside all other information relating to the study:
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/transport_streets/roads_pavements/tra
nsport_projects/roa_access_from_south_home.asp.

A meeting was held with adjacent Community Councils on 10™
December 2012 to enable them to discuss the pre-appraisal and
subsequent progress on the Scottish Transport Appraisal Guidance
(STAG) process. There are also continued opportunities for
stakeholder and public engagement throughout the appraisal process.

The following additional elements of work have been identified for
progression during 2012/13:
¢ Environmental Assessment — to be completed in January 2013;
e Technical Development - to be completed in February 2013; and
e Traffic Modelling — to be completed in February 2013.

Part 1 Appraisal Summary Tables (ASTs) and Volume 2 of the STAG
report should be completed for consideration by the end of March
2014.

It is therefore recommended that Members endorse development
through Nestrans as outlined above, including Board decisions and
progress on the 2012/13 programme of works.

Local Transport Strategy

In the November report, Members were advised of the need for a
refresh of the Aberdeen Local Transport Strategy (LTS) and instructed

Page 335



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

officers to report back to this Committee with a suggested programme
of activity including public and stakeholder engagement.

The proposed programme of activity is as follows:
e February 2013 — Preparation of a Main Issues Report (MIR),
Monitoring Statement, Strategic Environmental Assessment
(SEA) Scoping Report and Habitats Regulation Assessment
(HRA).
e April 2013 — Consultation with stakeholders and members of the
public on the MIR, SEA and HRA.
May 2013 — Collation of comments on MIR, SEA and HRA.
June 2013 — Refresh of LTS 2008 to Draft LTS 2013.
July 2013 — Draft Action Plan.
September 2013 — Present Draft LTS and Draft Action Plan to
E,P& Committee with Equalities and Human Rights Impact
Assessment (EHRIA) and SEA.
e October 2013 — Consultation with public and stakeholders.
e November 2013 — Collation of comments and changes to

documents.

e January 2014 — Present Final LTS and Action Plan to E,P&l
Committee.

e February 2014 - Publish LTS, Action Plan, Executive Summary
and SEA.

It is therefore recommended that Members approve the programme for
the refresh of the Aberdeen Local Transport Strategy and instruct
officers to begin the process accordingly and to routinely report on
progress.

European Mobility Week 2013

European Mobility Week is an annual campaign in September which
encourages local authorities throughout Europe to introduce and
promote sustainable transport measures and to invite citizens to try out
alternatives to car use. The week culminates in ‘In Town Without My
Car Day’, where participating local authorities close a road to vehicular
traffic, allowing citizens to experience the benefits (in terms of health,
noise, safety and general atmosphere) of a usually busy street
becoming traffic-free for the day.

Aberdeen City Council has taken part in European Mobility Week and
‘In Town Without My Car Day’ since 2009, arranging and supporting
(with the Getabout group) a series of sustainable transport themed
events and activities both internally and in schools, public sector
institutions and businesses throughout Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire. An ‘In Town without My Car Day’ event is usually held
locally. These have been increasing in prominence, with the biggest to
date being 2012’s event at the Beach Esplanade, which included on
the closed off section of road: the Getabout Bike Roadshow, which

Page 336



3.3

3.5

3.6

41

allows members of the public to try out a variety of types of bicycle with
the aim of showing them that cycling is an activity that can be enjoyed
by all ages and abilities; free rickshaw rides along the promenade for
members of the public; a free bike doctor undertaking maintenance of
visitors’ bicycles; members of the Council's Transportation and
Environmental Health teams on hand to discuss transport and air
quality issues; and representatives of the City’s two main bus operators
and the Commonwheels Car Club promoting public transport and car
clubs as responsible modes of motor transport.

Following a number of fatal and serious pedestrian and cyclist
accidents in Aberdeen during the last few months of 2012, road
safety will be the main theme of this year's campaign. Activities will
concentrate on raising awareness amongst all transport users
about the need to be seen by, and to be vigilant around, others,
with an emphasis on more vulnerable road users. For the 2013 event
officers would like to host in a high profile location with
opportunities for the public to participate in ‘hands on’ activities
including gaining first hand experience of sitting in an HGV cab and
understanding blind spots. In order to undertake this activity a
large space will be required, therefore the preferred location, in terms
of prominence, visibility and space, is Schoolhill between Blackfriars
Street and Back Wynd. Discussions have now commenced with
colleagues in the Traffic Management and Street Occupations teams
over the suitability of Schoolhill as a location for such an event. Hosting
the event on a Sunday should minimise disruption to the travelling
public caused by the road closure, as traffic levels are lighter and public
transport frequencies significantly reduced.

It is anticipated that the costs for the event will be met by Nestrans, via
the Getabout partnership, with match-funding sought from the
Scottish Government.

It is therefore recommended that Members agree to Aberdeen City
Council participating in ‘In Town Without My Car Day 2013’ and instruct
officers to proceed with preparing the closure of a suitable City Centre
road to motor vehicles on Sunday 22" September 2013 from
approximately 0700 to 1800.

Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan

In the November update on the City Centre Sustainable Urban
Mobility Plan (SUMP), previously the City Centre Transport Masterplan,
Members were informed that surveys and consultation had been
undertaken with members of the public and stakeholders. This work
contributes towards Stage 3 of the SUMP, ‘Analysis of Existing
City Centre Transport Network’, and took the form of footfall surveys,
on-street interviews, an online survey and stakeholder workshops.
Initial analysis of the results has been undertaken, however additional
cross tabulation work on the results of the on-street and online surveys

Page 337



is still ongoing. Given the large number of responses additional time
has had to be factored in for analysis.

4.2 Here follows an outline of the results of the various consultation
exercises. These are presented for information purposes only; at
present no action is being proposed as a result of the information
gathered.

Footfall Surveys
Footfall surveys were undertaken in the City Centre on Wednesday 3
and Saturday 6™ October 2012 between the hours of 0600 and 2200.
Cameras were set up to capture pedestrian movements across the City
Centre at 25 sites and counted movements in both directions. The
table below summarises the findings:

Wednesday 3™ October Saturday 6" October

Total number of 171,521 199,863

pedestrians passing

through the 25 sites

Busiest times 1300-1330 and 1645-1715 1330-1515

Busiest sites (number of | Union Bridge (south side) — Station Steps (Guild St/Union

pedestrians in both 15,271 Square) — 23,785

directions) Union St (north side at Music | Union Bridge (south side) — 21,511

Hall) — 15,035 George Street (south end at John

George St (south end at John | Lewis) — 18,788

Lewis) — 15,032 Union Street (north side at Music
Hall) — 15,791

On-street Interviews

In addition to the pedestrian counts, concurrent on-street interviews
were undertaken at five locations across the City. 301 responses were
obtained and the results are summarised below:

e Just over half of the respondents (48% on Wednesday and 60%
on Saturday) visited the City Centre every day.

e Shopping, work and visiting restaurants and cafes were the main
reasons for visiting.

e Union Street, Union Square, and the Trinity, Bon Accord and
St. Nicholas Centres were the most popular locations for people
to visit.

e Walking and travelling by bus were the two most popular forms
of transport into the City Centre both during the day and at night.

e The main reason for people choosing their mode of transport
was convenience, with time and cost featuring too.

e Most interviewees perceived it as “easy” or “very easy” to get
around the City Centre by walking, bus, motorbike, taxi and car.
Cycling received a more mixed response with a third of
respondents saying it was “very difficult” or “difficult” followed by
“easy” as the most popular answers.

e For those who perceived a mode to be difficult, “takes too
long” was the most popular answer for walking, “dangerous or
scary” for cycling, “too expensive” for bus, “too dangerous” for

Page 338




motorbike, and “too expensive“ for taxi. “Traffic congestion”
followed by “difficult to park” topped the list for cars.

e The modes of transport that the greatest number of people had
tried were walking and bus, followed by car, then taxis. Some
people had tried cycling but very few had used a motorbike.

¢ When asked, without choices, what interviewees thought could
be improved in terms of transport to, from and within the City
Centre the most popular answers were:

» Cheaper fares and greater competition for First Bus;
* Better bus reliability with more regular services;

* Increased bus lane provision;

* Better and cheaper parking;

« Better provision of cycle lanes; and

* Reduced congestion in City Centre.

e When asked, without choices, what interviewees thought worked
well in terms of transport to, from and within the City Centre the
most popular answers were:

* Bus lanes (when present);

* Number of bus services, frequency and choice;
* Good night buses;

* Clean buses; and

* Clean car parks.

e When asked if they had visited other cities in the UK or further
afield and, if so, which ones and what they liked about them, the
five most popular answers from interviewees were:

* New York — lots to do, culture, good transport, ‘it
buzzes’;

* London — lots to do, great places to eat;

* Edinburgh — easy to access, cheap buses, lots to do,
good shops, independent shops;

» Aberdeen — because its home; and

* Glasgow — whole environment, shopping area.

Online Questionnaire

The online questionnaire ran from the 1% of October until the 2™ of
November 2012. It was promoted via the websites of the Council and
Nestrans and a press release was launched the week in which the
questionnaire went live. This led to almost 500 questionnaires being
completed. The results are summarised below:

e For those who accessed the City Centre daily, the most popular
reason was “work” followed by “passing through”. For those who
came once or twice a week it was “shopping” followed by
“restaurant and café”.

¢ Union Street was the most popular area to visit followed by Bon
Accord/St Nicholas, Union Square and then the Trinity Centre
which was the same result as the interviews.

e For travel into the City Centre, bus was the most popular mode
of transport during the day, followed by walking, driving alone
and then car sharing. Car sharing was the most popular option
for the evening, followed by bus, walking and taxi. Convenience

Page 339



was the most popular reason for the chosen mode followed by
time and cost.
For perception of getting around by different modes of transport,
most people perceived walking to be very easy, bus was neither
easy nor difficult while taxi, motorbike and car were judged to be
more easy than difficult. Only cycling was perceived as more
difficult than easy.
When asked why they had rated any mode as poor or very poor,
the most popular response for bus was the poor level of service
perceived, much of which related to the cost; for cycling it
was the perceived danger and lack of cycle lanes; for taxis it
was cost; for cars it was congestion and a perception of poor
traffic management; for walking the main points raised were
poor connectivity and narrow, badly maintained footways.
When asked which modes they had tried, most people had tried
walking or taking the bus with car just slightly behind. Very few
had tried the motorbike.
When asked, without choices, what respondents thought could
be improved in terms of transport to, from and within the City
Centre the most popular answers were:

* Improve bus services/links;

* Improve cycle lanes/routes;

* Improve pedestrianisation/pavements/walking;

* Sort road network/ease congestion;

* Reduce/remove cars from Union Street and City

Centre; and

* Improve trains.
When asked, without choices, what respondents thought worked
well in terms of transport to, from and within the City Centre the
most popular answers were:

* Buses/Bus Lanes/Timetables;

» Walking/pedestrianisation;

* Nothing;

* Travelling by car;

* Trains; and

* Taxis.
When asked if they had visited other cities in the UK or further
afield and what they liked about them, the five most popular
answers from respondents were:

* The pedestrian friendliness;

* Good cycle culture and facilities;

* Integrated/affordable public transport system;

* Trams; and

* Bus/park and ride.
When asked what they thought would make Aberdeen City
Centre a more pleasant place, the most popular answers
from interviewees were:

* Pedestrianisation/easier walking/better links;

* Fewer cars/less traffic in the City Centre;

* Improve Union Terrace Gardens;

Page 340



* Keep buildings/streets clean; and

* Fewer empty shops.

Stakeholder Workshops

Four stakeholder workshops were held at the end of October 2012.
Three of these were for organisations with an interest in the City Centre
with a final one for Council officers whose work could be affected by

the SUMP.

Stakeholders were asked to identify problems, good points and
solutions relating to transport in the City Centre, write them on ‘post-it’
notes and then group them under similar themes of their choosing. The
results are shown by mode in the table below:

Mode

Problems

What works well

Solutions

Buses and trains

- Poor access to
bus/train station by
all modes of
transport

- Links and
integration (hubs
and spokes)

- Bus and train

- More infrastructure (bus
lanes, stations, etc.)/
better priority

- Cheaper/subsidised

- Poor infrastructure | station public transport,
for buses to get to - Bus services especially strategic routes
and from the City - Park and ride
Centre/poor bus improvements
priority - Increased integration of
- Price of bus fares all modes of public
- Poor infrastructure transport and ticketing
at bus/train station — (integrating all services
not disability friendly and increasing network
- Route issues as a whole)
- Better information
about service and route
changes
Walking and - Poor planning- - Compact City - Pedestrianisation of
cycling planning process not | Centre City Centre and public

prioritising walking
and cycling and not

- Cycling facilities-
parking and lanes

realm improvements
- Improvements to cycle

planning for what is - Cycle map networks and facilities
desired - Better walking and
- Lack of facilities/ cycling links between
priority areas of the City
- Health and safety - Continue safety
of pedestrians and campaigns/improve
cyclists safety
- Access and links - Better road surfaces
eg. City Centre and and pavement
station - Better segregation of
- Movement — too cyclists from traffic
many blockages and
inconsistencies

Ferry, taxi, freight - Freight and lorry - Potential to - Better routing

congestion

- Poor freight
delivery times and
routes

connect bus, rail
and harbour as in
close proximity to
each other

(specifically for HGVs,
possibly time restricted)

- Stop peak-time
deliveries/review loading
times/better management
- Better enforcement of
delivery vehicles that park

Page 341




inconsiderately
- Improve signage
especially directional

Car

- Traffic offences -
no enforcement

- Parking

- Too many
vehicles/traffic
volume/traffic

- Good supply of
convenient,
reasonably priced,
safe parking

- Cheap parking at
Union Square

- Enforcement

- Encourage clean
vehicles eg. electric

- Congestion Charge
- Exclusion Zones

- Increase parking

dominates charges appropriately/
target company car
parking
- Review parking
charges/Reduce parking
charges outwith peak
hours
General transport - Congestion - Pro-active City - Enforce traffic
Wardens regulations for all road
- Congestion users
outside peak hours | - Traffic management/
acceptable Improve the reliability of
- Congestion not the road network
as bad as some - Low emission zone
other cities
General - Air quality - Architectural - Higher standard of
environment - Cleanliness quality (buildings maintenance/

- Maintenance
- Lack of vibrancy

and stonework)

- Natural
environment in and
around the City

- Many nice areas
- Cultural features
and uses

- Shopping
opportunities/cafes,
especially indoor

management for buildings
and streets

- Increased
pedestrianisation

- Better waste
management

- Public realm
improvements

- Encourage traffic to use
alternative routes to

shopping Union Street
- Clean - Improved signage and
- City Centre is information for road users
compact and pedestrians within
the city
- Large event
management

4.3 The findings show that, although people perceive it as easy to get
around the City Centre on foot, there is a huge amount of support for
making Aberdeen even more pedestrian-friendly. Improved wayfinding,
better links, especially between Union Street and Union Square, and
more pedestrianised areas were called for. The fact that so many
people identified the “compact City Centre” as a positive and identified
good pedestrian infrastructure as something they liked in other cities
suggests that improved pedestrian facilities would be well received in
Aberdeen. The counts revealed that Aberdeen’s main shopping areas

were pedestrian ‘hotspots’ too.

44 Walking and travelling by bus are the most popular ways to access
and move around the City Centre and, although cars are more

Page 342




4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

common in the evening, they generally contain more than one
occupant.

Although the bus is a popular mode of transport and perceived as
easy to get around by, expensive fares, reliability of services, choice of
routes, bus priority measures and long journey times, especially on the
Park and Ride service, were highlighted as possible areas for
improvement.

Of all modes of transport, cycling is the one which was perceived as
the least user-friendly and the one which arouses the most safety
concerns. Increased infrastructure, especially cycle lanes and routes
and maintenance of surfaces were identified as possible
improvements.

For road transport, better and cheaper parking is seen as desirable as
is a reduction in cars and congestion in the City Centre. Better
routes for freight were called for and more train stations were
suggested.

The built environment, the green space and the architectural quality
are all seen as positives around the city too, although poor air quality,
maintenance issues and empty shops are seen as areas to be
improved.

The comments therefore suggest that there are plenty of improvements
that could be made to ensure Aberdeen City Centre is a more pleasant
place to move around and to spend time in. This confirms that there is
public demand for a SUMP which can bring all these issues together
and tackle them.

The following additional stages of the SUMP are currently being
finalised:

e Stage 1: Project Plan;

e Stage 2: Key Document Review including Aims and Objectives

of the SUMP; and

e Stage 4: Identification of Committed Development and Impacts.
These will be presented to Members within a future report alongside
the full results of the survey work once the data has been further
analysed. In the meantime draft versions are available from the
Council’s website: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/SUMP.

It is therefore recommended that Members:

i)  Note the outline results from the pedestrian footfall surveys, on-
street interviews, online survey and stakeholder workshops
undertaken as part of the development of the SUMP; and:

ii) Inform officers if Members would like, either individually or as a
group, a presentation of the full results once these have been
properly analysed.

Page 343



5.1

5.2

Cycling Action Plan for Scotland Refresh

In June 2010, the Scottish Government launched its Cycling Action
Plan for Scotland (CAPS). With a vision that “By 2020, 10% of all
journeys in Scotland will be by bike”, this document outlines a
framework for delivering this vision, setting out what the Government
will do, what it expects others to do and what outcomes these actions
should achieve. In the wake of two years of progress with the set of
actions contained within it, the Scottish Government is currently
refreshing the CAPS and is inviting contributions to this exercise
from key stakeholders. The refresh aims to learn from experience so
far of promoting cycling as everyday transport, taking into account
changes in the delivery context since 2010, building on delivery
successes and incorporating new ideas where possible. The original
CAPS document can be viewed at:
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/316212/0100657.pdf, while
Cycling Scotland’s first progress report on the CAPS is available at:
http://www.cyclingscotland.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/11/2012-10-
05-CAPS-Progress-Report.pdf.

The deadline for responding is 15" February 2013. As the invitation to
respond was only received by the Council at the beginning of
January, it has not been possible to prepare a full response for the
Committee to approve. However, the following is a summary of the
points Officers within Planning and Sustainable Development intend to
make regarding the CAPS, using the five key questions asked by the
Scottish Government as a basis for this response. This will be
developed into a full and formal response in time for the response
deadline.

1. What themes should the refresh include, with what priorities?

The original CAPS document covers a substantial number of themes
and Aberdeen City Council does not have any further themes/actions
to add or remove from this; all identified actions are important and
require to be fully addressed as part of a Scotland-wide Action Plan.
However, whilst we believe the refresh should acknowledge all actions
already identified and consider further interventions, the focus of the
refresh should be on the following (as already identified in the CAPS
Progress Report):

i. Leadership; and
ii. Funding.

Whilst progress has been made on both of these themes
the indeterminate and uncertainty of funding that is available from year
to year, with substantial lobbying from cycling stakeholders for
increased budgets days before the budget is finalised, suggests that
there is still a lack of leadership/commitment at government level to
deliver 10% of journeys by bike by 2020, or possibly a

Page 344



misunderstanding at governmental level as to the amount of funding
required to achieve the target (given that £25 a head in The
Netherlands equates to a 25% uptake of cycling, Aberdeen's equivalent
of £2.38 a head in 2010/11 has resulted in a 3.6% uptake in cycling to
work).

2. What interventions are missing from the set of actions in the
current CAPS, and what updates might be made to this set?

Current interventions that require strengthening or further work:

Schools

Aberdeen City Council has undertaken some analysis of take up of
cycling to schools within Aberdeen. Although fairly logical, preliminary
analysis suggests:

i. No cycle parking = very poor / no cycling levels.

ii. All schools with cycling rates of over 5% have modern, covered
cycle parking facilities.

iii. The Head Teacher/Teachers must be encouraging and allow
cycling to school.

iv. Bikeability increases the level of cycling.

All Aberdeen schools currently have a minimum of part-time 20mph
zones and it is thought this also contributes to uptake. We would
therefore suggest that in relation to schools:

i. 20mph zones should be mandatory around all schools (using CWSS
monies).

ii. School cycle parking should be mandatory at all schools and made
available at 100% fully funded rather than match funded.

iii. Information should be made available to all Head Teachers on
liability and responsibility with regards to the journey to and from school
and Head Teachers should not be able to forbid cycling to school.

All schools are then on the same footing.

Infrastructure

With three quarters of individuals surveyed indicating that less traffic
would result in them cycling more perhaps focus should shift towards
ensuring town and city centres, and access to them, are ‘cycleable’
rather than long distance tourist routes where cycle traffic is minimal.
This would also help meet other targets for carbon emissions, air
quality, health, etc.

3. Who should play roles in delivering these interventions?

National government, Local Authorities, Regional Transport
Partnerships, Transport Scotland, Cycling Scotland and Sustrans.

Page 345



4. What resourcing (and from what sources) would be required to
deliver these interventions and make steady progress towards the
CAPS vision?

There requires to be clarity on budgets and Local Authorities should be
given longer lead-in time for identification, design and implementation
work than currently exists. Quite often, calls from funding bodies such
as Sustrans and Cycling Scotland comes AFTER annual budgets have
been set. This makes it very difficult to amend schemes to take into
account the extra funding, if it is made available, and therefore the
opportunity to add value to any scheme is limited. If 'last minute'
funding is offered, then LAs should at least be able to bid for 'design'
money (with no match funding required) so that 'bottom drawer
schemes' are in place if surplus is available close to the end of a
financial year. A simpler arrangement would be for LAs to bid for
money on a 2 year rolling programme basis.

Cycle funding should primarily come from the Scottish Government
with commitment from LAs to increase cycling spend via Single
Outcome Agreements.

5. What monitoring arrangements should be put in place, with
what suggestions for appropriate milestones?

Although commitment has been given to monitoring, Cycling Scotland
should be liaising further with Scottish Household Survey. Given that
this is the only relevant and reliable producer of cycling and other
national statistical transport data further work should be undertaken to
ensure annual, rather than biennial, data is released with regards to
cycling levels in local authorities. Those that have 'cycled in the last 7
days breakdown by LA' has also been removed recently and this was a
helpful indicator for general levels of cycling for both recreational and
utility cycling rather than just commuting to school or work.

Further work is also required on monitoring of funding. Spokes does
an admirable job of monitoring funding from different sources but this
should be the responsibility of Cycling Scotland rather than a voluntary
organisation. In addition, funding should be reported by funding
organisations and breakdowns given via Local Authority i.e. Sustrans
and Cycling Scotland should produce tables indicating where staff and
monetary resources have been focused over the past year. It is
Aberdeen City Council's belief that this would then result in a clearer
picture of distribution of resources and whether some areas should
receive more.

Each Local Authority should also produce an annual table of cycling
spend against total transport spend with a breakdown of different
sources, as well as staff time spent on cycling per head of population,
with a proforma to be issued by and returned to Cycling Scotland.

Page 346



5.3

Some work should be undertaken on correlating information on: cycle
spend, cycle levels, accident levels and cycle miles.

It is therefore recommended that Members approve this summary draft
response to the Cycling Action Plan for Scotland refresh and instruct
Officers to submit a full and formal response to the Scottish
Government on behalf of Aberdeen City Council.

B) Issues for Information

Active Travel and Air Quality

6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Electric Vehicle Procurement Support Scheme

In the November update, the Committee was informed that a grant of
£120,000 had been awarded by Transport Scotland to the Aberdeen
Community Planning Partnership to procure and install electric vehicle
charging infrastructure in the City for members of the public to
use. Aberdeen City Council is undertaking this work on behalf of the
Community Planning Partnership.

Transport Scotland dictates that at least six dual-outlet posts be
installed, consisting of two rapid chargers (capable of fully recharging a
car in 15 minutes), two fast chargers (capable of fully recharging a car
in 2 hours) and two 7kW chargers (capable of fully recharging a car in 6
hours). As these units require significant power the availability of an
adequate power supply will have a bearing on their location. Officers
within the Transport Strategy and Programmes team have therefore
been working with colleagues in Asset Management and Operations
and with the Electric Vehicle Association Scotland (EVAS) to establish
the preferred locations for the units and to undertake capacity
studies to ensure that sufficient power is available to allow the units to
operate at these locations. These will be undertaken with Scottish and
Southern Energy (SSE) in January and February 2013.

On 6" December 2012, the Council's Finance and Resources
Committee approved the infrastructure procurement, estimated to be
in the region of £80,000, through an open tender in accordance
with SO1(3) of the Council's Standing Orders Relating to Contracts
and Procurement, and authorised officers to directly award the
contract to the preferred supplier. The committee also requested that
Elected Members be consulted upon the proposed locations of the
charging units once these have been identified.

The contract will be awarded in January 2013 and it is expected that
the installation will be undertaken by the Council’'s Street Lighting
Team. Work is also ongoing to make existing units, installed at Council
premises during 2012 to support fleet activities, operational.

Page 347



6.5  Originally the deadline for completion of the installation was 31% March
2013. However, due to the late award of the grant funding, Transport
Scotland have now indicated that it has been extended until 30" June
2013 and Officers are awaiting written confirmation of this.

6.6 It is anticipated that a report will be sent to Committee in March, once
the locations of the units have been finalised, asking for approval to
create the associated electric vehicle parking bays for users of the
units.

Major Projects

7 Third Don Crossing

7.1 It was reported to this Committee in November that residents served
with Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) launched a legal challenge
at the Court of Sessions against the decision of Scottish Ministers to
proceed with CPOs. This challenge has since been withdrawn.

6. IMPACT

The contents of this report link to the Community Plan vision of creating a
‘sustainable City with an integrated transport system that is accessible to all'.

All of the projects and strategies referred to in this report will contribute to
delivery of the Smarter Mobility aims of Aberdeen — The Smarter City. “We will
develop, maintain and promote road, rail, ferry and air links from the city to the
UK and the rest of the world. We will encourage cycling and walking”, and
“We will provide and promote a sustainable transport system, including
cycling, which reduces our carbon emissions.”

The projects identified in this report will also assist in the delivery of actions
identified in the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA), in particular the delivery of
both Local and Regional Transport Strategies which will contribute directly
and indirectly to 14 out of the 15 National Outcomes described in Aberdeen
City Council’'s 2009/10 SOA.

The Local Transport Strategy (LTS) and Regional Transport Strategy (RTS)
from which the transportation schemes within this report are an integral part
have been subject to Equalities & Human Rights Impact Assessments.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

All background papers are referenced within the main body of the report.

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Will Hekelaar
Planner (Transport Strategy and Programmes)
Whekelaar@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 348



Tel. No. (52)3324

Page 349



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 350



Agenda ltem 8.1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE: Environment, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE: 22nd January 2013
DIRECTOR: Gordon Mclintosh

TITLE OF REPORT: Various small scale traffic management and
development associated proposals (New Works)

REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/305

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report is to advise Committee of the need for various small scale traffic management
measures identified by officers, residents, local members, emergency services, etc and
verified as necessary through surveys by officers. It also brings forward proposals
associated with new developments as part of the development management process.

In addition to these measures, this report also includes proposals for individual parking
spaces for Blue Badge holders which now require to be progressed through the normal
legal process for the required Traffic Regulation Order.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

That the Committee:

1. Approve the proposals in principle.

2. Decline the suggested action from the Licensing Committee to implement ‘Maximum
stay’ parking on Cloverhill Road and forward the Minute of this item to that Committee
for information.

3. Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the necessary legal procedures of
preliminary statutory consultation for the traffic regulation orders required as
described in this report. If no significant objections are received, then progress with
the public advertisement and report the results to a future meeting of this Committee.

4. Instruct the appropriate officers to commence the combined statutory consultation for

the traffic regulation order for the list of Blue Badge parking spaces and report back to
a future meeting of this Committee.

Page 351



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The current Five Year Business Plan has identified savings from the Road Safety and
Traffic Management budget. There has also been a comprehensive review of the Capital
Plan which will result in proposals having to await funding for implementation.

Budget

Maintenance
costs (£) after 5 | Comments
years

Implementation
costs (£)

(®) Cycling, Walking, available locations will be
Safer, Streets (Scot Gov 4775 3100 placed on a priority list for
grant-funded) when future funding becomes

If budgets are not currently

available

(++) Developer financed Nil 550

Maintenance of these works
generally falls to the council
maintenance budget when
they are on-street restrictions

(>) Disabled Parking 1100 550 at a cost of £100 per space and

Some of these spaces will
require to be relined
approximately every 10 years

some will require removal
before this time at a cost of
£108 per space.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

There is a risk that any approved traffic regulation orders may have to re-enter the
legislative process if they are unable to be implemented within the statutory
implementation time of 2 years from the start of public consultation if funding is
insufficient.

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES
There are traffic management proposals for 10 locations brought forward during the
course of routine examination of road safety and traffic flows, a proposal for the

introduction of ‘Car Club’ parking bays in the Poynernook/Palmerston area and 2
proposals resulting from requests from developers.

Page 352



Key:

e Funded from the Cycling, Walking, Safer Streets grant funded budget.
The exception is the installation of three ‘Car Club’ parking bays that
will be funded through the CARE North (Carbon Responsible
Transport for the North Sea Region) budget.

« Funded by the developer

» Funded from the current Disabled Parking revenue budget

o No funding required

The following proposals will be funded from Cycling, Walking,
Safer Streets budget

Auchinyell Gardens — Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Councillor Yuill, on behalf of a local resident, has requested the implementation of
junction protection at the junction of Auchinyell Gardens and Garthdee Drive.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction should ensure parked vehicles are
kept clear of the junction, thus ensuring visibility is maintained.

The proposals are indicated on the plans below.

Implementation cost - £275
Estimated maintenance cost — £275 every 5 years

Ward (11) — Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee
Elected members — Taylor/Townson/Yuill

Broadfold Road — Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Local business owners have reported that due to the current indiscriminate
parking on Broadfold Road immediately to the west of Cloverhill Road, visibility is
reduced when negotiating this junction, and there have been instances of meeting
traffic heading in the opposite direction when manoeuvring past parked vehicles.
The proposed “at any time” waiting restriction should prevent vehicles from
parking at the junction, thus ensuring visibility is maintained.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost — £200
Estimated maintenance cost — £200 every 5 years

Page 353



Ward (2) — Bridge of Don
Elected members - Jaffrey/Reynolds/Stuart/Young

Cloverhill Road — Proposed 20 minute maximum stay

The Licensing Committee have requested that parking bays be introduced on the
west side of Cloverhill Road to ensure the hot food & beverage licensee has
access to set up their stance. Maximum stay parking bays were requested to
enable customers of the stance to park their vehicles adjacent to the outlet.

These proposals are indicated on the plan below.

However, this proposal from the Licensing Committee is not one that will resolve
the current situation. Should this ‘Maximum stay’ parking bays be implemented
leaving a short section of unrestricted kerbside, there are no guarantees that the
licensee will get access to park their vehicles on that non-restricted section of road
as anticipated. Any vehicle will be permitted to park there legally, and should
another vehicle be parked there prior to the licensee arriving on site, the licensee
would not have a legitimate place to park and work from. Any ‘maximum-stay’
parking would apply to the licensee as well as their customers.

The remainder of the road is covered with “At any time” waiting restrictions.

For this reason we propose that there are no changes made to the existing waiting
restrictions.

Ward (2) — Bridge of Don
Elected members - Jaffrey/Reynolds/Stuart/Young

Duthie Park — Proposed “ONE-WAY” restriction from Duthie Park to Riverside
Drive.

It has been noted by both council officers and Grampian Police that, although
there is signing and lining currently in place to prevent vehicles entering Duthie
Park at its exit point, there is not a traffic regulation order in place to affirm this
restriction. There is currently considerable abuse with vehicles entering at this exit
point.

Creating this TRO will allow enforcement of these restricted movements and
should further reduce the potential for vehicles to travel against the flow of traffic

exiting Duthie Park. This in turn should minimise both the risk of collision at the
exit and prevent the exit from becoming congested.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £1450
Estimated maintenance cost — £400 every 5 years

Ward (12) — Ferryhill/Torry
Elected members — Allan/Dickson/Donnelly/Kiddie

Page 354



Eday Road — Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Staff at Woodend Hospital have highlighted problems that visitors to the hospital
are currently experiencing due to vehicles parking on the north side of Eday Road
opposite the hospital access road.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction should prevent vehicles from
parking on this section, thus ensuring visibility and access is maintained.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £350
Estimated maintenance cost — £350 every 5 years

Ward (3) — Kingswells/Sheddocksley
Elected members — Cameron/Delaney/Ironside

Gray Street — Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Local councillors have raised concerns voiced by residents of Gray Street Mews
that access to their properties is being blocked, and visibility reduced, due to
vehicles parking adjacent to the access on Gray Street.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction should prevent vehicles from
parking on the west side of Gray Street, thus ensuring access and visibility is
maintained to Gray Street Mews.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £250
Estimated maintenance cost — £250 every 5 years

Ward (11) — Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee
Elected members — Taylor/Townson/Yuill

Justice Street— Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Staff at the new rehabilitation centre previously reported vehicles parking in the
access lane to the car park and in doing so, blocking the access.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction serves to follow on from the current
Temporary Traffic Regulation Order brought in to allow vehicles parking in the
access lane to be issued with a penalty charge notice and to make these
restrictions permanent.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost — nil (lining already in place)
Estimated maintenance cost — £350 every 5 years

Ward (8) — George Street/Harbour

Page 355



Elected members — May/Morrison/Morrison

Mill Court — Proposed “At any time” waiting restrictions

Residents of Mill Court have reported being unable to safely navigate Station
Road due to the indiscriminate parking of vehicles during sports events at the
nearby sports playing fields.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction should prevent vehicles from
parking so as to obscure visibility at the junction of Mill Court and Station Road.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £400
Estimated maintenance cost — £400 every 5 years

Ward (6) — Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen
Elected members — Grant/Milne/Noble

Powis Lane — Proposed “At any time” waiting restriction

A resident of a property in Powis Lane has reported that, due to the installation of
Pay and Display bays opposite his garage, access to the garage has been
restricted.

The proposed “At Any Time” waiting restriction should prevent vehicles from
parking opposite his garage, and subsequently his access would be maintained.
The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £250

Estimated maintenance cost — £50 every 5 years

Ward (8) — George Street/Harbour
Elected members — May/Morrison/Morrison

Riverside Drive (Riverside House) — Proposed no right turn at exit from Bridge
House.

Grampian Police and council officers have raised concerns that vehicles are
currently making a right hand turn when exiting the car park at Bridge House, as
the visibility at this point is reduced.

The proposed right turn ban will prevent vehicles from undertaking this manoeuvre
at this heavily trafficked junction where visibility is very much reduced due to its
proximity to the suspension bridge.

Vehicles wishing to head south on Riverside Drive will still be able to do so by
exiting to the left from the Bridge House car park before undertaking a U-turn at
the roundabout at Queen Elizabeth Bridge and continuing westwards along
Riverside Drive.

Page 356



The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - £1600
Estimated maintenance cost — £825 every 5 years

Ward (12) — Ferryhill/Torry
Elected members — Allan/Dickson/Donnelly/Kiddie

e Palmerston Road / Poynernook Road — Proposed ‘Car Club’ Parking Spaces

Requests have been received from businesses based in the Palmerston /
Poynernook Area to have designated ‘Car Club’ parking bays introduced to serve
the area. These businesses are already members of the ‘Car Club’ scheme or
wish to join the scheme. It is therefore proposed to introduce two ‘Car Club’
parking bays on Poynernook Road and a single ‘Car Club’ parking bay on
Palmerston Road.

Implementation cost — £800
Estimated maintenance cost — £650 every 5 years

Ward (12) — Ferryhill/Torry
Elected members — Allan/Dickson/Donnelly/Kiddie

The following proposals will be funded by the developer

X Burnside Road — Proposed 9am-5pm waiting restrictions

As part of the Construction Consent for this development waiting restrictions,
operational between the hours of 9:00am and 6:00pm are being promoted.
Aberdeen City Council are taking this opportunity to maximise residential parking
throughout this area as it changes from industrial use to residential in nature.

The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost — nil
Estimated maintenance cost — £350 every 5 years

Ward (1) — Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone

Elected members — Crockett/Lawrence/MacGregor/Samarai

Riverside Business Park, North Esplanade West - Proposed “At any time”
waiting restrictions

o
A5

Page 357



As part of the Construction Consent for this development “At any time” waiting
restrictions are required to protect the newly formed access from parked vehicles

and to maintain visibility.
The proposals are indicated on the plan below.

Implementation cost - nil
Estimated maintenance cost — £200 every 5 years

Ward (12) — Torry/Ferryhill
Elected members — Allan/Dickson/Donnelly/Kiddie

Page 358



Auchinyell Gardens - Proposed "At any time” waiting restriction

0%

PROPOSED "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION -

XISTING "AT ANY .m_,&\_m__
AITING RESTRICTION

\ 104

\\\\\\ /,,//,M‘/\\ =
GARTHDEE DRIVE

EXISTING RESIDENTS ONLY/
VOUCHER PARKING BAYS|—

\
=\

U

62072

b8 to 110 86 to 96

ppb

a
N

CRAIGIEVAR PLACE

—— ﬁ\\]\\

\
5 o‘d Naﬂca\[\“—
a

WS e e

EXISTING Mon-Fri 10am-4pm
WAITING RESTRICTION

\

Page 359



Broadfold Road - Proposed "At any time” waiting restriction

J EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
/ WAITING RESTRICTION

PROPOSED "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION-

Vehicle Testing
Station

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION ,

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION1

EXISTING HGV PARKING

Page 360



Cloverhill Road - Proposed 20 minute maximum stay

Wx_m._._zm "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

hicle Testing
Station

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION1

FEXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
~<<>_._._ZQ _»mw._._N_O._._OZN/

PROPOSED 20 MINUTE
MAXIMUM STAY

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME!

Wx_w._,_zm HGV PARKING /

WAITING RESTRICTION

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION
]

Page 361



Duthie Park - Proposed "One-way” restriction

PROPOSED NO LEFT TURN ———— gV

Q Bandstand

Duthie Park

e
-

%
Sloping masonry

nd Ford Fishing

Shingle

Lower Lake

e N
hb"‘ ‘.‘ A,ﬁ,uWOVOmmU NO RIGHT TURN
JEm ]
| )/ '\, M

y—

River Dee

Page 362



Eday Road - Proposed “At any time" waiting restriction

Hospital

ajenbg Aeuuem

Swannay

39 31 to 36
1 L —

0€ 0¥ G¢C

’ Gt 0} OF _

gL oigl

|

=

Page 363



Gray Street - Proposed "Aft any time” waiting restriction

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

’ PROPOSED "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION-

Page 364



Justice Street - Proposed “At any time" waiting resftriction

St Andrew's Cathedral

Market Cross

U.Mu
O
o
O
g

ob

2
G

)

»rPROPOSED "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

,, /AﬁB

v

SA
Citadel

Castle and
St Ninian's
Chapel
(sites of)

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

6“?’\é

o

Page 365



Mill Court - Proposed "At any time" waiting restriction

To playing fields

&

d By,
Cons[ 5 ol

ar

W.
)

El

Sub Sta /] j
- \\ %_U_NO_UmeD "AT ANY TIME"

WAITING RESTRICTIONS

= 1 i o
= / e
///,//m/, A [}
N | 2
B
////// W//
R T
////
D& z
[

Sy,
4 w\o\;o
A0

Laurels Lodge
Care Home

Page 366



Powis Lane - Proposed "At any time" waiting restriction

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION <

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL BAYS"

/

\/ 4

4mx_m4

ING PAY & DISPLAY

A

PROPOSED "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

EXISTING "AT ANY TIME"
WAITING RESTRICTION

Page 367



Riverside Drive - Proposed no right turn

P
]
&
=
w
Ly
(O]
uy
e
-
@)
O
=
D
]
w

Shingle

\
Wellington Suspension

Bridge

Page 368



Foynernook Road — FProposed
Forking Bays

‘Car Cluk’

Page 369



Falmerston Rood - Proposed "Car Cluk’

Forking Boy

)

Page 370



The following proposals will be funded by the developer

NOILOIF LS ONILIVM

wJNIL ANV 1V, 40 NOILVOOATH ANV

NOILOIHLSTH ONILIVM INdS-INV6 A3SOd0dd

NOILOIF LS ONILIVM

wJNIL ANV 1V, 40 NOILVOOATH ANV

NOILOIY1STH ONILIVM INdS-INVE AISOdO¥d| -

ONILSIX

JNIL ANV 1V,

uolyarajsad buijlem wdg-weg pasododd - peoy 3pisudng

Page 371



Riverside Business Park - Proposed "At any time” waiting restrictions

\mmOvOmmO "AT ANY TIME"
EXISTING Mon-Fri 8am-6p 7 A ITING RESTRICTION AND
WAITING xmm._.x_o._._o_ﬂ__/ \ y REVOCATION OF EXISTING Mon-Fri 8am-6pm
v S WAIT %O RESTRICTION

I f // PALMERSTON PLACE
/

: / e v v
] 1,
L] Q
- \,/ﬂ - -
EXISTING "AT ANY TIME
WAITING RESTRICTION
— -
—
e
w -
e i
M
X I
\

RPN
oS
e

XISTING "AT ANY TIME" .
WAITING RESTRICTION v

J

/
5
F
74
/

Page 372



The following proposals will be funded from the Disabled Parking Revenue
budget

> Disabled parking bays to be provided through the Disabled Persons Parking
Places (Scotland) Act 2009

There is one application to be considered at this meeting.
(Plans are not included as, under normal circumstance, spaces are located close to the
properties.)

On-street parking — 10 spaces

18 MONTROSE DRIVE 1 CAVA CLOSE

34 MORVEN PLACE 151 BALNAGASK ROAD
151 GARDNER ROAD 43 MARQUIS ROAD

58 MARQUIS ROAD 38 DULNAIN ROAD

26 SCHOOL DRIVE 105 GLENBERVIE ROAD

Non-specific spaces — No spaces

Off-street parking — 1 space

33 STOCKETHILL WAY

6. IMPACT

This report meets with the local Community Plan objectives to
continually improve road safety and maximise accessibility for
pedestrians and all modes of transport.

The proposals are in line with the Councils Transportation Strategy to
improve safety for all road users by continuing to reduce the number of
casualties in traffic collisions.

This report is likely to be of interest to the public in the streets affected
by the proposals.

There is no Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment required as
this report only recommends that these proposals progress to the
Statutory Consultation process therefore there will be no changes
effected as a result of the recommendations being approved by the
Committee

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS
N/A

Page 373



REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Andrew Diansangu

Engineering Assistant
adiansangu@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 538067

Page 374



Agenda ltem 8.2

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013
DIRECTOR Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Informal consultation for traffic calming in the
neighbouring streets around the Oakbank
residential development — Mid Stocket Road

REPORT NUMBER: EPI/12/275

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
This report details the results of an informal consultation, carried out by
letter drop along with speed surveys. These surveys were carried out
on streets proposed for traffic calming measures, and those
surrounding the new residential development at Oakbank, Mid Stocket
Road, Aberdeen. The report discusses the findings of the consultation
and the average vehicular speeds in the area.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the committee:

1. Note the content of this report and the results of the informal
consultation and speed survey exercise.

2. Instruct officers not to proceed with the implementation of traffic
calming measures for this development.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

Page 375



5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

52

5.21

BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

Background

The Development Management sub-committee of the Council at its
meeting on 24 March 2011 granted planning permission for a
residential development on the site of the former Oakbank School.
Associated with the consent is a legal agreement requiring that the
developer, amongst other things, undertake a consultation exercise in
respect to the introduction of traffic management measures on the
following streets, and fund their implementation if approved:

e Oakhill Road
e \Woodhill Road
e \Woodstock Road

The streets proposed for traffic calming have been subject to similar
proposals in the past. These proposals were more extensive covering
a greater degree of the residential neighbourhood at Oakbank /
Woodhill and Kingshill areas. Following public consultation these
proposals were rejected.

This informal consultation stage has been funded by the developer of
the former Oakbank school.

Informal Consultation with Residents

In accordance with the legal agreement associated with the
developments planning consent an informal consultation exercise was
carried out by means of a letter drop to all residents affected by the
proposals. Letters were issued to residents in the following streets:
e Oakhill Road
Woodhill Road
Woodstock Road
Kingshill Avenue
Woodhill Terrace
Woodhill Place
Edgehill Road
Edgehill Terrace
Kingshill Road
Kingshill Terrace
Oakhill Crescent
Kings Gate (part)

The consultation letter detailed the extents of the proposed traffic
calming, and location of the proposed speed cushions. A reply form
was also included which allowed consultees to express their views on
the introduction of traffic calming, and indicate whether they were
supportive of or against the proposals. This method of consultation has
been used for similar scenarios in the past, and has become
commonplace for consultation on such schemes.

Page 376



522

523

524

525

A response rate of approximately 43% was achieved from the informal
consultation. Of 278 residences that were consulted, 120 responded.
4 properties returned 2 responses giving the same opinion therefore
the additional responses from these properties were discounted.

Of the responses 42.5% are in favour of the introduction of traffic
calming, and 57.5% are against. Table 1, below, shows the responses
for each individual street. A figure is appended to this report showing
the preference per street for the implementation of the traffic calming
proposals.

Street Response In | Response Response
Favour Against Rate
Edgehill Road 44% 56% 41%
Edgehill Terrace | 50% 50% 33%
Kings Gate 0% 0% 0%
Kingshill Avenue | 9% 91% 30%
Kingshill Road 55% 45% 39%
Kingshill Terrace | 0% 100% 18%
Oakhill Crescent | 60% 40% 83%
Oakhill Road 45% 55% 67%
Woodhill Place 14% 86% 54%
Woodhill Road 60% 40% 43%
Woodhill Terrace | 50% 50% 25%
Woodstock Road | 45% 55% 61%

The results for the three roads on which the traffic calming measures
are proposed show that residents on Oakhill Road are against the
proposals, those on Woodhill Road are in favour and those on
Woodstock Road are against. The difference in opinion on each street
is narrow, particularly on Oakhill Road and Woodstock Road.

Residents that are in favour of the proposals generally state in their
responses that as these roads are not at present traffic calmed they are
more heavily trafficked than alternative routes that at present have
speed cushions.

Vehicular speeds were also cited as a concern, with residents claiming
drivers are ignoring the current 20mph zone. The number of children
playing in and travelling through the streets is also highlighted as a
reason to implement traffic calming.

Residents who have opposed the introduction of traffic calming
measures include the visual impact of speed bumps on the roads, and
a preference for money to be spent repairing and maintaining roads in
a poor state of repair as reasons against their introduction. They also
consider that the number of vehicles exceeding the speed limit are very
few, the current speed limit is sufficient to control driver behaviour and
that the volume of traffic is not sufficient to require the introduction of
traffic calming. Damage to vehicles is also given as a reason for traffic
calming not being introduced.

Page 377




5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

54.3

5.5

5.5.1

Speed Surveys

In order to further inform consideration of the introduction of traffic
calming measures, speed surveys were carried out on the three streets
on which traffic calming is proposed, namely:

e Oakhill Road

e Woodhill Road

e \Woodstock Road

The surveys were carried out by means of radar equipment in all three
streets between 16 October 2012 — 22 October 2012. All three streets
are subject to a Mandatory 20mph limit.

The average speed of vehicles travelling westbound on Oakhill Road
was recorded as 25mph, and 24mph for those travelling eastbound.
An average speed of 22mph was recorded for vehicles travelling in
both directions on Woodhill Road. Vehicles travelling northbound on
Woodstock Road were recorded as 23 mph, and those southbound as
21mph. These average speeds all exceed the 20mph speed limit in the
area.

The speeds recorded are typical of a 20mph speed limit and are in the
order of those found within a traffic calmed environment.

Summary of Findings

From the informal consultation, the Oakbank area overall is against the
proposed introduction of traffic calming. Considering only the streets
which are proposed to be subject to traffic calming measures, residents
on Woodhill Road are in favour of their implementation, while those on
Oakhill Road and Woodstock Road are against. The difference in
number between those for and against is small, particularly on Oakhill
Road and Woodstock Road.

The speed surveys indicate that the average speed of vehicles on all
three streets on which traffic calming is proposed is slightly in excess of
the 20mph speed limit.

Officers have noted the average vehicular speeds in the speed survey,
and the results of the informal consultation exercise, and given the type
of development and additional traffic generated consider that the
introduction of traffic calming should not proceed.

Displacement of Traffic Movements

Should only part of the proposal be implemented, it is considered that
there could be a propensity for traffic displacement to occur. It is
therefore considered that the partial implementation of the proposal
would not be a viable option.

Page 378



IMPACT

Within the Local Development Plan (LDP) the site of the former
Oakbank School is recognised as Opportunity Site 112, and the
surrounding area is predominantly zoned for residential use. The
housing at the Oakbank site meets the requirements of the LDP and
the character of the area. It is anticipated that traffic patterns and
behaviour from Oakbank will reflect this.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Minutes of Development Management Sub-Committee meeting 24
March 2011.

http:/lcommittees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/imgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=
1938&T=1

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Doug Ritchie

Team Leader, Road Safety & Traffic Management
dritchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk

(01224) 538055

Page 379



Appendix A
Plan Indicating Street in Favour and Against Traffic Calming

Page 380



Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett - email sent 5/12/12

Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne - email sent 5/12/12

Local Members

Councillor Fraser Forsyth email sent 5/12/12
Councillor Bill Cormie email sent 5/12/12
Councillor Jennifer Laing email sent 5/12/12

Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, — has been consulted and has no comments in
relation to finance.

Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment — has been
consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership —
has been consulted

Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager has been consulted

Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development has been
consulted

Kathryn McFarlane, Service Co-ordinator

Mark Masson, Committee Services

Page 381



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 382






This page is intentionally left blank

Page 384



Agenda ltem 8.3

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE: Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure

DATE: 22"¢ January 2013

DIRECTOR: Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT: The Bush, Peterculter — Proposed Road
Closure

REPORT NUMBER: EP1/12/276

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise the Committee on the background to the proposed road

closure on The Bush, Peterculter and the requirement to revise the

previous decision by committee and re-commence the last stage of the
legal process for the required Traffic Regulation Order.
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that members:

1. Rescind the previous decision by Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure on 31 May 2012, and therefore instruct officers to
advertise the new location with a report back on the outcome to a
future meeting of this Committee.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The implementation of the proposed closure would be funded from the

Cycling, Walking, Safer Streets grant funded budget. The estimated

implementation cost of the works is £6,000 and requires minimal

maintenance costs.

4, OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 385



5.1

BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

Background

Officers had received a number of concerns raised through residents
and the local Councillor about volume and speed of ‘through traffic’
along The Bush, Peterculter. This road is very narrow with no footway
on either side and is causing safety concerns to pedestrians utilising
this route. It was felt that if the volume of through traffic was reduced,
and only traffic using the road was to take access, then pedestrian
safety would be increased considerably.

Officers had agreed with Councillor Boulton in November 2011 to carry
out an informal consultation with the residents, in which a number of
proposals were prepared that would effectively reduce the number of
vehicles utilising this road. The residents were requested to identify
their preference in order from a list of 8 with the responses received
collated and scored on a point basis. From the responses it was clear
that the preferred option was for The Bush to be closed to through
traffic.

At the Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting on 31°
January 2012 approval was given to the progression of the required
Traffic Regulation Order for the proposed closure of The Bush with the
location of the closure situated between 30 & 33 Hillside Road
(Location shown in Appendix A). Following this the statutory
consultation exercise was carried out with there being no objections
lodged. Officers then proceeded to undertake the Public Advertisement
stage at which there was also no objections lodged.

However during this time further discussions were held with the
residents of The Bush and Councillor Boulton with regard to the
preferred location for the closure. The residents expressed their
preference for the proposed closure to be situated at the rear access of
‘Inchrory’ (Location shown in Appendix B), this was subject to a minor
amendment to move this closure 30m or thereby north of this location
as to be situated at the boundary of No. 35 and 37 (Location shown in
Appendix C). This location had changed from the initial location
consulted upon at the statutory stage of the process where it had been
suggested to be installed on Hillside Road between No.’s 30 & 33.

Unfortunately the original location was prescribed at the Public
Advertisement stage in error. Following the completion of the Public
Advertisement process the proposed closure was reported to
Committee on the 31 May 2012 and was approved as no objections
had been received.

It is felt that objections may not have been lodged as local residents

had assumed that the proposed closure was to be relocated following
the meeting on the 22" March 2012.

Page 386



5.2

As there is uncertainty as to the process being ‘fair and open’ it is
proposed that the whole process recommence to allow the most
recently agreed location with residents (Appendix C) to be consulted
upon formally. While this will have resulted in a delay it will ensure that
the Council do not fall foul to accusations of failing to follow regulatory
procedures correctly.

IMPACT

This report meets with the local Community Plan objectives to
continually improve road safety and maximise accessibility for
pedestrians and all modes of transport.

These proposals will be of interest to the residents/proprietors on the
affected streets, and also other pedestrians who utilise this street.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

'Various, small scale traffic management and development associated
proposals (New Works)', Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Committee, 31 January 2012.

http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?1D=1833
0

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Michael Cowie

Traffic Management Team
micowie@aberdeencity.gov.uk
(01224) 538050

Page 387



Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett — has been consulted 07/12/12
Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne — has been consulted 07/12/12

Councillor Marie Boulton — has been consuilted 07/12/12
Councillor Aileen Malone — has been consulted 07/12/12
Councillor M Taugeer Malik — has been consulted 07/12/12

Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, Corporate Governance — has been consulted and
has no comments from Finance

Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal and Democratic Service — has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive — has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure — has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management and Operations, E,P and | — has
been consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development — has been
consulted and has no further comments.

Mike Cheyne, General Manager, Operations — has been consulted

Neal Carnegie, Community Safety Manager — has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Corporate Governance — has been consulted
Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator E P & |

Mark Masson, Committee Services Officer

Page 388



\w‘ﬁp._nsms

s/

T

//H_nmw_::_nr

Firebre
bollards

.\n m‘ m\a ‘,/\xg \\\kﬁ

Inchrory |

NOTES

Rev. Drawn (initfdate) i Checked (initdate) VP

Description.

with

ABERDEEN
CITY COUNCIL

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Road Safety and Traffic Management Team

Client.
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
Project.
The Bush, Peterculter
Title.
, I APPENDIX A
o r
-7 RSN | : :
S | Drawn (init./date) File Location
| mc (17/04/12)
N [ Checked (init/date) Drawing No.
== /
Statue ™ - \ [ Seale & sheet size
= - ~__ \ NTS




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 390



Statue

\w‘ﬁp._nsms

/

A~

<

. Standish nu.ﬁ_.mw

croft
/

Shaw
\
\
p

Rev. Drawn (initfdate) i Checked (initdate) VP

NOTES

Description.

ABERDEEN
CITY COUNCIL

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Road Safety and Traffic Management Team

Client.
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

Project.

The Bush, Peterculter

Title.

APPENDIX B

Drawn (init./date)

mc (17/04/12)

File Location

| Checked Gnitdate)

[ Seale & sheet size

NTS

Drawing No.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 392



Statue

\w‘ﬁp._nsms

/

A~

<

. Standish nu.ﬁ_.mw

e
O

Rev. Drawn (initfdate) i Checked (initdate) VP

NOTES

Description.

ABERDEEN
CITY COUNCIL

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Road Safety and Traffic Management Team

Client.
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

Project.

The Bush, Peterculter

Title.

APPENDIX C

Drawn (init./date)

mc (17/04/12)

File Location

| Checked Gnitdate)

[ Seale & sheet size

NTS

Drawing No.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 394



Agenda ltem 8.4

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE

DATE

DIRECTOR

TITLE OF REPORT

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
22 January 2013
Gordon Mcintosh

Proposed revisions to on street parking
charges for Forresterhill and Garthdee

REPORT NUMBER EPI/12/280

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the proposed
pricing structure for the Forresterhill and Garthdee on street parking
zones.

1.2 Also to provide the committee with an update on:

e The consultation carried out with the businesses within the
Foresterhill Zone

e The review of the NHS Grampian’s new parking scheme recently
implemented within the Forresterhill campus.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 It is recommended that the committee:

1. note the content of this report and the impact of review of the recently
implemented changes at the NHS Grampian’s Forresterhill campus.

2. instruct officers to increase the charges in accordance with Option 1
(see 5.4.1 of the report) and advertise the changes by street notice.

Page 395



3.1

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.14

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The revised charges would have implications with respect to a reduction
in the level of on street parking and the purchase of tickets/vouchers but
has been estimated to still generate additional income levels which will
support delivery of the Priority Based Budget option EPI_AMO05 -
Increase Parking Charges.

These recommendations have no implications for the capital budget.
OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

Background

Reference is made to the minute of the Committee of the 15" March
2011 wherein the committee requested that a report on the price of
parking in the Forresterhill and Garthdee on street zones be presented
to a future committee and to include information on the existing prices,
financial implications, comparable charges and possible new payments
technologies. The Committee report advised that the current parking fee
structure did not support the aims of the Transportation Strategy and the
sustainable transport initiatives of the Council.

This further report was submitted to the Enterprise Planning and
Infrastructure committee of 31 January 2012 at which time it was agreed
to refer, for discussion, the proposed revised charges for the Forresterhill
and Garthdee on street parking zones to the next meeting of the
Controlled Parking Areas — Working Party on 3 February 2012.

The Working Party on 3/2/2012 resolved to request officers to:

e investigate the level of parking on streets in the vicinity of
Forresterhill during the day.

e Provide further details on the availability of the existing voucher
system utilized in the Forresterhill and Garthdee zones and to
investigate ways to increase awareness and availability of the
vouchers, as well as information on other alternative systems
which could be implemented in particular pay by phone.

e Continue discussions with both NHS Grampian and RGU
regarding the proposed new increased pricing structure for on-
street parking.

The Working Party met once again on 5/4/2012 where it had before it a

further report from officers. The Working Party resolved to refer the
minute to the E P & | Committee on 31 May 2012.

Page 396



5.2

5.2.1

522

5.2.3

524

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

Previous Decision — E P & | Committee - 31 May 2012

The committee had before it the minute of the Controlled Parking Area
Working Party meeting of 5 April 2012, where the recommendations from
officers were as follows:

¢ Note the content of the report and the options that officers had
considered.

e Instruct officers to increase charges in a phased manner. Option
1 to be implemented as soon as possible and a further review
carried out to raise charges in line with Public Transport costs.
This would allow the proposed changes at the Forresterhill
campus to be implemented first and the results taken into
consideration as part of the review.

e Instruct officers to amend any Traffic Regulation orders were
required.

The Working Party had considered the proposals extensively during
which officers advised that they had not yet had the opportunity to
consult with local businesses on the proposal, however they would now
undertake this and report back to a future committee.

The working party resolved: to agree to postpone the increase of on-
street parking charges in both Forresterhill and Garthdee Zones until a
review of NHS Grampian’s new parking scheme has been undertaken
and to request officers to report back to committee at this time.

The Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure committee on 31 May 2012
then approved the minute from the Working Party of 5 April 2012.

Current Parking Zones / Charges

The parking zones at Forresterhill and Garthdee were introduced in
partnership with the National Health Service (NHS) Grampian/University
of Aberdeen and the Robert Gordon University (RGU) respectively. The
parking zones were seen to actively support the Green Transport Plans
(GTP) implemented by our partners and to protect the residential
environment and amenity of the local residential areas.

Through the support of on street parking regimes the GTP for the
Forresterhill complex gained a national transport award. The GTP for
RGU was recognised nationally as a good practice model particularly in
relation to planning objectives for new development.

When introduced in 2002, the cost of on street parking within both zones
was balanced against the cost of travel to the hospital and university
complexes and in particular travel by public transport. Since the
introduction of the parking zones the cost of travel by bus has risen

Page 397



5.3.4

5.3.5

5.4

5.4.1

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

significantly whilst the on street parking charges have remained static
making travel by private car more attractive.

It will be noted that the Transportation Assessments (TA) that were
carried out in support of the planning applications and developments at
both the Forresterhill and Garthdee sites identified the need for the
controlled parking zones to mitigate the impact of the developments. The
findings of the TA’s supported the subsequent financial commitment by
the NHS and RGU to implement the zones.

The current cost of parking within the zones is £1 for up to 2 hours and
£2 from 2 hours to 6 hours with the operational hours being 10am to
4pm Monday to Friday. When considering the current cost of travel by
public transport and the on street pricing structure across the city, the
cost of parking at Forresterhill and Garthdee is considered to be low and
does not support its original objectives to reduce car travel by
commuters and to discourage long stay parking. Observations by
officers indicate that the demand for on street parking by commuters
within both zones has increased significantly over time and is confirmed
by the number of tickets purchased on a yearly basis. Since the
introduction of the zones the number of vouchers sold for Garthdee has
increased by a factor of 3.5 with the combined income from voucher and
meters for Forresterhill rising by a factor of 2.2.

Updated Evaluation and Consultation Responses

For clarification Option 1, which was approved, stated that the cost of on
street parking within the Forresterhill and Garthdee zones be raised by
£0.50 to £1.50 for two hours and £4.50 for all day parking (10.00 — 16.00)
This was seen to better reflect the cost of travel by public transport to the
sites and would act as a potential disincentive to travel by the private car.

On — Street Car Parking Survey (Forresterhill)

On-Street car parking surveys had been carried out previously in both
the am and pm periods around the periphery of the Forresterhill Campus.
These surveys identified, as expected, the streets in the immediate
vicinity that have high density parking. These locations were also used to
identify the locations for the additional pay & display machines and will
be used to roll out the additional signage required for the Pay by Phone
scheme

With the NHS Grampian’s parking scheme implemented, additional on-
street car parking surveys were carried out around the periphery of the
campus to gauge the effect that the new parking measures have had
within the residential streets and to compare with the previous surveys.
(see enclosed plans)

Page 398



5.5.3

5.5.4

5.5.5

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

The surveys confirm the discussions with representatives from NHS
Grampian where they have improved short term parking for patients but
only by restricting parking for staff and visitors.

The pm surveys clearly show an increase in parking within the
neighbouring residential areas from those taken previously. This ties in
with the displacement of visitors in the afternoon period, Monday to
Friday during the afternoon visiting time from 2.00pm to 4.00pm.

The plans indicate the areas where the parking patterns impacted on the
surrounding streets both in the am and pm periods.

The surveys also indicate where new problematic parking areas are now
occurring on the streets just outside the existing zone, generally to the
North of the existing zone.

Consultation with Businesses (Forresterhill Zone)

In accordance with the instruction from the Controlled Parking Working
Group, officers carried out an informal consultation exercise by means of
a letter drop to all businesses affected by the proposals within the
Forresterhill zone.

The consultation letter detailed the proposals to increase the charges
along with the options being considered.

A response rate of 10% was achieved from the informal consultation. Of
the 21 businesses that were consulted only two responded and both
were hairdressing businesses. A summary of these responses are as
follows:

e One was happy to continue to stock parking vouchers for the
benefit of their customers. However the main concern was the
effect the proposed increase in charges would have on their staff.

e The other also stocks parking vouchers but has strong objections
to the proposed increases and the effect it would have on their
businesses.

For the majority of customers travelling by car this may add £4.50
onto their costs given the time required within the salon. Option 2
— the flat rate of £1 per hour would have been their preferred
option for any increase.

Concerns were also raised about the effect on staff parking where

most staff would be unable to afford the new charges, be forced
to walk further raising safety concerns, particularly at night.

Page 399



5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

5.7.4

5.8

5.8.1

5.8.2

Consultation with NHS Grampian

Officers consulted further with representatives of NHS Grampian to
gauge their views on the impact of the new parking control arrangements
that were implemented in July 2012.

The primary issue being addressed by the revised controls related to
short term parking for patients attending out patient appointments. Since
the implementation they have seen the expected improvements in
availability of spaces for patients, but this has only been possible by
restricting parking for staff and visitors.

The revised permit arrangements have allowed them to direct permits to
staff with the greatest need, taking account of their home to work
distance, access to public transport, business travel needs and any
special / personal circumstances.

In addition they have also introduced inter-site shuttle bus service and an
internal Foresterhill site shuttle service. These services have been
popular, but clearly only deal with staff that has regular site travel needs
rather than those who do not need to move around during the business
day. They have also continued to engage with the bus operators and
have had some successes with improved frequencies / timetables, etc.

This work continues and NHS Grampian remains supportive of
continuing to develop sustainable travel alternatives.

NHS representatives have indicated that the key challenge with the
proposed charging increases relates to their lower paid staff, for whom
public transport is not a viable option and where those staff do not meet
the criteria to access a parking permit. A permit does not of course
guarantee a space at any time.

NHS Grampian remain concerned over the new charging proposals that
such an uplift will have a detrimental impact on recruitment and retention
of their lower paid staff

Consultation with RGU.

Officers consulted further with representatives from RGU to gauge their
current views since our previous meeting in March 2012.

The Garthdee campus currently has stringent controls in place to reduce
the number of vehicles going to the site. They currently have a car
parking permit ratio of 1.4 to every car parking space. Other initiatives
being taken forward include staggered start times for lectures and
integrating student accommodation within the campus.

Page 400



5.8.3

5.8.4

5.8.5

5.9

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.9.3

5.94

Previously they had not been averse to option 1, however they
considered the alternative option for even higher charges (option 2)
would have a detrimental effect on both students and staff. Currently the
complaints from both are that buses can’t keep to the timetable due to
the problems on the bus corridor. Bus fares and parking charges are too
high to the point that they may have difficulty in attracting both students
and staff, particularly from overseas.

RGU would wish to see further improvements to the public transport
network and additional bus lanes provided to encourage more bus use
before increasing charges.

Although they still have concerns about raising the CPZ charges in line
with option 2, they would support a phased increase.

Summary

The review of the new parking control arrangements that have been
implemented around the Forresterhill campus, clearly show that
improvements have been made to the availability of spaces for patients
but this has only been possible by restricting access for staff and visitors.

The revised permit arrangements have allowed them to direct permits to
staff with the greatest need. Other measures have been introduced, such
as the introduction of an inter-site shuttle bus service and an internal
Forresterhill site shuttle service that has proved popular with staff.

This in turn has increased the on-street parking outwith the site,
particularly in the afternoon period, which coincides with the hospital’s
afternoon visiting times. Officers have also identified new problematic
parking areas that are developing just outside the existing boundaries of
the zone.

When introduced in 2002, the cost of on street parking within both zones
was balanced against the cost of travel to the hospital and university
complexes and in particular travel by public transport. Since the
introduction of the parking zones the cost of travel by bus has risen
significantly whilst the on street parking charges have remained static
making travel by private car more attractive.

When considering the current cost of travel by public transport and the
on street pricing structure across the city, the cost of parking at
Forresterhill and Garthdee is considered to be low and does not support
its original objectives to reduce car travel by commuters and to
discourage long stay parking.

Page 401



6.1

6.2

IMPACT

The proposed price structure would meet the aspirations of the
Transport Strategy and be seen to support sustainable transport and
reduce traffic emissions.

The content of the report meets with the local Community Plan
objectives to continually improve road safety and maximize accessibility
for pedestrians and all modes of transport.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Report to E P & | Committee of 18 January 2011 — Car parking charges
Report to Controlled Parking Working Group of 24 February 2011
Minutes of the EP&I committee of the 15 March 2011.

Report to EP&l Committee of 31 January 2012.

Minute of the Controlled Parking Working Group of 3 February 2012.
Report to the Controlled Parking Area Working Party of 5 April 2012
Minute of the Controlled Parking Area Working Party of 5 April 2012
Minute of the E P & | committee of the 31 May 2012

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Doug Ritchie

Team Leader

Traffic Management & Road Safety Team
dritchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk

(01224) 538055

Page 402



Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett - email sent 20/12/2013

Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne - email sent 20/12/2013

Local Members

Councillor Fraser Forsyth email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Bill Cormie email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Jennifer Laing email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor George Adam email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Kirsty Blackman email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Lesley Dunbar email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Angela Taylor email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor Gordon Townson email sent 20/12/2013
Councillor lan Yuill email sent 20/12/2013

Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, — has been consuited and requested further
information on the income generated.

Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive has been
consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment — has been
consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership — has
been consulted and agrees with the recommendations

Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager has been consulted

Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development has been
consulted

Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator

Mark Masson, Committee Services

Page 403



Page 404



CLLOZY LOPEZOOL lounog AiD ussplady “pasasay siubiy |y -iuBuidon umoln {a) mﬂ
2L0g-2L-+0 ®ed
0G9'G'L ‘8[E3T ‘MVY3d ONINYOWN AJALNS ONIMYEYd Z INOZ 8L

ONINEVYd NI 35¥Y3d030

o
o
\u <
O}
O]
®
o
e
d -Illllll.l._

ONINYYd ALISNIA MOT []

ONINYYd ALISNIO WNIAIW; [

— ./ ONIMHYd ALISNIa HOH [

ZdD ONILSIX3 3HL 3AISLNO 1SNt S.¥34V ONIMYEYd JILVINTT190Hd MAN
IN3LSAS NAIadIgY

NOILYINHOA4NI B
AVIIHdVYEO039 L



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 406



¢L0c-¢l-#0 -=led
069'G:| 8|eds

(LLDZ) LOPEZO0L 0unc] Alg uaspiaqy panasay sYB |y 4 Buddon umos (2) mm

‘AY3d NOONY3 LY

AJAHNS ONIMHVYd Z INOZ -8l

N~
o
4
ONIMAYd NI 3SVIHONI %
@®
o
T —
ONINYYd ALISNIA MOT [
ONINYYd ALISNIT WNIaIW [
// ONIMYYd ALISNIAHOIH [
ZdJ ONILSIX3 3HL 3AISLNO 1SNr S.¥34Y ONIMYYd DILVINIT908d M3aN
INILSAS NFAC Y
NOILLYINHOANI @
1VIIHdVYO039 -



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 408



Agenda ltem 8.5

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013
DIRECTOR Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Follow up report - Restrictions that would deter
Heavy Goods Vehicles from using Morningside
Road, Cranford Road and Duthie Terrace as
through routes.

REPORT NUMBER EPI1/12/304

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

At its meeting on 31 May 2012 the Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Committee instructed officers to continue monitoring the level of usage
of Morningside Road, Cranford Road and Duthie Terrace by Heavy
Goods Vehicles (HGVs) on an annual basis and if there should be a
significant change reconsider the possibility of introducing a restriction.

The purpose of this report is therefore to provide an update with regard
to recent surveys that have been carried out to monitor the volume of
HGVs using these roads.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that given the low volume of Heavy Goods Vehicles
using these roads, the Committee instructs officers to cease annual
surveys and monitor these roads in line with general traffic
management priorities.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 409



5.1

5.2

5.3

BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

At the meeting of this committee on 31 May 2012 the report titled
‘Introduction of possible restrictions to deter Heavy Goods Vehicles
from using Morningside Road, Cranford Road and Duthie Terrace as
through routes’ was considered. This report was a culmination of an
extensive period of monitoring and evaluation of surveys following
Councillor Yuil’'s motion on 13 September 2011 “That given the
ongoing difficulties caused by lorries using Morningside Road, Cranford
Road and Duthie Terrace as through routes so as to avoid the junction
of Great Western Road and South Anderson Drive, Council instructs
officers to report to the appropriate committee on the introduction of an
‘except for access’ weight restriction on these roads...”.

At the committee on 31 May 2012 the Committee approved the
recommendations made in the aforementioned report. These
recommendations were: -

a) to take no action at this time given the low volume of Large / Heavy
Goods Vehicles (HGVs) using these roads and the level of
resources that would be required to ensure compliance with a traffic
order restricting such vehicles.

officers continue to monitor the level of usage of these roads by
HGVs on an annual basis and if there should be a significant
change reconsider the possibility of introducing a restriction.

The roads concerned are residential in nature and vehicles using these
roads are subject to a 20mph mandatory speed limit with associated
traffic calming road humps.

The following table gives an indication of the volume of traffic using
these roads on an average working day. The data within the table was
collected in November 2011.

Weekday average vehicles per hour

7am to 7pm

(12 hour period)

8am to 9am
(am peak)

4pm to 6pm
(pm peak)

Southbound

Northbound

Southbound

Northbound

Southbound

Northbound

Morningside
Road

93

111

110

138

121

156

Duthie
Terrace

15

36

15

53

19

45

Cranford
Road

47

34

78

32

53

52

Page 410




5.4 The following table highlights the number of HGVs recorded during
recent surveys using these three roads. The surveys were carried out
in the morning and afternoon/evening peaks, with an additional survey
carried out in the lunchtime period. It is during these periods of peak
traffic that congestion will be at its highest at the Great Western Road /
A90 South Anderson Drive Junction and hence when it would be most
likely drivers would choose to use Morningside Road, Duthie Terrace
and Cranford Road to avoid congestion.

Number of Heavy Goods Vehicles

8am - 9am 9am -10am | 12pm - 1pm 1pm - 2pm 4pm - 5pm 5pm - 6pm
Morningside 6 2 6 2 1 1
Road
Duthie 1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Terrace
Cranford 2 1 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Road

*Surveys carried out on Tuesday 27 November 2012 (am) and Monday 3 December 2012
(pm). The surveys were conducted visually and the types of Heavy Goods Vehicles noted.

5.5 When considering Morningside Road, two of the HGVs noted in the
8am to 9am period were visiting the loading bay (serving the Tesco
Convenience Store) on Morningside Road, near its junction with St
John’s Terrace. The other vehicles of note during the periods of the
survey were four coaches associated with ‘Central Coaches’ that have
been suggested are serving the International School on the North
Deeside Road and three Refuse Vehicles.

5.6  As highlighted in the previous paragraph, four coaches associated with
‘Central Coaches’ were observed using Morningside Road. Additionally
another coach associated with this same company was observed using
Duthie Terrace. In this respect, the opportunity is being taken to write to
Central Coaches to request their drivers stay on the appropriate
distributor type roads when travelling in the City and that residential
type roads are only entered for the purpose of allowing a passenger to
board/alight.

5.7  The number of HGVs using these roads is very low when considering
the overall volume of vehicles entering these streets. The most recent
surveys indicating the numbers on Duthie Terrace and Cranford Road
are negligible, while a small number have been recorded on
Morningside Road. Indeed when comparing the most recent surveys
directly with those carried out in November 2011 the numbers of HGVs
recorded using Crandford Road and Duthie Terrace has reduced.

5.8 The volume of HGVs using these roads must be considered in the

wider context of the overall road network and similar street types, and
the current situation would not be considered exceptional.

Page 411



5.9

6.1

6.2

In conclusion, it is recommended that given the low volume of HGVs
using these roads, the Committee instructs officers to cease annual
surveys and monitor these roads in line with general traffic
management priorities.

IMPACT

This report will be of interest to the residents/proprietors on the roads
concerned.

There are links to the Single Outcome Agreement in terms of living life
free of crime, disorder and danger and to live in well designed,
sustainable places where we are able to access the amenities and
services we need.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Item 12 - “Report following Councillor Yuill's motion at the September
2011 E, P & | Committee to introduce restrictions that would deter
Heavy Goods Vehicles from using Morningside Road, Cranford Road
and Duthie Terrace as through routes.” Enterprise, Planning &
Infrastructure Committee, 31 January 2012.

http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=140
&MId=2283&Ver=4

ltem 8 — “Introduction of possible restrictions to deter Heavy Goods
Vehicles from using Morningside Road, Cranford Road and Duthie
Terrace as through routes.” Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Committee, 31 May 2012.

http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=140
&MId=2284&Ver=4

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Graeme McKenzie

Technical Officer

Traffic Management Team

Tel. (01224) 53 8069

E-mail: gmckenzie@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 412



Consultee Comments

Councillors

Barney Crocket has been consulted.

Ramsay Milne has been consulted.

Angela Taylor has been consulted.

Gordon Townson has been consulted.

lan Yuill has been consulted.

Council Officers

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Sustainable Development, has been
consulted and is in agreement with the recommendations within this report.

Mike Cheyne, General Manager Operations, has been consulted.

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, has been consulted and had no comments
with regard to finance.

Jane MacEachran, Head of Legal & Democratic Services, has been consulted.

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure, has been
consulted.

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive, has been
consulted.

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Asset Management & Operations, has been
consulted.

Dave Young, ICT, Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure has been consulted.

Page 413



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 414



Agenda ltem 8.6

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
DATE 22 January 2013
DIRECTOR Gordon Mcintosh

TITLE OF REPORT Proposed Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone
Extension

REPORT NUMBER:EPI1/12/314

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report details the results of an informal consultation by letter drop
carried out on streets proposed for inclusion within an extension to the
existing Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ). The report
discusses the findings of the consultation.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended by Officers that:
1. The Committee note the results of the informal consultation exercise

2. The Committee instruct Officers to monitor the parking impact in the
area following the opening of the expanded Robert Gordon University
campus and report findings to the Committee with further
recommendations pertaining to the implementation of the Controlled
Parking Zone

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The implementation of the CPZ is to be financed by the Robert Gordon
University (RGU) per the legal agreement associated with the consent
for the expansion of the Garthdee campus. Revenue and costs
associated with the extension to the existing CPZ have not been
included in budget calculations as the scheme remains unapproved.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The potential exists that with the expansion of the Garthdee campus of
the RGU there will be an increase in demand for on street parking in
the residential Garthdee and Kaimhill areas. If this is unregulated there
will be issues relating to the unavailability of space for residents and
visitor parking. In addition, residential and environmental amenity in
the area will consequentially be affected by the overspill in parking.

5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES

Page 415



5.1

5.11

5.1.2

51.3

514

5.1.5

5.1.6

52

521

Background

The Development Management sub-committee of the Council at its
meeting on 11 March 2010 granted planning permission for the
expansion of the Garthdee campus of the RGU. Associated with the
consent is a legal agreement requiring that the University, amongst
other things, carry out a public consultation exercise with regard to the
extension of the existing Garthdee CPZ.

A plan of the streets that would be affected by such a proposal are
shown in Appendix A in relation to the location of the existing CPZ and
the campus expansion. The majority of the affected area is in Kaimhill.

National and local transport planning policy provides strict maximum
parking guidelines for all types of new development. The expansion of
the Garthdee campus of the RGU has been completed in accordance
with these. The purpose of maximum parking standards are to
constrain the number of vehicles accessing a development, to thereby
reduce congestion on the wider road network, reduce dependency on
the private car and cut vehicle emissions in line with national and local
transport policy. If no constraint on the number of parking spaces was
imposed, this would encourage all users of the development to travel
by car. In an area with existing congestion problems this would be
difficult to accommodate and subsequently mitigate against, and
vehicle emissions in the area would rise. It would not be in line with
existing national and local transport policy.

It is normal course that a development provide infrastructure and
facilities to allow for and encourage travel by modes of transport other
than the car. Such features employed at the Garthdee campus include
cycle parking and attractive and convenient foot and cycleways along
with new pedestrian crossing points external to the site.

The constrained car parking facilities on site will lead to a displacement
of parking into surrounding streets where these are available. If this
was allowed, the impact of the maximum parking standards in reducing
the number of cars accessing the development would not be realised,
and the reductions in congestion and vehicle emissions that the parking
standards seek to deliver would not be achieved. It is considered that
the most effective way of controlling on street parking, and securing the
impact of the maximum parking standards, is to introduce a CPZ in the
streets surrounding the development to dissuade users of the
development from parking in the area and consequentially from
travelling by car at all.

These initial stages of work to take forward a CPZ in line with planning
policy and strategy have been funded by the RGU.

Informal Consultation with Residents

In accordance with the legal agreement associated with the
developments planning consent an informal consultation exercise was

Page 416



522

523

carried out by means of a letter drop to all residents and businesses
affected by the proposals. A copy of the letter is shown in Appendix C.

The consultation letter detailed the extents of the proposed CPZ. A
reply form was also included which allowed consultees to express their
views on the expansion of the CPZ, and indicate whether they were
supportive of or in opposition to the proposals. This method of
consultation has been used for similar scenarios in the past, and has
become commonplace for consultation on such schemes.

A response rate of approximately 38.7% was achieved from the
informal consultation. Of 553 residences and businesses that were
consulted, 212 responded. Six individual respondents returned more
than one response, and a further six residences returned more than
one response from separate individuals giving the same opinion. The
additional responses from these properties were discounted.

5.2.4 Of the responses, overall 26.4% are in favour of the expansion of the

CPZ, and 73.6% are against. Table 1, below, shows the responses for
each individual street. In addition to these, there were four responses
that did not indicate a preference either way. On Garthdee Road only
one response was received, from Asda.

Appendix B plan showing those streets in favour of and in opposition to
the proposals.

Page 417



5.2.5

5.2.6

5.2.7

Table 1 — Informal Consultation Response Summary

Street Response In | Response Response
Favour Against Rate
Auchinyell 18% 82% 58.3%
Gardens
Auchinyell Road | 40% 60% 41.7%
Auchinyell 58% 42% 22.2%
Terrace
Craigievar Place | 44% 56% 13.6%
Garthdee 21% 79% 63.6%
Crescent
Garthdee Drive 46% 54% 24.6%
Garthdee 17% 83% 50.0%
Gardens
Garthdee Road 100% 0% 14.3%
Garthdee 0% 100% 25.0%
Terrace
Kaimhill Circle 18% 82% 61.1%
Kaimhill Gardens | 11% 89% 56.3%
Kaimhill Road 0% 100% 50.0%
Pitmedden 25% 75% 50.0%
Crescent
Pitmedden 33% 67% 42 .9%
Terrace
Ruthrie Court 18% 82% 55.0%
Ruthrie Gardens | 33% 67% 37.5%
Ruthrie Road 21% 79% 53.8%
Ruthrie Terrace 14% 86% 53.8%
Ruthrieston Road | 0% 100% 9.1%
Unknown 0% 100% -
Location

The results show that overall the residents of the affected area are
against the proposed CPZ extension. Only two streets, Auchinyell
Terrace and Garthdee Road, are in favour of the proposals. A plan
showing which streets are in favour and against the proposals is
appended to this report.

Of those that have replied that they would be in favour of the expansion
of the CPZ, 12 (or 21%) qualified this by saying that they would only be
in favour if there was no charge to residents.

From the responses it is clear that residents would be more content to
have a CPZ introduced if they were not required to pay charges at this
stage or at any point in the future. It is likely that if the informal
consultation were to be repeated with a guarantee of no payment, a
greater proportion would be in support of the scheme. It is not possible
to tell if this would be a majority.

Page 418




5.2.8

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

543

Residents returning responses raised a number of questions regarding
the proposals and the existing situation. These are listed in Appendix
D, along with Officers responses.

External Influence

During the course of the informal consultation process an anonymous
leaflet was issued to all residents in the affected area, informing them
that charges would be imposed as a result of the implementation of the
CPZ. This was inaccurate information and in some degree misleading
as the decision on whether to take the scheme forward or to consider a
charging regime for residents permits has yet to be taken by this
committee.

It is however apparent that a significant humber of the respondents
have been influenced by this information. Prior to its issue a greater
proportion of responses indicated a preference towards the CPZ than
after the leaflet was distributed. A number of comments make
reference either directly or indirectly to the information contained within
the leaflet.

Further Considerations

In considering the proposed scheme the committee will be aware that
at its meeting in September, approval was granted for the
commencement of charges for resident permits within the existing
Garthdee CPZ. It is possible that residents within, but near the edge
of, this zone will choose to forgo purchasing a permit in favour of
parking outwith the existing CPZ in the area proposed for the CPZ
expansion and impact on the current parking demand in the currently
uncontrolled area. This practice is supported by experience and
evidence of this occurring in other CPZs

In addition a separate report to this Committee recommends an
increase in on street parking charges. In the event that this is
approved, this will further exacerbate the displacement effect, and will
have a detrimental impact on the migration of parking to free areas.

Through the informal consultation exercise a number of residents have
suggested that the implementation of the expanded CPZ should only
be considered following the opening of the RGU expansion when
monitoring can be carried out to determine if there is a worsening of
parking problems, and conclusive evidence of on street parking issues
assessed.

5.4.4 The planning conditions and terms of the legal agreement associated

with the development stipulate that the CPZ must be brought forward
prior to the opening of the development, but may be amended through
written agreement between the parties. Officers have held informal
discussions with senior management in RGU who have indicated that
they would be willing to agree to a delay in the implementation of the
expanded CPZ. At this stage only an agreement in principle to a
possible delay has been reached, and a formalised agreement will be

Page 419



5.4.5

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

required if a decision is taken to delay the process for the promotion of
a CPZ. Should this not be forthcoming the decision to delay
implementing the CPZ to a later date would mean that the full costs of
implementation would require to be borne by the Council.

It should also be considered that the legal process to implement a CPZ
takes approximately nine months to one year. If the Committee choose
to delay the implementation of the CPZ, it will commence following the
assertion that there is a further detriment to on street parking in the
area, attributed to the expansion of the RGU, that should be addressed
through the implementation of a CPZ. It would be approximately one
year from that point in time until the CPZ was implemented, throughout
which time the residents would potentially be exposed to the additional
on street parking.

Summary of Findings

From the informal consultation, the opinion expressed by the residents
of the Garthdee and Kaimhill area is against the expansion of the
current CPZ. Only two streets have indicated that they are in favour of
the scheme. It is clear that residents have been influenced by the
anonymous leaflet that has been circulated throughout the area.

It is likely that a greater number of residents would be in favour of the
expanded CPZ if it was guaranteed that there would be no cost to
them.

IMPACT

Within the Local Development Plan (LDP) the existing Garthdee and
Kaimhill areas are zoned as residential. The land upon which the RGU
expansion is taking place is zoned as such. The Local Transport
Strategy (LTS) and the Supplementary Guidance to the LDP aim to
minimise single occupancy use of the private car in favour of more
sustainable modes of travel. The implementation of the expanded CPZ
is considered to adhere to these policies.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Legal agreement between Aberdeen City Council and Robert Gordon
University in relation to the consent to planning application P091761
dated 28 February 2011.

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Doug Ritchie

Team Leader, Road Safety & Traffic Management
dritchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk

(01224) 538055

Page 420



Appendix A

Plan showing location of existing CPZ, and proposed expansion.

T YEIET:

-LT""'::'.::':.

o

Page 421

||I b 5 b

i 'E‘E

i
it

i

i i
: 'ﬁ" s
i' '.‘1-.-"‘:' .'

oy 1

o
g ] - -:.:r'ﬁ-;_.
._-“.;_ l:‘- ]

i
-:"H

!
L,

P
N




Appendix B

Plan showing those streets in favour of and in opposition to the proposals.

ERDN: ./
Streets in favour of

the CPZ Extension
Froposals

Streets in opposition
ta the CPZ
Extension Proposals

Page 422



Appendix C
Copy of the letter sent to residents and businesses in the area.

Our Ref.
Your Ref.
Contact
Email
Direct Dial
Direct Fax

16 October 2012

To All Residents. Enterprise, Planning and

. Infrastructure
Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone. Aberdeen City Council

Traffic Management Team
74 — 76 Spring Garden.
Aberdeen AB25 1GN

Tel 01224 538055
Minicom 01224 522381
DX 529451, Aberdeen 9
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Dear Sir/ Madam

INFORMAL CONSULTATION ON THE INTRODUCTION OF CONTROLLED
PARKING ZONE IN GARTHDEE / KAIMHILL

As you will be aware the Robert Gordon University is undertaking development work to
expand its Garthdee campus. It is anticipated that this development will increase the
number of both staff and students operating at Garthdee. During the planning process
it was identified, that in order to support sustainable transport initiatives to the campus
and to protect the residential amenity and environment of the Kaimhill area, the
existing Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) be extended. It is therefore
necessary to undertake a consultation exercise with local residents and businesses
regarding the introduction of a CPZ to the east of the existing CPZ operating in
Garthdee. | have enclosed a plan showing the extent of the proposed CPZ.

The new CPZ is proposed for a number of reasons associated with the expansion of
the Garthdee campus of the Robert Gordon University. The expansion of the campus
will introduce a significantly higher number of staff and students which will be likely to
have a detrimental impact to the environmental amenity within the existing uncontrolled
parking areas in Kaimhill and Garthdee. The proposed CPZ will be designed to
alleviate the potential for obstructive parking arising from those visiting the campus,
which would be to the detriment of local residents. This will have the simultaneous
benefit of safeguarding residential amenity throughout the Garthdee area. The
introduction of a CPZ would also be seen to encourage staff and students of the
Robert Gordon University to make use of public transport to access the Garthdee
campus, thereby improving use of sustainable transport.

It is proposed that a small number of pay and display machines would be installed in
the area, and that the use of cashless payment for parking would be encouraged by

Page 423



the majority of users. A combination of residents only and general pay and display
bays would be provided within the CPZ.

At present the Council is undertaking an informal consultation with residents and
businesses in the area in order to ascertain if the implementation of a CPZ in this area
is desirable. Following this informal process, all responses will be considered and
reported to the Environment Planning and Infrastructure Committee at which time a
decision will be taken on whether or not it is appropriate to proceed to the formal
stages for the implementation of a CPZ. Should approval be given a detailed scheme
would be advertised with all local residents, businesses and the general public
afforded the opportunity to formally object to the scheme if they wish. Any future
decision on whether the CPZ is to be implemented will be taken by the elected
members of the Council.

The informal consultation exercise being carried out at present is simply designed to
ascertain if there is a desire amongst existing residents and businesses for a CPZ to
be introduced in Garthdee. A return slip is attached to this letter, with a single question
asking for your opinion in respect of the above. There is in addition a space for any
comments that you may wish to make in respect of these proposals.

Please take this opportunity at an early stage to voice your views on the attached reply
form, and please return this to the Council in the stamped addressed envelope
provided by Tuesday 6 November 2012.

Yours faithfully

Page 424



Appendix D
Themes raised by residents and businesses in the area.

At present vehicles park in inappropriate locations in the area. How will the CPZ help this?
The implementation of the CPZ will regulate parking in the area and clearly identify where it
is appropriate to park. Aberdeen City Council wardens will regularly patrol the area to
enforce the CPZ restrictions.

Will there be a cost associated with the CPZ for residents?

The decision whether to charge for residents permits has not yet been taken. The decision
will be the responsibility of the elected members of the Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure Committee.

If there is a charge, why should residents have to pay to fund the CPZ to solve a problem
introduced by the expansion of RGU?

The decision whether to charge for residents permits has not yet been made. In addition,
the CPZ is being introduced to protect residents, and ensure that parking is available for
them in a residential area. Any cost that residents are asked to pay is to meet the costs of
administering the CPZ and by the presence of City Wardens, ensure that street parking is
not abused. The benefit is felt entirely by the residents.

| have some suggestions to make for things to be included in the CPZ?
When designing the final scheme, we will take all comments into consideration, and
implement them where possible.

Will | get a guaranteed parking space outside my house?

The parking permit does not guarantee a parking space at all, or in any particular place.
There may be residents only bays, however these would be available to anyone with a
residents parking permit.

It’s very difficult to get to the RGU campus by any means other than by car. How can this
be resolved if people also can’t take their cars?

RGU are introducing a variety of measures to make travel by other modes of travel
possible, including cycle parking, footpaths and cycle paths within the development, and
new crossing points on the external road network. In addition there is a high frequency bus
service.

What about local businesses? Some of these will suffer if people can’t stop or have to pay
to stop outside them.

There are a number of traffic management methods that can be implemented. These
include for example additional pay and display machines on street close to the shops, and
a pricing structure that allows for short visits. Other methods are available, and further
consideration will be given when the scheme is designed.

My street is so far from the campus that no one will park here to walk down. Why is it being
included in the CPZ?

It is the experience of Council Officers when CPZs have been introduced in other areas
that on street parking has been displaced further afield. While this may not be significant,
there will be some impact in areas further from the campus which therefore require to be
protected by the CPZ extending this far. Natural boundaries of Anderson Drive and the
former Deeside railway line have therefore been selected.

Page 425



Shouldn’t you wait until after the RGU expansion has opened to see if the parking problem
does get worse before implementing this?

This would be a decision for the elected members of the Enterprise Planning and
Infrastructure Committee to make. It is a possibility, however if the parking problems were
bad in the area it would take a minimum of one year to implement the CPZ, throughout
which time residents would be exposed to the additional on street parking.

Consultees comments

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee
Convener: Councillor Barney Crockett - email sent 20/12/12

Vice Convenor: Councillor Ramsay Milne - email sent 20/12/12

Local Members

Councillor Angela Taylor email sent 20/12/12
Councillor Gordon Townson email sent 20/12/12
Councillor lan Yuill email sent 20/12/12

Council Officers

Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance, — has been consulted and has no comments.

Jane MacEachran, City Solicitor, Continuous Improvement has been consulted

Ciaran Monaghan, Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive has been

consulted

Gordon Mclntosh, Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure has been
consulted

Hugh Murdoch, Head of Service, Shelter and Environment — has been
consulted

Margaret Bochel, Head of Planning & Infrastructure, Strategic Leadership —
has been consulted

Mike Cheyne, Roads Manager has been consulted

Neil Carnegie, Community Safety Manager has been consulted

Dave Young, Account Manager, Service, Design and Development has been
consulted

Laura Watson, Service Co-ordinator

Mark Masson, Committee Services

Page 426



| N o Y, |

Y, PPN

) woJ} $s809y, 3y} jo Alanilep puissoin 0192
» Jo} awuwelboisd |euoisinoid uoqg paylL,, s|jesodoid a9a)IWWo)
L ay} ‘sidiound ul ‘salbe (e) | YyUON Oy} wodj SSad%dy (2) alnjonJiselu|
- -paAjosal 8awwo) 3y} ‘L LOZ | - uonnjos Jodsuel] pajeibaju| | pue Buluuelg
1D €1'S0°LZ |ayoog aibbey | ‘Asenuep gL uo bBunesw Sy )y | Uy — YON 9y} Wolj SS929Y (}) ‘oslidisug Z
fd

‘Juswialels
Y ssaulsng aa)ilwo)) 8y} uo ulewsl
.nlu 0} sem wajy siy} jey} pasibe z10z
w JBQWBAON Q9 U0 ddPIWWO0) dY|
MJ ‘Paysljgelss
8gq 0} salepunoq juawdo|arsp
a|qeus 0} Jeak [eloueuly
SIy} Jo} paindas usaq sey bBuipuny
Aey vz jo aepdn sy} Jad sy
‘Alessaoau uaym pue se uila|ing 1o
yodas e jo Aem Aq sapiwwo) ay)
0} papinoid ale sjosloid asayy |e ‘Buiuwelboid pue s}s0o
uo sajepdn uiejuod yoiym spodal | ‘ubisap paje}ep uo yoeq uodal
sjoaloid yodsuel | olbajel}S | sjeloo ayl ey pue ‘(soeus]
‘Ajjigejiene aoinosal pue 1ebpnq | sImod/peoy piojpag e ajeb
0] 10algns sAemie se pue ‘sajep | snq e YlM UOIjelo0SSe Ul ‘JopLIoD
99)JIWWOD dABY JuOp &M 8sed | 8y} Joy} uondo  Buiylpwosg
yolym ul - Syjuow gz| uey} alow | oQ, po|eo-0S 8y} 21)
}seg| je 1o Aeme syjuow [elanss | ubisap psajeyep 03 uoissalboud (gL some)
Jeah aq Jayya [ Buiodas oy abeys | Joy uondo pausyaid ayy anoidde 601192
[eloueuly Aoy xau sy} 0} 196 0} painbas | 0} paAjosal  esILIWOD Byl a9 lwwo)
sIy} YoM 3y} JOo yonw se apirnoid 0} ainjonJisedyu|
palinbal ynoip ase sjoaloid uonenodsuely sjuowidaAoidui] ainjdonJ}seqju] | pue Buluueg
Hodas oON |ayoog a1bbepy | Jolew 8y} 1oy sajep oAuySq | Jodsuel] — JoplIo) udpAiiag ‘osudiaug g
(umou }i)
pa3oadx3y [SJEETe) (P1oq u1 sajepdn mau) ajepdn UoISI29(J 99 IwIo) ERDEYETEN
Joday | °nQjoday pea 9)nuUIlN | 'ON

Z10Z 19qWIDAON 9 Jo Bunasy ay3 Buimojjo4

SS3ANISNG FILLININOD - FHNLONYLSVHANI ANV ONINNV1d ‘ISIMdYILNT

Page 427



Kay aiayp\ SUOISIOBp @8a)IWWIO)

Jayuny alnbal SUETIETE]
|[enpiaipul p|noys Bunodal
djeledas ypm ‘awwelboid

ajoym a8y} jo ssalboisd uo siseq
[enuue ue uo sJaquwal\ Sjepdn
0] pasodoud s} ‘swwelboid siy}
jo A1anijap o} payiuapl si Buipuny
se papinoid aq |Im sayepdn ainin4

‘Buipuny
JO S82IN0S JueAdjal Iayjo
pue 12bpnq jeude) Buisnoy
-UON 3y} jo sajyoud puads
sleak ainjn} jJo juswsalibe
0} 109[gns papusawe
aq ybiw ssjeosawi} se ue|d
A1anijep ay} jo ssalboud yum
ajep 0} dn aaplwwo) 38y}
deay 0} si2o1yo jonisul 0}  (p)

pue
‘paiinbal  se  sesRILIWOD
aininy 0} |eiajal

pue uoneynsuod o} joalgns

‘Nwiad pjnom  Buipuny

pue Aoud se jsi| Aleniap

[N} 8y} wol} Sawayos

ssalboid 0} SI9210 JoNJIsul (9)
SJomlau peol yunuy

ay} uo suondo Buipiebas

puejoos uodsuel |

pue yy3g yim suoissnosip

anuIuod 0} SI9dIYo jonaisul (q)
‘s|esodoud podsuely

‘aswwelboid
Alenjeg e  jo  jswdojansp
ay)} Buipnjoul ‘siapew asay} ul
ssalboid uo yoeq uodal seinbal e
1sanbal 0} sbuiyy Jayjo 1sbuowe
‘panjosal 29a)lLWwo) ayl

pajesbojul  YUoN 3y} (61 do1E)
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Page 428



€l'10¢ce

cL’so’Le

sauu| Bie1n

) ey pue ‘L0z ‘Jequeides
ZZ UO 9ajlluwo) dduewlouad
pue Aoljod @ojelodion a8y Aq
palopisuod aq pjnom juswainooid

ybnouy SIIETIETe] Ajlunwwoos
Buuaniep uo Aoljod eouepinb
e Jo |enosdde OBuipyess podal

B Jey) pajou S9)IWWOD aY} ‘L10Z
‘Jlaqwiaydeg ¢| uo Bunssw s) 1y

‘lenoidde 1o} sapiwwo) ay)
Jo Bunaaw ainjny e 0} papiwgns aq
Ao1j0d ayj jey) pue ‘syuswainoosd
$|19UN0Y By} UIYIM Sasned }JI5auaq
Ajlunwwos jo asn ay} uo Aoiod
a)e10diod jsnqod e Jo juswdo|arsp
dY} U0  JOM 0}  BNUIUOD
0] 9O2UBUIBAOL) 8jesodio) uIlypm
sJaoljo jonnssul o)} ‘sbuiyl Jayjo
)sbuowe  ‘papnjosal @8pIWIWIO)
3y} ‘010z Ae Lg uo Buieaw sy Iy

"0} sasudiajua |einos
JO Junodooe aye} 0} salnpadosd
juswainooud S, [louno)
3yl JO Juswpuswe |eleno
ayl jo Ayiqissod sy} Buuojdxs
99)JWWO0) ainjonJiselu|  pue
Buluue|q ‘esudisjug ayj 0} Lodal
B Jwqgns 0} sIso1yo 1senbal
0]} PpaAj0Sal  @8/lWWO) Byl

joenuos sbulysiuang

pue

(0Z spoie)
0L'co9l
2a)lLwo)
JUSWUOJIAUT
BuisnoH

Juswale)s
ssauisng aa)IWWo) 8y} UO ulewsl
0} sem wa) siy} Jey) paaibe z,0g
JOQWIBAON 9 U0 88pIWwWo) 8y

'zLoz Aep L€ uo
paJapisuod sem uodal ssaiboud y

‘uodal ajepdn soseloud
Jodsues] oibsjesiS Byl  UIyIM
papn|oul JO uid|INg 8y} Jo ued se
papinoid aq ued sajepdn o0y-pe
‘Jeak ay} Buunp apew si ssalboud

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

Page 429



"sasne|o Jjeuaq
Agunwiwoo sonposul 0} 8|qissod
usag sey Jl aiaym ‘swi} jey} le
UMOUY &g [IIM UOIYM JO SBWO09IN0
8y} ‘seslolexe Jepus) Jua08l JO
SSIAPE 0} 99RIULIOD |9 IXaU Y}
0} Wodal e jwqns 0} JuswWaINo0Id
Jo pesH 8y} Jo Uonuajul ay) Si |

pENl
Buleq ale spasu Jyeuaq Ajunwwod
}ey} ainsua 0} Syjuow @-9 Xau ay}
Ul paplwgns aq ||IM Sashejd Jjauaq
Ajlunwwos ayj jJo asn sjIOUNO)
3y} uo uodal ajepdn uy “spLBUBQ
Alunwwos jo joadsal ul spasu
paynuapl Ajsnoinaid ay} 1o} Jajed o0}
8|ge aq |IIm NdD ay} Yey} ybnoyy
aI0jalay} SI'})| ‘SHBUSQ AUNWIWOD
SE |ONs Sanss| U0 92IAI8S palo|ie)}
alow e apinoid 0} way)l Moje [[Im
SIy} pue sad2IA8S 0} paubiie mou
ale siabeuely Alobaje) '01do)
s1y} uo Buiuiesy 18210 Buipinoid aq
Ajpoys |m pue sjyauaq Ajunwiwiod
uo pes| e bBupey ase (.NdD,)
Hun juswsainoold 8jelodio) ay|

"92IAISS SIY}
1o} Ajjeoyoads Aoljod ayy 0} apinb
Alpuauy Jasn B yum 99jILIwo)
alnyonuiselu| pue Buluueld
‘asudiajug ay; jo Bunesw xau ay)
0} Jodal pjnom siao10 ‘panoidde

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

Page 430



93PIWWOY €10¢
Arenuep ayj 0} pajussald aq mou

M SIyl Ing Bunssw JagquaAoN
ay} 1e ssaiboid siy} Jo s8pIWWO)
ay) asiape 0} padoy pey NdD YL

‘saljed
pajsaleiul Ag pesayo SsI jBuaq
wnwixew alnsua 0} SIapus)
[elul 8y} wouj pauleb ssusauadxs
woJ} wayj ybiam pue Ajoads i1saq
Moy 0} se jno Buidoos ale s1aoyO
pue pappe aq |IM Sasnhe;d ay)
aleym sjuswaiinbal Buiwooypuoy Jo
Jagqwnu e os|e sl aiay] ‘jusawouw
9y} le passasse AjpAoe bBuiaq
ale yoiym sjosfosd uononIISuoD
uo sawayos diysaonuaidde
0] bBuneds Ajeoyoads sasnelo
wauaq  Ayunwwod  Bulurejuod
‘slepua} JO Jaqwnu e ale aiay]

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

Page 431



usam)aq uoIssasg Jo UnoY ay} Jo

9SNOH Jauu|
sy} ur bupys dilyd pue Awouogq
‘@)le|D) spio]  alojeq  plesy
SEeM UO0ISSaS JO BN0) 8y} JO asnoH
8Ino ayy ul bugys (Ll HSOD

[1102]) ®1AL pio7 o Juswabpnl ayy
Jsuiebe uojep) JN Ag |eadde uy

"Jos aq 0} }oA sey bBulieay e 1o}
ajep ¥y 'Wno) awaidng N ay} 0}
|leadde ue papiwagns z|0g [Mdy 21
UO UO)BAA JIN "SOSED [INID wopbBury
pajun e Jo} |eadde jo UNOY |euly
8y} Sk sjoe YdIym ‘uopuoT ul Jnoo
awaidng N ay} 0} skep zi ulyIm
[eadde jo ybu Aiojnjels e sey
Aued |njssaoconsun ayj ‘Juswabpnl
3y} Jo Bumnssi sy} bHBumojo4

‘leadde ayj Buissiwsip
210z Aeniga4 gz uo juswabpnl
lIsyy  pailenjep  sdiyspio  JidylL

"LL0Z Jeqwiedag 9l B €1
usamjaq uolIssasg
JO HWNn0) 8y} Jo 8shoH Jauuj
ay) ur bupys dilyd pue Awouog

"@wo92}no pue ssaiboud
3yl U0 93PWWO) Jueasjal
ay} 0} oeq podas pue awayos
peoy |esaydusad UIB1SaNA
uaapliaqy ay} jo Jed se palaniep
BPuissolo uog ¢ 8y bBuiney
0] M3IA B UJM JUSWUIBAOD
Usinoog 8y} ypm suonenobsu
OJjul JSUS 0} aJInjoniiseuu|
pue Buluue|d ‘osldiaug
Jo} Joyasq 8yl onjsul o]

}abpng 91.02/5102 0} £€102/2102

9AIedIpU| pue 102/110¢
jobpng enuaAay pung [eilaua9

‘awwelboid
pue ajewinsa 1sod pajepdn ue
Buipinold ssaooid  jJuswainooid
ay} BuLnp a9)IWwo)
ajeudoidde sy} 03 podas iaypuny

112001

1°bpng |1OUN0Y)

‘ofle|)  spio]  alojdq  piesay | B apinoad 0} SISO JonJisul (2zZ @o1u€)
SEM UOISSSS JO UN0Y 8y} JO 8SNOH | 0} PaA0Sal  @8jllwo) 8yl 01'20°€Z
BIno 8y} ul bums (LgL HSOD ainjonJiselju]
[L102]) 2441 pioT Jo wswabpnl ay) jJoday ssaiboid — ajnoy | pue Buiuue|d
211190 |[ayoog a1bbeyy | 1suiebe uoyepn JN AQ |eadde uy | Jeiaydiliad UJS)SOA\ uodoplaqy ‘osiidiaju] b
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Page 432



‘Jlayealay] ‘z1L0z Aenigaq
e uo Aueq  Buppopp

[esodoid e yons
osinold 8y} uo

jey}
‘walsAs

- sealy Bupjped pajjonuo) Jwiad  paseq-suoIssIwd
3y} je palapIsuod aq [|IM sIy} apim Ayo e Bulysigelsa
‘Buiobuo s1 wa)sAs pwiad Jo  Aypqissod ey uo
paseg-suolssiwa apim A} Hodas pajelep e ywqgns
e Buiysigeyss jo Aypqissod 0} SJ9oIyO Jsanbal 0} ()
ay} Buipiebal YIOM pue :uoisinal g|qissod
‘Il uolnjosal 0} uolelal Uuj () | pue uoljelapisuod
€10 'z1oz Rep Lg uo 10} S3YIWWIOY
Bundg pauodal aq o} APy alow alnjonJisedu| pue
|[ayoog aibbeyy | sI ¥ J1enamoy ‘Aienuep |¢ Buluue|d ‘esudiajug ay} 0}
uo Bunsaw s)l Je sapIWWOo) payodal pue uayeuspun
a3yl 0] uwnjal Aew mainal a(q S9OIAIBS [1IoUN0Y
ay} pue asuodsal e Buiyieme Jayjo Agq 19s juswajiua
IS ale si20iyO  paldde pue sableydo  Bupjed
sabieyo ay}; Jo sjedp JO MalAal e Jey} 2aibe 0} (1)
}senbal 0} pue sIN220 - dnoug Bunpiopp
Buibieyo ai1eym  B2IMIBS Buned sealy pa|j0Jju0)
JI8Y} UIylm suoieso| ay} jo 3y}l wWoOJ} Ssuoljepusawwodal 0}
s|ielop 1senbai 0} pajoejuod uonejas ul ‘sbuiyy Jayjo isbuowe (¢ 9jo1B)
ussq aAey OOV Ulypm ‘Panjosal SdPlwwoY syl LL'€0'GlL
S9OINIBS JueAs|al Jaylo ||V (1) ainjonJisedyu|
-:SMOJ|0} wid)SAg Jiwidd paseq | pue Buluueg
LL'60°CL | yoopiny ybnH | se ese osay} uo ajepdn uy | -suoissiwg/sabiey)y bupjied ‘osudisjug G
‘Ainf 0L pue g
uo pJeay sem pue pno) awaidng
MN By} O} spew sem UOISIOBp
jey} 1Jsuiebe |eadde Jayuny vy
‘leadde ay} Buissiwsip
210z Aeniga4 gz uo juawabpnl
Jayy paJanap sdiysplo
d_Yyl  "L10¢ Jequeded 9L ® ¢l
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Page 433



‘d|qe|leAe awo029( S924N0Sd
9S9U} Se UuoO0S Sk dIPIWWOo)
0} )Yoeq jybnoiq aq |Im jiodau
V °9|gejieAe JOou daJe S92.In0Ssal
asay} ‘Juawiow ay} Jo4
‘Apuasing -anssi siy} ssaippe
0} S924N0Sal JUIIDIYNS HWWOD
0} 9|ge ale swed} ainjoniysesju|
pue jusawdojaAdg d|qeule}sng
s.|®d3 H ‘Juawabeuew
)¥s pooly pue soaibajesys
uondepe obueys ajewld jo
juswdojaAap weasjsulew ay} jo
Jed se passaiboud aq Ajuo ues
joolold uonesduabay |e)}seo)
uaoplaqy 9y} ‘os|ly “piemio}
joofoad siy} aye} o} punoy uaaq

‘Juswabeuew
ysu pool} pue  salbojelis
uonjeldepe abueyo asjewld jo
Juswdojanap wealjsulew ay} ol
SaAljeliul  uonelauabal  |eyseod
Bujui ‘sjpho ziLoz Aew/udy

9ABY S92JN0SdJ4 |euOl}ippe OU | 3y} Ul 29)lLWOY BINjoNnIIsesu|
‘uayj 9ouUIS "paysl|ge)sasip sem | pue Buluue|d ‘oslidisug
3sod oy} pue uodas snoinaud | By} 0] Yoeq podal e BAIBOAI
9y} jo uononpoid isaye Apioys | 0} salbe ‘sbuiy} Jayjo isbuowe
juswAhojdwa s 1ounon ay} }a| | ‘panjosal a9a)IWWo) ayl (yZ o101E)
(921M1098 Judwdojanag ssauisng LL'60°EL
pue ojwouodg Aq poakojdwad sjuswdojonag sawwelbolid — ainjonJisedyu|
jJjou sem oym) anssi siy} Yyum | {dgoVS) 3o9loid uoneisusabay | pue Buluuelg
2L'So'LE ybnoug Aoy | Buijeap Ajsnoinaid 192140 9yl | je3seod uaapiaqy y3nos ‘oslidiau] ‘9
'€1.0Z Buudg ul sapiwwo)
0} pspodas pue ZL0Z
uwinyne ul uayeuapun aq 0} ‘1102 ‘lequisydag ¢ uo
sabieyo Bunyed 10z/2102 Bunsaw sy je LapIWWO)
Jo M3INBI ay) ypm alnjonuiselyu| pue
uonounfuod ur  padojenap Buiuue|d ‘esuidiajug ayy 0}
aq |m |esodoid 8y} [eJjneu anuaAal 8q p|NOM
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Page 434



ITER e yoiym Buimolo} | ‘panjosal a9a)lWwWo) ayl
Ajusulwwi - pajoadxe sl sIyL (2v spo1e)
‘Juswissasse  J|as  Jiay} ybnouay) ue|d uondy puy ZL'LO'LE
o6 0} uonesiuebio Jauped (4dv1H) | JUSWISSASSY }|9S — 24€) |eId0S alnjonJisedu|
ue|d UuonlOy Jodsuel] yjesH | puy YjleeH 4104 3jiodsuei] | pue Buiuueg
gL'Loee ZL'S0°LE | 19yoog aibbe|y | auo |ys sI aiey} obejs siy} )y | UQ Moday Ppuepods Hpny ‘aspidisjuy 8
‘awayos abpeg uasaio
ay} jo ainynj ayj uo sjesodoud
YIM ‘€L0Z YOJe ul dspiwwon
I’8d3 9y} o} odai e jwqns
0} papudjul sI )} ‘papn|ouod
uaoaq sey uol}e}INSuod
?ouQ0 ‘(ovq) dnoio uondy
Aipgesiga 9y ypum sasodund
uolje} nsuod 10} patedaad
usaq sey podaa e ‘A|Buipioosoy
‘awayos abpeg
uaaic) ay} uodn joedwi ue aAey
600Z 19V (puepodg) seoedg
Bunjied suosiad pajqesiq
ay} pue 010z 3V Apjenb3
9y} jey) patapisuod si } ‘wiojal
obpeg on|g 9y} se ||Iom sy
"salled pajsalalul
'sanded | ypm uolje}nNsuod Buimojjoy
pajsalajul  YjpM  uolje}jnsuod | S/Rlwwo) 8y} Jo  bBunesw
Buimojjoy 99 IWIWIOD)  dAJniny | ainjny B 0} 3oeq podal 0} pue
e 0} )oeq jdodas 0) pue awdYyds | swaYds abpeg usalig S [10UNOYD
abpeg udaig s 1ounon Ayy ayy | Aun a8y uo oedwr 9|qissod (L sro1ue)
uo wojas abpeg an|g jo jJoedwil | 8y} MaIA8I 0} SISJIYO JoNnJIsul LL'60°CL
a|qissod ay} malAal 0} pajonJjsul | 0} pPBAJ0SAl  28IWIWO0YD By ainjonyiselu|
alam s19210 ‘LL0Z 49qualdasg pue Buiuuelg
€L'eo6l ZL'L0'LE | yoopin ybnH | ¢} jJo @aplwwio)d 343 aY) W awdyog abpeg usdaln ‘aspidisjuy L
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Page 435



Jo uonedsyuspP! pue
spodal sauped Jayjo jo ybis
Bunieme ||13s aie am — ajepdn oN

‘@aplwwo) Asenuepr
ay} 0]} pauodal aq ued siy} ey}
pajedionue si } ‘paonpoid aq ued
ue|d uonoe ||nj e pue payiuapl ale
saouabe ay) ssosoe juswanosduwl
Buipeau seale oy} jey} Japlio
ul ‘sjuswssesse ||le Buiouaisyal
SS0J0 ale dV1H 9y} pue pa}ajdwod

uaaq aney SJUBWSSaSSY
-JJoS suonesiuebio Jsuped v
"uolje|osi

ul SIy} op Jou ued am 3I0jalay)
ueld wuonoe a8y} 03 yoeoiudde
wiol e s aidy} ey} jueuodwil
sl ‘'suonesiuebio  Jsuped
N0 YUM ue|d U0y SAI}09||0D
e aledaisd 0] o|geun IS ale
al0jolay] pue B2IAIBS SoueINqUIY
UsSIJOOS  WOJ}  JUSWISSISSE-J|as
3y} ULas Jou 1S aAey SN\ 9JoAd
siy} Joj} ueld uonoe pajsenbal
3y} podal 0} o|ge jou ale N\

"91942 sIy} }e apIwwo?) o0} Lodal
ued uonoe pajsenbai ay; apinoid
0] 9|ge Jou ale siaoIo ‘19A abeis
SIY} }e Jou aje am sy ‘siauped
dV1iH Il Yim BAlO9JI00 B sk
dn Buimmelsp aq |m uejd uonoe ue
pue paje||od aq ||IM SJUSWISSOSSE

"Hodai puefjods JIpny sy}
AQ Jno )9S Se suoljepuswuwiodal
3y} 193w p|noMm [I9UN0Y 3y} Moy
pue juswssasse J|as Buimojo}
Juswdolanap Joj seale ay} apjoe)
pinom suoinesiuebio Jauped pue
[1oUno) ay} moy ino bBupes ueld
uoloe pajie}op e yum ‘z10z ‘Aey
L€ uo Bungaw sy je a9)Iwwo)
a3y} 0} 3oeq podas 0} SO
}sanbail 0} ‘sbuiyy Jayjo 1sbuowe

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

ol

Page 436



[lyieysalo4 ay} yioq ur sabieyo

Bupped jealjs-uo  Jo  asealoul (z1 sromue)
3y} ouodisod o0} osalbe o] Z21'S0°L¢e
ainjonJiselyu|
‘epuabe Iyiajsaio4 | pue Buiuue|d
€1°10°22 | yoopiny ybnH | 3uasind ayj uo jodau e si aiay] | ye sobiey) bunjied j}oaiis-uQ ‘osudisug | 0L
‘'ssao0ud Japlo
uonenbal oijel) ay} S0USBWWOD
-a1 pue  ‘enusAy  S|[IymaN
JO puaq ay} je saoeds bBunpjied Jed
‘Ino} uey} Jayjel ‘enly Buipinoid
Jo Ajjqissod sy} aio|dxa s1a9140
1eylr pue ‘(z oN) (sainsesp
Juswabeuely oigel] apIAy AuD)
[1ouno) AuD usspiaqy 8y} wouy
panowal 8Qq ©8nuaAy S[|IYMeN
Jo} |esodoisd 8y} leyy psjsanbal
99)IWWO) By} BJaymM ‘snusAy
slilymaN o} uopes ul (11)(q)
JO uondaoxa ayj yum uodas ay}
ul suoljepuswwodal ay} anoidde
ueisyoeJoel 0]} PpaAj0Sal  @8/lWWO) Byl
suer ‘S|jluwo) (9 so1pe)
Aenuep oy} o0} pauodas oq 9NUAAY S|[IYMaN ZL'SO°LE
[IIM s)nsal ay} alaym uaApe olgnd | = obe}s JUSWISSIHOAPY ainjonJiselyu|
pue Alojnjels |eniu|  pauiqwod | Aioynyels urep JO | pue Buiuuelg
11022 ZL'LL'9 | yoopinyy ybnH | e 0} 1no 06 0} Jnoge sI swayds Siy| | swodInQ — siopdQ dijei] Jno4 ‘oslidisug ‘6
*MOU Ssyjuouw jo Jaquinu
e 10} 9|qissod se uoos se
s1Yy} 0} uonnjosai e 1o} Buiysnd
uaa(q aAeY SI921}O ‘wed] ue|d
uonoy yodsuel] yjesH ay} yum
IS SI sIy} — seade jJudwarosduwli
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Ll

Page 437



3y} 92USWWOD 0} SIAIYOo

JonJsul  pue ‘epis jses

3y} Se ||]om se ‘19)|ndisled

‘(Lee/6Ze ¥e aueq) peoy

spises@ YHWON Jo 3piIs

}SeM 8y} uo suoloullsal

Buniem 2w Aue

}e, pasodoud ay} sjowo.d

sI201j0  Jey} uondsaoxse

ay} UM ‘g|diound

ul ‘sjesodosd sy} anoisdde (1)
-:0} paAj0Sal 83IWWO0) 3Y |

90KQ "OAlIg SPeaY[IoM PUY
S[[lomsbury] ‘oAllq poomsbury
‘Briea] W juswidojonaq
[EnuopIsoy jAdeuneyq Joons
BIUIBIIA _'PEOY  |yJowiung
‘PEO0y Ss,usonp 1JIN0H [eAoy
BNUOAY  WeUel)  JSOAOId
‘Peoy  1eosQ  's|jomsbury
'PEOY ouoNS PIO '49}ndiajod
"peoy apisead UION

"99)lWWOD | TI9)NJId)ed 'peoy opisooQq
uelyoeJoe|\ | @injny B O} UWIN}d) pue UaApe | YHON 19} nd1d}dd '(1L£2/62¢ (gz {jo1ue)
auer | ognd 0} paadoid mou |Im 3say) | Iy oue]) peoy opiseaqg YMON ZL'SO°LE
910JaI9Y} PaAIgdal a1am Suo10a[qo | TMBIA~ JOXJ0ISPIN  JuUddSalI) ainjonyiseuu|
ou pue uoneynsuod Aiojnjels [eniul | meysbiery @A [ITH-YSY | pue Buluuelg
ZL'LL'9 | yoopiny ybnH | 10} Ino auobh aney sawayos asay| | [OAHQ [[IYyudo) ‘oue] A9|ysy ‘osudioug | ‘L1
Bl siy} je sspiuwo)
8y} 0} >oeq uodal sIIYO
Jey} pue uayeuspun usaq pey
awayos bunped mau s ueldwels
SHN JO Malnal B |jun auoz
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

¢l

Page 438



cl’'€0’6l

cl'19

Heynbin
pjeuoq

yoopinpy ybnH

0} paijdde sabieys Buuayip ayj
osfjeue 0} pue saljewoue asay}
ajebnysaaul A|Inj 03} ysym ul
awi} |euonippe aiinbail si199110

‘sjuawiiedap |19Unod
yjo Aq poaing] alse sabiueyos
yoiym uoj sease Bupjsed Jed
Jo j}oadsas ul ‘ayep o)} pasAjeue
uojjewlojul Ul punoj uddq
9AeY sSdljewoue jo Jdqunu Yy

ay} ajesodioour Im yoiym Aoijod
Buyyed uo podas luspeoiq e
pue Bupjed uo podal aapIWIWOD
e Buipuad (p) uonepusWWOI3I
NETETo] 0} ‘sbuiyy Jayjo
}sbuowe ‘poalbe  LaILIWOD
juswuoliaug pue BuisnoH 8yl

Sjinsay
UONJE}NSUO) JUaWadIoug puy
jlwieg — bunjieq Je) buisnoy

pue

(0L ®po1E)
¢l's0'ce
Juswuolinug
BuisnoH

<l

"98)ILIWIOY aINjonisesu|
pue bBuluue|ld ‘esudisjug
ay} jo Bunssw ainjn) e 0}
3yoeq uodal 0} pue saoeds
Bupped abpeg onig jo
IS!I 3yj Joj J3pIo dujel) sy}
Jo} uoine}nsuod Alojnjels
paulquwiod 8y} |ouUsBWWOod
0} S1901j40 ongsur - (1)
pue
‘29)lLWOY  aInjonJiselyu|
pue Buiuue|d
‘oslidisjug ay} jo Bunssw
alnjny B 0} s)nsal a8y}
Jodas pue juswasiuaApe
ollgnd ay} Upm
ssalboid 0} uay} ‘panigdal
alam suolnoalqo jueoiubis
ou JI pue ‘palinbal si1aplo
uoneinbal  oyesy a8y}
Jo} uoine}nsuod Alojnjels
Areuiwnjaid jJo sainpasold
|eba) Aessadau

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

€l

Page 439



Allea ulr espiwwio) 8y}
0} oeq podas pue ‘Apuiol
P12y 29 Asy} ey} uondo ue
yum Ajjeoioads ‘Jusna uo
-Yopmg  sjybi sewnsuyo

pue apeled ejueg
3y} Joj} sjuswabueue
€L'eo6l 3y} mainas s1oo jeyy  (2)
pue :Ajsnoinaid uo Juads
usagq pey saluow juelb
ayl jeym Buisinpe pue
‘peaids |eoiydelboab pue
sainbiy  oyeydn jussaud
pue snoinaid  Buluipno
quelb ey} Jo spLBUa(Q
3y} Buikypuspr Ajjeoioads
‘jueio saljlunwwo)
BAl}S94 8y} 0} uoljejal ul
uonewJoyul Buipinoud €102
Allea ur espiwwion 8y}
"99plwwo ay} | 0} doeq Hodas siadlo Jeyy  (}) (91 spoI1E)
Jo Bunaaw }xau ay} 0} paplwigns -:paaibe sapiwwo) ay | ZL60°LL
aq |IMm (Z) o} Bunejas jodas y alnjonJisedu|
‘sioded epuabe ayj ui papnjoul Y1/€102 | pue Buluueg
11022 ybnoug Aoy | s1 () 40} jodaa jueasjas 9yl | awweiboid SJUaA] /S TEs) ‘esudiaug | ¢
‘Pdlwwo) |'ed3d
yolepy 9y} 03} uolepudawwioddd
pue sisAjeue }snqgou e
apinoid 0} J9pJO Ul JUBWUOIIAUT
pue BuisnoH woJ} uolew.Io}ul
J9y}n} ulejqo o3 papusdjul si j 10} 9|qIsuodsal s| 92INIBS
ainpnisenu]  pue  Buluueld
‘juswuoliaug pue Buisnoy | ‘esudisyug 8y} ey bBupjed
Aq paso)siulupe seale 3y} | pue Junoddy SnuaAdy BuisnoH
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

142

Page 440



0} poalbe LdpWWOD BYL ¢l'60L1L
ainjonJiselyu|
020¢ 10} Abajens | pue Buiuuelg
€10z 1snbny | |ayoog aibbey Vv A1) 19)iewis oyl udapiaqy ‘osudiauy | ‘gL
91949 991 IWIWOI }XdU Y} 10}
patedasd aq |Im ji0dos e ased
yoiym uj -bBupjred ueyy s9yjo
sasodind J0j sd)is opIy pue
yied Buisijpn 10j awibal Juaiind
ay} yum ui i Aj@jeridosdde Aew
sjuand jo adfy jeym uo Jaded
jJoys e aosnpoud 0} s|qissod aq
PInoys 31 ‘s8yis aply pue yled uo 'SOJIS 9pIYy PUE Mied
P19y 99 ues SjuaAd jeym jnoge | ul pabeuew aq 0} ale paqLOSap
paapul sI anssl a3y} J| ‘(seys | adA} 8y} Jo sjueAs aininy moy
apIy pue )yied Buiuianob aosejd | uo sspiwwo) sjeudoidde ayy 0}
ul Apeasje si awibas panosdde | yoeq uodas siaolo jeyy ysanbal (0z so1ue)
99plwwio) e) ‘says 9pM | 0} poalbe LIPWWOD  BYL ¢l'60L1L
pue jJed jou ‘sasedg uadQ pue alnjonJisedu|
s)ded Ul SJUdAT 0} Jdjal p|noys sooedg uadQ pue s)ied | pue Buiuuelg
€1'10°22 ybnoug Auleg) | uoisioap aapiwwod ay} sdeysad | Ul SJUSAT jJo juowabeuep ‘esudisug | L
"€10Z U1 Juana Ajiwey
a|qeholus pue aAIsnpul ‘sles
e Janlep o0} }ebpnqg ajeudoisdde
ue Jo |enoisdde  Bunsanbal
pue juana AeuewboH ¢L0Z ©
Jo} jenuajod ay} Buissesse ‘€102
Aienige4 Jo pua a8y} o} Joud (zz some)
99)JWWO0)  ainjonJjseyu| pue ZL0L'v0
Buiuue|q ‘esudiajug ayj 0} podal $92IN0SaYy
B Jwqgns [|IM SI0140 ey} SJoN | pue aoueul
‘piebal siyy Ul €102
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday pea 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Gl

Page 441



awi siy
Je suonoe Jayyny oN -juiod ey
0} ssaiboud apnjoul |Im podal
|eod19A2 yoea pue awil SIy}
}je ued am se Je} se passaiboud

ainny e o} suondo e
uo yoeq podas pajielsp e
apinoud pue saniunuoddo
a)s 9|qissod | ssnhosip
Jayunj ainjoniisenu| pue
Buluuelq ‘esudiejuz jo
loyalg ay} jeyy jsenbas ()
pue :uoljeoo| apry
pue yed Aleiodws} e se
SNUIUOD BYIS JudlND By}
wusul 8y} ul jeyy salbe (1)
-aply pue
Yed uoQ jo abpug ay)
Jo} a)is jsuewlad e 1o}
uondo pausaid ay) pue
yomawel4 juawdojenaqg
3yl usaamieq  JoIJuod
|[enuajod Aue uo Buipodal
99WWOo)  ainjoniiselu|
pue bBuluue|ld ‘esudisju]
3y} o0} uodal JBYMN}
e Buug 0] ainjniseuul
pue bBuluue|ld ‘esudisjug

suonoe e os uodas 3se| | JO JoaNg BY} Jonisul ()]
9y} ul pauipno se |e ‘ssasoid -:0} ‘sbuiy} Jayjo }sbuowe
Buuopua) jusawdojandp Ay} | ‘panjosal 29)llwo) ayl (L€ sromue)
JO awo93no ay} buieme mou ase ZL'SO°LE
pue Apnjs 21woOuU029 ue pajiodal Joday 9yepdn ainjonJiselyu|
}Jse|] am - sanss| aply pue | s}oaloid uonejodsuel] | pue Buiuuelg
€L'oee ZL'11'90 | 19yoog aibbepy | yded uo( jo abplig o} uoneja uj | [ed07 pue Jo1bagjens ‘asudisuy | ‘91
‘lenoidde Joy uejd uoneyuswas|dwi
pue ABajess ay} yum
€10z Isnbny ul espiwwo) 8y}
0] 3oeq podal 0} SIao1o JoNnasul (¢z so1e)
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday pea 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

9l

Page 442



[esodoisd By} Jo sSwid} Ul (¢)
=N [10[10e]}
siy} jo bBuneaw ainny e
0} 3oeq uodas pue saoeds
Bupped abpeg onig jo
}sl| 8y} Joy Japio uolje|nbal
dljjes} ay} Joj uole}nNsuod
Aiojnje)s paulquod
3y} 92UBWWOD 0} SIBIYOo
a)eudoidde ay} jonisul 0}  (2)
‘PvpIwwo)
sIy} JO Bunssw
alnjny B 0} s)nsal a8y}
Hodas pue juswasiuanpe
olgnd ayy yum ssaiboud
uasy} ‘ponIaoal ale
suonoalqo jueoubls ou
J| "wodas ay} ul paquosap
se paJinbal slapio
uoneinbal  oen  ay)
Jo} uolneynsuod Alojnjels
Areuiwnaid jo sainpaooud
|eba) Aessadau
3y} 92UBWWOD 0} SIBIYOo
a)eudoidde ay} jonssul 03 (1)
-:paaibe sapiwwo) ay |

(GZ spo1ye)
(S)I0M ZL'60'LL
M3N) sjesodoild pojeidossy ainjonyiseuu|
"PaWLIJUOD juswido|9ASg pue jJuswisbeuely | pue Buluueg
aq 0} ayeq | yoopinpy ybnH Jijel] oJ|eds |[[ewlS SnOMEeA ‘osudioug | /L
"99)lLIWIOY aINjonJisesu|
pue Buiuue|d
‘asilidiaiug ay; Jo Bunssw
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

Ll

Page 443



147014
Jaquiaydeg

yoopiniy ybnH

‘passaibo.d
aAeYy slepiQ djel]  8say)
MOy UO awi} sieak om] ul yoeq
yodal 0} pajonijsul 8q SJa2Iyo
Jey} poalbe sapIwWO)  BYL

2102 1op10 (obessegq

Jo JybBry ollqng Jo osIoioxg
JO sues|y JO uonBeulwio}op
9Y) (SAemjooq  snouep)
(ealy oeiquoaig /pioyqnq)
[IoUNo) AJD usapiaqy oyl (2)
pue 7102

19pI0 _ (Juowipuawly)  (yjed
3|9kg |juemjseped poJeys)
(Uoopioqy ‘peoy ssowibnpy
/PE0d  WNIPPIN___ PIO/96V)
[1oUNo) A1) usapiaqy ayL (1)

(9 spoiye)
cle60’LL
ainjonyiseuu|
pue Buiuue|d
‘osiidiaju]

81l

‘poliad uoneynsuod
ayl bBumojo} sepIWWOo)
ayl 01 Yoeq Modal
pjnom pue ‘ueldwels)
SHN pue 891104 ueldwels)
Buipnjoul sJauped
WwoJ} Yoeqpas) aAIedal
p[nom  s1aoijo  ssadoud
uoneynsuod Aioniels ay}
JO Jed se jey} ‘paisojuow
aq uoISUaIXa nw
paads oy} 1ey} isenbal
S,81WI0D J1oj|1ouno)
0] uolje@l Ul 80U
0] ‘peoy |Iylejsalo4 .o}

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQ Joday

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

8l

Page 444



‘Bunyesw
d9alwwo) ainjny e 0}
anoge ay} jo sbulpuly ay)
uo oeq podas 0} SIadIyo
aleudoisdde ay} joniisul 0}  (§)
pue
‘auoz bBunjed psjoauo)
3y} Jo) aseo ssauisng e
dojanap pue auoz bBunyied
pajjonuoyn pue sjesodoid
Juswabeuew dlel} ay) Joy
S9jewI}sa }s0d  ysiqelse
0} SJ92IYo JonJisul 0} (2)
-auoz
Buppeq paojosjuo) pue
sjesodoid  juswabeuew
oijery 8y} jo ubisep
Areuiwnaud ayy ssaiboud

0} sJdoyo jonisur o} (1)
-:paalbe sapgiwwo) ay| (z€ o1o1HE)
cle60’LL
sjesodold auoz bunjied ainjonJiselyu|
pawLIjuod pojjoiuo) pue juswabeuep | pue Buluue|dq
aq 0} ayeq | yoopinpy ybnH J1jjel] PpoSIAdY — uojsiawjed ‘esudisyuy | 02
"'sauiyoew bunpyed
}e spied uqepaipalo Aq sabieyo
Buiyied Buiked jo Ayjiqises) ay)
uo 3oeq podal 0} SIS210 JonJisul (eZ 8o1e)
0} pealbe sspIWWOD  BYL cle60’LL
ainjonJiselyu|
bupjied | pue Buiuue|d
€1L°10°22 | yosopinpy ybnH auoyd Aq Aeq jJo uoisuajxg ‘osudioug | ‘gl
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

6l

Page 445



9y} 20uUswWWod 0] SsJ=adlyo

(CETEIT)

ajeudoidde ayy jonssul 0} (1) ZL'60'LL
‘uny9|ng uoijewliou| -:poaibe sapiwwo) ay | ainjonJiselyu|
9y} uiyym papnjpoul si juodau pue Buiuueg
171022 | yoopin\ ybny | ssaiboad e ‘(z) 03 uonejpa uj MIIADY HwI paads ‘osudiauy | ¢z
"uoljelie/\ pue joesuo?)
ay} Buuspusias 1oy ugd
B yum pue suonenobau
9AOCge 8y} JO BWOooINo
3y} uo Yoeq Modal
‘pajiodaa aq Aj|nj ued ssaiboud | 0] sisoiyo Jonssul o3 (2)
alojaq 919Ao 99)3lwwiod | pue ‘Joesuon bBuisiuaapy
Puyuny e aq o) A@y os | J1Bysys sng 8y}  Joy
‘awl} awos 9ye} o0} suonenobau | wis) paonpal e bBuigaibe
Aue pojoadxa s1 3} J9)jew | JO Wie 8y} YUm [puueyd
9y} ssaiboisd 0} |s aie oym | 1eg|H ypm suonenobau
wea) [eBa7 Jno yum s si syl | JOJuUs 0} s1a0o Jonipsul 0} () (8¢ apo1ye)
-paaibe aspiwwo) ay | cle60’LL
‘Buissaiboud 1oy ainjonJiselyu|
wea} |eba 8y} yum si pue psyelp Joenuoj | pue  Bujuueld
€1°'so0’ike €1'102Z | I19yoog aibbe|y | usaq sey [puuey) Jes|) o} JejeT | BurispieApy 19}|9ys sng ‘asudisuy | ‘zg
‘'sabpeg
an|g pue sjwiad Bupped jo
‘poutad | asnsiw 8y} ssaippe 0} S82IN0sal
Buuojluow ay} jo ssaiboud | wouy Buisue suolesljduwi
oy} bBuipiebais ¢Loz Asenuep | jeoueuly  Aue  pue  suoloe
ulr ddPIWwWoH SIYy} o0} Hyoeq | ‘sainpadoid ‘saloljod yeip
jJodas 03 pue spwuad Bupjied | yuym pue asnsiw JO S|IOA3| By}
Jeuapisal 10} pouad Buliojluow | U0 JISQWIBAON Ul d3IWIWIO0YD By} (c¢ ao1ue)
yjuow saiy) Jeuonippe | 0} yoeq podal 0} SI821Y0 JonJsul ZL'60°LL
ue 9)elapun 0} si19910 Jonasul | 0) paalbe  esIWWOD By ainjonJiselyu|
0} poaaibe a9apIwWO) Y} ‘ZL0OZ pue Buiuuelg
eLoee ZL'11'90 | yoopin|\ ybnH | JaquisroN 9 uo Bunpsaw ayy 3y Adljod @snsI|y Jlwiad ‘asudisuy | Lz
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

0¢

Page 446



a3y} jo }nsal e se ydwoy
0] ydwQpg wol peoy
auays (z) pue ‘upodal
siy} Jjo uononposd a8y}
ul |IouUNo0Y allysussplaqy
yum Buiynsuod ‘jesodoud
ay} Yypm pajeloosse
sbuiysoo e pue
JUSWSDI0JUS 1O} Selswed
paads paxi} Jo uoidNpoUl
g|qissod ay} bBuipnjoul
‘ydwoy 0} ydwog woly
peaysjzeqH 0} [IIYISSAA
je Aepunoq Ayo  py6Y
3y} (1) uo ywi psads ay)
Buionpal uo ¥oeq uodal 0}
pue :sjwi paads

ydwoz Aiojepuew 0}
sjwi| paads suoz Aus|d
s,0z bunsixa bBuieauod
Jo} s}soo pue Ajjiqisesy
3y} uo >oeq uodal 0}
‘29)lLwo)

sIy} JO Bunssw
alnjny B 0} s)nsal a8y}
yodal pue juswasiuanpe
ongnd ay; yum ssaiboud
uay} ‘paniadal ale
suonoalqo jueoubls ou
J| "Wodal ay} ul paquosap
se palinbal siaplo
uoneinbal  oiesy a8y
Jo} uoine}nsuod Alojnjels
Areulwnaid jo sainpaooud
|eba) Aessadau

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

¥4

Page 447



e opew os|e pue uoljedidde ay)
panoldde sspwwo)-qns 8yl

‘Aaijod Buisnoy sjqeploye
[[eJan0 8y} pue d)s dy} Joy
uonjeoo|e Buisnoy ajqeploye ay}
passnasip 98iwwo)-qns ay |

‘(ue|d uswdojana
[eoo7 8y} Jad se spun 08z
JO Jusixe ay} 0} padojanap aq ||Im
ajis sly}) sYnD ‘peoy pjaysieli
}e  syun |g Joj} uoneoldde
ue palapisuocd ddPIWWOD-gNS

juswsabeuely juswdodAeq 8yl ZL'LL'80
SdPWwo)-qns
‘epuabe UOISIAOId BUuISNOH a|qepioyy Juswabeuep
€1'€0'6L | |]ayoog aibbey | Juasind a8y} uo si1 uodas vy | %Gz 0} bunedy  Adiod awdojpaaq | ‘Gz
‘siedal
Bunyb 31004} pue juswaned
‘peol U0} ¢€1/ZL0Z Ul 3ebpng
anuaAal a8y} ulyum puadsiapun
pajoaloid ay} Buisiin
jo Ajjiqisesy ay} uo LsdRIWIWOD
3y} 0] Yoeq Modal sI921Yo (¢ oo1uE)
jeyy pesibe espwWOD 3yl cle60’LL
ainjonJiselyu|
siieday | pue Buiuue|d
€1'102Z | yoopin ybnH bunybig jeang pue juswased ‘asudisuy | ‘g
‘'sbunsoo
pajeloosse ||e  Buipnjoul
‘uswdojonap  s|lamsbuny
‘Du0}sIaIXNH 1SN\
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

¢c

Page 448



pue  s|IMS ‘AjjigeAojdwy
uiypm - s1soyjo  jeyy  salby (61 o)
¢L'LL90
SI19pIAOId ainjonJiselyu|
Buiurei AijqeAodwg | pue Buiuuelg
€1°€0°6l ybnoug Auen [ed07] 10} yoddng ‘osudiauy | ‘gz
'ssalboid uo sapIwwo)
ay} ajepdn 0} syuow XIS ul
)oeq podal 0} SI1891Jo JoNJsul 0] (g1 sromue)
¢L'LL90
suonesadQ pue ainjonJiselyu|
juowiabeuely }9ssy ul abuey) | pue Buiuuelg
€1°60°LZ | yoopinpy ybnH [euonjewiojsuel]  buldAljdQg ‘esudisyuy | 2
"Yoeq podal
0] pue ‘ssasoid Buluue|disisew
ay} Jo ued se suoleussaldal (z ao1ue)
Bulieay 1o} |[02030.d 2111790
e dojanap 0} SJao1o jonJisul o ainjonJiselyu|
pue Buiuue|d
€L'€0'6L | |19yoog a1bbep suonendaqg ‘asudisjuy | "9z
‘Ao sy}
ul uoisinoid Buisnoy s|gepioye
asiwixew 0} JuswAed ey
JO uonenoed ay} pue ‘uswAied
pajnwwod e }dadoe 0} Ajloyine
Buiuueld oy} 1oy Sjeudosdde
SI }J usym pue uoisinoid
Buisnoy ajqeploye 9,6z 1o Aoijod
ay} uo pajussaid aq uodal e
jey} ssplwoy fd3 |y} 0} sem
YoIym JO 8UO ‘suoljepuswiwodsl
Jayuny jJo Jaqunu
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
joday | angjoday pea 9)NUIN | 'ON

€¢

Page 449



€L€06l

|[ayoog a1bbe

ul JuswidojeAaq oulqin] PUIpy
Tooueping Kejuowejddng

pue Buiuue|d
‘asudiaiug

‘1€

€L €06l

|[ayoog aibbe

"JUSWIUIBA0S) YsI}00g
0} uoIssiwgns 0} Joud aapIuwo)
0} pajodal sjnsal yum
uoneynsuod olgnd ¥88m  JInoy
B spnpul [im siy]  "Sdueping
Aejueswsiddng se uejdisisep
ayl Ames o} ssaooid 8y
Juswe|dwi 0] sIadIo 10) d3iby

uejdisjsepy bresouspiep

(L2 s1one)
cl’1190
ainjonyiseuu|
pue Buiuue|d
‘oslidiaju]

0€

€L €06l

|[ayoog a1bbep

"JUBWIUIBA0L) YsI}}00S 0}
uoissiwgns 0} Joud aapiwwo?) 0}
pauodal s)nsal Yum uoieynsuod
olignd ¥8am Inoj e apnoul |Im
sly] -eoueping Asejusws|ddng
se jyomawel{ jswdodreqg
ayy Ajes o} ssaooid oy
uswsa|dwi 0} SIaoIo 10} 2a1by

}iomawiel]
Uuo}siio]

juswidojoneq

(0Z s1on.e)
cl’1190
ainjonyiseuu|
pue Buiuue|d
‘osiidiaju]

62

‘paje|dwod usaq sey
uoljejnsuod pue uoljebiseAul
Jaypuny aouo a9alwwo)
0} Jodas JBYun} B JWQns
SJ90140 ey} aaibe pue :sispinoid
Buiuieny  AyjqeAojdwsa |e20|
Buiuoddns jo suesw wnuwiydo
3y} uo }nsuod pue ajeblysaul
Jayuny esudisjug  Ajunwwo)

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQ Joday

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

1 £

Page 450



‘PUANA MOOAIBS) ‘BoE|d Bpisaelqg

(8z a[o1ye)
(S ZLl'1L90
M3N) sjesodold pojeIoossy ainjonyiseuu|
juswidojaAnaq pue juawabeuepy | pue Buluue|d
€L'€0'61 | yoopin ybnH oljel] 9jedg |jews sSnolep ‘asudisuy | ‘e
‘pun uoiun
ueadoing ay} Agq 18s onpayos
Buiodas ay; Buimoloy ‘Ajlenuue
20mp  jdfold  JISNIN By} (Lz ®d1ye)
uo ssalboid yym aspiwwo) sy} ZL11L90
0} ¥oeq Hodal 0} SIa2110 JonJisu| ainjonyiseuu|
Allenuuy pue Buluueg
aom] | |ayoog aibbej J09loid JISNIN ‘osudioug | ‘g
‘@apiwwo) sy} Jo Bunsaw ainyny
e 0] pajasaid aq aonpe Jeip
3y} 0} Ssjuswpuawe juanbasqgns
pue [SETNEEREY SJUBILLIOD
Aue ‘uoneynsuod olgnd ayp jo
uona|dwod Buimojjo) jeyy aaiby (gz some)
cl’11L90
S100(J pue SMOPUIA\ ainjonyiseuu|
JOo juswadejday pue Jieday | pue Buluue|dq
€L'€0'6l | [ayoog aIbbe 9yl :9JON 92IApY [EDIUYId] ‘asudisuy | 'zg
‘a9)lwwo) sy} Jo Bunsaw ainyny
e 0} pajuasaid aq aosuepinb yeip
3y} 0} Ssjuswpuawe juanbasqgns
pue [SETNEEREY SJUBWILLIOD
Aue ‘uonjeynsuod juensjal ayj Jo
uona|dwod Buimojjo) jeyy aaiby (yZ sro1e)
cl’11L90
K15 usapiaqy ainjonyiseuu|
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

G¢

Page 451



E=EN[10[10e]e)}

siy} jo bBunesw aininy e

0} yoeq podas pue saoeds

Buiyyed obpeg on|g jo

1sl| 8y} Joy Japio uoljenbal

oljjes} 8y} JO} uole}NSuod

Aiojnje)s paulquod

3y} 92USBWWOD 0} SIAIYOo

aleudoidde sy} 1onJisuj (2)
‘P9pIwwo)

sIy} JO Bunssw

alnjny B 0} s)nsal a8y}

Jodas pue juswasiuaApe

olgnd ay; yum ssaiboud

uay} ‘paniadal alam

suoloalqo jueoyiubis ou

J| "wodas ay} ul paquosap

se paJinbal slapio

uoneinbal  oyen  ay)

Jo} uolneynsuod Alojnjels

Areuiwaid jo sainpaooud

|eba) Aessadau

3y} 92UBWWOD 0} SIBIYOo

a)eudoidde oy} 1onJisu| (1)

"peoy uojbulliopA
‘S|~ uospineq  ‘ssowalbniy
‘anuany Mledspieg - uadojens(q
ayl Aq pspunj aq 0} sjesodolid
‘peoy ulngisspn ‘uonoune
19a1)S  UMOJ) f18aN)S  uolun
‘aoe|d 9|INuely ‘19ans abioen
/1ea11S Allage| ‘peoy ssaus|plio)

{umouy J1)
pajoadx3

jiodoy

anQg jJodoy

(S)495130
pea

(p1oq ur seyepdn mau) ayepdn

uoIsioag e9RIwwo)

EEEIEIEY]

anuipy

ON

9¢

Page 452



bunsaw 1o} Absjens s 1ouno)
ay} Buipiebal asIwwo)
ainnisenu]  pue  Buluueld
‘asudisjug ay} jo Bunssw xau
3y} 0} uodal 0} si9210 }sanbal
0] PpPaAj0Sal  @8/jlLWo) 8yl

ToquedeQg G Jo

29plwwio) qnS juswabeuep (g o1o1E)
9)SE\\ 0J9Z WOJ} [elld)oy -— 212190
S92} [1Duno) Aj1H udapiaqy $92In0saYy
je CETTELE bui9A%ay | pue aoueul4 | ‘¢
"siapjoysyels
JueAs|al ypm uolje)nsuod
Bujeuspun Jaye ueq Atelodws)
ay} Jo joedwi 8y} U0 d_PIWWOD
ay} Jo Bunsaw xau ay) 0] yoeq
yodal 0} pue asue swsjqolid
JI ueq Aselodws} a8y} anowsal (9¢ so1ue)
0} pssuoyine aq sSIa0I0 eyl ¢l'bL90
ainjonJiselyu|
uondung | pue Buiuue|d
€1'1022 | yoopin ybnH joad})s  piin9ALans 19iepN ‘asudisuy | ‘9¢
‘Juswabebus
lapjoyayels pue algnd
Buipnjour Ayanoe jo swuweiboid
pajsabbns e yym aapiwwo) siy}
0} Yoeq uodal 0} pue Absjens
podsues] |eoo07 8y} Jo ysaual (zs sromue)
€ Sjeniul 0} SI3a0Yo  Jonijsu| ¢l'bL90
‘Hodaua ayepdn Jodsues | alnjonJselu|
€10z Atenuepr ayj} ul papnjoul Abajesys uonejodsuel] | pue Buiuuelg
€1'€0'6L | |IByoog aibbey | @q |  swwesboid esp vy | [€D0T] JO ysaijoy ‘osudisuy | 'g¢
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jyoday | anQjioday pea 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

LC

Page 453



*AjJuo uonew.ojul
Jo} @apiwwo) gng juswabeuew
3)SE\\A 0Jd7Z 8y} 0} papiwqgns
aq uodal siy} jey} Jayealay} pue
sosiwaid [1ouno) ul  uoisinoud
Buiphoal 1o} sjuswalinbal

ane|siba) Buipuadwi ay}
(umouy J1)
po3oadxg (s)a921130 (p1oq uir sajepdn mau) ayepdn UoISI29(g 99 IWwio) EREYETENY
jJoday | onQgyoday peaT 9)NUIl\ | 'ON

8¢

Page 454



Anoanda ltarm Q 2

I‘\HUI A 1Lo111 J.4o

SSNOSIp 0] ‘PAAJOAUI SaljlIoyINe
snouen oy} Jo dn aspew
dnolg Bulsalg ay} Jo Bunsaw
e pue ‘JaAsmoy djgejiene
19A jou siI Apnjs jey) jo Adoo
pasijeul \y ‘|louno) snbuy Aq
pauolssiwwod Apnis Ajjiqises;
e Jo sBuipuly 8y} uo aapIWWo)
SIy} O} >oeq Hodas sia210
leyy sem bBupesw Asenuer

IsLe @y 0} 0€0/2L/Id3 Hodal
ayl jo (q) uonepuswwoosy

"81no. ay} Jo Juawdojanap
ay) ojul UOISSILIWOD
0] papusjul |1Iouno) snbuy
jey} uodas e jo sbBuipuly
3y} U0 SS8%al Jawwns
ay) laye a9 IWWOo)
ainyonJisesyu] pue Buluue|d
‘osudislug ey} 0} Yoeq
Hodal 0} si90140 jonasul (1)

pue pamoje
$90IN0sal alaym (Jepo4
ur pley Jey os) sbunssw

‘sly} Buinaiyoe
JO ]S09 [eIoUBUL BY} SE ||[9M
se ‘ Aepp ysiold, pasodoud
ay) isodubis pue ysiigejsa
0} paJsinbal sjoadse
Buipuejsino ayy buielsp
Jenoiyed ul pue ‘uonow
ay} Jo swia) ayy Buipiebal

S9PIWWOD  aInjonJisenu|
pue bBuiuueld ‘esudisjug
ay}y Jo bBupsaw xau
3y} 0} yoeq Modal s1921y0
leyy pue ‘Aepy ysioid,
3y} Jo  juswysigeiss
ay) Buissnosip

Apeasje sem yoiym dnou
Bulieays Aepp aliysyued

. papuny aq 1ybiw 108(oid
siyl  yomym ur  shem
pue opiseag EIA yuad
0} a4 woy — Aepp
alysypad pue apisee(
leAoy 8yl - ypedjooy
aouejsip Buo| e ‘1ouno)
SSOJUly pue ypsd pue

[[oUN0D  alysuasplaqy
ypm diysiauped
ul ‘Buidojenap

10 Augisesy sy

Page 455

S|

dnoi Buuss)g puspe pue pue snbuy ‘apisea( yjog uo uodal e asedalid
siauped Aq Aepp ysnoid [eAoy oy} ur ajedioied 0} SJ921)J0 onasul
3y} uo  sjswdojansp 0} SJ1901y40 }senbai 0} soalbe [1oUN0D
ZL'LL'90 Juswdojena( | Jojluow 0} s18214o jonasul (1) | 03 ‘sbuiyy Jayjo ‘ysbuowy A1D  ueepiaqy leyy,
anp MON a|qeuleisng -:0}
pue Buluue|d | paAjOosal 8aIWWOY) 3Y} ‘ZL0Z L1 60°Cl 2Injonisenu] MNA
ON| ZLSO'LE JO peaH | Aenuep ¢ uo Buieaw sy )y | pue buluuelg esudidjug | |0’ /LZ| Ioiouno)  AQ  UOION 1
£31S1] wouy
_uonow ERINYELS —_— 99)3IWIWIOY) JO UOISIOAP jajep bunasiy
speot | 3Eaena 1o (S)PeoH uohov i| fPunon UOTON | ON
wﬂ_ﬂﬁ% asna m_hﬂm._cow% aimng pasocold / Usye} uonay 0} poiiajal UOON mmz_EEon“ _% Bl N

¢10¢ 19qUWIBAON 90 — LSIT SNOILOI
FUNLONYLSVHANI ANV ONINNVId ‘ISIdHILNT



ON

42 N2>

suoneladQ pue
Juswabeuel

19SSy JO pesH

alojdxa 0} si92140 }senbal 0}
PaAj0Sal @apiwwo) 8y} ‘ZL0Z
Arenuep ¢ uo Bunssw sy 1y

1 1°'60°Cl @injonijselju|

pue buluueld ‘esudisjug

1180 /L

[IINA

ojouno)  Aq

UOTOIN

"19)}ealay)
pasiuebio Bunosw
e aq o} Ay s1  aiay)
pue Aienuepr ul 991WIWOD
19y} o) bBuiobh s1 jodaua
e Jng panpayss Apuauind
Bupoaw ou sI Ay
jey} pajesipul sey snbuy
ur dnoug bHBuuesls Y
pasiuebio oym uosiad ayj

"108loud ayy
ul pabebua aie ajnou
ay} bBuoje sanuoyne
e [13un uonoe
Jaypny ou aye} Inq
alnol aouelsip Buoj ayy
Jo 9|diouud ay) poddns  (q)
pue ‘podai
3y} JO Jualuod By} ajou (e)
— 99jlWwo) 3ayj ey}
-:pOAj0SaI 99)IWWO0D

‘2102 JOqWIBaAON
Buneew sy

ay)
a9 o

‘Bunyeaw JaquianoN Y19
ay} 0} pajussald aq [Im podal
e jey) pasodoisd alojoiay} si
) -ooe|d aye} 0} 194 sI ‘piemioy
Aem e oaibe pue sbuipuly ayy

Page 456

23S wox
uonow
3Aowal
0} 3ybnos
Kyoyyne
S

ajeq ong

ERIIVELS

10 (S)peaH
a|qisuodsay

uonoy
aInjng pasodold |/ uaye} uondy

99)IWILL0) JO UOISIdap [o)ep
I

0} poiiojal UONOJ 99pIWWio)

Buneapy
[louno)
40 9jeQ

UonoN




3y} Buimojoy peoy
lywoosg uo sAamins
Buysed pue awn|oA
‘peads Jaypn) ayeuspun

0} SJaolyjo }sanbal 0} pue (9)
pue ‘awlj Siy} }e usaye}

aq uonoe ou ley) salbe (q)
‘ojenidosdde aq jou pjnom
peoy |ywooig bHuoje
SADH/SADT  bBunousal
‘aJnoJ ybnouy} e se peoy
lywoosg Buisn aiam
ey} SAOH jo abejusosad
[lews Aj@reuoipodoud
3y} pue MIomjdu peol
3y} ulypm peoy |jiywoolig
Jo aouepodwi olbsjel)s

ay} uanlb ‘jey; oaibe (e)

-:0}

PaAjOSaI 98pIWWOY 8y} ‘2102

Aepy L¢ uo Bupesw sy 1y

"yoea JO uolPNpoUUl BY)
JO suoneoldwi ay} se ||om se
‘suoijdo asay} uoO S3IPIWWOYD
ainyoniselu] pue Buluueld
‘osudisjug 8y} jo bBunssw
aininj e 0} yoeq uodas 0} pue
‘pEOY [[lywooig uo sjuapisal
JO SuleouU0D By} ssalppe
0} ‘uonowisal ybiem lJo/pue
ypim ssaooe Jo) 1daoxs, ue
JO uononposul a8y} bBuipnjoxa
Jou ‘g|gejiene suondo Jayjo

E=EEN[10[10e]e)}
ainjonJiselyu| pue
Buluue|q ‘esudisjug ayy jo
Buiyeaw aininy e 0} uonow
3y} JO swid} 8y} uo upodal

« ONI(
uosispuy Uyinog pue
}9a11S uIngoH Uu®amiaq

peoy  |lywooig  jo
[|le JO swos uo uoljoL)sal
UIpIM 10 yBram
Ssa00e  J0j}  1dooxs,

ue JO uolonNpoul 3y} UO
aaplwwoo  ajeudoidde
ay} 0} uodai 0}
SJ201140 S}ONJISUl |IDUNOY
‘@lnoJ ybnoiyy e se peoy
llywoosg Buisn sADH
AQ pesneo sannoiyip
Buiobuo sy} uanib eyy,

Page 457

23S wox
uonow
3Aowal
0} 3ybnos
Kyoyyne
S

ajeq ong

ERIIVELS

10 (S)peaH
a|qisuodsay

uonoy
aInjng pasodold |/ uaye} uondy

0} sJaoyo 1senbasl o]
99)3IWIWI0) JO UOISIJAP [3)ep bunss
] [1ounoy
0} pa.idja1 UONOJ\ 29PIWW0D) Jo ajeq

UonoN

€



juswdojanaq

Jo uoljelapIsuod
ay} (2) oy Hiom
e pue Aiojsiy Hiom
e Jo judwdojanap
pue aouanadxa
‘Buluresy jo abejueape
oy Yyim - j9ylewl
gol ay} ojuo pasesjad
9q J9yjo a9y} pue
juswhojdwa awn ||}
paiajo aq uosiad auo
JeaA pies jo pua ayj je
pue Ajuo ieak 3si1y ay)
10} aq pjnoys ,bunieys
qofl, yons jeyy pue
suonisod ajeradoidde
JO }oadsal ul sidaAed)|
|Jooyss o} ,bulieys qol,
Jo uoisuaixa ayy (1)
apn|doul 0} P IWWOoH
ay) 0} podal
e jwqgns siao1jo0 jeyy (1)
-:poA|OSal 93} IWIWO0D

93))IWIWO0Y 3INjonJiselyu|
pue bBuluueld ‘esudisjug
ay} Jo bBupnssw ainny
B 0} uoljow 3y} JO SWwlis}
3y} uo uodal e jpwqgns
0] sI901yo 3isenbas o)

. suonesiuebio ayeaud
pue olgnd jueAsjal ypm
uol}e}NSUOI Ul Usaplaqy
Jo} ABajens juswAhojdwa
yjnoA e dojenap
0} soalbe  |1ouno),

Page 458

ssauisng | ayj ‘2102 JaqwianoN Z1°60 1| 2Injonnisenuy| UOSUMO JO[|Iouno)
ON gLroee | 8 olwouody | .9 uo Bupssw s} )y | pue buluued Ssudieug | Z1'90°¢l AQ UOIO| JO ®OION | '€
‘epuabe
juaiind ayj uo si jpodas y
"uolew.oul
Siy  ypm  S3PIWWOH
3y} 0} >oeq uodal
pue Buissolo uiynd mau
ay} Jo uonejuswsajdwil
¢3sl] wo.y
% 9JIAISS ToTET] 99)IWIWI0) JO UOISIDaP /o)ep bunaspy
ojybnos | redend |n_|m_%m=~w_omwn 3inng pasodoid | USYE] UoRdY o7 PaIIaIeI UOTION aaz_EEom _h_|w=mmmm sl |
Kjoyyne : : :
§|

14



0} M3IA B ypum ‘sjesodoud
anoqe ay} Bunuawajdwi 1oy
suondo snoulieA Buissnasip
Apuaiuino ale SI991140

*£319 ay3 ul sawayss
diysaonuaidde

9Y} JO uoneIdPISUOD
apnjoul osje
Jodal anoqe ay} jey;
pue {Aio}siy yiom

e Jo jusawdojanap
pue Buiulesy way)
Buipioye pue dnoib
obe pjo Jeak gL-9] 9y}
ulyym juswAhojdwaun
Buionpau

Agaiayy ‘sysod
yons jo ieak jsiy ayj
10} sid9Aed| |OOYyIS jJo
joadsal ul salouedeA
qof  9|qeyns 0}
o|diound Buneys qol,
e Bbuifjdde ui siauped
sy }sBbuowe peg|
ay} Bunje} [1PUNOYH
A1y  uespiaqy o
suonesidwi |eloueuly

pue Apqisesy
ay yoieasal
0} pue 9|doad
BunoA jo jusawAhojdwa

Buiseasoul
10} saniunjoddo

(m)

Page 459

23S wox
uonow
3Aowal
0} 3ybnos
Kyoyyne
S

ajeq ong

ERIIVELS

10 (S)peaH
a|qisuodsay

uonoy

ainjng peasodoid |/ uaye)

uonoy

99)3IWIWI0) JO UOISIJAP [3)ep bunss
] [1ounoy
0} pa.idja1 UONOJ\ 29PIWW0D) Jo ajeq

UonoN

g



€102
Kienuer 2z uo Bunsasw ayy

0} Jodal e Jjwqgns 0} dJoM

98l aINjonJIsesu|
pue bBuluueld ‘esudisug
ay} Jo bBunssw ainny
e 0} uoljow 3y} JO Swls)
3y} uo yodas e jpwqgns
0} sJaoyo 1senbas o]

« XN 3Y} pue puepods
ur aleymesje bBunelado
sawdyds yons jnoge
uoljewsojul apnjoul
0} )o8s pjhoys uodal
sly} yey} pue Bumub pue
Buues|o mous ayeuspun
0} Alessaoau juawdinba
pue s|eusjew ay)
UM  sSaljlunwiwiod  |eoo]
Buipinoud  jo  Ayjiqisesy
ay) uo 99))IWWO0D
ajendoidde ay) 03 podal
0] SI92IYO Jonusul 0}
aaibe |1ouno)H siy} jeyl,

Page 460

suonjesadQ | s192140 3jey} poaibe sem
9 Juswabeuel |} ‘TLOZ J9qWIBAON 9 UO Z1 60 L | 2inonisenu| [INA IO|I2UN0D
ON gLoee Jjossy | Bupeaw a9)wwoy 8y} jy | pue buluueld osudisiug | Z1'80°2¢ AQ UONJO\ JO 9O110N S
.Sableyd
Bupped Aepung 19848
99)ILIWOY aINoNSeu| uo Buipus/buinowal
pue bBuluueld ‘esudisug jo suoneoldwi
ay} Jo bBupnssw ainny pue Ajjqgisesy
e 0} uoljow 3y} JO SWls) ay} uo uodal 0} sIa1Yo
3y} uo uodal e jwqgns sjonJjsul [1Iouno9,,
0} sJaoyo 1senbas o]
suolneladp Hema)s
Q Juswabeuey ‘epuabe Z1 60 L | 2inonisenu| J3JIUUS 10JIduno)
SOA €1°10°22 Jossy | Jualind ay} uo si uodas y | pue buiuueld osudidiug | Z1°'80°22 AQ UONON JO 92110N b
‘Bunsaw
o9piwwo) 1°d3 Ixau
9y} o0} uodais e Buiwqgns
£1S1| wouy
uonou —
ouou>o|m.__“h%“ °jed °hd 10 Hmmo_ﬂmw_m ainjn asodou uaye % o \oumJ __u_”_hw_w_u UORON | ON
% 3|qisuodsay 4P d [ usxe Bov 0) palidjal UOHOJ\ d9iluwio) Jo 93eq
SI

9



uswdojanaqg

pue bBuluueldq ‘esudisju]
ay} jJo bBunssw ainny
e 0} uoljow 3y} JO Swls)
3y} uo yodas e jpwqgns
0} sJaoyo 1senbas o]

0] s$@2IAI8s snq bBuluans

jo [EMEIPYNIM ay}
oedwi 8y} je uIsdu0d
sassaldx] I

Page 461

a|qeuleisng ‘epuabe Z1 60 L | 2inonisenu| [[INA JOJ|IdUN0Y)
ON ZL'LL90 | B Buluue|d | Juasind ay} uo siI podas Yy | pue buiuueld @sudidjug | 7218022 AQ UOIO JO 920N ]
eale Ajuoyine |eao|
}ey} Ssouoe saljunwwod
0] (spuaeam e pue
sbuiuana ul  Buipnjoul)
SOINBS sSng JO |9A9)
olseq e apinoid o) eale
Ajioyine |eoo| Jejnoiued
B U S8dIM8S  sn(
9y} JO %0G uey} alow
Buipinosd uojesado snq
Aue alinbais pjnom yoiym
.uonebijgo asines algnd,
B 90NpoJjul 0} SBJINISS
olqnd pajnpayos
Buipinoud siojesado snq
Jo}j awibai Aiojenbal ay)
99l aINjonJisesu| ur abueyo e Joj Buled
pue Buiuueldq ‘esudisju] SdSIN S.usspiaqy pue
ay} Jo bBunssw ainny JUBWUIBA0) ysijpoos
e 0} uolow 8y} JO swls) ay} 0} alIm 0} soealbe
3y} uo yodas e jpwqgns [1oUN0D sIy} reul,
0} sJaoyo 1senbas o]
Juswdojenag auoje|\ pue Aaueje(
a|qeule}sng ‘epuabe 21 60 | | 2injoniseiu| INA SIOJIduUNo)
SOA ZL'LL90 | B Buluue|d | Juasind ay} uo si podas Yy | pue buiuueld @sudidjug | 7218022 AQ UOIO JO 92I10N o)
¢3sl] wo.y

uoljouwl [

%w:?_ 9JIAISS ToTET] 93)IWWO) JO UOISIOaP [33ep. bunaspy _
o} jybnos 9iea sna J0_TSJpesH ainjng pasodoid / uaye) uonody / 11uUnoy Uonol | "oN
KITOUINE 3|qisuodsay : 0) palidjal UOHOJ\ d9iluwio) Jo 93eq

SI

L



soA

¢l'1190

8

juswdojanaq
a|qeuleisng
Buluueg

‘epuabe
jualiind ayj uo si uodas y

93))IWIWO0Y 3INjoNJiselyu|
pue bBuluueld ‘esudisjug
ay} Jjo bBunssw ainny
e 0} uoljow 3y} JO SwIs}
3y} uo yodas e jywqgns
0] sI901y0 Jsenbas o)

Z1'60°L | ainjoniselu
pue buiuuelg ‘esudisjug

¢l80°¢c

Japongaibiern
pue p|aleas wou}
[eMBIPYUM 10} P3INPaYos
ale  yolym  SaoINIBS
snq 98y} Jo} $92IN0S
Buipuny BuiAyuapl
uo podas e saonpold
[PUN0H siy} eyl

Blal5) 1o[jlouno)
AQ UONIOI JO 910N

2a)ILuWOo) ainonJselyu]

. ©oINBs papoddns

e yons Buipuny
Jo} suondo uo podal
layuny o} pue |eyluy
0] 92IN8s shq Buluans
pauoddns [1ounon
Ao e Buonposjul Jo
1500 Aj@y| pue Ajjiqisesy
ay} uo 99))IWWO0D
jueas|al ay} o} uodas 0}
SJ20IJo  sjonssu| Z
"9WOS 10} Uol}e|os!
pasealoul
‘Aylunwiwiod
sjuapisal

lleyAiry

[e100s
Buipnjoul
ey} jo

uo aAey [IM

Page 462

23S wox
uonow
3Aowal
0} 3ybnos
Kyoyyne
S

ajeq ong

ERIIVELS

10 (S)peaH
a|qisuodsay

uonoy
aInjng pasodold |/ uaye} uondy

99)IWILL0) JO UOISIdap [o)ep

/
0} poiiojal UONOJ 99pIWWio)

Buneapy
[louno)
40 9jeQ

UonoN

8



uswdojanaqg

‘'si9pean
dnoig yyum jodw o0} wiy
Buniaul a9)siulpy Modsueld]
9y} O} Juds uaa(q sey Ja)aT

"ajou
Buyauq obueys aolAISS
snq e ybnouyy siaquaw
O} paplemioj aq [|Im [le}dp
layung ‘g0z Asenigag
u isa4 Aq pabueyd
Bulaq ale pue pomalaal
usa(q 9AeY SOIIAIBS dpIY
9 Jled ‘Auoud jo Japew
e se Jdsiulpy pModsues]
oy} yym Bunossw e Hass
0} pajonJjsul aq Si19914}0 Jey)
paaibe sapiwwo) ayy ‘ZL02
laquaAroN ,9 uo Buposw
sy je ‘(¢) o} uoneds uj

"Jojesedwod e se pasn
8Qq ued SIY} Jey} 0s ‘Malnal
}ompu a8y} oaouls abesn
d®d JO EJEpP syjuow | jses| je
aAey am |un yem o} asodoud
am ‘pabueste aq 0} SI Y¥d
ssnosip 0} Bunesw oywads
Jayuny Y "S80IAIBS  Y%d
jo @ouepodwi sy} payybiybiy

‘A)o
8y} Sssoloe  sauanbaly
snq ul suolonpal
JUS2al SSNOSIp 0} SiopeaT
dnoig pue Ja)sIuI
yodsuel] ay} yum Bunssw
B Y99S 0} OAINdaX3
$21yg a8y} sponusul (g) pue
‘siy} Buinaiyoe ul ajol Jisy)
pue oljes} Jalnwwod Aq
pasned uonsabuod sonpal
0} JOpIO Ul SBIINIBS 3pIY B
3led 9A08y9 10} pasu ay)
asiseydwa 0} usaplaqy
}siiq Upm Bunesw
B Y99S 0} SI901)0 SsjonJjsul
(2) ‘Arewiyu) [eAoy
ussplaqy e s|jemsbury
wioJ} 92IAISS apiy ¥ Yied
3y} 9jeulwla) 0} UuoISIoap
s.uaaplaqy 1sii{ slaibal

(1) pounody sy} eyl

-:uonow
ay} 0} Juswpuswe
Buimoj|oy ay} ydope
0] poalbe  saRIWWOY
3y} 9djon e  bBuimojo4

. ussplaqy
ul saloljod uoneuodsuely
|[euoneu pue
|EDO| UO JBAI[SP O} aln|ie}
s, uaaplaqy isii4 pue Auo
3y} ssouoe salouanbaly
snq ul suolonpal
Juadal SsnasIp
0] siapea] dnoig
pue Jajsiull podsuel |
3y} ypm Bunsaw
B )838S 0} 9AI}n08xX]
PBIYD 8y} spnaisu|
‘siy} Buinaiyoe
ul 9|04 118y} pue diyel)
Jajnwwod Aq pasneod
uonsebuod aonpal
0] J19pJO Ul SBIINISS
9Pl 8 Mled OAOS|YS
Jo} paau ay} asiseydwa
0} ueepiaqy  1sli4
ypm Bunssw e yass 0}
SJa0Io sjonJisu| Z
‘Aewyu| jeAoy
usapiaqy le s|amsbury
woJy  9oIAIBS apiy
9 Yled 98y} ojeulwls}
0] UOISIDdp S,udaplaqy
1sd14 salojdaq I
-:|PuUNOY siyl jey ],

Page 463

a|qeule}sng | pue }sii4 YlIM sulaouod pasiel 21 60 | | 2injoniseiu| Asues(g 1ojjivuno)

ON ZL'LL'90 | ® Buiuue|d | Apeasje  aney sieoO (2) | pUe bBuluueld esudislug | Z1'80'22 AQ UOIJO\ JO 9O110N 6

é3isl] wouy
uonou —
|m|§ ajeq ang JO ‘omo_ﬂ“w_m UoHOY PORILIHeD Jo HOoSIosk \oumum __g_“_hw_w_u UONOIN | 'ON
03 Jyonos a|qisuodsay aimingj pasodold / UsYe} uoRdy 0} palldjol UOIOJ\ S9PI0) wo ayeq .
Kyioyne ’ : ’
§|

6



puegpeo.q anosdwi
Al@Bny m yorym Buipuny
solI) pejsuuo) Jadng
uoljjiw 0G3 3y} jo aleys
B usapleqy pleme 0}
“Jajjew uoISIOBp S JUBWUIBAOL)
SIy} uo a3PIWWoY 3y Jo wopbury  psyun 8y}
Buneaw xau ay} o0} podal SOWOo|dM  93IWIWOD
B Jwqgns 0} pajonisul alnjonJiselyu| pue
aQ sJao1jo jey) 1senbal o Buluue|d ‘osudiajul,
wswdojanaq
ssauisng ‘ui9jingq uoijew.ojul ¢l L1190 aJnoniisenu] | ¢1°¢1'90 uoswoy| Jojjiouno)
ON cLL0zz | olwouooy | Y} ul paurejuod si podaa y | pue buluuelq osudisjug - I'9d3 AQ UONON JOOJION | “L1
. suoneoidde
Buiuue|d yum
Buieap 10} sio}EDIPUI
aouewopad Bunsasw
Upm Jsisse 0} peajsul <
snbny |ea pue aunp ©
ale| ul pjay aq sbunssw ~
)
1ey uonsabbns o))
e ym ‘Anp ur pay L
Buieq sbunesw pione
0] Se 0S 33IWWo)
‘Jajjew -gng Juswabeue|
SIY} U0 B1BPIWWOYD By} Jo A 9y) jo sbunssw
Bunsaw xau ay} o0} uodal alnjny  Buinpayoss  Jo
B Jwqgns 0} pajonisul Ajpqissod ayy siapisuod
aQ sJao1jo jey) }senbal o [1oUN0D sIy} reul,
SOOINIBS Hemas
Jljeloowag ‘epuabe Z1 1190 ainjonisenu| J3JIUUS 10JIduno)
SOA €10z ® [eba | juauind ayj uo si jodasd y | pue buluuelq @sudidjug | ZL'0L'0) AQ UOIO\ JO @2IION | 0l
¢3sl] wo.y
uonou —
ouou>o|m.__“h%“ °jed °hd 10 Hmmo_ﬂmw_m ainjn asodou uaye} % o \oumJ __u_”_hw_w_u UORON | ON
% 3|qisuodsay 4P d [ usi Bov 0) palidjal UOHOJ\ d9iluwio) Jo 93eq
SI

ol



« pueqgpeo.q

}sepadns Buiney
uaspJaqy 0} sjyauaq ay)
Buiou 94‘3 jJo Bunesw
Xau a8y} o0} uodas e
pJemio) Buuq 0} si921)j0
sjonJsul s9alLwo)
‘wopbury] payun bBuouis
e jo ued Buisq woly
sjjouaq usspIaqy MOy
JO BouUspIAS® JByun} Sl
UOISIOBP  S,JUBWUIBAOD)
N 3y} ey}
S8J0OU Jayun) 83IWWo))
“Ymoub ssauisnq
mau alnsua pue
JuUswWjSaAuUl aindas ‘sqol
aindas ‘jseg YUON 8y
Ul @oUapPyUOd SSaUISNq
}sooq |m  pueqpeolq
}sepadns  Jo uoisinoid
ay} ey seasiubooal
os|e d9a)lLIWo)
‘qny  ABisua  |eqolb
e se pue ashoy Jamod
OlWOU02S SN 9y} se
ussplaqy jo uoniubooal
S JUSWUIBA0D)

MN dY} SMOYS UuoIsIoap
sly} ey} seasiubooal
Aliny adplwwo)
‘AJ10 8y} ssoloe abelanod
M O pue spaads

Page 465

23S wox
uonow
3Aowal
0} 3ybnos
Kyoyyne
S

ajeq ong

ERIIVELS

10 (S)peaH
a|qisuodsay

uonoy

aInjng pasodold |/ uaye} uondy

99)3IWIWI0) JO UOISIJAP [3)ep bunss
] [1ounoy
0} pa.idja1 UONOJ\ 29PIWW0D) Jo ajeq

UonoN

Ll



uswdojanaqg

"99lWwo)
ainjonyiseuu|

pue Buiuuelg
‘aslidiajug ay}

0} uoljow 8y} Jdjal 0}

pue ‘Juawanoidwi
urebepney ay}
Buipiebal slapeaT
[IPUNOD puE Wiy ypm
Bunssw e Bunsanbal
umolg yjiay 0} alIm
0} SJ92I0 JOoNJISul 0}

()

(1)

.’ uibaq o} paia|ppIN

jo uoljessusabal
pajeme Buo| ay} moje
p|nom sjuswanoldwi

ajelpawiw|
‘610 [un jiem o} aney
Jou pnoys uasplaqy

Jo ajdoad ay} jey} asijeal
pue jeswiy urebepney
ay} Je pakejop
uaaq Buiney siseq
Alep e uo sJa)nwwod
AqQ  peoe}  swajqoud
ay} ajenaidde Ajains |Im
umoug J\ “juswarosdwi
urebepneH ay} Aouabin
JO Jejjew e se piemioy
Bulbuuq uo sispeaT
[PUNO) pue Wiy yim
Buneasw e Bunsanbal
Jaisiuly  Modsuel] a8y
umolg yuay 0} ajum 0}
saalbe |1ouno) ay} jeyl,

Page 466

a|qeuleisng uojnog IojjIduno)

ON| ¢€1'10Zz|% Buluueld Z1 2161 —1PUNoy | zL'zL'6L | A UOROJ JO S9WON | 'Z)

Z3SI| woly
_uonow ERITNELS — 99310 JO UOISIDAp /ajep bunasiy

saroo | 3EQena Jo (SIpeaH Honoy j| Punon UOHON | ON
03 34bnos a|qisuodsay aimnj pasodold | udye} uonoy 0} poli9ja1 UONO|\ do)RIWwio) wo ayeq .
Kuoyine : : :

S|

¢l



Agenda Iltem 10.1

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 467



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 472



Agenda Iltem 10.2

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 473



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 478



	Agenda
	3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 6 November 2012
	3.2 Minute of Special Meeting of 6 December 2012
	4.1 Notice of Motion by Councillor Malone - Referred from Council on 19 December 2012
	4.2 Notice of Motion by Councillor Greig - Referred from Council on 19 December 2012
	4.3 Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart - Removing/Ending On Street Sunday Parking Charges
	4.4 Motion by Councillor Jennifer Stewart - Future Meetings of the Development Management Sub-Committee
	4.5 Joint Motion by Councillors Yuill, Delaney and Malone - Regulatory Regime for Local Bus Services
	4.6 Motion by Councillor Yuill - Restrictions that Would Prevent Heavy or Large Goods Vehicles from Using Broomhill Road as a Through Route.
	5.1 Capital Monitoring - Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure Projects
	5.2 2012/13 Revenue Budget Monitoring
	EPI.12.264 - Revenue Appendix

	6.1 Twinning & International Partnerships
	6.2 Sponsorship of Business Awards
	6.3 Community Festive Fund - 2011 and 2012
	6.4 International Trade Plan 2013-2014
	6.5 Aberdeen Digital Connectivity Update Report
	7.1 Aberdeen Local Development Plan -  Development Plan Scheme
	EPI-12-257 - Appendix 1 - Aberdeen Local Development Plan - development plan scheme
	EPI.12.257 - Appendix 2 - Aberdeen Local Development Plan Œ Abe

	7.2 Aberdeen Local Development Plan Policy on Affordable Housing Requirements for New Development
	7.3 Adoption of Supplementary Guidance in Support of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan
	EPI.12.262 - Appendix 1 - Adoption of Supplementary Guidance in support of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan
	EPI.12.262 - Appendix 2 - Adoption of Supplementary Guidance in support of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan

	7.4 Strategic and Local Transportation Projects Update Report
	8.1 Various Small Scale Traffic Management and Development Associated Proposals (New Works)
	8.2 Informal Consultation for Traffic Calming in the Neighbouring Streets around the Oakbank Residential Development - Mid Stocket Road
	EPI.12.275 - Appendix 1 - Informal consultation for traffic calming in the neighbouring streets around Oakbank residential development -  Mid Stocket Road

	8.3 The Bush, Peterculter - Proposed Road Closure
	EPI.12.276 - Appendix 1 - The Bush
	EPI.12.276 - Appendix 2 - The Bush
	EPI.12.276 - Appendix 3 - The Bush

	8.4 Forresterhill and Garthdee - Proposed Revisions to On-Street Parking Charges
	EPI.12.280 - Appendix 1 - Proposed revisions to on street parking charges for Forresterhill and Garthdee
	EPI.12.280 - Appendix 2 - Proposed revisions to on street parking charges for Forresterhill and Garthdee

	8.5 Restrictions that Would Prevent Heavy Goods Vehicles from using Morningside Road, Cranford Road and Duthie Terrace as through routes.
	8.6 Proposed Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone Extension
	9.1 Committee Business Statement
	9.2 Motions List
	10.1 Airyhall and Craigiebuckler Bus Services
	10.2 Aberdeen Renewable Energy Group Update Report

